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                                                  ------------------------------
                                                           OMB APPROVAL
                                                  ------------------------------
                                                  OMB Number:          3235-0287
                                                  Expires:      January 31, 2005
                                                  Estimated average burden
                                                  hours per response ....... 0.5
                                                  ------------------------------

                     U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
                             Washington, D.C. 20549

                                     FORM 4

                  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

     Filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
       Section 17(a) of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 or
               Section 30(h) of the Investment Company Act of 1940

[_] Check this box if no longer subject of Section 16. Form 4 or Form 5
    obligations may continue. See Instruction 1(b).

(Print or Type Responses)
================================================================================
1. Name and Address of Reporting Person*

   Alpine Capital, L.P.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   (Last)                  (First)                 (Middle)

   201 Main Street, Suite 3100
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                    (Street)

   Fort Worth,                       Texas               76102
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   (City)                           (State)              (Zip)

================================================================================
2. Issuer Name AND Ticker or Trading Symbol

   San Juan Basin Royalty Trust (SJT)
================================================================================
3. IRS Identification Number of Reporting Person, if any (Voluntary)

================================================================================
4. Statement for Month/Day/Year

   04/23/03
================================================================================
5. If Amendment, Date of Original (Month/Day/Year)

   N/A
================================================================================
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6. Relationship of Reporting Person to Issuer
   (Check all applicable)

   [_]   Director                             [X]   10% Owner
   [_]   Officer (give title below)           [_]   Other (specify below)

================================================================================
7. Individual or Joint/Group Filing (Check Applicable Line)

   [_] Form Filed by One Reporting Person
   [X] Form Filed by More than One Reporting Person

================================================================================
           TABLE I -- NON-DERIVATIVE SECURITIES ACQUIRED, DISPOSED OF,
                              OR BENEFICIALLY OWNED
================================================================================

                                                                                                 5.
                                                                                                 Amount of      6.
                                                                 4.                              Securities     Owner-
                                                                 Securities Acquired (A) or      Beneficially   ship
                            2.        2A.           3.           Disposed of (D)                 Owned Follow-  Form:     7.
                            Transac-  Deemed        Transaction  (Instr. 3, 4 and 5)             ing Reported   Direct    Nature of
                            tion      Execution     Code         ------------------------------- Transac-       (D) or    Indirect
1.                          Date      Date, if any  Instr. 8)                   (A)              tions(s)       Indirect  Beneficial
Title of Security           (Month/   (Month/       ------------     Amount      or     Price    (Instr. 3      (I)       Ownership
(Instr. 3)                  Day/Year) Day/Year)     Code     V                  (D)              and 4)         (Instr.4) (Instr. 4)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Units of
Beneficial Interest         04/23/03                S              20,700       D       $14.93                  D        N/A
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Units of
Beneficial Interest         04/24/03                S              34,100       D       $14.96   10,008,100     D        N/A
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially
          owned directly or indirectly.

* If the form is filed by more than one Reporting Person, see Instruction
  4(b)(v).

              PERSONS WHO RESPOND TO THE COLLECTION OF INFORMATION
               CONTAINED IN THIS FORM ARE NOT REQUIRED TO RESPOND
             UNLESS THE FORM DISPLAYS A CURRENTLY VALID OMB NUMBER.

                                                                          (Over)
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                                                                 SEC 1474 (9-02)

                                                                          Page 1

FORM 4 (CONTINUED)

TABLE II -- DERIVATIVE SECURITIES ACQUIRED, DISPOSED OF, OR BENEFICIALLY OWNED
         (E.G., PUTS, CALLS, WARRANTS, OPTIONS, CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES)

================================================================================

                                                                                                            9.
                                                                                                            Number   10.
                                                                                                            of       Owner-
                                                                                                            Deriv-   ship
                                                                                                            ative    Form
                   2.                                                                                       Secur-   of
                   Conver-                         5.                             7.                        ities    Deriv-  11.
                   sion            3A              Number of                      Title and Amount          Bene-    ative   Nature
                   or              Deemed          Derivative    6.               of Underlying     8.      ficially Secur-  of
                   Exer-           Exe-    4.      Securities    Date             Securities        Price   Owned    ity:    In-
                   cise    3.      cution  Trans-  Acquired (A)  Exercisable and  (Instr. 3 and 4)  of      Follow-  Direct  direct
                   Price   Trans-  Date,   action  or Disposed   Expiration Date  ----------------  Deriv-  ing Re-  (D) or  Bene-
1.                 of      action  if      Code    of (D)        (Month/Day/Year)           Amount  ative   ported   In-     ficial
Title of           Deriv-  Date    any     (Instr. (Instr. 3,    ----------------           or      Secur-  Trans-   direct  Owner-
Derivative         ative   (Month/ (Month/   8)     4 and 5)      Date     Expira-          Number  ity     action(s) (I)    ship
Security           Secur-  Day/    Day/    ------  ------------   Exer-    tion             of      (Instr. (Instr.  (Instr. (Instr.
(Instr. 3)         ity     Year)   Year)   Code V    (A)   (D)    cisable  Date     Title   Shares  5)      4)        4)      4)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Explanation of Responses:

ALPINE CAPITAL, L.P.

   /s/ Robert W. Bruce III                                April 25, 2003
----------------------------------------            -------------------------
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   **Signature of Reporting Person                            Date
       Robert W. Bruce III, Manager

**Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal
  Violations.
  See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).

Note:  File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed.
       If space is insufficient, See Instruction 6 for procedure.

Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained
in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently
valid OMB number.
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                          CONTINUATION SHEET TO FORM 4

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Name and Address Reporting Person:           Alpine Capital, L.P.
                                             201 Main Street, Suite 3100
                                             Fort Worth, Texas  76102

Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading Symbol:    San Juan Basin Royalty Trust (SJT)

Statement for Month/Day/Year:                April 23, 2003

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Other Reporting Persons:                     Signatures of Reporting Persons:

Algenpar, Inc. (1)                           ALGENPAR, INC.
201 Main Street, Suite 3100
Fort Worth, Texas  76102                     By: /s/ J. Taylor Crandall
                                                 ------------------------------
                                                     J. Taylor Crandall

J. Taylor Crandall (1)                       /s/ J. Taylor Crandall
201 Main Street, Suite 3100                  ----------------------------------
Fort Worth, Texas  76102                     J. TAYLOR CRANDALL

Robert W. Bruce III (1)                      /s/ Robert W. Bruce III
934 Weed Street                              ----------------------------------
New Canaan, Connecticut  06840               ROBERT W. BRUCE III

Explanation of Responses:

(1)      J. Taylor Crandall ("Crandall") is the President and sole stockholder
of Algenpar, Inc., a Texas corporation ("Algenpar"), which is one of two general
partners of Alpine Capital, L.P., a Texas limited partnership ("Alpine"), which
is the direct beneficial owner of certain of the securities reported herein.
Robert W. Bruce III ("Bruce") is the other general partner of Alpine. Pursuant
to Rule 16a-1(a)(2)(ii)(B) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Act"), Crandall, Algenpar and Bruce are deemed to be beneficial owners of

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

4



the shares beneficially owned by Alpine only to the extent of the greater of his
or its respective direct or indirect interest in the profits or capital account
of Alpine. Pursuant to Rule 16a-l(a)(4) under the Act, this filing shall not be
deemed an admission that Bruce, Crandall or Algenpar is, for purposes of Section
16 of the Act or otherwise, the beneficial owner of any securities owned by
Alpine in excess of such amount.

                                     Page 3

/TD>                         

Cost of Revenues

   5,248   5,307   5,524   5,088   6,944   6,201   3,999   5,051 

Gross Profit

   5,548   6,306   5,021   3,999   5,622   6,532   2,915   4,610 

OPERATING EXPENSES

Research and development

   1,661   1,636   1,765   2,279   2,199   2,222   1,823   1,989 

Selling, general and administrative

   3,876   3,977   3,519   3,719   3,545   3,615   3,454   3,438 

Amortization of acquired intangibles

   159   159   159   160   159   159   86   49 

Restructuring Costs

   �     12   24   4   5   2   2   7 

Failed initial public offering costs

   �     �     �     991   �     �     �     �   

Total Operating Expenses

   5,696   5,784   5,467   7,153   5,908   5,998   5,365   5,483 

Net Operating Income (loss)

   (148)  522   (446)  (3,154)  (286)  534   (2,450)  (873)

OTHER INCOME
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Other Income

   (4)  1   150   (141)  (5)  29   47   (26)

External Interest Income

   (11)  12   11   24   21   17   12   22 

Total Other Income

   (15)  13   161   (117)  16   46   59   (4)

OTHER EXPENSE

Other Expense

   �     �     �     �     �     12   0   0 

External Interest Expense

   465   459   449   514   450   456   468   465 

Loan Cost Amortization

   1   1   1   1   1   1   1   1 

Loss on Disposal of Assets

   �     �     �     �     �     (33)  4   (24)

Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss

   180   115   8   (683)  38   22   150   155 

Total Other Expense

   646   575   458   (168)  489   458   623   597 

Total Other Income (Expense)

   (661)  (562)  (297)  51   (473)  (412)  (564)  (601)

Net Income (loss) Before Tax

   (809)  (40)  (743)  (3,103)  (759)  122   (3,014)  (1,474)

Tax Provision

   (27)  0   (13)  (53)  (27)  47   (100)  (44)

Net Income (Loss)

  $(836) $(40) $(756) $(3,156) $(786) $169  $(3,114) $(1,518)

As a Percentage of Revenues:
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Revenues

   100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

Cost of Revenues

   48.6%  45.7%  52.4%  56.0%  55.3%  48.7%  57.8%  52.3%

Gross Profit

   51.4%  54.3%  47.6%  44.0%  44.7%  51.3%  42.2%  47.7%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Research and development

   15.4%  14.1%  16.7%  25.1%  17.5%  17.5%  26.4%  20.6%

Selling, general and administrative

   35.9%  34.2%  33.4%  40.9%  28.2%  28.4%  50.0%  35.6%

Amortization of acquired intangibles

   1.5%  1.4%  1.5%  1.8%  1.3%  1.2%  1.2%  0.5%

Restructuring Costs

   0.0%  0.1%  0.2%  0.0%  0.0%  0.0%  0.0%  0.1%

Failed initial public offering costs

   0.0%  0.0%  0.0%  10.9%  0.0%  0.0%  0.0%  0.0%

Total Operating Expenses

   52.8%  49.8%  51.8%  78.7%  47.0%  47.1%  77.6%  56.8%

Net Operating Income (loss)

   (1.4)%  4.5%  (4.2)%  (34.7)%  (2.3)%  4.2%  (35.4)%  (9.0)%

Total Other Income (Expense)

   (6.1)%  (4.8)%  (2.8)%  0.6%  (3.8)%  (3.2)%  (8.2)%  (6.2)%

Net Income (loss) Before Tax

   (7.5)%  (0.3)%  (7.0)%  (34.1)%  (6.0)%  1.0%  (43.6)%  (15.3)%

Tax Provision

   (0.3)%  0.0%  (0.1)%  (0.6)%  (0.2)%  0.4%  (1.4)%  (0.5)%
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Net Income (Loss)

   (7.7)%  (0.3)%  (7.2)%  (34.7)%  (6.3)%  1.3%  (45.0)%  (15.7)%
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Accent Optical�s revenues varied between $6.9 million and $12.7 million during the eight quarters ended December 31, 2005. The volatility in
Accent Optical�s revenues during the period resulted from a variety of factors including: cyclical customer capital spending budgets, the timing
of customer capacity additions, design wins for its systems, a downturn in 2005 capital spending by Accent Optical�s high brightness LED
customers, and seasonal factors, particularly for Accent Optical�s lattice engineering systems. Certain of Accent Optical�s photolithography
process control and metrology systems carry a higher average selling price than its other systems and the sale of a few systems can significantly
influence its level of quarterly revenue. Service revenues have varied between $1.7 million and $2.5 million, and are generally influenced by
equipment utilization rates at Accent Optical�s customers.

Accent Optical�s gross profit fluctuates each quarter due to changes in product and service mix, the overall level of revenues, inventory
adjustments and currency rates. Gross profit varies from product to product and occasionally varies depending upon the region in which the
system is sold. For instance, Accent Optical�s FTIR product line can experience gross margins in the mid-40% range, whereas its RPM product
line can achieve gross margins in the mid-70% range. On an annual basis, Accent Optical�s product mix has remained relatively constant;
however there is often significant fluctuation on a quarterly basis. Service gross margins vary depending upon the overall utilization of Accent
Optical�s service personnel and the level of spare parts revenue which generally has higher gross margins than labor-based service revenue.

Accent Optical�s operating expenses have varied quarter to quarter, depending upon the timing of various restructuring efforts, the level of sales
and timing and level of product development efforts. Accent Optical�s operating expenses declined in the latter half of 2005 as Accent Optical�s
ongoing restructuring efforts have resulted in a lower operating expense run rate. Research and development costs in the latter half of 2004 and
the first half of 2005 were higher as Accent Optical expensed costs associated with the building of prototype systems. Accent Optical�s expenses
for the fourth quarter of 2004 included approximately $1.0 million as it wrote off costs associated with its abandoned initial public offering.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since Accent Optical�s inception in April 2000, it has financed its operations from the issuance of its common and preferred stock and incurrence
of debt and capital lease obligations, and from cash generated by operating activities. Accent Optical�s working capital was $10.1 million,
$15.5 million and $16.6 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Accent Optical�s cash equivalents and short-term
investments were $3.6 million, $5.1 million and $5.5 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Based on its operating plan, Accent Optical�s management estimates that cash at December 31, 2005, existing debt financing arrangements and
cash flows generated from operating activities will not be sufficient to fund operations at the current and projected levels for the next twelve
months. Accordingly, in the event that the merger with Nanometrics is not completed, Accent Optical will pursue alternatives to decrease
expenses and increase capital available to it. Such alternatives could include selling certain product lines, reducing costs in a manner that could
affect operational activities, seeking alternative financing arrangements or pursuing additional placement of Accent Optical stock. There can be
no assurance that such sources of financing and capital will be available if required or, if available, will be on terms satisfactory to Accent
Optical.

Net cash generated by operating activities was $724,000 in 2005. Cash generated by operating activities in 2005 was a result of non-cash
expenses and improved use of working capital, including a decrease in accounts receivable of $1.3 million and a decrease in inventory of $2.3
million million between December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005. Cash used by operating activities was $3.5 million and $4.7 million in
2004 and 2003, respectively. Cash used by operating activities in 2004 and 2003 primarily resulted from operating losses. The operating loss in
2004 was partially offset by a tax refund of approximately $3.6 million. Net cash used in investing activities was $376,000, $432,000 and $1.5
million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Investing activities during 2005 and 2004 consisted primarily of capital expenditures. Capital
expenditures were $604,000,
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$1.6 million and $408,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Capital expenditures were primarily for the development of engineering assets
for product development and training purposes, and upgrades to Accent Optical�s information technology systems. Investing activities during
2003 consisted primarily of acquisition of short-term investments. Net cash used in financing activities was $1.0 million and $1.3 million in
2005, and 2003, respectively. Cash used in financing activities primarily consisted of payments on a term bank loan. Net cash provided by
financing activities was $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily as a result of a $4 million common stock offering
completed in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Accent Optical issued a note for $8.0 million to Bio-Rad in connection with its acquisition of the Bio-Rad SMD in July 2000. This note bears
interest at a rate of 13.5% per annum and was originally scheduled to mature on July 31, 2005. Accrued interest has been added to the principal
balance on June 30 and December 31 of each year since issuance, and the principal balance of this note was $11.8 million at December 31, 2005.
In November 2003, Accent Optical renegotiated the terms of this note to extend the maturity date to July 31, 2007 and to require that cash
interest payments be made semi-annually beginning on June 30, 2004. The Bio-Rad note must be repaid in full within two days of a change in
control. In January 2006, Bio-Rad agreed to defer interest due of $812,000 until the earlier of a change in control of Accent Optical or June 30,
2006.

In December 2002, Accent Optical entered into a term loan agreement with Comerica Bank. Outstanding borrowings under the loan agreement
are secured by substantially all of the assets of Accent Optical and its subsidiaries. The loan agreement contains affirmative and negative
covenants (including restrictions on Accent Optical entering into certain transactions and certain financial covenants including a minimum
liquidity ratio and tangible net worth). In June 2004, Accent Optical amended the loan agreement with Comerica to include a revolving line of
credit and a revolving equipment advance line of credit. Accent Optical may request advances under a revolving line of credit not to exceed the
lesser of (1) $7,500,000, minus the balances on all Comerica debt under the amended loan agreement, or (2) the borrowing base established by
the debt covenants. Under the terms of this amendment, Accent Optical may also request advances for purchases of equipment not to exceed the
lesser of (1) $7,500,000, minus the balances on all Comerica debt under the amended agreement, or (2) the borrowing base established by the
debt covenants.

In October 2004, Accent Optical amended the agreement with Comerica to convert the balance under the revolving equipment advance line of
credit to a term loan. Under this amendment, approximately $626,000 was converted to term debt on December 31, 2004 and an additional
$206,000 was converted to term debt on July 1, 2005. The loan bears interest at the lower of (1) Comerica Bank�s prime rate or LIBOR plus
reserve percentage (reserve percentage of 2.75% at December 31, 2005) or (2) Comerica Bank�s prime rate. The first equipment term loan is
payable over 36 months, beginning December 1, 2004. The second equipment term loan is payable over 36 months, beginning July 1, 2005. The
equipment term loans may be prepaid in whole or in part without any penalty or premium. The outstanding balance of equipment term loans as
of December 31, 2005 is $594,309.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the balances of the Comerica Bank term loan were $1,250,000 and $2,500,000, respectively. The loan bears
interest at the lower of either Comerica Bank�s prime rate or the LIBOR rate plus a reserve percentage (2.75% at December 31, 2005 and 2004.)
The interest rates on the Comerica Bank term loan were 7.03% and 4.86% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The term loan is
payable in 48 equal monthly installments of principal, plus all accrued interest, beginning January 1, 2003. The term loan may be prepaid in
whole or in part without any penalty or premium.

As of December 31, 2005, the balance of the Comerica Bank revolving line of credit was $900,000. The loan bears interest at the lower of
(1) Comerica Bank�s prime rate or the LIBOR plus a reserve percentage (2.50% at December 31, 2005) or (2) Comerica Bank�s prime rate. The
interest rate on the Comerica Bank revolving line of credit at December 31, 2005 was 7.25%. The maturity date on the revolving line of credit is
May 31, 2006. Amounts currently available under the revolving line of credit are limited by the borrowing base as defined in the credit
agreement. As of March 15, 2006, Accent Optical could borrow approximately $500,000 under the revolving line of credit.
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As of December 31, 2005, the balance on the Comerica Bank equipment term loan was $594,000. The loan bears interest at the lower of
(1) Comerica Bank�s prime rate or the LIBOR plus a reserve percentage (2.75% at December 31, 2005) or (2) Comerica Bank�s prime rate. The
interest rate on the Comerica Bank revolving equipment line of credit was 7.25%. The equipment term loan is payable over 36 months,
beginning December 1, 2004. The equipment term loan may be prepaid in whole or in part without any penalty or premium.

As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical was not in compliance with its liquidity ratio and net worth covenants and on February 24, 2006
entered into a Forbearance and Second Amendment with Comerica. Under this amendment, Comerica has agreed not to pursue any remedies for
any default until the earlier of May 31, 2006 or completion of the merger. In addition, the minimum liquidity ratio was reduced for this period
and compliance with the net worth covenant has been waived.

Contractual Obligations. The following is a summary of Accent Optical�s contractual commitments and obligations as of December 31, 2005 (in
thousands):

Amount of

Commitment

Maturing by

Year Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 Beyond
Bio-Rad Note $ 11,772 $ �  $ 11,772 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Comerica Bank Loan 2,744 2,744 �  �  �  �  
Purchase Order Commitments 2,141 2,141 �  �  �  �  
Operating Leases 3,060 957 447 375 354 927
Interest Payments 3,552 2,616 936 �  �  �  

Total $ 23,269 $ 8,458 $ 13,155 $ 375 $ 354 $ 927

Accent Optical�s future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including its sales growth, market acceptance of its existing and new
systems, the amount and timing of its research and development expenditures, the timing of its introduction of new systems, expansion of its
sales and marketing efforts, potential acquisitions and working capital. There can be no assurance that Accent Optical will not require additional
financing or that additional equity or debt financing, if required, will be available on satisfactory terms.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Accent Optical has no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future material effect on its financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of Accent Optical�s consolidated financial statements requires that it make certain estimates and judgments that affect amounts
reported and disclosed in Accent Optical�s consolidated financial statements and related notes. Accent Optical bases its estimates on historical
experience and on other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The following are the critical accounting policies that Accent Optical believes require significant estimation and management judgment.

Revenue Recognition. Accent Optical�s revenue recognition policy complies with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 and its related
implementation guidance. Accent Optical�s revenues are derived from the sale of its systems and from fees associated with service and technical
support offered to its customers. Revenues from systems sales are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. For sales of standard
systems to existing customers who have purchased the same equipment with the same customer-
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specified acceptance provisions in the past, revenues are recognized upon title transfer, which is generally upon shipment of the system to the
customer. For sales of existing systems with new specifications or acceptance clauses to a new customer, and for all sales of new systems,
revenues are recognized upon customer acceptance. Service and technical support for systems is provided under separate maintenance
agreements. Revenues from maintenance agreements, typically from one to two years, are recognized ratably over the term of the respective
agreement as the service is provided.

Product sales to distributors are recognized upon transfer of title, which is generally upon shipment of the product to the distributor or the end
customer.

Revenues on the sale of spare parts are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists (a binding purchase order is received),
delivery has occurred, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Title and the risk and rewards of ownership
transfer upon shipment of the spare parts and revenues are recognized upon shipment.

Valuation of Accounts Receivable/Doubtful Accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on past collection history and
known trends with current customers. The risk related to accounts receivable is mitigated by sales to well-established companies, ongoing credit
evaluation of Accent Optical�s customers, and frequent contact with its customers, especially its most significant customers, thus enabling Accent
Optical to monitor current changes in business operations and to respond accordingly. Accent Optical�s estimates for allowance for doubtful
accounts are reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis. Changes to the reserve occur based upon changes in revenue levels, associated balances
in accounts receivable and estimated changes in credit quality. Accent Optical�s allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $231,000 and $367,000,
respectively, at, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. Actual losses from accounts receivable have been within Accent Optical�s
estimates.

Inventory Valuation. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Finished goods and work-in-process include
cost of materials, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. Reserves, when required, are recorded to reduce excess and obsolete inventories to
their estimated net realizable values. Because of the long-lived nature of many of its systems, Accent Optical maintains a substantial supply of
parts for possible use in future repairs and customer field service. As these service parts become older, Accent Optical applies a higher reserve
percentage against the recorded balance, recognizing that the older the part, the less likely it will be used. If circumstances related to its
inventories change, Accent Optical�s estimates of the value of inventory could materially change. Accent Optical records estimated inventory
write-downs quarterly as a component of cost of revenues. Inventory reserves of $5.3 million and $6.6 million were recorded at December 31,
2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. Accent Optical accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and complies with the disclosure provisions
of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation�Transition and Disclosure, Amendment to SFAS No. 123. Under APB No. 25, compensation expense is based on the difference,
if any, on the date of grant, between the fair value of the stock and the exercise price of the option. Accent Optical accounts for stock and stock
options issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus on Issue No. 96-18, Accounting
for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. Compensation
and services expense are recognized over the vesting period of the options or the periods the related services are rendered, as appropriate.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are recognized for the difference
between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes are recorded at the
tax rates expected to be in effect when amounts
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are to be included in future taxable income. Accent Optical regularly assesses the recoverability of deferred tax assets and records a valuation
allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amounts believed to be realizable, considering whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon carry back to prior
periods, tax planning strategies, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and the generation of future taxable income during the periods
in which those temporary differences become deductible. Based upon Accent Optical�s recent taxable losses and the uncertainty of future taxable
income, Accent Optical has recorded, and continues to believe that it is appropriate to record, a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance at December 31, 2005 was $10.1 million.

Product Installation and Warranty Expense. At the time product revenue is recognized, Accent Optical provides for estimated installation and
warranty costs, typically for a period of 12 to 24 months. Accent Optical estimates the cost of installation and warranty based on historical
installation costs and actual field repair rates. While Accent Optical believes that the warranty provisions are adequate over the average life of
products sold, the timing of installation and warranty repairs may result in fluctuations in quarter-to-quarter costs. Accent Optical re-evaluates
the adequacy of its warranty reserves on a quarterly basis.

Acquired Intangibles and Goodwill. Acquired intangibles and goodwill represent, respectively, developed technology and assembled work force
and the purchase price in excess of identifiable assets arising from acquisitions. Through 2005 acquired intangibles were amortized on a
straight-line basis over their remaining estimated economic lives of between three and five years.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under
SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized. In addition, SFAS No. 142 no longer recognizes
assembled work force as an intangible asset separate from goodwill. Assembled work force has been combined with goodwill for all periods
presented. The effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 reduced Accent Optical�s amortization expense by $837,000 annually, beginning in 2001.

Upon implementation of SFAS No. 142, Accent Optical was required to evaluate goodwill for impairment. In addition, under SFAS No. 142
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise. If Accent Optical determines that the carrying value of goodwill will not be recoverable, it calculates and records
impairment losses using future discounted cash flows. Accent Optical estimates future discounted cash flows using assumptions about its
expected future operating performance. Accent Optical�s estimates of discounted cash flows may differ from actual cash flow due to, among
other things, technological changes, economic conditions, or changes to business operations. Accent Optical completed its annual impairment
test at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and determined that there was no impairment of goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for
the Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accent Optical assesses impairment of property, plant and equipment whenever changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of an asset is measured by comparison of its carrying
amount to the future undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to generate. Any impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeded its fair market value.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risks

Accent Optical is subject to financial market risks, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. A significant portion
of its revenues is from customers located in Asia and Europe. With the exception of sales into Japan, nearly all of Accent Optical�s sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars.

Accent Optical�s sales to customers in Japan, which represented 27.7% of its revenues during 2005, are denominated in Japanese yen. As a result,
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the yen and the U.S. dollar can
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affect Accent Optical�s revenues and gross profit. Weakness in the U.S. dollar as compared to the Japanese yen will have the effect of increasing
Accent Optical�s revenues and gross profits on the same volume of units sold.

A substantial portion of Accent Optical�s operating expenses is denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the British pound and, to a lesser
extent, the Japanese yen. Weakness in the U.S. dollar as compared to these currencies will have the effect of increasing Accent Optical�s
operating expenses. At December 31, 2005, the pound was weaker against the dollar, at an exchange rate of $1.72 per British pound, compared
to the average exchange rate of $1.92 per British pound at December 31, 2004.

Accent Optical does not currently enter into currency hedging transactions to decrease the risk of financial exposure fluctuations in the exchange
rate of the dollar against the British pound or yen.

Accent Optical�s interest income will be sensitive to changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates. An increase or decrease in interest rates
will cause fluctuations in Accent Optical�s interest income on cash balances due to its cash being primarily invested in short-term investments.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs�An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 (�SFAS 151�). SFAS 151 amends
the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Among other provisions, the new rule requires that items such as idle facility expense, excessive
spoilage, double freight, and re-handling costs be recognized as current period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of �so
abnormal� as stated in ARB No. 43. Additionally, SFAS 151 requires that the allocation of fixed production overhead to the costs of conversion
be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption
of SFAS 151 did not have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets�An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions (�SFAS 153�). SFAS 153 eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar
productive assets in paragraph 2l(b) of APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, and replaces it with an exception for
exchanges that do not have commercial substance. SFAS 153 specifies that a nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash
flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. SFAS 153 is effective for the fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 153 did not have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS 123(R), which establishes standards
for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This Statement focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS 123(R) requires that the fair
value of such equity instruments be recognized as an expense in the historical financial statements as services are performed. Prior to SFAS
123(R), only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. For nonpublic companies, the provisions of this Statement are effective as
of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2005. Accent Optical will adopt SFAS 123(R) commencing
with the year ending December 31, 2006, and is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 123(R) will have on its results of
operations or financial position.

Legal Proceedings

Accent Optical currently is not a party to any legal proceedings the effect of which would have a material adverse affect on its operations and
financial condition.
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NANOMETRICS� PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth beneficial ownership of Nanometrics common stock as of February 28, 2006, by each director, by each of the
executive officers, by all directors and executive officers as a group, and by all persons known to Nanometrics to be the beneficial owners of
more than 5% of Nanometrics stock. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each executive officer or director of Nanometrics is 1550
Buckeye Drive, Milpitas, CA 95035. As of the close of business on February 28, 2006, there were 13,033,438 shares of common stock
outstanding.

Name of

Beneficial Owner

Amount and Nature of

Beneficial Ownership(1) Shares

Percent of
ClassShares

Stock Options
Exercisable within

60 days of
2/28/2006

Total
Shares

Beneficially
Owned

Dimensional Fund Advisors, Inc. (2) 1,100,500 �  1,100,500 8.4%
1299 Ocean Avenue, 11th Floor
Santa Monica, CA 90401

Royce and Associates, LLC (3) 698,300 �  698,300 5.4%
1414 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

The TCW Group (4) 1,445,780 �  1,445,780 11.1%
865 South Figeroa Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017

Wasatch Advisors, Inc. (5) 730,671 �  730,671 5.6%
150 Social Hall
Salt Lake City, UT 84111

J. Thomas Bentley �  9,999 9,999 *
Vincent J. Coates (6) 3,376,154 �  3,376,154 25.9%
John D. Heaton �  522,499 522,499 3.9%
Roger Ingalls, Jr. 9,000 33,166 42,166 *
Douglas J. McCutcheon �  �  �  *
William G. Oldman �  29,999 29,999 *
Stephen J Smith �  9,999 9,999 *
Edmond R. Ward 2,000 29,999 31,999 *
Quentin B. Wright �  16,666 16,666 *
Paul B. Nolan 5,000 �  5,000 *
Michael Weber �  �  �  *

All named officers and directors as a group (10 persons) 3,392,154 652,327 4,044,481 29.6%

* Less than 1%.
(1) As determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934.
(2) According to a 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 6, 2006, Dimension Fund Advisors, Inc. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner

of 1,100,500 shares of common stock.
(3) According to a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 30, 2006, Royce & Associates, LLC may be deemed to be the beneficial

owner of 698,300 shares of common stock.
(4) According to a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on March 10, 2006, The TCW Group, Inc., may be deemed to be the beneficial owner

of 1,445,780 shares of common stock.
(5) According to a 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2006, Wasatch Advisors, Inc. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of

730,671 shares of common stock.
(6)
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Includes 3,376,154 shares of common stock held of record by the Vincent J. Coates Separate Property Trust, U/D/T dated August 7,
1981, for which Mr. Coates acts as trustee.
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ACCENT OPTICAL�S PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth beneficial ownership of Accent Optical Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, and Convertible Preferred
Stock as of February 28, 2006, by each director, by each of the executive officers, by all directors and executive officers as a group, and by all
persons known to Accent Optical to be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of Accent Optical stock. Unless otherwise indicated, the address
of each executive officer or director of Accent Optical is 1320 SE Armour Drive, Suite B2, Bend, OR 97702. As of the close of business on
February 28, 2006, there were 141,312,221 shares of Common Stock, 9,444.8334 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and 7,787,804 shares of
Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding.

Shares of Common Stock
Beneficially Owned

Shares of Series A Preferred
Stock Beneficially Owned

Shares of Convertible Preferred
Stock Beneficially Owned

Beneficial Owner Number     Percent        Number        Percent        Number        Percent    
Five percent stockholders:

JFI II, L.P.(1) 39,443,625 27.9% 3,608.787 38.2% �  �  
555 California St., Suite 5180
San Francisco, CA 94104

Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc.(2) 29,451,000 20.8% �  �  �  �  
Alfred Nobel Drive
Hercules, CA 94547

Rhine 2000 Children�s Trust(3) 13,175,000 9.3% 1,258.250 13.3% �  �  
298 Mt. Top Road
Howard, PA 16841

FleetBoston Financial Corporation(4) 2,844,000 2.0% 271.560 2.9% 3,573,170 45.9%
100 Federal Street
Boston, MA 02110

Directors and executive officers:

Bruce C. Rhine(5) 44,529,000 31.5% 4,073.460 43.1% �  �  
Peter M. Joost(6) 44,687,000 31.6% 4,088.547 43.3% �  �  
David Schwartz(7) 29,451,000 20.8% �  �  �  �  
Gregory A. Kaiser(8) 2,812,000 2.0% 117.680 1.2% �  �  
Bruce Crawford(9) 2,315,396 1.6% 90.520 * �  �  
Jeffrey J. Rosen(10) 510,375 * 12.073 * �  �  
Rajeev Mundhe(11) 623,875 * 13.580 * �  �  
Joseph F. Dox(12) 359,000 * 0.910 * �  �  
Reid Langrill(13) 954,394 * �  �  �  �  
Robert J. Therrien(14) 384,375 * �  �  �  �  
William Landreth(15) 354,688 * �  �  �  �  
Steve Hummel(16) 330,563 * 0.910 * �  �  
Tony Beddard(17) 135,031 * �  �  �  �  
All directors and executive officers as a
group
(13 persons)(18) 127,054,061 87.9% 8,397.68 88.9% �  �  

* Less than 1%
(1) The general partner of JFI II, L.P. is Joost Enterprises Corporation. Joost Enterprises Corporation is wholly owned by Peter M. and

Lindsay M. Joost, Trustees U/ T/A dated April 11, 2002, of which Peter Joost, who serves on Accent Optical�s board of directors, is a
Trustee. Mr. Joost is also the President of Joost Enterprises Corporation.

(2) David Schwartz, the Chairman of Bio-Rad, serves on the board of directors of Accent Optical.
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(3) The beneficiaries of the Rhine 2000 Children�s Trust are the minor children of Bruce Rhine, Accent Optical�s President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman. David Johnson is the Trustee and has sole voting and investment power over the stock held by the trust.

(4) Includes 2,844,000 shares of Common Stock and 271.560 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by FSC Corp., a wholly owned
subsidiary of FleetBoston Financial Corporation, and 3,573,170 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock held by RS Coinvestment Fund.,
L.L.C.

(5) Includes 13,175,000 shares of Common Stock and 1,258.25 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by the Rhine 2000 Children�s Trust,
30,729,000 shares of Common Stock and 2,815.21 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by Bruce Charles Rhine and Martha Hawn
Rhine Family Trust u/t/a dated February 6, 2002, and 625,000 shares of Common Stock held jointly with Mr. Rhine�s wife. Mr. Rhine
disclaims beneficial ownership with respect to the shares held by the Rhine 2000 Children�s Trust.

(6) Includes 39,443,625 shares of Common Stock and 3,608.787 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by JFI II, L.P. and 5,243,375 shares
of Common Stock and 479.76 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by Peter M. and Lindsay M. Joost, Trustees U/T/A dated April 11,
2002, with respect to which Mr. Joost has shared voting and dispositive powers. Mr. Joost is the President of Joost Enterprises
Corporation, which is the general partner of JFI II, L.P.

(7) Includes 29,451,000 shares of Common Stock held by Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc., with respect to which Mr. Schwartz disclaims beneficial
ownership.

(8) Includes 118,524 shares of Common Stock and 117.680 shares of Series A Preferred Stock that are not transferable and are subject to a
repurchase right in favor of Accent Optical, which restrictions will not lapse within 60 days; and 220,000 shares of Common Stock held in
trust by the Kaiser Family Trust dated June 20, 2000, with respect to which Mr. Kaiser disclaims beneficial ownership.

(9) Includes 948 shares of Common Stock and 90.520 shares of Series A Preferred Stock that are not transferable and are subject to a
repurchase right in favor of Accent Optical, which restrictions will not lapse within 60 days; and 804,896 shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.

(10) Includes 191,667 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(11) Includes 280,208 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days and 142 shares of Common

Stock and 13.580 shares of Series A Preferred Stock that are not transferable and are subject to a repurchase right in favor of Accent
Optical, which restrictions will not lapse within 60 days.

(12) Includes 9,375 shares of Common Stock that are not transferable and are subject to a repurchase right in favor of Accent Optical, which
restrictions will not lapse within 60 days; and 20,000 shares of Common Stock held in trust for Mr. Dox�s minor children with respect to
which he disclaims beneficial ownership.

(13) Includes 772,097 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(14) Includes 384,375 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(15) Includes 354,688 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(16) Includes 257,605 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(17) Includes 135,031 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days.
(18) Includes 3,180,567 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days; 128,989 shares of Common

Stock and 221.780 shares of Series A Preferred Stock that are not transferable and are subject to a repurchase right in favor of Accent
Optical, which restrictions will not lapse within 60 days; 13,175,000 shares of Common Stock and 1,258.250 shares of Series A Preferred
Stock held by the Rhine 2000 Children�s Trust with respect to which Mr. Rhine disclaims beneficial ownership, 30,729,000 shares of
Common Stock and 2,815.21 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by Bruce Charles Rhine and Martha Hawn Rhine Family Trust u/t/a
dated February 6, 2002, and 625,000 shares of Common Stock held jointly with Mr. Rhine�s wife; 39,443,625 shares of Common Stock and
3,608.787 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by JFI II, L.P., and 5,243,375 shares of Common Stock and 479.76 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock held by Peter M. and Lindsay M. Joost, Trustees U/T/A dated April 11, 2002, with respect to which Mr. Joost has shared
voting and dispositive powers; 29,451,000 shares of Common Stock held by Bio-Rad, with respect to which Mr. Schwartz disclaims
beneficial ownership; 220,000 shares of Common Stock held by the Kaiser Family Trust with respect to which Mr. Kaiser disclaims
beneficial ownership; and 20,000 shares of Common Stock held in trust for Mr. Dox�s minor children, with respect to which he disclaims
beneficial ownership.
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DESCRIPTION OF NANOMETRICS CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a summary of the material terms of the capital stock of Nanometrics. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all the
information that may be important to you. Accordingly, you should read carefully the more detailed provisions of the articles of incorporation
and bylaws of Nanometrics, each of which has been filed with the SEC. You should also refer to the section of this joint proxy
statement/prospectus entitled �Comparison of Rights of Holders� beginning on page 139.

General

As of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the authorized capital stock of Nanometrics consists of 50,000,000 shares of common
stock, no par value per share. Nanometrics common stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the ticker symbol �NANO.�

As of the record date,              shares of Nanometrics common stock were issued and outstanding.

Common Stock

Holders of Nanometrics common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders,
except that, upon giving the notice required by the bylaws of Nanometrics, shareholders may cumulate their votes for the election of directors.
Holders of Nanometrics common stock do not have preemptive rights. Nanometrics common stock is neither redeemable nor convertible into
other securities, and there are no sinking fund provisions. Nanometrics has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock or
any other securities. Nanometrics does not expect to pay cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future. Nanometrics intends to
retain future earnings to continue to fund the development and growth of its business as well as to repay long-term debt.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent and registrar of the Nanometrics common stock is U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation.
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COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF HOLDERS

In connection with the merger, Accent Optical stockholders will be exchanging shares of Accent Optical, a Delaware corporation, for shares of
Nanometrics, a California corporation. California law and Delaware law differ in many respects. It is not practical to summarize all of the
differences that could materially affect the rights of Accent Optical stockholders as holders of shares of Nanometrics common stock following
the merger. However, the significant differences between the corporation laws of California and Delaware include the following:

Size of Board of Directors

Under California law, although changes in the number of directors must in general be approved by the shareholders, the board of directors may
fix the exact number of directors within a stated range set forth in the articles of incorporation or bylaws, if the stated range has been approved
by the shareholders. Nanometrics� bylaws fix its number of directors at seven, and Nanometrics current board has seven members.

Delaware law permits the board of directors to change the authorized number of directors by amendment to the bylaws or in the manner
provided in the bylaws unless the number of directors is fixed in the certificate of incorporation, in which case a change in the number of
directors may be made only by amendment to the certificate of incorporation. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation does not currently fix
or restrict the number of directors. Accent Optical�s bylaws provide that the number of directors shall be determined from time to time by the
Board and shall be divided into three classes designated Class I, Class II and Class III, each class to consist, as nearly as may be possible, of
1/3 of the total number of directors constituting the entire Board. Accent Optical�s board of directors currently consists three Class I members,
two Class II members and two Class III members for a total of seven members.

Cumulative Voting

California law provides that any shareholder is entitled to cumulate his or her votes in the election of directors upon proper notice of his or her
intention to do so, except that a �listed� corporation may eliminate cumulative voting with shareholder approval. Nanometrics� articles of
incorporation do not eliminate, and its shareholders have not eliminated, cumulative voting with respect to the election of directors and
Nanometrics� bylaws provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors.

Under Delaware law, cumulative voting in the election of directors is not mandatory, and for cumulative voting to be effective it must be
expressly provided for in the certificate of incorporation. In an election of directors under cumulative voting, each share of stock normally
having one vote is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected. A stockholder may then cast all such votes for a
single candidate or may allocate them among as many candidates as the shareholder may choose. Without cumulative voting, the holders of a
majority of the shares present at an annual meeting would have the power to elect all the directors to be elected at that meeting, and no person
could be elected without the support of holders of a majority of the shares. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation does not provide for
cumulative voting.

Removal of Directors

Under California law, any director or the entire board of directors may be removed, with or without cause, with the approval of a majority of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote; however, no directors may be removed (unless the entire board is removed) if the number of votes cast
against the removal would be sufficient to elect the director under cumulative voting. Nanometrics� articles of incorporation and bylaws have
neither eliminated cumulative voting nor provided for a classified board of directors.

Under Delaware law, a director of a corporation that does not have a classified board of directors or cumulative voting may be removed without
cause by a majority stockholder vote. In the case of a Delaware
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corporation having cumulative voting, if less than the entire board is to be removed, a director may not be removed unless the shares voted
against such removal would not be sufficient to elect the director under cumulative voting. A director of a corporation with a classified board of
directors can be removed only for cause unless the certificate of incorporation otherwise provides. Accent Optical�s bylaws provide for a
classified board and its directors can be removed only for cause.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors

Under California law, any vacancy on the board of directors other than one created by removal of a director may be filled by the board of
directors, unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or bylaws. If the number of directors is less than a quorum, a vacancy may be
filled by the unanimous written consent of the directors then in office, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors at a meeting held
pursuant to notice or waivers of notice, or by a sole remaining director. A vacancy created by removal of a director can only be filled by the
shareholders unless board approval is authorized by a corporation�s articles of incorporation or by a bylaw approved by the corporation�s
shareholders. Neither the articles of incorporation nor the bylaws of Nanometrics permit the board of directors to fill a vacancy created by the
removal of a director.

Under Delaware law, unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws, (i) vacancies on a board of directors; and
(ii) newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors, may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office.
In the case of the classified board of directors of Accent Optical, directors elected to fill vacancies or newly created directorships will hold office
until the next election of the class for which the directors have been chosen. The bylaws of Accent Optical provide that any vacancies on its
board of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors in office, even if less than a quorum, by a sole
remaining director, or by the stockholders at the next duly called annual or special meeting.

Loans to Officers and Employees

Under California law, any loan or guaranty to or for the benefit of a director or officer of the corporation or any of its subsidiaries requires
approval of the shareholders unless such loan or guaranty is provided under a plan approved by shareholders owning a majority of the
outstanding shares of the corporation. In addition, under California law, shareholders of any corporation with 100 or more shareholders of record
may approve a bylaw authorizing the board of directors alone to approve a loan or guaranty to or on behalf of an officer (whether or not a
director) if the board determines that such a loan or guaranty may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. Nanometrics� bylaws
authorize the board of directors alone to approve such loans or guaranties provided that (i) the board of directors determines that such a loan or
guaranty or plan may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation, (ii) the corporation has outstanding shares held of record by 100 or more
persons on the date of approval, and (iii) the approval of the board of directors is by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of any interested
director or directors.

Under Delaware law, a corporation may make loans to, guarantee the obligations of, or otherwise assist its officers or other employees and those
of its subsidiaries when such action, in the judgment of the directors, may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. Accent Optical�s
certificate of incorporation and bylaws do not explicitly provide for loans or guarantees to or for the benefit of its and its subsidiaries� officers
and employees.

Section 13(k) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange Act�), added pursuant to Section 402 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002,
makes it unlawful for any issuer, �directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, to extend or maintain credit, to arrange for the
extension of credit, or to renew an extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any director or executive officer (or equivalent
thereof) of that issuer.� Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act defines �executive officer� of an issuer to include the issuer�s �president, any vice
president . . . in charge of a principal business unit, division or function (such as sales, administration or finance), any other officer who performs
a policy making function or any other person
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who performs similar policy making functions for the [issuer].� The impact of Section 13(k) is to limit loans or guarantees with respect to persons
who are directors or officers subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

Power to Call Special Shareholders� Meeting

Under California law, a special meeting of shareholders may be called by the board of directors, the Chairman of the Board, the President, the
holders of shares entitled to cast not less than 10% of the votes at such meeting or such other persons as are authorized by the articles of
incorporation or bylaws. Nanometrics� bylaws provide that a special meeting of the shareholders may be called at any time by the board of
directors, the Chairman of the Board, the President or by one of more shareholders holding shares in the aggregate entitled to cast not less than
10% of the votes at that meeting.

Under Delaware law, a special meeting of stockholders may be called by the board of directors or by any other person authorized to do so in the
certificate of incorporation or the bylaws. Accent Optical�s bylaws provide that a special meeting of the shareholders may be called only by the
Board. As such, stockholders do not have the right to call a special stockholder meeting of Accent Optical.

Indemnification and Limitation of Liability

California law and Delaware law contain similar provisions and limitations on indemnification by a corporation of its officers, directors,
employees and other agents. Neither Nanometrics nor Accent Optical is aware of any pending legal action against the officers, directors or
employees of such company which would be covered by such indemnification provisions. Both California law and Delaware law also permit a
corporation to adopt a provision in its charter eliminating the liability of a director to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages
for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided such liability does not arise from certain proscribed conduct (including intentional
misconduct and breach of the duty of loyalty). Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation eliminates the personal liability of a director to the
corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director. Such limitation of liability provisions also may
not limit a director�s liability for violation of, or otherwise relieve the company or its directors from the necessity of complying with federal or
state securities laws, or affect the availability of nonmonetary remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.

California law does not permit the elimination of monetary liability where such liability is based on: (i) intentional misconduct or knowing and
culpable violation of law; (ii) acts or omissions that a director believes to be contrary to the best interests of the corporation or its shareholders or
that involve the absence of good faith on the part of the director; (iii) receipt of an improper personal benefit; (iv) acts or omissions that show
reckless disregard for the director�s duty to the corporation or its shareholders, where the director in the ordinary course of performing a director�s
duties should be aware of a risk of serious injury to the corporation or its shareholders; (v) acts or omissions that constitute an unexcused pattern
of inattention that amounts to an abdication of the director�s duty to the corporation and its shareholders; (vi) transactions between the
corporation and a director who has a material financial interest in such transaction; or (vii) liability for improper distributions, loans or
guarantees. Nanometrics� articles of incorporation eliminate the liability of the directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent permissible
under California law.

Inspection of Shareholders� List

Both California law and Delaware law allow any shareholder to inspect the shareholders� list for a purpose reasonably related to such person�s
interest as a shareholder. California law provides, in addition, an absolute right to inspect and copy the corporation�s shareholders� list by a person
or persons holding 5% or more of a corporation�s voting shares, or any shareholder or shareholders holding 1% or more of such shares who has
filed a Schedule 14A with the SEC relating to the election of directors. Delaware law does not provide for any such absolute right of inspection.
Delaware law also provides for inspection rights as to a list of stockholders entitled
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to vote at a meeting within a ten day period preceding a stockholders� meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting. However, Delaware law
contains no provisions comparable to the absolute right of inspection provided by California law to certain shareholders. Accent Optical�s and
Nanometrics� bylaws contain provisions that confirm but that do not extend the rights granted to their shareholders in accordance with Delaware
law and California law, respectively.

Dividends and Repurchases of Shares

California law dispenses with the concepts of par value of shares as well as statutory definitions of capital, surplus and the like. Under California
law, a corporation may not make any distribution (including dividends, whether in cash or other property, and repurchases of its shares) unless
either the corporation�s retained earnings immediately prior to the proposed distribution equal or exceed the amount of the proposed distribution
or, immediately after giving effect to such distribution, the corporation�s assets (exclusive of good will, capitalized research and development
expenses and deferred charges) would be at least equal to 125% of its liabilities (not including deferred taxes, deferred income and other
deferred credits), and the corporation�s current assets, as defined, would be at least equal to its current liabilities (or 125% of its current liabilities
if the average pre-tax and pre-interest earnings for the preceding two fiscal years were less than the average interest expenses for such year).
Under California law, there are certain exceptions to the foregoing rules for repurchases of shares in connection with certain rescission actions or
pursuant to certain employee stock plans.

Delaware law recognizes the concepts of par value, capital and surplus. Delaware law permits a corporation, unless otherwise restricted by its
certificate of incorporation, to declare and pay dividends out of its surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the fiscal year in which
the dividend is declared and/or for the preceding fiscal year, as long as the amount of capital of the corporation is not less than the aggregate
amount of the capital represented by the issued and outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets. Accent
Optical�s certificate of incorporation does not provide for any such restriction on the ability to declare and pay dividends. In addition, Delaware
law generally provides that a corporation may redeem or repurchase its shares only if such redemption or repurchase would not impair the
capital of the corporation. The ability of a Delaware corporation to pay dividends on, or to make repurchases or redemptions of, its shares is
dependent on the financial status of the corporation standing alone and not on a consolidated basis. In determining the amount of surplus of a
Delaware corporation, the assets of the corporation, including stock of subsidiaries owned by the corporation, must be valued at their fair market
value as determined by the board of directors, regardless of their historical book value.

The holders of shares of Accent Optical�s Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive semi-annual cumulative dividends, in preference to all
other capital stock of the corporation, at a rate per share per annum of 13.5% of the liquidation preference, as defined (as adjusted for stock
dividends, stock splits, combination of shares, reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, or other similar event), when and as declared by
the board of directors. The holders of shares of Accent Optical�s Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends, in
preference to the Common Stock, at a rate per share per annum of $0.164 (as adjusted for stock dividends, stock splits, combination of shares,
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, or other similar event), when and as declared by the board of directors. Dividends may be paid
on the shares of Accent Optical Common Stock as and when declared by the board of directors, subject to the prior dividend rights of the Accent
Optical Preferred Stock.

To date, Nanometrics has not paid cash dividends on its capital stock. It is the current policy of the board of directors to retain earnings for use in
the business, and Nanometrics therefore does not anticipate paying cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future.

Shareholder Approval of Mergers and Other Business Combinations

Both California and Delaware law generally require that a majority of the shareholders of both acquiring and target corporations approve
statutory mergers. Under both California and Delaware law, with certain

142

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 25



Table of Contents

exceptions, any merger or sale of all or substantially all of the assets must be approved by a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote of
the corporation transferring such assets.

California law contains an exception to its voting requirements for reorganizations where shareholders or the corporation itself, or both,
immediately prior to the reorganization will own immediately after the reorganization equity securities constituting more than 83.3% of the
voting power of the surviving or acquiring corporation or its parent entity. California law also provides that, except in certain circumstances,
when a tender offer or a proposal for a reorganization or for a sale of assets is made by an interested party (generally, a controlling or managing
party of the target corporation), an affirmative opinion in writing as to the fairness of the consideration to be paid to the shareholders must be
delivered to shareholders. This fairness opinion requirement does not apply to a corporation which does not have shares held of record by at least
100 persons, or to a transaction which has been qualified under California state securities laws. Furthermore, if a tender of shares or vote is
sought pursuant to an interested party�s proposal and a later proposal is made by another party at least ten days prior to the date of acceptance of
the interested party proposal, the shareholders must be informed of the later offer and be afforded a reasonable opportunity to withdraw any vote,
consent or proxy, or to withdraw any tendered shares. Delaware law has no comparable provision.

Delaware law does not require a stockholder vote of the surviving corporation in a merger (unless the corporation provides otherwise in its
certificate of incorporation) if: (i) the merger agreement does not amend the existing certificate of incorporation; (ii) each share of stock of the
surviving corporation outstanding immediately before the effective date of the merger is an identical outstanding share after the merger and;
(iii) either no shares of common stock of the surviving corporation and no shares, securities or obligations convertible into such stock are to be
issued or delivered under the plan of merger, or the authorized unissued shares or shares of common stock of the surviving corporation to be
issued or delivered under the plan of merger plus those initially issuable upon conversion of any other shares, securities or obligations to be
issued or delivered under such plan do not exceed 20% of the shares of common stock of such constituent corporation outstanding immediately
prior to the effective date of the merger. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation provide that so long as 50% of the Accent Optical
Convertible Preferred Stock issued as of November 2000 is issued and outstanding, a merger or sale of all or substantially all of the assets
requires the approval (by vote or written consent as provided by law) of the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the
Convertible Preferred Stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis.

With certain exceptions, California law also requires that mergers, reorganizations, certain sales of assets and similar transactions be approved
by a majority vote of each class of shares outstanding. By contrast, Delaware law generally does not require class voting, except in certain
transactions involving an amendment to the certificate of incorporation which adversely affects a specific class or series of shares. California law
also requires that holders of non-redeemable common stock receive non-redeemable common stock in a merger of the corporation with the
holder of more than 50% but less than 90% of such common stock or its affiliate unless all of the holders of such common stock consent to the
transaction. This provision of California law may have the effect of making a �cash-out� merger by a majority shareholder more difficult to
accomplish. Delaware law has no comparable provision.

Amendment of the Articles or Certificate of Incorporation

Under California law, an amendment to the articles of incorporation requires the approval of the corporation�s board of directors and a majority
of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, either before or after the board approval, although certain minor amendments may be adopted by the
board alone such as amendments causing stock splits (including an increase in the authorized number of shares in proportion thereto) and
amendments changing names and addresses given in the articles.

Under Delaware law, an amendment to the certificate of incorporation requires the approval of the corporation�s board of directors and a majority
of the outstanding shares.
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Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation provide that Accent Optical will not amend any provision of the certificate of incorporation if such
action would adversely alter the rights, preferences, privileges or restrictions of the Accent Optical Series A Preferred Stock without first
obtaining the approval (by vote or written consent as provided by law) of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Accent
Optical Series A Preferred Stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis. In addition, Accent Optical�s certificate of
incorporation provides that so long as 50% of the Accent Optical Convertible Preferred Stock issued as of November 2000 is issued and
outstanding, Accent Optical may not amend any provision of the certificate of incorporation if such action would adversely alter the rights,
preferences, privileges or restrictions of the Convertible Preferred Stock without first obtaining the approval (by vote or written consent as
provided by law) of the holders of at a majority of the outstanding shares thereof, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis.

Amendment of Bylaws

Under California law, a corporation�s bylaws may be adopted, amended or repealed by either the board of directors or the shareholders of the
corporation. Nanometrics� bylaws permit, with certain exceptions, amendment or repeal by the vote or written consent of the holders of a
majority of outstanding shares entitled to vote or the board of directors.

Under Delaware law, after a corporation has received any payment for any of its stock, the power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws is entirely
with the shareholders of the corporation. However, a corporation may, in its certificate of incorporation, confer the power to adopt, amend or
repeal bylaws upon the directors of the corporation. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation expressly empowers its board of directors to
adopt, amend or repeal the corporation�s bylaws. The stockholders also have the power to adopt, amend or repeal the corporation�s bylaws;
provided, however, that, in addition to any vote of the holders of any class or series of stock of the corporation required by law or by the
certificate of incorporation, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all of the outstanding shares of capital
stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, will be required.

Shareholder Consent in Lieu of Meeting

Under California law, unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation, any action required to be taken or which may be taken at an
annual or special meeting of shareholders may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing is signed by the holders of outstanding shares
having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to
vote were present and voted. If consent is sought for less than the shareholders entitled to vote, notice, as required under California law, shall be
given. Nanometrics� bylaws provide for action by written consent of its shareholders consistent with California law and require that, with respect
to the election of directors, a written consent shall be effective only if signed by the holders of all of the outstanding shares entitled to vote for
the election of directors.

Under Delaware law, unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action to be taken at an annual or special meeting of
stockholders may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if a written consent to the action shall be signed by the
holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize such action at a meeting at
which all shares entitled to vote were present and voted. Accent Optical�s bylaws require that any action that may be taken at any annual or
special meeting of the stockholders may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the actions so
taken, is signed by the holders of outstanding shares having not less than the minimum number of votes which would be necessary to authorize
or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted; provided, however, that effective upon an
event in which all outstanding shares of Accent Optical�s Series A Preferred Stock and Convertible Preferred Stock convert into Common Stock,
any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of
the stockholders of the corporation and may not be effected by any consent in writing by such stockholders.
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Dissenters� Rights

Under California and Delaware law, a shareholder of a corporation participating in certain major corporate transactions may, under varying
circumstances, be entitled to dissenters� rights pursuant to which such shareholder may receive cash in the amount of the fair market value of the
shares held by such shareholder (as determined by a court or by agreement of the corporation and the shareholder) in lieu of the consideration
such shareholder would otherwise receive in the transaction.

Under California law, shareholders of a California corporation whose shares are listed on a national securities exchange or on a list of
over-the-counter margin stocks issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System generally do not have dissenters� rights unless
the holders of at least 5% of the class of outstanding shares claim the right. Additionally, dissenters� rights are unavailable if the shareholders of a
corporation or the corporation itself, or both, immediately prior to a reorganization will own (immediately after the reorganization) more than
five-sixths of the voting power of the surviving or acquiring corporation or its parent. Under California law, a shareholder attempting to assert
dissenters� rights must hold capital stock that satisfies each of the following requirements: (i) the shares must have been outstanding on the
company�s record date; (ii) the shares must not have been voted in favor of the merger; (iii) the holder of such shares must make a written
demand that the company repurchase such shares of capital stock at fair market value; and (iv) the holder of such shares must submit certificates
for endorsement. A vote by proxy or in person against the merger does not in and of itself constitute a demand for appraisal under California
law. California law generally affords dissenters� rights in reorganizations that are structured as sales of assets.

The limitations on the availability of dissenters� rights under Delaware law are different from those under California law. Under Delaware law,
dissenters� rights are not available to (i) stockholders with respect to a merger or consolidation by a corporation the shares of which are either
listed on a national securities exchange or designated as a national market system security on an inter-dealer quotation system by the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or are held of record by more than 2,000 holders if such stockholders receive only shares of the surviving
corporation or shares of any other corporation which are either listed on a national securities exchange or designated as a national market system
security on an inter-dealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or are held of record by more than 2,000
holders; or (ii) shareholders of a corporation surviving a merger if no vote of the shareholders of the surviving corporation is required to approve
the merger because, among other things, the number of shares to be issued in the merger does not exceed 20% of the shares of the surviving
corporation outstanding immediately prior to the merger and if certain other conditions are met. Delaware law also does not provide
stockholders of a corporation with dissenters� rights when the corporation acquires another business through the issuance of its stock (a) in
exchange for the assets of the business to be acquired; (b) in exchange for the outstanding stock of the corporation to be acquired; or (c) in a
merger of the corporation to be acquired with a subsidiary of the acquiring corporation. California law, by contrast, treats these kinds of
acquisitions in the same manner as a direct merger of the acquiring corporation with the corporation to be acquired.

Dissolution

Under California law, shareholders holding 50% or more of the voting power of a corporation may authorize its dissolution, with or without the
approval of the corporation�s board of directors. California law provides that this right may not be modified by the articles of incorporation.
Nanometrics� articles of incorporation do not contain any provisions that contradict these provisions of California law.

Under Delaware law, a dissolution must be approved by stockholders holding 100% of the total voting power of the corporation or the
dissolution must be initiated by the board of directors and approved by a simple majority of the stockholders of the corporation. In the event of
such a board-initiated dissolution, Delaware law allows a Delaware corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a supermajority
voting requirement in connection with dissolutions. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation contain no such supermajority voting
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requirement. As a result, a majority of the shares voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present would be sufficient to approve a dissolution of
Accent Optical that had previously been approved by its board of directors.

Antitakeover Legislation

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law makes it more difficult to effect certain transactions between a corporation and a person
or group that owns 15% or more of the corporation�s outstanding voting stock (including any rights to acquire stock pursuant to an option,
warrant, agreement, arrangement or understanding, or upon the exercise of conversion or exchange rights, and stock with respect to which the
person has voting rights only), or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of such voting stock, referred
to as a 15% stockholder, at any time within the previous three years (excluding persons who became 15% stockholders by action of the
corporation alone). For a period of three years following the date that a stockholder became a holder of 15% or more of the corporation�s
outstanding voting stock, the following types of transactions between the corporation and the 15% stockholder are prohibited (unless certain
conditions, described below, are met): (i) mergers or consolidations; (ii) sales, leases, exchanges or other transfers of 10% or more of the
aggregate assets of the corporation; (iii) issuances or transfers by the corporation of any stock of the corporation which would have the effect of
increasing the 15% stockholder�s proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the corporation; (iv) receipt by the 15% stockholder of
the benefit (except proportionately as a shareholder) of loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits provided by the
corporation; and (v) any other transaction which has the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the
corporation which is owned by the 15% stockholder. The three-year ban does not apply if either the proposed transactions or the transaction by
which the 15% stockholder became a 15% stockholder is approved by the board of directors of the corporation prior to the date such stockholder
became a 15% stockholder. Additionally, a 15% stockholder may avoid the statutory restriction if upon the consummation of the transaction
whereby such stockholder became a 15% stockholder, the stockholder owns at least 85% of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation
without regard to those shares owned by the corporation�s officers and directors or certain employee stock plans. Business combinations are also
permitted within the three-year period if approved by the board of directors and, at an annual or special meeting, by the holders of 66 2/3% of the
voting stock not owned by the 15% stockholder.

A corporation may, at its option, exclude itself from the coverage of Section 203 by providing in its certificate of incorporation or bylaws at any
time that it is exempt from Section 203, provided that a certificate or bylaws amendment cannot become effective for twelve months after such
amendment is adopted. In addition, any transaction is exempt from the statutory ban if it is proposed at a time when the corporation has
proposed, and a majority of certain continuing directors of the corporation have approved, a transaction with a party who is not a 15%
stockholder of the corporation (or who became such with board approval) if the proposed transaction involves (i) certain mergers or
consolidations involving the corporation; (ii) a sale or other transfer of over 50% of the aggregate assets of the corporation; or (iii) a tender or
exchange offer for 50% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation. Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws do
not exempt the corporation from the coverage of Section 203. The application of Section 203 to Accent Optical confers upon the board of
directors the power to reject a proposed business combination in certain circumstances, even though a potential acquiror may be offering a
substantial premium for Nanometrics� shares over the then-current market price.

Interested Director Transactions

Under both California and Delaware law, certain contracts or transactions in which one or more of a corporation�s directors has an interest are not
void or voidable because of such interest provided that certain conditions, such as obtaining the required approval and fulfilling the requirements
of good faith and full disclosure, have been met. With certain exceptions, the conditions are similar under California and Delaware law. Under
both California and Delaware law, (i) either the shareholders or the board of directors must approve any such contract or transaction after full
disclosure of the material facts, and, in the case of board of director
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approval, the contract or transaction must also be �just and reasonable� (in California) or �fair� (in Delaware) to the corporation or (ii) the contract or
transaction must have been just and reasonable or fair as to the corporation at the time it was approved. In the latter case, California law
explicitly places the burden of proof on the interested director. Under California law, if shareholder approval is sought, the interested director is
not entitled to vote his or her shares at a shareholder meeting with respect to any action regarding such contract or transaction. If the approval of
the board of directors is sought, the contract or transaction must be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of the directors, without counting
the vote of any interested directors (except that interested directors may be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum).

Derivative Suits

California law provides that a shareholder bringing a derivative action on behalf of a corporation need not have been a shareholder at the time of
the transaction in question, provided that certain tests are met. Under Delaware law, a stockholder may only bring a derivative action on behalf
of the corporation if the stockholder was a stockholder of the corporation at the time of the transaction in question or his or her stock thereafter
devolved upon him or her by operation of law. California law also provides that the corporation or the defendant in a derivative suit may make a
motion to the court for an order requiring the plaintiff shareholder to furnish a security bond. Delaware law does not have a similar bonding
requirement.

Fair Price Provisions

There are no �fair price� or similar provisions in either Accent Optical�s certificate of incorporation or Nanometrics� articles or of incorporation or
either companies� bylaws.
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MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers and Directors of Nanometrics following the Merger

The following are the individuals who will be executive officers and directors of Nanometrics immediately following the merger and their ages
as of February 28, 2006:

Name Age Position
Vincent J. Coates 81 Chairman of the Board, Secretary
John D. Heaton 46 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Douglas J. McCutcheon 57 Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial

Officer
Quentin B. Wright 49 Chief Accounting Officer
Roger Ingalls, Jr. 44 Senior Vice President of Standalone Sales
Bruce C. Rhine 49 Chief Strategy Officer and Director
Edmond R. Ward 66 Director
William G. Oldham 67 Director
Stephen Smith 58 Director
J. Thomas Bentley 56 Director
Mr. Vincent J. Coates has been Chairman of the Board since Nanometrics was founded in 1975. He has been our Secretary since February 1989.
He has also served as our Chief Executive Officer through April 1998 and President from our founding through May 1996, except for the period
of January 1986 through February 1987 when he served exclusively as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Coates has also served as Chairman of the
Board of Nanometrics Japan Ltd., one of our subsidiaries, since June 1998. Prior to his employment at Nanometrics, Mr. Coates co-founded
Coates and Welter Instrument Corporation, a designer of electron microscopes, which Nanometrics was subsequently acquired by Nanometrics.
Mr. Coates also spent over twenty years working in engineering, sales and international operations for the Perkin-Elmer Corporation, a
manufacturer of analytical instruments. In 1995, he received an award that recognized his contribution to the industry from Semiconductor and
Equipment and Materials International, an industry trade organization.

Mr. John D. Heaton has served as a director of Nanometrics since July 1995. Since May 1996, he has served as our President. Since April 1998,
he has also served as our Chief Executive Officer. From May 1996 to April 1998, he served as our Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Heaton has also
served as President of Nanometrics Japan Ltd., one of our subsidiaries, since January 1998. Beginning in 1978, Mr. Heaton served in various
technical positions at National Semiconductor, a semiconductor manufacturer, prior to joining us in 1990.

Mr. Douglas J. McCutcheon has served as Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration, and Chief Financial Officer of Nanometrics
since September 2005. From January 2003 until December 2004, he served as Managing Director, Senior Vice President Finance and Chief
Financial Officer of Metron Technology N.V., a manufacturer and distributor of semiconductor capital equipment and provider of fab facility
services. In 2002, he served in a consulting role to Metron Technology. He also served as Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial
Officer of Asyst Technologies, Inc., a semiconductor capital equipment automation company, from January 1996 until September 2001. From
1977 through 1995, Mr. McCutcheon held various financial management positions at Memorex Corporation, Diasonics, Inc., Toshiba America
Medical Inc. and Cadence Design Systems.

Mr. Quentin B. Wright has served as Chief Accounting Officer of Nanometrics since April 2005. From November 2003 until April 2005
Mr. Wright provided financial consulting services for various technology clients in Silicon Valley. From May 1999 until November 2003 he
served as Director of Accounting of Adaptec, Inc., a manufacturer of storage access solutions. He also served as corporate controller of Vascular
Therapeutics, Inc., a start-up biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery and development of novel drugs to prevent and treat
cardiovascular disease from February 1998 until May 1999.
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Mr. Roger Ingalls, Jr. has served as Senior Vice President of Standalone Sales for Nanometrics since January 2002. Mr. Ingalls joined
Nanometrics in March 1995, serving as Vice President and Director of Sales and Marketing from October 1997 to February 1998, and as Vice
President and Director of Marketing from February 1998 to January 2002. Prior to joining Nanometrics, he served as a sales engineer for Nikon
Inc., a precision optical Nanometrics, from March 1993 to March 1995.

Mr. Bruce C. Rhine has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Accent Optical since August 2000. He served as Accent Optical�s
President from January 2003 to April 2005 and from August 2000 to September 2001. From February 2000 to July 2000, he was Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Timbre Technologies, Inc., a software supplier to semiconductor manufacturers. From October 1999 to February
2000, he was a Vice President of Applied Materials, Inc., a semiconductor equipment manufacturer. In 1997, he founded Obsidian, Inc., a
startup supplying chemical mechanical polishing tools to the semiconductor industry, and was its President and Chief Executive Officer until the
company was sold to Applied Materials, Inc. in 1999. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Rhine was a consultant to various semiconductor equipment and
materials companies. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Rhine served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Asyst Technologies, Inc., a
manufacturer of semiconductor fabrication automation and atmospheric control solutions, and, from 1994 to 1997, as a director of Tylan
General, Inc., a provider of process management equipment.

Edmond R. Ward has served as a director of Nanometrics since July 1999. Beginning in January 2002, Mr. Ward has served as Chief Technical
Officer of Unity Semiconductor, a semiconductor design and manufacturing company. Since April 1999, Mr. Ward has been a General Partner
of Virtual Founders, a venture capital firm. From April 1992 to June 1997, Mr. Ward was the Vice President of Technology at Silicon Valley
Group, Inc., a supplier of wafer processing equipment.

William G. Oldham has served as a director of Nanometrics since June 2000. Since 1964, Mr. Oldham has been a faculty member at the
University of California, Berkeley, where he researches EUV and Maskless Lithography and, since 1996, has been the Director of the
DARPA/SRC Research Network for Advanced Lithography. He has served as a consultant in various intellectual property matters and serves on
the board of directors of Cymer, Inc., a supplier of light sources for deep ultraviolet photolithography systems used in the manufacturing of
semiconductors.

Stephen Smith has served as a director of Nanometrics since April 2004. Dr. Smith has been a professor in the Department of Molecular and
Cellular Physiology at the Stanford University School of Medicine since 1989, where he researches brain development and function with special
interests in the dynamic and structural aspects of synapse and circuit formation and synaptic plasticity. Dr. Smith is the author of numerous
research articles in the fields of cellular and molecular neuroscience.

J. Thomas Bentley has served as a director of Nanometrics since April 2004. Mr. Bentley is a co-founder of Alliant Partners, a leading merger
and acquisition firm for emerging and mid-market technology companies. For the past 10 years, Mr. Bentley has worked with some of Alliant�s
largest clients on their strategic acquisitions and divestitures. His expertise is in financial, tax and accounting structuring of merger transactions.

Compensation/Stock Option Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of the compensation/stock option committee of Nanometrics� board of directors serves as a member of the board of directors or
compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of Nanometrics� board of directors or
compensation/stock option committee.

Compensation of Directors

Directors who are not also employees of Nanometrics receive an annual retainer fee of $5,000, plus $1,000 for each board and committee
meeting attended. Directors are also eligible to participate in the company�s
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Directors� Stock Option Plan. Each audit committee member receives an additional $3,000 annual retainer and $500 for attending quarterly
earnings release conference calls. Additionally, the audit committee chairman receives an incremental $2,000 retainer for serving in such
capacity.

Compensation of Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the compensation paid by Nanometrics during the past three fiscal years to (i) the chief executive officer, (ii) each
of the four most highly compensated executive officers (or such lesser number of executive officers as Nanometrics may have) of Nanometrics
not serving as chief executive officer and (iii) up to an additional two individuals that would have been included under item (ii) but for the fact
that the individuals were not serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2005, all of whom are collectively referred to as the �Named
Officers.�

Summary Compensation Table

Name

Fiscal

Year

Annual Compensation

Long Term
Compensation

Awards

All Other
Compensation(2)Salary Bonus(1)

Other
Annual

Compensation

Securities
Underlying
Options (#)

John D. Heaton

President and Chief Executive Officer

2005
2004
2003

$ 385,606
341,800
342,800

$ 73,894
79,314

�  

$ �  
�  
�  

�  
100,000
572,500

$ �  
�  
�  

Vincent J. Coates

Chairman of the Board and Secretary

2005
2004
2003

204,800
204,800
204,800

�  
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

Roger Ingalls, Jr.

Senior Vice President of Standalone Sales

2005
2004
2003

201,876
195,265
198,965

134,686
29,658
46,777

�  
�  
�  

�  
5,000
31,500

�  
�  
�  

Paul B. Nolan

Former Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

2005
2004
2003

167,819
183,055
179,050

26,472
29,864

�  

�  
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

159,046
�  
�  

Douglas J. McCutcheon

Executive Vice President, Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial Officer

2005
2004
2003

80,019
�  
�  

25,000
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

150,000
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

Quentin B. Wright

Chief Accounting Officer

2005
2004
2003

142,191
�  
�  

9,477
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

50,000
�  
�  

41,400
�  
�  

Michael Weber

Former Vice President of Engineering

2005
2004
2003

102,580
�  
�  

4,297
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

50,000
�  
�  

�  
�  
�  

(1) Representing bonuses and/or commissions paid to the Named Officers.
(2) Representing (i) consulting fees and a severance payment of $52,162 and $106,884, respectively, paid to Mr. Nolan after he stepped down

as an employee and (ii) consulting fees of $41,400 paid to Mr. Wright prior to his employment.
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Stock Options Granted in the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005

The following table sets forth information with respect to stock options granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 to each of the
Named Officers. Options were granted under Nanometrics� 2000 Stock Option Plan and 2005 Stock Option Plan. The potential realizable value
amounts in the last two columns of the following chart represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options if exercised
at the end of the option term. The assumed 5% and 10% annual rates of stock price appreciation from the date of grant to the end of the option
term are provided in accordance with rules of the SEC and do not represent Nanometrics� estimate or projection of the future common stock
price. Actual gains, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent on the future performance of the common stock, overall market conditions
and the option holder�s continued employment through the vesting period.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

Individual Grants Potential Realized Value at
Assumed Annual Rates of

Stock Price Appreciation for
Option Term

Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Options

Granted (#)
(1)

% of Total
Options

Granted to
Employees in
Fiscal Year

(2)

Exercise
Price

($/Sh)
Expiration

Date     5%($)        10%($)    
John D. Heaton �  �  % $ �  �  $ �  $ �  
Vincent J. Coates �  �  �  �  �  �  
Roger Ingalls, Jr. �  �  �  �  �  �  
Paul B. Nolan �  �  �  �  �  �  
Douglas J. McCutcheon 150,000 20.16 12.03 9/14/12 734,613 1,711,690
Quentin B. Wright 50,000 6.72 11.52 4/15/12 234,490 546,461
Michael Weber 50,000 6.72 12.54 4/6/12 255,252 594,846

(1) All options granted to the Named Officers in 2005 were granted at exercise prices equal to the fair market value of Nanometrics� common
stock on the dates of grant. Historically, options granted become exercisable at the rate of 33% on the first anniversary date of the option
grant and 33% of the total number of option shares each full year thereafter, such that full vesting occurs three years after the date of grant.
Options (whether vested or unvested) expire after 7 years or 90 days after termination of employment.

(2) Based on 743,900 options granted during the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

The following table sets forth the number of shares covered by both exercisable and unexercisable stock options held by each of the Named
Officers at December 31, 2005.

Name

Shares
Acquired on
Exercise (#)

Value

Realized ($)

(1)

Number of Securities
Underlying

Unexercised Options at
Fiscal Year-End (#)

Value of Unexercised
In-the-Money Options at

Fiscal Year-End ($) (2)
Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable

John D. Heaton �  $ �  572,499 100,001 $ 2,768,914 $ 132,336
Vincent J. Coates �  �  �  �  �  �  
Roger Ingalls, Jr. �  �  33,166 3,334 168,000 2,100
Paul B. Nolan 13,334 78,004 �  �  �  �  
Douglas J. McCutcheon �  �  �  �  �  �  
Quentin B. Wright �  �  �  �  �  �  
Michael Weber �  �  �  �  �  �  

(1) The value realized upon exercise is (i) the fair market value of Nanometrics� common stock on the date of exercise, less the option exercise
price per share, multiplied by (ii) the number of shares underlying the options exercised.

(2) The value of unexercised options is (i) the fair market value of Nanometrics� common stock as of the end of 2005, as quoted on The Nasdaq
Stock Market, $11.00 per share, less the option exercise price of in-the-money options, multiplied by (ii) the number of shares underlying
such options.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Pursuant to the terms of an agreement between Nanometrics and Vincent J. Coates, the Chairman of the Board of Nanometrics, dated May 1,
1985, as amended and restated in August 1996 and April 1998, Nanometrics is obligated to continue to pay Mr. Coates his salary and benefits
for five years from the date of his resignation in the event Mr. Coates is required to resign as Chairman of the Board under certain
circumstances, including a change of control.

In April 1998, Nanometrics entered into an agreement with John D. Heaton pursuant to which Nanometrics agreed to pay Mr. Heaton his annual
salary (excluding bonuses) for a period of one year from the date that he is required or requested for any reason not involving good cause,
including a change of control, to involuntarily relinquish his positions with Nanometrics as President, Chief Executive Officer and director. If
Mr. Heaton leaves Nanometrics voluntarily, or if he is asked to leave under certain circumstances, no such severance payment is required.

In March 1995, Nanometrics entered into an agreement with Roger Ingalls, Jr. pursuant to which Nanometrics agreed to pay Mr. Ingalls his
annual salary (excluding bonuses) for a period of 120 days from the date he is terminated without cause.

In September 2005, Douglas J. McCutcheon became Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer of
Nanometrics. Nanometrics agreed to pay Mr. McCutcheon an annual base salary of $285,000. Mr. McCutcheon also received a hiring bonus of
$25,000 and was granted options to purchase 150,000 shares of Nanometrics common stock. Furthermore, Nanometrics agreed to pay
Mr. McCutcheon 12 months of continued salary at his then-effective annual rate if Nanometrics terminates him for any reason other than for
good cause, provided that Mr. McCutcheon executes a general release. Termination for good cause, as used in the foregoing sentence, shall only
occur if Mr. McCutcheon commits misconduct, unjustifiably neglects his duties, or acts in a way that has a direct, substantial and adverse effect
on Nanometrics or its reputation.
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PROPOSAL TWO-PAYMENTS TO EXECUTIVES

CERTAIN PAYMENTS TO EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Background

The merger will constitute a �change in the ownership or effective control� of Accent Optical for purposes of Section 280G of the Internal
Revenue Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, �Section 280G�). Pursuant to Section 280G, payments of
compensation made to a �disqualified individual� that are contingent on a change in the �ownership or effective control� of a corporation and that
exceed a threshold amount applicable to that particular disqualified individual may be characterized as �excess parachute payments.� Excess
parachute payments are not deductible as a business expense by a corporation, and subject the recipient of such payments to a 20% excise tax (in
addition to applicable federal and state income and employment taxes), unless such payments are approved by the requisite approval of the
stockholders of the corporation. Accent Optical has determined that Bruce C. Rhine, its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Bruce Crawford,
its President and Chief Operating Officer, and Reid Langrill, its Chief Financial Officer, (collectively, the �Executives�) may be treated as
disqualified individuals for purposes of Section 280G and that a portion of the Potential Parachute Payments (as defined below) may be treated
as �excess parachute payments.�

All holders of shares of outstanding capital stock of Accent Optical as of [                    ], 2006 (other than shares held directly or indirectly by the
Executives) are being asked to approve the Potential Parachute Payments. If the Accent Optical stockholders are provided with the opportunity
to approve the Potential Parachute Payments, and approval is obtained by a vote of the Accent Optical stockholders holding more than 75% of
the voting power of all outstanding capital stock of Accent Optical entitled to vote (the �Required Approval�), then the adverse tax consequences
to both Accent Optical and the Executives should not occur. For purposes of determining whether the Required Approval has been obtained, the
vote of individuals (and certain related persons thereto) who receive or are to receive a payment that would be a parachute payment if the
stockholder approval requirements under Section 280G were not satisfied is not considered. No assurance can be given, however, that even if the
Required Approval is obtained, the Internal Revenue Service will not assert that the Potential Parachute Payments are subject to Sections 280G
and 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code.

For purposes of the stockholder approval rules discussed above, any stockholder that is not an individual may exercise its vote through any
person authorized by the stockholder to approve the payment. However, if a substantial portion of the assets of a stockholder that is not an
individual consists (directly or indirectly) of the stock of the corporation that is undergoing a change of control (i.e., the stock equals or exceeds
one-third of the total fair market value of all the assets of the stockholder) and the value of such stock is greater than or equal to 1% of the total
value of the outstanding stock of the corporation, the payments must be approved by persons who, immediately before the change of control,
own more than 75% of the voting power of the stockholder.

Accent Optical stockholder approval of the Potential Parachute Payments is not a condition to the consummation of the merger. If the Required
Approval for the Potential Parachute Payments is not obtained, it will not affect the vote of the Accent Optical stockholders with respect to the
merger agreement, the merger and the related transactions.

The discussion below sets forth (i) the material facts relating to each payment that each of the Executives has the right to receive, which may be
treated as a �parachute payment� within the meaning of Section 280G, (ii) the specific payments that are being submitted for approval by the
Accent Optical stockholders and (iii) the consequences to each of the Executives if the Required Approval is not obtained.

Important Notice: Please note that the actual amounts of any Potential Parachute Payments for purposes of the Section 280G rules may only be
determined once the merger has closed, or upon other subsequent events.
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It should also be noted that the tax rules regarding calculating the value of the Potential Parachute Payments for purposes of Section 280G are
highly complex, and issues often arise as to which no authoritative guidance is available. Accordingly, the values of the Potential Parachute
Payments set forth in this disclosure statement should for present purposes only be viewed as estimates based upon reasonable interpretations of
the Section 280G rules, estimations of the potential Average Closing Price, and other reasonable assumptions.

The descriptions of the Potential Parachute Payments herein assume a closing date for the merger of July 1, 2006. The amounts of many of the
payments described herein depend on the Average Closing Price, which will not be known until immediately prior to the closing of the merger.
To give a sense of various potential results, we have calculated these Potential Parachute Payments using a number of possible Average Closing
Prices. We have included information regarding the Potential Parachute Payments assuming that the Average Closing Price will be $11.00,
$13.23 and $15.63. We cannot predict what the actual Average Closing Price will be, and therefore, our use of these three estimates are intended
to provide stockholders with a general range of the possible values of the Potential Parachute Payments. The exact value of the Potential
Parachute Payments could increase or decrease based on a change in the Average Closing Price, as well as a result of a change in the closing
date of the merger and/or a change in the timing of the Executive�s termination of employment, a variation of the fair market value of a share of
Nanometrics� common stock on the date of such termination from the Average Closing Price or changes from various other assumptions.
Accordingly, the final amounts of the Potential Parachute Payments as calculated under Section 280G could be different from the numbers
estimated in this proposal.

Description of Potential Parachute Payments

Bruce C. Rhine. On January 25, 2006, the Accent Optical board of directors granted Mr. Rhine nonqualified stock options to purchase 4,112,000
shares of Accent Optical Common Stock at the then fair market value of $0.33 per share. The options are subject to vesting with one-third of the
options vesting on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. Upon consummation of the merger, these nonqualified stock
options will be assumed by Nanometrics pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement.

Mr. Rhine previously received a number of other stock options to purchase Accent Optical Common Stock. At the time of the merger,
approximately 317,083 shares subject to these options are expected to be unvested. Under the stock plan pursuant to which the options were
granted to Mr. Rhine, the vesting of each stock option, including the options granted at the January 25, 2006 meeting, accelerates in full in the
event the employment or service relationship of the holder of such options is terminated within six months of the merger, other than a
termination by Accent Optical or its successor for cause or by the employee or service provider for good reason. At the time of the merger,
Mr. Rhine is expected to have a total of approximately 4,429,083 unvested options subject to potential acceleration in the event he is terminated
within six months of the merger, if all such options are assumed in the merger. See the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled
�The Merger�Interests of Accent Optical Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger�Executive Officer Option Grants� beginning on page 75.

For Section 280G purposes, the potential value of the acceleration of the unvested options assumed in the merger, other than the January 2006
option, is included in the calculation of Mr. Rhine�s Potential Parachute Payment. For these purposes, we have assumed he will have a
termination of employment immediately following the merger that will entitle him to this acceleration. We also have assumed that the fair
market value of a share of Nanometrics� common stock on the date of this termination will be the same as the Average Closing Price. For
purposes of Section 280G, the January 2006 option is considered to have been granted in consideration of the merger and therefore the full value
of the option is included in the calculation of Mr. Rhine�s Potential Parachute Payment, instead of just the value of the acceleration.

The total value of the January 2006 option grant and potential vesting acceleration of his other assumed options (together, the �Rhine Potential
Parachute Payments�) is dependent on the share price of Nanometrics
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common stock. Based on a Average Closing Price of $13.23, the estimated present value of the Rhine Potential Parachute Payments would be
approximately $639,000. If the Average Closing Price is $11.00, the estimated present value of the Rhine Potential Parachute Payments would
be approximately $424,000. If the Average Closing Price is $15.62, the estimated present value of the Rhine Potential Parachute Payments
would be approximately $958,000.

Bruce Crawford. On January 25, 2006, the Accent Optical board of directors granted Mr. Crawford nonqualified stock options to purchase
800,000 shares of Accent Optical Common Stock at the then fair market value of $0.33 per share. The options are subject to vesting with
one-third of the options vesting on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. Upon consummation of the merger, these
nonqualified stock options will be assumed by Nanometrics pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement.

Mr. Crawford previously received a number of other stock options to purchase Accent Optical Common Stock. At the time of the merger,
approximately 642,083 shares subject to these options are expected to be unvested. Under the stock plan pursuant to which the options were
granted to Mr. Crawford, the vesting of each stock options, including the option granted at the January 25, 2006 meeting, accelerates in full in
the event the employment or service relationship of the holder of such options is terminated within six months of the merger, other than a
termination by Accent Optical or its successor for cause or by the employee or service provider for good reason. At the time of the merger,
Mr. Crawford is expected to have a total of approximately 1,442,083 unvested options subject to potential acceleration in the event he is
terminated within six months of the merger, if all such options are assumed in the merger. See the section of this joint proxy
statement/prospectus entitled �The Merger�Interests of Accent Optical Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger�Executive Officer Option
Grants� beginning on page 75.

For Section 280G purposes, the potential value of the acceleration of the unvested options assumed in the merger, other than the January 2006
option, is included in the calculation of Mr. Crawford�s Potential Parachute Payment. For these purposes, we have assumed he will have a
termination of employment immediately following the merger that will entitle him to this acceleration. We also have assumed that the fair
market value of a share of Nanometrics� common stock on the date of this termination will be the same as the Average Closing Price. For
purposes of Section 280G, the January 2006 option is considered to have been granted in consideration of the merger and therefore the full value
of the option is included in the calculation of Mr. Crawford�s Potential Parachute Payment, instead of just the value of the acceleration.

Mr. Crawford and Accent Optical have entered into an employment agreement which grants Mr. Crawford, in the event of his termination in
certain circumstances, a lump-sum payment of $213,000, company-paid health care continuation benefits under COBRA (at an estimated value
of approximately $24,000 with a potential gross-up for taxes arising from the provision of such benefits at an estimated value of approximately
$13,000, and reimbursement of relocation expenses up to $50,000. See the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled �The
Merger�Interests of Accent Optical Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger�Executive Officer Retention and Severance Arrangements�
beginning on page 74. For purposes of calculating Mr. Crawford�s Potential Parachute Payment, we have assumed that he will have a termination
of employment immediately following the merger that will entitle him to these severance benefits, and that he will receive them to the fullest
extent possible.

The total value of the January 2006 option grant, potential vesting acceleration of his other assumed options, and his potential severance
payments and benefits pursuant to his employment agreement (together, the �Crawford Potential Parachute Payments�) is dependent on the
Average Closing Price. Based on an Average Closing Price of $13.23, the estimated present value of the Crawford Potential Parachute Payments
would be approximately $427,000. If the Average Closing Price is $11.00, the estimated present value of the Crawford Potential Parachute
Payments would be approximately $384,000. If the Average Closing Price is $15.62, the estimated present value of the Crawford Potential
Parachute Payments would be approximately $514,000.
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Reid Langrill. On January 25, 2006, the Accent Optical board of directors authorized and approved an employment agreement with Mr. Langrill,
pursuant to which Mr. Langrill is entitled to a severance payment equal to the greater of (i) $185,000 or (ii) the difference between $500,000 and
the fair market value of Mr. Langrill�s stock options assumed by Nanometrics pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, as determined in
Mr. Langrill�s employment agreement. Mr. Langrill also received a number of stock options to purchase Accent Optical Common Stock. Under
the stock plan pursuant to which the options were granted to Mr. Langrill, the vesting of each stock option accelerates in full in the event the
employment or service relationship of the holder of such options is terminated within six months of the merger, other than a termination by
Accent Optical or its successor for cause or by the employee or service provider for good reason. At the time of the merger, approximately
414,479 shares subject to Mr. Langrill�s options are expected to be unvested and, if all such options are assumed in the merger, will be subject to
potential acceleration in the event he is terminated within six months of the merger, as is expected. See the section of this joint proxy
statement/prospectus entitled �The Merger�Interests of Accent Optical Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger�Executive Officer Option
Grants� beginning on page 75.

For Section 280G purposes, the potential value of the acceleration of the unvested options assumed in the merger is included in the calculation of
Mr. Langrill�s Potential Parachute Payments. For these purposes, we have assumed he will have a termination of employment immediately
following the merger that will entitle him to this acceleration. We also have assumed that the fair market value of a share of Nanometrics�
common stock on the date of this termination will be the same as the Average Closing Price.

The total value of the severance payment and potential vesting acceleration of his assumed options (together, the �Langrill Potential Parachute
Payment�) is dependent on the Average Closing Price. Based on an Average Closing Price of $13.23, the Langrill Potential Parachute Payments
would be approximately $326,000. If the Average Closing Price is $11.00, the Langrill Potential Parachute Payments would be approximately
$390,000. If the Average Closing Price is $15.62, the Langrill Potential Parachute Payments would be approximately $246,000.

Payments Subject To Accent Optical Stockholder Approval

The Accent Optical stockholders are being asked to approve the following payments: (i) the Rhine Potential Parachute Payments, (ii) the
Crawford Potential Parachute Payments, and (iii) the Langrill Potential Parachute Payments (collectively, the �Potential Parachute Payments�).
Unless and until the Accent Optical stockholders approve the Potential Parachute Payments in accordance with Section 280G, each Executive
has agreed, pursuant to the terms of a waiver agreement, to waive any and all rights that he would otherwise possess in that portion of his
respective Potential Parachute Payment that would otherwise cause any portion of any of his respective Potential Parachute Payment to be
treated as an �excess parachute payment� within the meaning of Section 280G, as determined by a nationally recognized public accounting firm
selected by Accent Optical. In general, if a Potential Parachute Payment equals or exceeds the product of (x) the Executive�s average
compensation over the preceding five years (the Executive�s �base amount�) multiplied by (y) three, the excess of the Potential Parachute Payment
over the base amount is an excess parachute payment. Mr. Rhine�s base amount is approximately $210,000 and three times his base amount is
approximately $630,000. Mr. Crawford�s base amount is approximately $182,000 and three times his base amount is approximately $547,000.
Mr. Langrill�s base amount is approximately $115,000 and three times his base amount is approximately $346,000.

Comparing the estimated value of the Potential Parachute Payments with the three times base amount of each Executive, Accent Optical
estimates that only the Rhine Potential Parachute Payments would constitute a parachute payment at an Average Closing Price of $13.23 and
Mr. Rhine would not have the right receive that portion of his Potential Parachute Payments that equals or exceeds a value of approximately
$630,000. However, if the share price of Nanometrics common stock changes and the Required Approval is not obtained, the other Executives�
Potential Parachute Payments could become a parachute payment and Mr. Crawford would not have
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the right to receive that portion of his Potential Parachute Payments that equal or exceed a value of approximately $547,000, and/or Mr. Langrill
would not have the right to receive that portion of his Potential Parachute Payments that equal or exceed a value of approximately $346,000,
while Mr. Rhine could forfeit an additional amount of his Potential Parachute Payments.

For example, if the Average Closing Price increases to $15.62 and the Required Approval is not obtained, Mr. Rhine could forfeit up to
approximately $328,000 worth of his Potential Parachute Payments. Alternatively, if the Average Closing Price decreases to $13.08 or below as
of the time of the merger and the Required Approval is not obtained, Mr. Rhine would not forfeit any of his Potential Parachute Payment, since
their value would not equal or exceed three times his base amount.

As a further example, if the Average Closing Price increases to $15.62, Mr. Langrill would not forfeit any of his Potential Parachute Payment,
since their value would not equal or exceed three times his base amount. However, at a Average Closing Price of $11.00, Mr. Langrill would
forfeit approximately $44,000 of his severance payment if Required Approval is not obtained. As a final example, if the Required Approval is
not obtained, none of the Crawford Potential Parachute Payments would be subject to waiver unless the Average Closing Price and the share
price of Nanometrics common stock at the time of accelerated vesting exceeds $17.59.

However, in every case, if the Required Approval is obtained, each of the Executives will have any and all rights to the entire portion of his
respective Potential Parachute Payment (subject to the terms and conditions associated with such payments).

Accent Optical has approved option grants and the potential for vesting acceleration under all options to certain other executive officers, in
addition to the Potential Parachute Payments described above, which could be deemed parachute payments under Section 280G. However, the
possibility that such payments would be deemed �excess parachute payments� within the meaning of Section 280G is remote, so Accent Optical
has elected not to seek stockholder approval of such payments.

Vote Required

The adverse tax consequence of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code that may apply to the Potential Parachute Payments can
be avoided if approval is obtained by a vote of the Accent Optical stockholders holding more than 75% of the voting power of all outstanding
stock of Accent Optical entitled to vote. For this purpose, the outstanding stock of Accent Optical does not include shares owned, directly or
indirectly, by anyone receiving parachute payments within the meaning of 280G.

The board of directors of Accent Optical believes that the Potential Parachute Payments to Mr. Rhine, Mr. Crawford and Mr. Langrill
are in the best interests of Accent Optical and its stockholders and unanimously recommends that the Accent Optical stockholders vote
�FOR� the proposal to make these payments to the Executives.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholder Proposals

Nanometrics

For any proposal to be considered for inclusion in the Nanometrics proxy statement and form of proxy for submission to the Nanometrics
shareholders at the Nanometrics special meeting, the proposal must comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and be
submitted in writing by notice delivered or mailed by first-class United States mail, postage prepaid, to Nanometrics Incorporated, 1550
Buckeye Drive, Milpitas, California 95035, Attention: Office of the Secretary, and must be received no later than [            ] calendar days before
the date of the proxy statement released to shareholders in connection with the Nanometrics special meeting. The submission of a shareholder
proposal does not guarantee that it will be included in the Nanometrics proxy statement. Additionally, shareholder proposals to be considered at
the Nanometrics special meeting outside the processes of Rule 14a-8 (which are not intended to be included in the proxy materials for the
Nanometrics special meeting) must be delivered to or mailed and received at the executive offices of Nanometrics at least [            ] days before
the date of the joint proxy statement/prospectus is released to shareholders in connection with the special meeting.

Accent Optical

Accent Optical�s bylaws limit the business that may be transacted at a special meeting of stockholders to matters relating to the purposes of the
special meeting stated in the notice of the meeting. Accordingly, Accent Optical�s stockholders may not submit other proposals for consideration
at the special meeting.

Legal Matters

Certain legal matters, including United States federal income tax consequences of the merger, will be passed upon for Nanometrics by WSGR,
Palo Alto, California and for Accent Optical by Perkins Coie, Portland, Oregon.

Experts

The financial statements and schedules of Nanometrics as of January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2005 and for each of the years then ended and
management�s report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 incorporated by reference in this
joint proxy statement/prospectus have been audited by BDO Seidman, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, to the extent and
for the periods set forth in their reports incorporated herein by reference, and are incorporated herein in reliance upon such reports given upon
the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The financial statements and the related financial statement schedule of Nanometrics for the year ended January 3, 2004 incorporated in this
Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus by reference from Nanometrics� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 have
been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein
by reference, and have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and
auditing.

The financial statements of Accent Optical as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2005 included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report (which contains explanatory paragraphs
relating to Accent Optical�s ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note 1 to the financial statements and the definitive agreement
to be acquired by Nanometrics, as described in Note 15 to the financial statements) of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants,
given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.
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Where You Can Find More Information

Nanometrics files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy these
reports, statements or other information filed by Nanometrics at the SEC�s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference rooms. The SEC filings of Nanometrics are also
available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. The
Nanometrics website address is www.nanometrics.com.

Nanometrics has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 to register with the SEC the Nanometrics common stock to be issued to Accent
Optical stockholders in the merger. This joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part of that registration statement and constitutes a prospectus of
Nanometrics, in addition to being a proxy statement of Nanometrics and Accent Optical for their respective meetings. The registration statement,
including the attached annexes, exhibits and schedules, contains additional relevant information about Nanometrics, Nanometrics common stock
and Accent Optical. As allowed by SEC rules, this joint proxy statement/prospectus does not contain all the information you can find in the
registration statement or the exhibits to the registration statement.

The SEC allows Nanometrics to �incorporate by reference� information into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This means that Nanometrics
can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by
reference is considered to be a part of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, except for any information that is superseded by information that is
included directly in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or incorporated by reference subsequent to the date of this joint proxy
statement/prospectus. Nanometrics does not incorporate the contents of its websites into this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below that Nanometrics has previously filed with the SEC.
They contain important information about Nanometrics and its financial condition. The following documents, which were filed by Nanometrics
with the SEC, are incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus:

� Annual report of Nanometrics on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed with the SEC on March 24, 2006;

� Amendment No. 1 to current report of Nanometrics on Form 8-K/A dated January 25, 2006, originally filed with the SEC on January
26, 2006, as amended February 21, 2006;

� Current report of Nanometrics on Form 8-K dated March 15, 2006, filed with the SEC on March 16, 2006;

� Current report of Nanometrics on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2006, filed with the SEC on March 30, 2006; and

� The description of the common stock of Nanometrics contained in its registration statement, filed with the SEC on Form 8-A, on
April 29, 1985.

In addition, Nanometrics incorporates by reference additional documents that it may file with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act between the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and                     , 2006, the date of the Nanometrics
shareholders meeting. These documents include periodic reports, such as annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K, excluding any information furnished pursuant to Item 7.01 of any current report on Form 8-K solely for purposes
of satisfying the requirements of Regulation FD or Regulation G under the Exchange Act, as well as proxy statements.

Nanometrics and Accent Optical also incorporate by reference the agreement and plan of merger attached to this joint proxy
statement/prospectus as Annex A.
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Nanometrics has supplied all information contained in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus relating to
Nanometrics and Accent Optical has supplied all information contained in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus
relating to Accent Optical.

You can obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus through Nanometrics or Accent
Optical, as the case may be, or from the SEC through the SEC�s website at www.sec.gov. These documents are also available at the SEC�s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Documents incorporated by reference are available from Nanometrics and Accent Optical without charge,
excluding any exhibits to those documents, unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference as an exhibit in this joint proxy
statement/prospectus. Nanometrics shareholders and Accent Optical stockholders may request a copy of such documents by contacting the
applicable department at:

Nanometrics Incorporated

1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, California 95035

Attn: Investor Relations

Accent Optical Technologies, Inc.

1320 SE Armour Drive, Suite B2

Bend, Oregon 97702

Attn: Chief Executive Officer
In addition, you may obtain copies of the information relating to Nanometrics, without charge, by sending an e-mail to
investors@nanometrics.com or by calling (408) 435-9600, or contacting The Altman Group, Inc., Nanometrics proxy solicitor, at (800)
884-4969.

You may obtain copies of the information relating to Accent Optical, without charge, by calling (541) 322-2500.

IN ORDER FOR YOU TO RECEIVE TIMELY DELIVERY OF THE DOCUMENTS IN ADVANCE OF THE NANOMETRICS AND
ACCENT OPTICAL MEETINGS, NANOMETRICS OR ACCENT OPTICAL, AS APPLICABLE, MUST RECEIVE YOUR
REQUEST NO LATER THAN [                    ], 2006.

We have not authorized anyone to give any information or make any representation about the merger or our companies that is different from, or
in addition to, that contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or in any of the materials that we have incorporated into this joint proxy
statement/prospectus. Therefore, if anyone does give you information of this sort, you should not rely on it. If you are in a jurisdiction where
offers to exchange or sell, or solicitations of offers to exchange or purchase, the securities offered by this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the
solicitation of proxies is unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this
joint proxy statement/prospectus does not extend to you. The information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate only as
of the date of this document unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Accent Optical Technologies, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders� equity, of
comprehensive loss and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Company has experienced recurring losses from operations, resulting in an accumulated deficit of
$30.4 million as of December 31, 2005. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company�s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management�s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

As discussed in Note 15, on January 25, 2006, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to be acquired by Nanometrics, Inc. The
accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to this matter.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Portland, Oregon

March 24, 2006
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
        2005                2004        

(in thousands, except share
and per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,589 $ 5,120
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $231 and $367, respectively 8,788 10,058
Inventories 9,754 12,005
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,312 1,604

Total current assets 23,443 28,787
Property and equipment, net 1,782 3,078
Goodwill, net 2,327 2,327
Acquired intangibles, net 44 497
Other assets 135 141

Total assets $ 27,731 $ 34,830

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payable $ 2,744 $ 2,071
Accounts payable 2,613 2,790
Accrued liabilities 7,569 8,259
Deferred revenues 420 120

Total current liabilities 13,346 13,240
Notes payable, net of current portion �  1,668
Subordinated note payable to Bio-Rad and related accrued interest 11,772 11,772
Other liabilities 13 54

Total liabilities 25,131 26,734

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders� equity:
Series A preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 9,550 shares authorized; 9,445 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004; liquidation preference of $19,102 and $16,830 as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 �  �  
Convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 9,756,098 shares authorized; 7,787,804 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004; liquidation preference of $22,536 and $21,259
as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 78 78
Common stock, $0.00001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized; 141,233,836 and 141,140,387
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 33,005 33,032
Accumulated other comprehensive income 948 1,839
Deferred compensation (1,066) (1,737)
Accumulated deficit (30,366) (25,117)

Stockholders� equity 2,600 8,096
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Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 27,731 $ 34,830

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

(in thousands)
Revenues
Product $ 33,911 $ 33,512 $ 28,078
Services 7,963 8,529 9,477

Total revenues 41,874 42,041 37,555

Cost of revenues
Products (including stock compensation of $33, $40 and $14) 16,742 15,885 14,103
Services (including stock compensation of $41, $61 and $27) 5,453 5,282 4,698

Total cost of revenues 22,195 21,167 18,801

Gross profit 19,679 20,874 18,754
Operating expenses
Research and development (including stock compensation of
$109, $123 and $56) 8,233 7,341 7,035
Selling, general and administrative (including stock compensation of
$370, $544 and $271) 14,052 15,091 15,672
Restructuring costs 16 40 126
Failed initial public offering costs �  991 �  
Amortization of acquired intangibles 453 637 555
Impairment of acquired intangibles �  �  156

Total operating expenses 22,754 24,100 23,544

Loss from operations (3,075) (3,226) (4,790)
Other income and expenses
Other income (expense) (211) 418 (732)
Interest expense (1,839) (1,887) (1,676)

Total other income and expenses (2,050) (1,469) (2,408)

Loss before income taxes (5,125) (4,695) (7,198)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes (124) (93) 166

Net loss (5,249) (4,788) (7,032)
Cumulative dividends on preferred stock (3,549) (3,378) (3,022)
Accretion of beneficial conversion feature �  (864) �  

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (8,798) $ (9,030) $ (10,054)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated statements of operations.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

Series A Preferred Stock
Convertible

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss)
Income

Deferred

Compensation
Accumulated

Deficit

Stock-
holders�
Equity

(in thousands, except share
data) Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balances at December 31,
2002 9,517 $ �  7,787,804 $ 78 127,126,851 $ 1 $ 26,532 $ 570 $ (647) $ (13,297) $ 13,237
Exercise of employee stock
options �  �  �  �  2,571,884 �  80 �  �  �  80
Repurchase of stock (72) (757,621) (80) (80)
Vesting of early exercise of
stock options �  �  �  �  �  �  80 �  �  �  80
Deferred stock compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  464 �  (464) �  �  
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  368 �  368
Foreign currency translation
adjustment �  �  �  �  �  �  �  821 �  �  821
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (7,032) (7,032)

Balances at December 31,
2003 9,445 �  7,787,804 78 128,941,114 1 27,076 1,391 (743) (20,329) 7,474
Exercise of employee stock
options �  �  �  �  2,199,273 �  152 �  �  �  152
Issuance of common stock, at
$0.40 per share net of offering
costs of $18 �  �  �  �  10,000,000 �  3,982 �  �  �  3,982
Convertible preferred stock
discount �  �  �  (864) �  �  864 �  �  �  �  
Accretion of preferred stock
discount �  �  �  864 �  �  (864) �  �  �  �  
Vesting of early exercise of
stock options �  �  �  �  �  �  60 �  �  �  60
Deferred stock compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  1,762 �  (1,762) �  �  
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  768 �  768
Foreign currency translation
adjustment �  �  �  �  �  �  �  448 �  �  448
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (4,788) (4,788)

Balances at December 31,
2004 9,445 �  7,787,804 78 141,140,387 1 33,032 1,839 (1,737) (25,117) 8,096
Exercise of employee stock
options 93,449 7 7
Vesting of early exercise of
stock options �  �  �  �  �  �  84 �  �  �  84
Cancellations of unvested stock
options �  �  �  �  �  �  (118) �  118 �  �  
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  553 �  553
Foreign currency translation
adjustment �  �  �  �  �  �  (891) �  �  (891)
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (5,249) (5,249)

Balances at December 31,
2005 9,445 $ �  7,787,804 $ 78 141,233,836 $ 1 $ 33,005 $ 948 $ (1,066) $ (30,366) $ 2,600
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Net loss $ (5,249) $ (4,788) $ (7,032)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (891) 448 821

Comprehensive loss $ (6,140) $ (4,340) $ (6,211)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,
    2005        2004        2003    

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (5,249) $ (4,788) $ (7,032)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 2,099 1,817 2,126
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 28 120 �  
Impairment of acquired intangibles �  �  156
Amortization of deferred stock compensation 553 768 368
Accumulated interest on Bio-Rad note �  812 1,598
Amortization of capitalized loan fees 4 4 �  
Deferred tax asset �  �  2,409
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 1,270 (1,539) (1,194)
Income taxes payable / receivable (313) 3,602 (2,347)
Inventories 2,251 (3,794) 908
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 292 (356) (56)
Accounts payable (177) 181 496
Accrued liabilities (334) (270) (1,396)
Deferred revenues 300 (73) (749)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 724 (3,516) (4,713)

Cash flows from investing activities
Transaction costs paid to acquire a business �  �  (114)
Cash used to acquire short term investments (1,011)
Proceeds from short-term investments �  1,011 �  
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 228 151 �  
Purchase of property and equipment (604) (1,594) (408)

Net cash used in investing activities (376) (432) (1,533)

Cash flows from financing activities
Exercise of stock options 7 152 80
Net proceeds from advances on revolving credit lines 500 1,239 �  
Payments on capital lease obligations �  �  (62)
Loan origination fee �  �  (5)
Proceeds from sale of common stock �  4,000 �  
Issuance costs on sale of common stock �  (18) �  
Repayment of note payable (1,495) (1,250) (1,250)
Repurchase of Series A preferred stock and common stock �  �  (80)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (988) 4,123 (1,317)

Effect of foreign currency exchange rates on cash (891) 448 821

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,531) 623 (6,742)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,120 4,497 11,239
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Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3,589 $ 5,120 $ 4,497

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities
Vested portion of early exercise of stock options $ 84 $ 60 $ 80
Cancellations of unvested stock options 118 �  �  
Deferred compensation �  1,762 464
Demonstration inventory transferred to fixed assets �  1,190 �  
Convertible preferred stock discount �  864 �  
Accretion of preferred stock discount �  (864) �  
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest 1,840 1,863 183
Cash paid for taxes �  �  401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1�The Organization and Nature of Operations

Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. (�Accent Optical�) was incorporated in Delaware on April 6, 2000. On July 31, 2000, Accent Optical and its
wholly owned subsidiaries acquired certain assets and liabilities of Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc�s (�Bio-Rad�) Semiconductor Measurement Division
(�SMD�).

Prior to the acquisition of Bio-Rad SMD (the �SMD Acquisition�), Accent Optical was a holding company that was formed to investigate and
pursue the SMD Acquisition. Since the SMD Acquisition, all of the operations of Accent Optical have been conducted through its wholly owned
subsidiaries. Accent Optical designs, manufactures and services a broad suite of process control and metrology systems used by manufacturers
of semiconductor wafers and compound and silicon semiconductor devices for the advanced computing, communications and consumer
electronics markets. Accent Optical�s primary manufacturing facilities are located in the United Kingdom.

Risks and Uncertainties

Accent Optical is subject to certain risks and uncertainties including, among others: fluctuation of operating results; cyclical nature of the
industries in which it operates; new product introductions and rapid technological change; market acceptance of its products; competition from
companies with greater resources; dependence on key personnel; customer concentrations; variations in the length of the sales cycles;
dependence on key suppliers; limited protection of intellectual property rights; reliance on a single manufacturing location; international
operations and currency fluctuations; control by existing stockholders and the need for future financing to fund working capital, repayment of
long-term debt and expansion of the business.

Merger Agreement

In January 2006, Accent Optical entered into a definitive agreement to be acquired by Nanometrics, Inc. (�Nanometrics�) for approximately five
million shares of Nanometrics common stock and the assumption of certain liabilities (the �merger�). The merger is expected to close in the
second quarter of 2006, subject to shareholder approval, customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals (Note 15).

Liquidity and Financing Requirements

Accent Optical has experienced net losses of $5.2 million, $4.8 million, and $7.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively. Despite the net losses, Accent Optical has been able to fulfill its working capital and capital expenditure needs due, in part, to
equity financing, available cash resources and maintaining adequate debt financing arrangements. Based on its operating plan, management
estimates that cash at December 31, 2005, existing debt financing arrangements, and cash flows generated from operating activities will not be
sufficient to fund operations at the current and projected levels for the next twelve months. In the event that the merger is not completed, or for
other reasons, management will pursue actions to sell product lines, reduce costs, or seek alternative financing arrangements and pursue
additional placement of Company stock. There can be no assurance that such sources of financing and capital will be available if required or, if
available, will be on terms satisfactory to Accent Optical (Note 15).

Note 2�Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Accent Optical and its wholly owned subsidiaries and branches in
the United States, France, Germany, Israel, South Korea, Taiwan,
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Switzerland, Japan, Canada, and the United Kingdom. All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the functional currency is the local currency, Accent Optical translates the balance sheet of its foreign subsidiaries using the year end
exchange rates and the statement of operations using the average exchange rates for the period. The cumulative effect of these translation
adjustments are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders� equity. Exchange gains and losses arising from
transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity involved and re-measurement adjustments for foreign
operations where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency are included in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Accent Optical bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. Significant estimates made in preparing the consolidated financial statements include depreciation and
amortization periods of long-lived and intangible assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, provisions to reduce inventories to their estimated net
realizable values, warranty accruals, impairments of goodwill and other long-lived assets, incurred but not reported (�IBNR�) health claims and the
realizability of deferred tax assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject Accent Optical to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents
and accounts receivable. Accent Optical maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank accounts, which at times may exceed federally insured
limits. Accent Optical has not experienced any losses on these accounts. The risk related to accounts receivable is mitigated by sales to
well-established companies, ongoing credit evaluation of its customers, and frequent contact with its customers, especially its most significant
customers, thus enabling Accent Optical to monitor for current changes in business operations and to respond accordingly. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is management�s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the existing accounts receivable. Accent Optical
determines the allowance based on historical write-off experience. Accent Optical reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Past
due balances over 120 days are reviewed individually for collectibility. All other balances are reviewed on a pooled basis by aging category.
Account balances are charged off against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. Accent Optical does not have
any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to its customers.
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

As of December 31, 2005, ten customers accounted for 58.1% of accounts receivable with one customer accounting for approximately 9.1%. As
of December 31, 2004, ten customers accounted for 62.7% of accounts receivable with one customer accounting for approximately 21.9%. As of
December 31, 2003, ten customers accounted for 63.8% of accounts receivable with one customer accounting for approximately 13.1%. As of
December 31, percentages of accounts receivable balances in each of the geographical regions are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
U.S. 26.8% 12.8% 13.3%
Europe 16.5% 38.6% 12.6%
Japan 35.8% 29.4% 44.8%
Rest of World 20.9% 19.2% 29.3%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of Accent Optical�s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to their short maturities. The carrying amount of Accent Optical�s debt as of December 31, 2005
approximates fair value as the components of the debt are either short-term in nature, or bear interest at rates that approximate prevailing market
rates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accent Optical considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase to be cash and
cash equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market using a standard cost system. Finished goods and work-in-process
include cost of materials, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. Reserves, when required, are recorded to reduce excess and obsolete
inventories to their estimated net realizable values. Inventory reserves of $5.3 million and $6.6 million were recorded at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Property and equipment acquired from Bio-Rad are
stated at their estimated fair values based upon the allocated purchase price at the acquisition date. Accent Optical depreciates property and
equipment over their estimated useful lives of two to seven years using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the useful lives of the assets or the lease term. Costs incurred to maintain property and equipment that do not increase the useful life of
the underlying assets are expensed as incurred. At the time of retirement or other disposal, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and
amortization are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the purchase price in excess of identifiable assets arising from acquisitions. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Accent
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ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Optical reviews goodwill annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, for impairment. Accent Optical calculates the fair value of
goodwill using a discounted cash flow model. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. If the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds its carrying amount including goodwill, goodwill is not considered to be impaired. Accent Optical estimates future discounted cash
flows using assumptions about the expected future operating performance of Accent Optical. Accent Optical�s estimates of discounted cash flows
may differ from actual cash flow due to, among other things, technological changes, economic conditions, or changes to its business operations.
Management completed its annual impairment test on December 31, 2005 and determined there was no impairment of goodwill (Note 6).

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and intangible assets with definite lives, are reviewed for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accent Optical assesses possible impairment whenever changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of an asset is measured by comparison of its
carrying amount to the future undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to generate. Any impairment to be recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeded its fair market value.

Financing Costs

Costs related to obtaining debt financing are capitalized when incurred and amortized over the life of the applicable loan. These are included in
other noncurrent assets. Unamortized loan costs related to debt that is extinguished early are written off. Incremental costs directly attributable to
a proposed or actual offering of Accent Optical securities are deferred and charged against the gross proceeds of the offering. Costs incurred for
an aborted offering are charged to expense when the decision to abort the offering is made. In 2004, Accent Optical incurred $991,000 of costs
related to an aborted initial public offering of Accent Optical�s Common Stock.

Revenue Recognition

Accent Optical�s revenues are derived from the sale of its products and from fees associated with maintenance and technical support offered to its
customers. Revenues from product sales are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services
have been rendered, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. For sales of standard products to existing
customers who have purchased the same equipment with the same customer-specified acceptance criteria in the past, revenue is recognized upon
title transfer, which is generally upon shipment of the product to the customer. For sales of new products or existing products with unique
acceptance criteria to a new customer, revenue is deferred and is recognized only upon customer acceptance, which is generally upon receipt of
final payment of the purchase price. Service and technical support for products is provided under separate maintenance agreements. Revenue
from maintenance agreements is deferred and is recognized ratably over the term of the agreement as the service is provided.

Product sales to distributors are recognized upon transfer of title, which is generally upon shipment of the product to the distributor or the end
customer.

Revenue on the sale of spare parts is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists (a binding purchase order is received),
delivery has occurred, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Title and the risk and rewards of ownership
transfer upon shipment of the spare parts and revenue is recognized upon shipment.
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Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues represent amounts billed to customers for product sales and maintenance agreements for which the earnings process is
incomplete. The portions of maintenance services, which will be provided for more than one year in the future, if applicable, are classified as
noncurrent deferred revenues.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Accent Optical incurs shipping, handling and other related costs for shipment of goods to customers. The costs are recognized in the period in
which the expenses are incurred and are included in cost of revenues. Amounts billed to customers for shipping, handling, and related costs are
included as a component of revenues.

Product Installation and Warranty Costs

At the time product revenue is recognized, Accent Optical accrues for estimated product installation costs and costs associated with warranty on
its products, which typically range from a period of between 12 to 24 months. Accent Optical estimates the cost of providing product installation
and warranty based on historical costs of installing the products and actual field repair rates (Note 7).

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and are related to developing new products and improving existing products or
processes. These costs primarily include salaries, fees paid to consultants, supplies, legal costs related to patents and design costs. Accent
Optical incurred research and development costs of $8.2 million, $7.3 million, and $7.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively.

Advertising

Costs related to advertising are charged to selling, general and administrative expense as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $84,881, $105,514, and $390,000, respectively.

Income Taxes

Accent Optical accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax bases of Accent Optical�s assets and
liabilities. Valuation allowances are provided if based upon the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components.
SFAS No. 130 requires companies to report �comprehensive income� that includes unrealized gains and losses and other items that have been
previously excluded from net income or loss and reflected instead in stockholders� equity. Comprehensive loss for Accent Optical consists of net
loss and the effect of foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Accent Optical accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board (�APB�) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and complies with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation�Transition and
Disclosure, Amendment to SFAS No. 123. Under APB No. 25, compensation expense is based on the difference, if any, on the date of grant,
between the fair value of Accent Optical�s stock and the exercise price of the option. Accent Optical accounts for stock and stock options issued
to nonemployees in accordance with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus on Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity
Instruments that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. Compensation and
services expense are recognized ratably over the vesting period of the options or the periods the related services are rendered, as appropriate.

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss as if Accent Optical had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to
stock-based employee compensation for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003:

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders�as reported $ (8,798) $ (9,030) $ (10,054)
Add: total stock-based compensation expense included in reported net loss
attributable to common stockholders 553 768 368
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
method (1,140) (1,226) (538)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders�pro forma $ (9,385) $ (9,488) $ (10,224)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate 4.1% 3.5% 3.4%
Volatility 68.0% 80.5% 77.0%
Dividend Yield �  �  �  
Expected lives (years) 7.8 7.8 7.8
Weighted average fair value at date of grant $ 0.28 $ 0.72 $ 0.27

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These changes had no impact on the previously
reported net loss or stockholders� equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs�An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 (SFAS 151). SFAS 151 amends
the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Among other provisions, the new rule requires that items such as idle facility expense, excessive
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spoilage, double freight, and re-handling costs be recognized as current period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of �so
abnormal� as stated in ARB No. 43. Additionally, SFAS 151 requires that the allocation of fixed production overhead to the costs of conversion
be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption
of SFAS 151 did not have a material effect on Accent Optical�s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets�An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions (SFAS 153). SFAS 153 eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar
productive assets in paragraph 2l(b) of APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, and replaces it with an exception for
exchanges that do not have commercial substance. SFAS 153 specifies that a nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash
flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. SFAS 153 is effective for the fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 153 did not have a material effect on Accent Optical�s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS 123(R), which establishes standards
for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This Statement focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS 123(R) requires that the fair
value of such equity instruments be recognized as an expense in the historical financial statements as services are performed. Prior to SFAS
123(R), only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. For nonpublic companies, the provisions of this Statement are effective as
of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2005. Accent Optical will adopt SFAS 123(R) commencing
with the year ending December 31, 2006, and is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 123(R) will have on its results of
operations or financial position.

Note 3�Compensating Balances

A maximum of $5.0 million was available to Accent Optical under a revolving credit agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, Accent
Optical is required to maintain, on deposit with Comerica Bank (Note 8), a compensating balance, the greater of $1,000,000 or 50% of the
aggregate amount of all outstanding advances plus 50% of the aggregate amount of all outstanding equipment advances. At December 31, 2005,
$1,000,000 of the cash balance shown in the balance sheet was maintained as a compensating balance.

Note 4�Inventories

Inventories, net of reserves, consist of the following as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Raw materials $ 5,154 $ 5,963
Work in process 2,424 3,260
Finished goods and demonstration equipment 2,176 2,782

$ 9,754 $ 12,005
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Note 5�Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Leasehold improvements $ 596 $ 444
Equipment 7,064 7,185

7,660 7,629
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,878) (4,551)

$ 1,782 $ 3,078

Depreciation and amortization related to property and equipment was approximately $1.6 million, $1.2 million, and $1.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, equipment under capital leases totaled $328,000 with related accumulated amortization of $328,000 and
$263,000, respectively.

Note 6�Goodwill and Acquired Intangibles

As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical, as part of its review of financial results, performed an assessment of the carrying value of Accent
Optical�s long-lived assets to be held and used including the acquired intangible assets other than goodwill. The assessment was performed
pursuant to SFAS No. 144. Fair value was determined using the income approach. No impairment charge was required as of December 31, 2005
and 2004. During 2003, as a result of the significant negative industry and economic trends affecting both Accent Optical�s current operations
and expected future sales as well as the general decline of technology valuations, Accent Optical concluded that the carrying value of its
acquired intangibles, primarily developed technology, was impaired and as such took an impairment charge of approximately $156,000 to
reduce the carrying value of the assets to fair value at December 31, 2003.

Acquired intangibles consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Developed technology $ 13,230 $ 13,230
Less accumulated amortization (13,186) (12,733)

Acquired intangibles, net $ 44 $ 497

Amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets was approximately $453,000, $637,000, and $555,000 for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Estimated amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets for the year ending December 31, 2006 is $44,000.
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Goodwill consists of the following at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

(in thousands)
Goodwill $ 3,369
Less accumulated amortization (1,042)

Goodwill, net $ 2,327
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There was no amortization expense for goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Note 7�Accrued and Other Liabilities

Accrued and other liabilities consist of the following as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Accrued payroll and payroll related $ 2,062 $ 1,987
Accrued installation and warranty 1,069 1,706
Accrued interest 828 812
Accrued agent commission 241 343
Income taxes payable �  208
Other accrued liabilities 3,369 3,203

$ 7,569 $ 8,259

Accent Optical�s warranty obligations are as follows as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Beginning obligation $ 1,706 $ 2,172
Accruals for warranties issued during the year 1,973 2,399
Settlements for pre-existing warranties (174) 128
Settlements during the year (2,436) (2,993)

Ending obligation $ 1,069 $ 1,706

Note 8�Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Term loans with Comerica Bank $ 1,844 $ 3,127
Revolving debt with Comerica Bank 900 612
Subordinated note payable to Bio-Rad 11,772 11,772

Subtotal 14,516 15,511
Less current portion (2,744) (2,071)

Long-term debt $ 11,772 $ 13,440
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The noncurrent portion of long-term debt is included in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2005 as follows:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Notes payable, net of current portion $ �  $ 1,668
Subordinated note payable to Bio-Rad, net of current portion 11,772 11,772

$ 11,772 $ 13,440
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Aggregate future principal maturities of all debt as of December 31, 2005 are as follows:

(in thousands)
2006 $ 2,744
2007 11,772

$ 14,516

Loans with Comerica Bank

In December 2002, Accent Optical entered into a term loan agreement with Comerica Bank (the Agreement). Outstanding borrowings under the
Agreement are secured by substantially all of the assets of Accent Optical and its subsidiaries. The Agreement contains affirmative and negative
covenants (including restrictions on Accent Optical entering into certain transactions and certain financial covenants including a minimum
liquidity ratio and tangible net worth). As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical was not in compliance with certain financial covenants related
to the loan and Security Agreement entered into on March 31, 2005.

On February 14, 2006, Accent Optical entered into a Forbearance Agreement and Second Amendment to the Agreement (the �Revised
Agreement�), which provided that Comerica would not exercise any remedies available to the Bank for such defaults until the earlier of May 31,
2006 or such date in which further events of default were to occur. In addition, the Revised Agreement provided for (1) a reduction in the total
amount available under the revolving line of credit to $1,355,000; (2) Accent Optical is not required to comply with any net worth covenant; and
(3) a reduction in the liquidity ratio covenant from 1.7 to 1.5.

In June 2004, Accent Optical amended the Agreement with Comerica to include a revolving line of credit and a revolving equipment advance
line of credit. Accent Optical may request advances under a revolving line of credit not to exceed the lesser of (1) $7,500,000 minus the balances
on all Comerica debt under the amended agreement, or (2) the borrowing base established by the debt covenants. Under the terms of this
amendment, Accent Optical may also request advances for purchases of equipment not to exceed the lesser of (1) $7,500,000 minus the balances
on all Comerica debt under the amended agreement, or (2) the borrowing base established by the debt covenants. As of December 31, 2005, the
amount available under the revolving line of credit was limited to approximately $785,000 based upon U.S. eligible accounts receivable and
amounts previously borrowed.

In October 2004, Accent Optical amended the Agreement with Comerica to convert the balance under the revolving equipment advance line of
credit to a term loan. Under this amendment, approximately $838,000 was converted to term debt as of December 31, 2005. The loan bears
interest at the lower of (1) Comerica Bank�s prime rate or LIBOR plus reserve percentage (reserve percentage of 2.75% at December 31, 2005) or
(2) Comerica Bank�s prime rate. The first equipment term loan is payable over 36 months, beginning December 1, 2004. The second equipment
term loan is payable over 36 months, beginning July 1, 2005. The equipment term loans may be prepaid in whole or in part without any penalty
or premium. The outstanding balance of equipment term loans as of December 31, 2005 is $594,309.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the balance of the Comerica Bank term loan was $1,250,000 and $2,500,000, respectively. The loan bears
interest at the lower of either Comerica Bank�s prime rate or LIBOR rate plus reserve percentage (reserve percentage of 2.75% at December 31,
2005.) The interest rate on the Comerica Bank term loan was 7.03% at December 31, 2005. The term loan is payable in 48 equal monthly
installments of principal, plus all accrued interest, beginning January 1, 2003. The term loan may be prepaid in whole or in part without any
penalty or premium.
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the balance of the Comerica Bank revolving line of credit was $900,000 and $400,000, respectively. The
loan bears interest at the lower of (1) Comerica Bank�s prime rate or LIBOR plus reserve percentage (reserve percentage of 2.50% at
December 31, 2005) or (2) Comerica Bank�s prime rate. The interest rate on the Comerica Bank revolving line of credit at December 31, 2005
was 7.25%. The maturity date on the revolving line of credit was March 30, 2006, which is extended to May 31, 2006 under the Revised
Agreement.

Subordinated Note Payable to Bio-Rad

In connection with the SMD Acquisition, Accent Optical issued an $8 million subordinated note payable to Bio-Rad (the �Bio-Rad Note�), which
had an original due date of July 31, 2005 and accrues interest at 13.5 percent per annum on the principal. Under a penalty clause in the Bio-Rad
Note, any principal, interest, premium or other amount due under the Bio-Rad Note that is not paid when due will accrue interest payable on
demand at 17.5 percent per annum. Accent Optical shall have the right at any time to prepay the principal of the note without penalty. However,
Accent Optical must repay the Bio-Rad Note in full within two business days of a change in control or the completion of an initial public
offering resulting in gross proceeds of at least $35.0 million. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Accent Optical recorded
interest expense of approximately $1,611,000, $1,671,000 and $1,560,000, respectively on this note.

In November 2003, Accent Optical amended the Bio-Rad note to extend the principal due date to July 31, 2007. Accent Optical also agreed that
interest payments would be paid each June 30 and December 31. In January 2006, Bio-Rad agreed to defer the interest payment of $812,000
which was due on December 31, 2005, to the earlier of June 30, 2006 or the closing of the merger (Note 15).

Note 9�Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

Prior to the SMD Acquisition, all facilities were either owned by Bio-Rad or leased by Bio-Rad from third parties under non-cancelable
operating leases. As part of the SMD Acquisition, Accent Optical entered into agreements with Bio-Rad to lease, sublease or assume leases for
certain facilities at fair market value (Note 12). Lease expense under all operating leases was approximately $1,059,000, $1,348,000 and
$1,693,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 2004, and 2003, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating lease agreements are as follows:

(in thousands)
2006 $ 957
2007 447
2008 375
2009 354
2010 327
Beyond 600

$ 3,060

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Accent Optical had outstanding $2.1 million, $3.5 million and $3.9 million, respectively, of purchase
commitments for inventory and supplies.
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Contingencies

Accent Optical is involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and other proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. There are no
matters pending that Accent Optical expects to be material in relation to its financial position or results of operations and cash flows.

Note 10�Stockholders� Equity

On July 26, 2000, Accent Optical�s Board of Directors approved, and on July 27, 2000 certain stockholders signed a Subscription and
Recapitalization Agreement, pursuant to which all of the issued and outstanding shares of Accent Optical Common Stock, originally issued at
$7,000 per share, were converted into 2,729 shares of Accent Optical Series A Preferred Stock at $1,000 per share and 88,152,000 shares of new
Accent Optical Common Stock at $0.01 per share.

On July 31, 2000, in connection with the SMD Acquisition, Accent Optical issued 21,951,000 shares of its Common Stock to Bio-Rad.

In September 2000, Accent Optical completed a private placement of 11,848,000 shares of its Common Stock at $0.01 per share and 1,132
shares of Series A Preferred Stock at $1,000 per share, generating gross proceeds to Accent Optical of approximately $1.3 million. The proceeds
from the private placement were used to repay the principal amounts of the loans of $1.3 million provided to Accent Optical by certain
stockholders of Accent Optical.

In November 2000, Accent Optical completed a private placement of 7,787,804 shares of its Convertible Preferred Stock at $2.05 per share,
generating net proceeds to Accent Optical of approximately $14.5 million.

In November 2004, Accent Optical completed a private placement of 10,000,000 shares of its Common Stock at $0.40 per share generating
gross proceeds to Accent Optical of $4,000,000. The proceeds were used for working capital, capital expenditures, payment of debt and general
corporate purposes.

Accent Optical has a security holder�s agreement that restricts its stockholders� ability to transfer their shares of Accent Optical Common Stock
and Series A Preferred Stock without Accent Optical�s approval. The security holder�s agreement contains tag-along rights, drag-along rights, and
a right of first refusal for Accent Optical�s founders and Accent Optical on certain permitted sales of stock by a stockholder. In addition, it also
contains anti-dilution protection for Bio-Rad and gives Bio-Rad the right to consent to certain issuances of shares of Accent Optical Preferred
Stock.

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Accent Optical has authorized the issuance of 9,765,648 shares of preferred stock (�Preferred Stock�), par
value $0.01 per share, 9,550 shares of which are designated Series A preferred stock (�Series A Preferred Stock�) and 9,756,098 shares of which
are designated convertible preferred stock (�Convertible Preferred Stock�).

The rights and preferences of the Series A Preferred Stock are indicated below.

Dividends�Series A Preferred Stock

The holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive semi-annual dividends, payable on June 30 and December 31 of
each year (the �Dividend Date�), when and as declared by the Board of Directors, in an amount per share equal to 13.5% per annum of the
liquidation preference per share. Each semi-
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annual dividend shall be fully cumulative, shall accrue, whether or not declared, on a daily basis from the last Dividend Date, and shall be added
to the liquidation preference. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock shall be paid prior to the payment of any dividend on the Convertible
Preferred Stock and the Common Stock. If the declaration or payment of any dividend would cause Accent Optical or its subsidiaries to be in
default under any credit agreement, the amount of such dividend shall instead be added to the liquidation preference. No dividends were
declared for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, dividends in arrears
on Series A Preferred Stock were $2.3 million, $2.1 million and $1.7 million, respectively. At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the
cumulative dividends in arrears were $9.7 million, $7.4 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

Liquidation Preference�Series A Preferred Stock

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Accent Optical, each holder of shares of Series A Preferred
Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of assets of Accent Optical available for distribution to its stockholders an amount in cash
per share equal to (1) $1,000 per share, plus (2) the amount of all dividends that have been added to the liquidation preference plus an amount in
cash equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends not yet added to the liquidation preference through the date fixed for liquidation, dissolution or
winding up. This liquidation preference is to be paid to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock before any payment is made of any assets
distributed to the holders of Common Stock. See Note 15�Subsequent Event.

Optional Conversion�Series A Preferred Stock

At the holder�s option, the Series A Preferred Stock will convert into shares of Common Stock only (in an amount equal to the sum of $1,000
plus the amount of all dividends that have been added to the liquidation preference plus an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends not
yet added to the liquidation preference through the date fixed for conversion) (1) upon an initial public offering resulting in gross proceeds of at
least $35 million at a price per share of Common Stock equal to the initial offering price of the Common Stock; (2) upon a change of control at a
price per share of Common Stock equal to the price per share of Common Stock (determined after giving effect to the conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock to be converted as a result of such change of control) paid in the transaction resulting in the change of control; or (3) at any time
on or after July 28, 2005 at a price per share of Common Stock equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date selected by the
holder for conversion. The fair market value shall mean the current market value of such Common Stock or if the current market value cannot be
determined because the Common Stock is not quoted or listed, the fair market value shall be determined by an investment bank of national
reputation determined by Accent Optical. Accent Optical, in its sole discretion, can subject the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock to the
condition that all holders of Series A Preferred Stock exercise their conversion rights, in which case the vote of a majority of the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock will bind all holders of Series A Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2005, no shares of Series A Preferred Stock have
been converted.

Voting Rights�Series A Preferred Stock

The holders of record of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are not entitled to any voting rights except as provided by the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and by Accent Optical�s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which provides, among
other things, that a class vote of the majority of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock is required to amend the Certificate of
Incorporation so as to adversely affect the rights of the Series A Preferred Stock.

The rights and preferences of the Convertible Preferred Stock are indicated below.
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Dividends�Convertible Preferred Stock

The holders of Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive dividends, when and as declared by the Board of Directors, at a rate of 8
percent per annum of the original purchase price per share of $2.05. Such dividends are fully cumulative, shall accrue if not paid, whether or not
declared, and shall be payable at the option of Accent Optical (1) in shares of Common Stock upon the closing of an initial public offering, or
(2) in cash prior to an initial public offering as determined by Accent Optical. Dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock will be paid prior to
the payment of any dividend on the Common Stock. If the declaration or payment of any dividend would cause Accent Optical or its subsidiaries
to be in default under any credit agreement, the amount of such dividend shall instead be added to the liquidation preference. No accrued but
unpaid dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock shall be paid in cash unless a proportionate amount of the accrued but unpaid dividend on the
Convertible Preferred Stock is also paid. No dividends were declared for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. For the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, dividends in arrears on Convertible Preferred Stock were $1.3 million. At December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, the cumulative dividends in arrears were $6.6 million, $5.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively.

Liquidation Preference�Convertible Preferred Stock

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holders of Convertible
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive prior and in preference to any distribution of any assets of Accent Optical to the holders of Common
Stock, an amount equal to the original purchase price for each share of Convertible Preferred Stock, plus (1) the amount of all dividends that
have been added to the liquidation preference, and (2) an amount in cash equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends. If the assets of Accent
Optical are not sufficient to pay in full the liquidation payments to holders of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, the assets shall be
distributed among the holders of Preferred Stock ratably and in proportion to the amount of liquidation preference each such holder is entitled to
receive if the amounts to which holders of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock are entitled were paid in full.

Optional Conversion�Convertible Preferred Stock

Each share of Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time after the issuance of such share, into such
number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock only as is determined by dividing the original purchase price by the conversion
price applicable to such share. The initial conversion price per share was equal to the original purchase price. With the issuance of shares
pursuant to the November 2004 offering, the conversion price was adjusted to reflect the anti-dilution provisions of the Convertible Preferred
Stock. The current conversion price is $1.95 per share.

Automatic Conversion�Convertible Preferred Stock

Each share of Convertible Preferred Stock is automatically converted into shares of Common Stock upon the earlier of (1) the election of the
holders of a majority of the then outstanding Convertible Preferred Stock voting as a single class; (2) immediately prior to the closing of an
initial public offering of the Common Stock, which results in gross proceeds to Accent Optical of at least $35.0 million; or (3) the election of the
Board of Directors upon the consolidation, merger or sale of Accent Optical or other transaction in which control of Accent Optical is
transferred.

Voting Rights�Convertible Preferred Stock

Each holder of Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which such
Convertible Preferred Stock could be converted.
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Anti-Dilution Protection�Convertible Preferred Stock

The holders of the Convertible Preferred Stock are protected from dilution. The conversion price of the Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
adjusted using the formula designated in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation. With the issuance of shares pursuant to the
November 2004 sale of Common Stock, Accent Optical recorded $863,600 as an adjustment to Convertible Preferred Stock and additional paid
in capital for the value of this beneficial conversion feature. Since the Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at
any time, the beneficial conversion feature was immediately amortized.

Common Stock

As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical was authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of $0.00001 par value Common Stock. The holders of
Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted on by Accent Optical.

Acquisition of the Semiconductor Measurements Division of Bio-Rad

Accent Optical financed the SMD Acquisition with bank debt, loans from stockholders, a subordinated note issued to Bio-Rad and proceeds
from the issuance of Common and Preferred Stock. The purchase price of SMD was approximately $36.4 million, which consisted of $27.2
million in cash, the issuance by Accent Optical of a subordinated note payable to Bio-Rad in the principal amount of $8.0 million (Note 8), and
the issuance by Accent Optical to Bio-Rad of 21,951,000 shares of Accent Optical�s Common Stock valued at $220,000 (based on the most
recent issuance of Common Stock at the time of the SMD Acquisition), which represented approximately 20% of the issued and outstanding
Common Stock of Accent Optical immediately after the SMD Acquisition. Accent Optical incurred transaction costs of approximately $1.0
million in connection with the SMD Acquisition.

Pursuant to the Transaction Agreement, Accent Optical must pay additional purchase price consideration to Bio-Rad if any of Accent Optical�s
stockholders, Accent Optical or their subsidiaries or affiliates receive, or are entitled to receive at a later date or dates, gross consideration in
connection with a change of control which has a fair value of not less than $50.0 million as of the date of such change of control. Subject to
limitations contained in the Transaction Agreement, the amount of such additional purchase price consideration may range from $3.0 million to
$13.0 million depending on the consideration received by Accent Optical upon such change of control. See Note 15. No additional purchase
price consideration is payable as a result of or after an initial public offering resulting in gross proceeds of at least $35.0 million. As of
December 31, 2005, such additional amounts have not been accrued.

Stock Incentive Plan

In October 2000, Accent Optical�s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan (the
�Plan�), which authorizes the issuance of up to 17,500,000 shares of Common Stock as either incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options
or restricted stock awards to eligible employees, directors and consultants. In January 2004, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved an
increase to the Plan to allow for the issuance of options to purchase up to 27,500,000 shares of Common Stock. The exercise price for incentive
stock options may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of grant. The exercise price for nonqualified
stock options may not be less than 85% of the fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of grant. In the event a grant is priced at a level
below the then current market value for accounting purposes on the date of grant, Accent Optical records the corresponding deferred
compensation.
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Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof, options generally vest over 48 months and expire 10 years after
the date of grant. The Plan provides, among other things, that in the event of a merger or other change in control, all options and other awards
outstanding under the Plan shall become fully vested unless the Board of Directors determines prior to the event, that vesting will not accelerate.
If an option holder�s employment by or service to Accent Optical is terminated by Accent Optical for cause, his or her option terminates, whether
or not vested. If an option holder�s employment by or service to Accent Optical is terminated other than for cause, he or she has a period of time,
ranging from 30 days to 12 months depending on the type of termination, in which to exercise the portion of his or her option that has vested
prior to such termination. If the employment or service of a restricted stock award recipient is terminated for any reason, the unvested shares
subject to the award may be repurchased by Accent Optical at the lesser of the fair market value or the original purchase price of such shares. In
August 2002, the Plan was amended to permit early exercise of stock options prior to vesting subject to repurchase by Accent Optical of
unvested shares should the employee terminate employment.

The following is a summary of stock option activity for the years ended December 31:

Options Outstanding

Options
Available

Options
Outstanding

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price
Balances at December 31, 2002 2,749,731 9,230,418 $ 0.07
Granted (2,794,500) 2,794,500) 0.15
Cancelled 1,936,500 (1,936,500) 0.11
Exercised �  (2,571,884) 0.03

Balances at December 31, 2003 1,891,731 7,516,354 0.11

Authorized addition to plan 10,000,000
Granted (3,260,500) 3,260,500 0.21
Cancelled 758,565 (758,565) 0.14
Exercised �  (2,199,273) 0.07

Balances at December 31, 2004 9,389,796 7,819,196 0.16

Granted (3,281,000) 3,281,000 0.40
Cancelled 459,174 (459,174) 0.17
Exercised �  (93,449) 0.07

Balances at December 31, 2005 6,567,970 10,547,573 $ 0.23

The status of stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisable

Range of Exercise
Prices

Number of
Options

Weighted-Average
Remaining Life

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Number
of

Options
Weighted- Average
Exercise Price

$        0.01 1,258,001 4.89 $ 0.01 1,258,001 $ 0.01
0.15 2,436,090 7.43 0.15 1,578,774 0.15
0.20 2,572,333 8.09 0.20 1,209,902 0.20
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0.21 967,899 5.86 0.21 956,910 0.21
0.25 90,000 8.21 0.25 39,479 0.25
0.35 118,000 8.53 0.35 43,625 0.35
0.40 3,105,250 9.17 0.40 692,713 0.40

$0.01-0.40 10,547,573 7.67 $ 0.23 5,779,404 $ 0.17
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Shares of Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical had shares of Common Stock reserved for future issuance, respectively, as follows:

Stock incentive plan 17,115,543
Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock 47,753,825
Conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock 24,496,145

89,365,513

Shares of Common Stock Subject to Repurchase under Stock Incentive Plan

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, 262,501, 731,459 and 1,045,045 shares of Common Stock issued in connection with the early exercise of
the options are subject to repurchase by Accent Optical under the Plan. Included in accrued liabilities and other long term liabilities is $51,904
and $147,129 related to the shares of unvested Common Stock subject to repurchase at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Deferred Stock Compensation

In connection with the grant of stock options to employees under the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Accent
Optical recorded deferred stock compensation of approximately $0, $1,762,000 and $464,000, respectively. This represents the difference
between the estimated fair value of the Common Stock and the aggregate exercise price of such options at the date of grant. This amount of
deferred compensation is presented as a reduction of stockholders� equity and will be amortized over the shorter of the period in which the
employee or director provides services or the applicable vesting period, which is typically 48 months subject to certain exceptions. Amortization
expense related to deferred stock compensation was approximately $553,000, $768,000 and $368,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Compensation expense is decreased in the period of forfeiture for any accrued but unvested compensation arising
from the early termination of an option holder�s services.

Note 11�Geographic Information

Revenues to the largest customer accounted for approximately 12.7%, and 10.4% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Revenues to the two largest customers accounted for approximately 14.9% and 10.3%, respectively, of total revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2003. No other customer represented more than 10 percent of total revenue for 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Revenues from third parties by geographical location for the period ended December 31 are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

United States $ 11,807 $ 8,826 $ 13,861
Japan 11,587 10,725 9,848
Asia (excluding Japan) 11,724 15,834 9,215
Europe 6,756 6,656 4,631

Total $ 41,874 $ 42,041 $ 37,555
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Net property and equipment by geographical location consisted of the following as of December 31:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

United States $ 1,073 $ 1,746
United Kingdom 695 1,302
Europe (excluding United Kingdom) 1 4
Asia 13 26

Total $ 1,782 $ 3,078

Note 12�Related-Party Transactions

Accent Optical has entered into agreements with Bio-Rad to lease certain facilities in the United Kingdom. For the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, Accent Optical recorded expense of approximately $132,000, $384,000 and $423,000 related to the Bio-Rad facility
leases, respectively. The lease for the one remaining facility expires in February 2007. The lease commitment related to this lease was
approximately $268,143 as of December 31, 2005, which is included in total operating lease commitments (Note 9).

In 2000, Accent Optical entered into an agreement with an officer of Accent Optical to lease office space in Oregon on an annual lease, currently
through September 2006, at a monthly rate of approximately $2,752 per month, $3,750 per month in 2004 and 2003. Rental expense paid in
relation to this agreement for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was approximately $32,000, $45,000 and $45,000,
respectively.

Note 13�Retirement Plans

In connection with the SMD Acquisition, certain employees of Accent Optical located in the United Kingdom (UK) continued to participate in
the existing Bio-Rad sponsored UK Pension Plan, through January 31, 2001. In December 2000, Accent Optical formed its own sponsored
retirement plans, which call for discretionary contributions by Accent Optical that are subject to established limits and vesting schedules.
Contributions to the UK defined contribution plan amounted to $221,000, $229,000 and $218,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Accent Optical�s Profit Sharing 401(k) Plan was adopted in December 2000 and allows eligible participants to contribute a portion of their
compensation to the Plan. Accent Optical may choose to make a discretionary matching employer contribution. During 2005, Accent Optical
made discretionary matching contributions for employees participating in the plan. Accent Optical contributed 50% of each participating
employees� deferral up to $1,000 per year. Matching contributions for the year ended December 31, 2005 amounted to approximately $45,000.
There were no matching contribution for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Note 14�Income Taxes

Loss before provision (benefit) for income taxes for the year ended December 31 is based on the following components:

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

United States loss $ (5,849) $ (6,569) $ (4,771)
Foreign income 724 1,874 (2,427)
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United States income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of foreign operations, which are considered to be permanently
invested. The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of the following:

    2005        2004        2003    
(in thousands)

Current provision (benefit)
Federal $ (15) $ (65) $ 156
State (2) 2 (21)
Foreign 141 156 (301)

124 93 (166)

Deferred provision (benefit)
Federal and state �  �  �  
Foreign �  �  �  

�  �  �  

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 124 $ 93 $ (166)

Accent Optical�s provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate to loss before
provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 as follows:

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Tax at federal statutory rate $ (1,743) (1,596) (2,310)
State tax net of federal benefit (158) (228) (135)
Net effect of foreign taxes 119 (314) (458)
Section 956 income �  48 �  
Research and development credits (319) (99) (170)
Change in valuation allowance 1,078 2,460 3,064
Non-deductible stock compensation 188 170 68
Foreign net operating loss adjustment 897 �  �  
Other�less than 5% 62 (348) (225)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 124 $ 93 $ (166)
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 are as follows:

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Current deferred tax assets
Inventory reserve and related items $ 218 $ 322
Warranty reserve 62 78
Accrued vacation 189 161
Other 95 143
Fixed assets 279 56
Accounts receivable 21 36

864 796

Long-term deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Intangible assets 3,354 3,650
Fixed assets 30 (88)
Net operating loss carryforward 5,723 4,711
Other 147 (29)

9,254 8,244

Gross deferred tax asset 10,118 9,040
Less valuation allowance (10,118) (9,040)

Net deferred tax assets $ �  $ �  

Realization of the deferred tax asset is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income. Management believes that it is more likely than
not that the net deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Accent Optical has recorded a valuation allowance at December 31, 2005 and 2004, primarily for deferred tax assets related to IPR&D,
intangible assets and net operating loss carry-forwards. As of December 31, 2005, Accent Optical had federal, state and foreign net operating
loss carry-forwards before valuation allowance of $12.2 million, $20.4 million, and $3.5 million, respectively, which expire between 2007 and
2013. Utilization of these net operating loss carry-forwards may be limited due to future ownership changes of Accent Optical.

Note 15�Subsequent Events

Merger Agreement

On January 25, 2006, Accent Optical entered into a definitive agreement to be acquired by Nanometrics, Inc. The transaction is expected to close
in the second quarter of 2006, subject to stockholder approval, customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals. Under the terms of the
merger agreement Nanometrics will issue approximately 5.0 million shares of their common stock in exchange for all of the capital stock of
Accent Optical. In addition, Nanometrics will assume all of the net debt of Accent Optical. At the time of the agreement the transaction was
valued at approximately $80.9 million. No adjustments to these financial statements have been made as a result of this 2006 transaction.
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Series A Preferred Stock

As more fully described in Note 10, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to a liquidation preference of (1) $1,000 per share, plus
(2) the amount of all dividends that have been added to the liquidation preference plus an amount in cash equal to all accrued but unpaid
dividends not yet added to the liquidation preference through the date fixed for liquidation. To facilitate the merger, a majority of the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock signed a voting agreement which, among other things, provided for a liquidation preference of $1,000 of Nanometrics
common stock for each share of Series A Preferred Stock. The value of the shares will be determined by the average closing price of
Nanometrics stock for the 10 trading days 2 days prior to the closing date. In the event that the proceeds are not sufficient to pay the revised
liquidation preference, the amount will be reduced pro rata with the amount payable to the holders of Convertible Preferred Stock.

Convertible Preferred Stock

As more fully described in Note 10, the holders of Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to a liquidation preference of the original purchase
price for each share of Convertible Preferred Stock, plus (1) the amount of all dividends that have been added to the liquidation preference, and
(2) an amount in cash equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends. To facilitate the merger, stockholders representing a majority of the Convertible
Preferred Stock outstanding signed a voting agreement which, among other things, provided for a liquidation preference of $1.13 per share. The
value of the shares will be determined by the average closing price of Nanometrics stock for the 10 trading days 2 days prior to the closing date.
In the event that the proceeds are not sufficient to pay the revised liquidation preference, the amount will be reduced pro rata with the amount
payable to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock.

Bio-Rad Additional Consideration

As more fully described in Note 10, Bio-Rad is entitled to receive additional consideration of $13 million in connection with a change of control
with a value in excess of $65 million. To facilitate the merger, Bio-Rad agreed to accept a payment upon closing equal to $2.5 million and to
waive any other rights to additional consideration.

Nanometrics Promissory Note

To facilitate Accent Optical�s working capital needs, as part of the definitive merger agreement Nanometrics agreed to provide up to $2.5 million
under promissory notes. The terms of the promissory notes make the entire $2.5 million available to Accent Optical at any time prior to closing.
In the event that the merger is terminated, Nanometrics will have no further obligations under the promissory notes. Any amounts outstanding
will convert into shares of Accent Optical Common Stock on the one year anniversary of the termination of the agreement. The number of shares
will be determined by the lesser of (i) the fair market value of Accent Optical Common Stock at the time of such conversion as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors of Accent Optical or (ii) $0.40 per share. The notes will accrue interest rate of 6.5% per annum.
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The attached copy of the merger agreement has been included to provide the reader with information regarding its terms. It is not
intended to provide any other factual information about Nanometrics or Accent Optical. Such information can be found elsewhere in
this joint proxy statement/prospectus and in other public filings that Nanometrics makes with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
which are available without charge at www.sec.gov.

The merger agreement contains representations and warranties that Nanometrics and Accent Optical made to one and other in the
context and at the time of the merger. The assertions embodied in those representations and warranties are qualified by information in
confidential disclosure schedules that Nanometrics and Accent Optical have exchanged in connection with signing the merger
agreement. The disclosure schedules do contain information that modifies, qualifies and creates exceptions to the representations and
warranties set forth in the attached merger agreement. Accordingly, you should not rely on the representations and warranties as
characterizations of the actual state of facts, since they are modified by the underlying disclosure schedules and were made as of the
time of the merger. These disclosure schedules contain information that has been included in Nanometrics� prior public disclosures, as
well as potential additional non-public information. Neither Nanometrics nor Accent Optical believe that the disclosure schedules
contain information that the securities laws require either or both of them to publicly disclose. Moreover, information concerning the
subject matter of the representations and warranties may have changed since the date of the agreement, which subsequent information
may or may not be fully reflected in Nanometrics� public disclosures.

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER AND REORGANIZATION

by and among

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED,

ALLOY MERGER CORPORATION,

ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

and

SANFORD S. WADLER,

as STOCKHOLDER AGENT

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 83



Dated as of January 25, 2006

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 84



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I THE MERGER 2

Section 1.1 The Merger 2
Section 1.2 Effective Time of Merger 2
Section 1.3 Effects of Merger 2
Section 1.4 Certificate of Incorporation & Bylaws of Surviving Corporation 2
Section 1.5 Board of Directors & Officers of the Surviving Corporation 2
Section 1.6 Effects of Merger on Capital Stock 2

ARTICLE II THE CLOSING 7

Section 2.1 Closing 7
Section 2.2 Exchange of Certificates 7

ARTICLE III REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY 9

Section 3.1 Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries 9
Section 3.2 Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws 9
Section 3.3 Capitalization 9
Section 3.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement; Shareholder Approval 11
Section 3.5 No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents 11
Section 3.6 Compliance; Permits 12
Section 3.7 Financial Statements 12
Section 3.8 Internal Controls and Procedures 13
Section 3.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events 13
Section 3.10 No Undisclosed Liabilities 13
Section 3.11 Absence of Litigation; Investigations 14
Section 3.12 Agreements, Contracts and Commitments 14
Section 3.13 Employee Benefit Plans, Options and Employment Agreements 15
Section 3.14 Labor Matters 18
Section 3.15 Properties and Assets 19
Section 3.16 Taxes 20
Section 3.17 Environmental Matters 21
Section 3.18 Intellectual Property 22
Section 3.19 Insurance 25
Section 3.20 Interested Party Transactions 25
Section 3.21 Brokers 25
Section 3.22 Opinion of Financial Advisor of the Company 25
Section 3.23 Anti-Takeover Statute Not Applicable 25
Section 3.24 Disclosure 25

ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT 26

Section 4.1 Organization and Qualification; Merger Sub 26
Section 4.2 Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws 26
Section 4.3 Capitalization 26
Section 4.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement; Shareholder Approval 28
Section 4.5 No Conflict, Required Filings and Consents 29
Section 4.6 Compliance; Permits 29
Section 4.7 SEC Filings; Financial Statements 30
Section 4.8 Disclosure Controls and Procedures 30
Section 4.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events 31

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 85



A-i

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 86



Table of Contents

Page

Section 4.10 No Undisclosed Liabilities 31
Section 4.11 Absence of Litigation; Investigations 31
Section 4.12 Agreements, Contracts and Commitments 32
Section 4.13 Employee Benefit Plans, Options and Employment Agreements 32
Section 4.14 Labor Matters 35
Section 4.15 Properties; Encumbrances 36
Section 4.16 Taxes 37
Section 4.17 Environmental Matters 38
Section 4.18 Intellectual Property 39
Section 4.19 Insurance 40
Section 4.20 Interested Party Transactions 40
Section 4.21 Brokers 40
Section 4.22 Opinion of Financial Advisor of Parent 40
Section 4.23 Anti-Takeover Statute Not Applicable 40

ARTICLE V INTERIM CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 40

Section 5.1 Affirmative Covenants 40
Section 5.2 Restrictive Covenants on Company 40
Section 5.3 Restrictive Covenants on Parent 43

ARTICLE VI ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 43

Section 6.1 Access to Information; Notice of Certain Matters 43
Section 6.2 No Solicitation 44
Section 6.3 Board Recommendations 45
Section 6.4 Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus; Registration Statement 45
Section 6.5 Merger Shareholders Actions 46
Section 6.6 Reasonable Best Efforts to Complete 47
Section 6.7 Public Announcements 48
Section 6.8 Company Employee Benefits; Company 401(k) Plan 48
Section 6.9 Company Stock Plan 49
Section 6.10 Indemnification and Insurance 49
Section 6.11 Company Affiliates 50
Section 6.12 Tax Matters 51
Section 6.13 Takeover Statutes 51
Section 6.14 Directorships 51
Section 6.15 Termination of Company Investor Rights 51
Section 6.16 Financial Statements and Consents of Accountants 51
Section 6.17 Working Capital Loan 51

ARTICLE VII CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER 52

Section 7.1 Conditions to Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger 52
Section 7.2 Additional Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to Effect the Merger 53
Section 7.3 Additional Conditions to Obligation of the Company to Effect the Merger 55

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION 55

Section 8.1 Termination 55
Section 8.2 Effect of Termination 56
Section 8.3 Fees and Expenses 56

A-ii

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 87



Table of Contents

Page

ARTICLE IX SURVIVAL & INDEMNIFICATION 57

Section 9.1 Survival of Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements 57
Section 9.2 Indemnification 58
Section 9.3 Limitations on Indemnification Recoveries 58
Section 9.4 Creation of Escrow Fund; Period for Indemnification Claims Against Escrow Fund 60
Section 9.5 Indemnification Claim Procedures During the Escrow Period 60
Section 9.6 Resolution of Objections to Indemnification Claims 61
Section 9.7 Stockholder Agent 61
Section 9.8 Third Party Claims 62

ARTICLE X GENERAL PROVISIONS 64

Section 10.1 Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants 64
Section 10.2 Notices 64
Section 10.3 Certain Definitions 65
Section 10.4 Certain Interpretations 69
Section 10.5 Amendment 69
Section 10.6 Extension; Waiver 69
Section 10.7 Severability 69
Section 10.8 Entire Agreement; No Third Party Beneficiaries 70
Section 10.9 Parties 70
Section 10.10 Assignment 70
Section 10.11 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver; Remedies Cumulative 70
Section 10.12 Governing Law 70
Section 10.13 Counterparts 70
Section 10.14 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 70
Section 10.15 Specific Performance 70
Section 10.16 Disclosure Schedules 71

A-iii

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 88



Table of Contents

DEFINED TERMS

Page

1991 Director Plan 41
1991 Plan 41
2000 Director Plan 41
2000 Employee Plan 41
2002 Parent NSO Plan 40
401(k) Plan 75
Acquisition Proposal 100
Acquisition Transaction 100
Action or Proceeding 100
Affiliate 100
Aggregate Company Common Stock 4
Aggregate Merger Consideration 4
Aggregate Residual Amount 4
Agreement 1
Aluminum Nickel Inc. 3
Antitrust Law 100
Assumed Option 8
Audited Company Financial Statements 19
Average Closing Price 4
Beneficial Owner 101
Blue Sky 43
Business Day 101
Canceled Options 8
Capitalization Certificate 83
CCC 101
Certificate of Merger 3
Certificates 10
Change of Recommendation 69
Closing 10
Closing Date 10
Closing Date Payment Schedule 83
COBRA 101
Code 2
Company 1
Company Affiliate 78
Company Affiliates 78
Company Balance Sheet 19
Company Board 16
Company Bylaws 14
Company Capital Stock 4
Company Charter 14
Company Common Stock 5
Company Convertible Preferred Stock 5
Company Director 78
Company Disclosure Schedule 13
Company Employee Plans 23
Company Employees 75
Company Environmental Claims 33

A-iv

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 89



Table of Contents

Page

Company Financial Statements 101
Company Intellectual Property 101
Company IP Contract 34
Company Material Adverse Effect 101
Company Material Contracts 21
Company NDAs 34
Company Permits 18
Company Preferred Stock 5
Company Product(s) 102
Company Real Property Leases 30
Company Registered Intellectual Property 33
Company Restricted Stock 9
Company Series A Preferred Stock 5
Company Stock Options 15
Company Stock Plan 102
Company Stockholder Meeting 44
Company Termination Fee 87
Company Voting Agreements 1
Company Voting Proposal 17
Confidentiality Agreement 68
Consultant Proprietary Information Agreement 36
Control 102
D&O Indemnified Parties 76
D&O Policy 76
Deductible Limitation 90
Depositary Agent 92
DGCL 1
Effective Time 3
Effective Time Company Stockholders 1
Employee Benefit Plan 102
Employee Proprietary Information Agreement 36
Environmental Laws 32
ERISA 102
ERISA Affiliate 102
Escrow Agreement 1
Escrow Amount 5
Escrow Fund 92
Escrow Period 92
Exchange Act 16
Exchange Agent 10
Exchange Fund 10
Expenses 86
Expiration Date 88
FMLA 102
GAAP 19
Governmental Entity 18
HSR Act 18
HSR Expenses 86
Include 102
Indemnifying Parties 89
Indemnifying Party 89

A-v

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 90



Table of Contents

Page

Intellectual Property 103
Intellectual Property Rights 103
Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus 69
Key Employment Agreement 2
Key Employment Agreements 2
knowledge 103
Later Company Financial Statements 19
Law 103
Liens 16
Loss 103
Materials of Environmental Concern 32
Maximum Annual Premium 77
Merger 1
Merger Consideration 5
Merger Shareholders Actions 44
Merger Sub 1
Merger Sub Bylaws 3
Merger Sub Charter 3
Merger Sub Charter Documents 40
Merger Sub Common Stock 9
Merrill Lynch 38
Nasdaq 4
Officer�s Certificate 93
Open Source 37
Option Adjustment Amount 5
Option Exchange Amount 5
Outside Date 85
Parent 1
Parent 2005 Plan 41
Parent Balance Sheet 46
Parent Board 43
Parent Bylaws 40
Parent Charter 40
Parent Director 79
Parent Disclosure Schedule 39
Parent Employee Plans 50
Parent Environmental Claims 59
Parent ESPP 41
Parent Indemnified Parties 89
Parent Indemnified Party 89
Parent Material Adverse Effect 103
Parent Material Contracts 49
Parent Permits 45
Parent Real Property Leases 56
Parent Registered Intellectual Property 59
Parent SEC Reports 45
Parent Shareholder Voting Agreement 1
Parent Shareholder Voting Agreements 1
Parent Shareholders Meeting 44
Parent Stock Options 41

A-vi

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 91



Table of Contents

Page

Parent Stock Plans 41
Parent Sub Documents 40
Parent Termination Fee 87
Parent Voting Proposal 43
Per Share Common Amount 5
Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount 6
Per Share Series A Preferred Amount 5
Person 104
Product Agreements 37
Qualified Plan 24
Registered Intellectual Property 104
Registration Statement 45
Regulation M-A Filing 70
Requisite Company Stock Approval 17
Requisite Parent Shareholder Approval 44
SEC 18
Section 280G Payments 71
Securities Act 42
September Company Financial Statements 19
SG Cowen 61
Shareholder Agreement 2
Shareholder Agreements 2
Shrink-Wrap Code 104
Special Representation 88
Statement of Company Expenses 83
Stockholder Agent 1, 95
Subsidiary 104
Subsidiary Documents 14
Superior Proposal 105
Surviving Corporation 2
Takeover Statute 39
Tax 105
Tax Returns 105
Taxes 105
Technology 105
Third Party Claim 96
Third Party Recovery Limitation 91
Transaction Agreements 88
Transaction Documents 95
TUPE 29
UK Subsidiary 106
WARN Act 29
WSGR 10

A-vii

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 92



Table of Contents

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER AND REORGANIZATION

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER AND REORGANIZATION is entered into as of January 25, 2006 (this �Agreement�) by and
among Nanometrics Incorporated, a California corporation (�Parent�), Alloy Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Parent (�Merger Sub�), Accent Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Company�), and, solely with respect to
Article IX, Sanford S. Wadler (the �Stockholder Agent�).

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have each unanimously approved, and deemed it to be
advisable and in the best interests of their respective shareholders to consummate the business combination transaction provided for in this
Agreement in which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the �Merger�) in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law (�DGCL�);

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement and as an inducement to the Company to enter into this Agreement, certain
shareholders of Parent have agreed to enter into voting agreements with the Company, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A
(each, a �Parent Shareholder Voting Agreement� and collectively, the �Parent Shareholder Voting Agreements�), pursuant to which such
shareholders have agreed, among other things, to vote their shares of Parent Common Stock (as defined below) in favor of the Merger and the
other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

WHEREAS, concurrently with or prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement by each of the parties hereto, certain stockholders of the
Company are executing and delivering voting agreements, in the forms delivered to Parent prior to the execution of this Agreement (each a
�Company Voting Agreement� and collectively, the �Company Voting Agreements�), pursuant to which each such Company stockholder has agreed,
among other things, to vote their shares of Company Capital Stock (as defined below) in favor or the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated by this Agreement;

WHEREAS, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, a portion of the aggregate consideration otherwise payable to the holders
of the Company�s capital stock at the Effective Time (the �Effective Time Company Stockholders�) pursuant hereto will be deposited with the
Depositary Agent, to be held and disbursed to Parent or such Effective Time Company Stockholders on the terms and subject to the conditions
set forth in the Escrow Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the �Escrow Agreement�), to be executed and delivered by Parent and
the Stockholder Agent, as representative of the Effective Time Company Stockholders, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this
Agreement.

WHEREAS, as a condition and inducement to the willingness of Parent to enter into this Agreement, concurrently with the execution and
delivery of this Agreement by each of the parties hereto, the persons listed on Schedule A, each of whom is an employee of the Company, are
entering into an Employment Agreement (each, a �Key Employment Agreement�) and collectively, the �Key Employment Agreements�), with Parent
and/or the Surviving Corporation, each of which will become effective at the Effective Time.

WHEREAS, as a condition and inducement to the willingness of Parent to enter into this Agreement, concurrently with the execution and
delivery of this Agreement by each of the parties hereto, the persons listed on Schedule B, each of whom is a stockholder of the Company, are
entering into a Shareholder Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (each, a �Shareholder Agreement�) and collectively, the
�Shareholder Agreements�), with Parent.
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WHEREAS, for United States federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of
Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), and that this Agreement shall be, and is hereby, adopted as a plan
of reorganization for purposes of Section 368(a) of the Code.
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth
below, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

THE MERGER

Section 1.1 The Merger. On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with the DGCL, at the Effective Time
(as defined in Section 1.2), Merger Sub shall merge with and into the Company, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub shall cease and
the Company shall continue as the surviving corporation in the Merger as a wholly owned Subsidiary of Parent. The Company, in its capacity as
the corporation surviving the Merger, is hereinafter sometimes referred to as the �Surviving Corporation�).

Section 1.2 Effective Time of Merger. On the Closing Date (as defined in Section 2.1), Parent and the Company shall cause the Merger to be
consummated by filing a duly executed and delivered Certificate of Merger as required by the DGCL (the �Certificate of Merger�) with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, in such form as required by, and executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of, the DGCL
(the time of such filing, or such other time as Parent and the Company shall specify in the Certificate of Merger, being the �Effective Time�).

Section 1.3 Effects of Merger. At the Effective Time, the effect of the Merger shall be as provided in this Agreement and the Certificate of
Merger and as specified in the DGCL.

Section 1.4 Certificate of Incorporation & Bylaws of Surviving Corporation.

(a) At and after the Effective Time, the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation, subject to the provisions of Section 6.10, shall
be amended and restated in its entirety to be identical to the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub (the �Merger Sub Charter�), as in effect
immediately prior to the Effective Time, until amended in accordance with the DGCL, except that the name of the Surviving Corporation shall
be �Accent Optical Technologies Nanometrics Inc.� (or such other name as the parties mutually agree).

(b) At and after the Effective Time, the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation, subject to the provisions of Section 6.10, shall be amended and
restated in its entirety to be identical to the bylaws of Merger Sub (the �Merger Sub Bylaws�), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time
until amended in accordance with the DGCL, except that the name of the Surviving Corporation shall be �Accent Optical Technologies
Nanometrics Inc.�

Section 1.5 Board of Directors & Officers of the Surviving Corporation.
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(a) The directors of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the initial directors of the Surviving Corporation and shall hold
office from the Effective Time until their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified in the manner provided in the
certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the DGCL.

(b) The officers of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation and shall hold
office from the Effective Time until their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified in the manner provided in the
certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the DGCL.

Section 1.6 Effects of Merger on Capital Stock.

(a) Certain Definitions. For all purposes of and under this Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall have the following respective
meanings:
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(i) �Aggregate Company Common Stock� means the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock that are outstanding (or deemed to
be outstanding pursuant to this definition) as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, including (solely for purposes of this definition) all
shares of Company Common Stock that are issuable upon the exercise in full of all unvested and vested Company Stock Options that are
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and assumed by Parent pursuant to Section 1.6(c)(i) but excluding for purposes of the
calculation Company Stock Options granted between January 23, 2006 and the Closing Date inclusive.

(ii) �Aggregate Merger Consideration� means 4,900,000 shares of Parent Common Stock (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations,
splits, recapitalizations and the like, with respect to such shares after the date hereof) plus the number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal
to the Option Adjustment Amount.

(iii) �Aggregate Residual Amount� means the Aggregate Merger Consideration minus (A) the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount multiplied by
the number of shares of Company Series A Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and (B) the Per Share
Convertible Preferred Amount multiplied by the number of shares of Company Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time.

(iv) �Average Closing Price� means the average of the closing prices of the Parent Common Stock on Nasdaq National Market (�Nasdaq�) for the
ten (10) trading days ending two (2) days prior to the Closing Date.

(v) �Company Capital Stock� means the Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock.

(vi) �Company Common Stock� means the Common Stock, $0.00001 par value per share, of the Company.

(vii) �Company Preferred Stock� means the Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share, of the Company, which is comprised of the Company
Series A Preferred Stock and the Company Convertible Preferred Stock.

(viii) �Company Series A Preferred Stock� means the Series A Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share, of the Company.

(ix) �Company Convertible Preferred Stock� means the Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share, of the Company.

(x) �Escrow Amount� means that number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to 10% of the Aggregate Merger Consideration, rounded to the
nearest whole share.

(xi) �Merger Consideration� means the Per Share Common Amount, the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount or the Per Share Convertible
Preferred Amount, as applicable.
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(xii) �Option Adjustment Amount� means the aggregate exercise price of all Company Stock Options (other than Company Stock Options granted
between January 23, 2006 and the Closing Date) that are either (A) exercised after the date hereof or (B) assumed by Parent pursuant to
Section 1.6(c)(i), divided by the Average Closing Price, and rounded to the nearest whole share of Parent Common Stock.

(xiii) �Option Exchange Amount� means the Per Share Common Amount multiplied by the Average Closing Price.

(xiv) �Per Share Common Amount� means the number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the
Aggregate Residual Amount by (y) the Aggregate Company Common Stock.

(xv) �Per Share Series A Preferred Amount� means the number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
(x) $1,000 by (y) the Average Closing Price; provided
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that the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount and the Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount shall be reduced proportionately to the extent the
sum of (A) the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount multiplied by the number of shares of Company Series A Preferred Stock outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time and (B) the Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount multiplied by the number of shares of Convertible
Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time, exceeds the Aggregate Merger Consideration.

(xvi) �Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount� means the number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
(x) $1.13 by (y) the Average Closing Price; provided that the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount and the Per Share Convertible Preferred
Amount shall be reduced proportionately to the extent the sum of (A) the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount multiplied by the number of
shares of Company Series A Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and (B) the Per Share Convertible Preferred
Amount multiplied by the number of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time, exceeds the
Aggregate Merger Consideration.

(b) Treatment of Company Capital Stock.

(i) On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Effective Time, without any action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub, the
Company or the holder of any shares of the Company Series A Preferred Stock, each share of Company Series A Preferred Stock that is issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and extinguished and shall be converted automatically into the right
to receive that number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the Per Share Series A Preferred Amount. For purposes of calculating the
aggregate number of shares of Parent Common Stock issuable to each Effective Time Company Stockholder pursuant to this Section 1.6(b)(i),
all shares of Company Series A Preferred Stock that are held by each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be aggregated and the
number of shares of Parent Common Stock issuable to each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole share.

(ii) On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Effective Time, without any action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub, the
Company or the holder of any shares of the Company Convertible Preferred Stock, each share of Company Convertible Preferred Stock that is
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and extinguished and shall be converted automatically into the
right to receive that number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount. For purposes of
calculating the aggregate number of shares of Parent Common Stock issuable to each Effective Time Company Stockholder pursuant to this
Section 1.6(b)(ii), all shares of Company Convertible Preferred Stock that are held by each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be
aggregated and the number of shares of Parent Common Stock issuable to each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be rounded
down to the nearest whole share.

(iii) On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Effective Time, without any action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub,
the Company or the holder of any shares of Company Common Stock, each outstanding share of Company Common Stock issued and
outstanding at the Effective Time shall be cancelled and extinguished and shall be converted automatically into the right to receive that number
of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the Per Share Common Amount. For purposes of calculating the aggregate number of shares of
Parent Common Stock issuable to each Effective Time Company Stockholder pursuant to this Section 1.6(b)(iii), all shares of Company
Common Stock that are held by each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be aggregated and the number of shares of Parent
Common Stock issuable to each such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.
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(iv) Fractional Shares. No fraction of a share of Parent Common Stock will be issued at the Effective Time, but in lieu thereof, each holder of
shares of Company Capital Stock who would otherwise be entitled to a fraction of a share of Parent Common Stock (after aggregating all
fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to be received by such holder) shall be entitled to receive from Parent an amount of cash (rounded to
the nearest whole cent) equal to the product of (i) such fraction multiplied by (ii) the Average Closing Price.

(v) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any shares of Company Capital Stock that are held by an Effective Time
Company Stockholder who has demanded and perfected appraisal or dissenters� rights for such shares in accordance with applicable Law and
who, as of the Effective Time, has not effectively withdrawn or lost such appraisal or dissenters� rights (�Dissenting Shares�) shall not be converted
into or represent a right to receive the applicable consideration for Company Capital Stock contemplated by this Section 1.6 and in lieu thereof,
any such Effective Time Company Stockholder shall only be entitled to such rights as are granted by applicable Law. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any Effective Time Company Stockholder who has demanded appraisal of shares of Company Capital Stock under applicable Law
shall effectively withdraw or lose (through failure to perfect or otherwise) the right to such appraisal, then, as of the later of (i) the Effective
Time or (ii) the occurrence of such event, such Effective Time Company Stockholder�s shares of Company Capital Stock shall automatically be
converted into and represent only the right to receive the applicable consideration for Company Capital Stock contemplated by this Section 1.6,
without interest thereon, upon surrender to the Company of the certificate or certificates representing such shares in accordance with Section 2.2.
The Company shall give Parent (i) prompt notice of its receipt of any written demands for appraisal of any shares of Company Capital Stock,
withdrawals of such demands and any other instruments relating to the Merger served pursuant to applicable Law and received by the Company
relating to appraisal or dissenters� rights and (ii) the opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to demands for
appraisal or dissenters� rights under applicable Law. The Company shall not, except with the prior written consent of Parent or as may be
required under applicable Law, voluntarily make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal of Company Capital Stock or offer to
settle or settle any such demands.

(c) Treatment of Company Stock Options.

(i) At the Effective Time, each Company Stock Option that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether or not then vested or
exercisable (x) with a per share exercise price less than the Option Exchange Amount or (y) granted between January 23, 2006 and the Closing
to the optionees and covering the number of shares indicated in Section 1.6(c)(i) of the Company Disclosure Schedule (each Company Stock
Option meeting the criteria in (x) or (y), an �Assumed Option�), shall be assumed by Parent. Each such Assumed Option shall continue to have,
and be subject to, the same terms and conditions as are in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, except that (x) such Assumed Option
shall be exercisable for that number of whole shares of Parent Common Stock equal to the product (rounded down to the next whole number of
shares of Parent Common Stock) of (A) the number of shares of Company Common Stock that were issuable upon exercise of such Assumed
Option immediately prior to the Effective Time and (B) the Per Share Common Amount, and (y) the per share exercise price for the shares of
Parent Common Stock issuable upon exercise of such Assumed Option shall be equal to the quotient (rounded up to the next whole cent)
obtained by dividing (A) the exercise price per share of Company Common Stock at which such Assumed Option was exercisable immediately
prior to the Effective Time by (B) the Per Share Common Amount. It is the intention of the parties that each Assumed Option that qualified as an
incentive stock option (as defined in Section 422 of the Code) shall continue to so qualify, to the maximum extent permissible, following the
Effective Time.

(ii) No Company Stock Option with a per share exercise price that is greater than or equal to the Option Exchange Amount, other than Company
Stock Options granted between January 23, 2006 and the Closing, (such Company Options referred to as the �Canceled Options�) shall be
assumed or
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otherwise replaced by Parent. Any Canceled Option that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be terminated at the
Effective Time and no consideration or other payment shall be provided in lieu of such Canceled Options and the Canceled Options shall not
represent any rights to purchase any capital stock of the Parent or the Company after the Effective Time.

(iii) If and to the extent necessary or required by the terms of any of the Company Stock Plans or any Company Stock Option, the Company
shall, prior to the Effective Time, (i) provide any notices to and obtain any consents from holders of Company Stock Options and (ii) amend the
terms of its equity incentive plans or arrangements, to give effect to the provisions of Section 1.6(c). Except as set forth on Section 1.6(c)(iii) of
the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company shall take no action, other than those actions contemplated by this Agreement, that will cause
or result in the accelerated vesting of the Assumed Options and shall take such actions prior to the Effective Time as are reasonably necessary to
provide that the Assumed Options will not accelerate in connection with the Merger pursuant to Section 4 of the Company Stock Plan.

(iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing, except as set forth on Section 1.6(c)(iv) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, each share of Company
Common Stock issued upon exercise of a Company Stock Option prior to vesting or purchased subject to a right of repurchase (�Company
Restricted Stock�) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time that is unvested as of the Effective Time shall be cancelled and
extinguished and will be converted automatically into the right to receive the Common Per Share Amount pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iii) hereof,
which amount shall continue to be subject to the same rights of repurchase by Parent as the Company had prior to the Effective Time and shall
be subject to permanent retention by Parent (i.e., repurchase at cost from the stockholder) in accordance with the terms of the agreement
pursuant to which such Company Stockholder purchased such shares of Company Restricted Stock.

(d) Cancellation of Treasury Stock and Parent-Owned Stock. All shares of Company Common Stock that are (i) held by the Company as
treasury shares or (ii) owned by Parent or any wholly owned Subsidiary (as defined below) of Parent, in each case immediately prior to the
Effective Time, shall be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no securities of Parent or other consideration shall be delivered in
exchange therefor.

(e) Capital Stock of Merger Sub. Each share of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of Merger Sub (�Merger Sub Common Stock�) issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted into and become one fully paid and nonassessable share of common
stock, $0.00001 par value per share, of the Surviving Corporation.

(f) Escrow. Of the Aggregate Merger Consideration to be issued at the Effective Time pursuant to Section 1.6(b) (none of which shares of Parent
Common Stock shall be unvested, subject to any right of repurchase, risk of forfeiture or other condition in favor of the Surviving Corporation),
the number of whole shares equal to the Escrow Amount shall be held in escrow pursuant to Article IX of this Agreement to compensate Parent
and its affiliates (including the Surviving Corporation) for any �Losses� (as defined in Section 10.3 of this Agreement) incurred in connection with
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.
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ARTICLE II

THE CLOSING

Section 2.1 Closing. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the closing of the Merger (the �Closing�) shall take place sequentially beginning
at 10:00 a.m. Pacific Time, at the offices of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation (�WSGR�), 650 Page Mill Road, Palo
Alto, California, on a date to be specified by Parent and the Company which shall be no later than the second business day after satisfaction or
waiver of each of the conditions set forth in Article VII or on such other date and such other time and place as Parent and the Company shall
agree. The date on which the Closing shall occur is hereinafter referred to as the �Closing Date.�

Section 2.2 Exchange of Certificates.

(a) Exchange Agent. Prior to the Closing Date, Parent shall designate a bank or trust company to act as Exchange Agent hereunder (the
�Exchange Agent�). As soon as practicable after the Effective Time, Parent shall deposit with or for the account of the Exchange Agent, for the
benefit of the holders of Company Capital Stock, the shares of Parent Common Stock and an amount of cash sufficient to deliver to the holders
of Company Capital Stock any cash in lieu of fractional shares payable pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv) and any dividends or other distributions to
which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 2.2(d) (such shares of Parent Common Stock together with cash in lieu of fractional shares
and dividends or other distributions being hereinafter referred to as the �Exchange Fund�) deliverable pursuant to Section 1.6 in exchange for
outstanding shares of Company Capital Stock.

(b) Exchange Procedures. As soon as practicable after the Effective Time, Parent shall instruct the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of
record of a certificate or certificates which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented outstanding shares of Company Capital Stock
(the �Certificates�) that were converted pursuant to Section 1.6(b) into the right to receive the Merger Consideration (i) a letter of transmittal
(which shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon proper delivery of the
Certificates to the Exchange Agent and shall be in such form and have such other provisions as Parent may reasonably specify that are not
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement) and (ii) instructions for use in effecting the surrender of the Certificates in exchange for the
Merger Consideration, the cash amount in lieu of any fractional shares pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv) and any dividends or distributions payable
pursuant to Section 2.2(d). Upon surrender of a Certificate for cancellation to the Exchange Agent together with such letter of transmittal, duly
executed, and such other customary documents as may be required pursuant to such instructions, the holder of such Certificate shall be entitled
to receive (A) certificates evidencing the Merger Consideration which such holder has the right to receive pursuant to Section 1.6(b) in respect of
the shares of Company Capital Stock formerly evidenced by such Certificate, (B) cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Parent Common Stock
to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv), and (C) any dividends or other distributions to which such holder is entitled
pursuant to Section 2.2(d), after giving effect to any tax withholdings required by applicable Law, and the Certificate so surrendered shall
forthwith be cancelled. In the event of a transfer of ownership of shares of Company Capital Stock which is not registered in the transfer records
of the Company as of the Effective Time, a certificate representing the proper number of shares of Parent Common Stock may be issued to a
transferee if the Certificate evidencing such Company Capital Stock is presented to the Exchange Agent, accompanied by all documents required
to evidence and effect such transfer pursuant to this Section 2.2(b) and by evidence that any applicable stock transfer taxes have been paid. Until
so surrendered, each outstanding Certificate that, prior to the Effective Time, represented shares of Company Capital Stock will be deemed, from
and after the Effective Time, for all corporate purposes, to represent only the right to receive upon surrender the Merger Consideration and any
cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Parent Common Stock payable pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv), in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

(c) No Further Ownership Rights in Company Capital Stock. At the Effective Time, the stock transfer books of the Company shall be closed and
thereafter there shall be no further registration of transfers on the stock transfer books of the Company or the Surviving Corporation of the shares
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which were outstanding immediately prior to such time. If, after such time, Certificates are presented to the Surviving Corporation for any
reason, they shall be cancelled and exchanged as provided in Section 2.2(b).

(d) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares. No dividends or other distributions declared or made after the Effective Time with
respect to Parent Common Stock with a record date after the Effective Time shall be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered Certificate with
respect to the shares of Parent Common Stock represented thereby, and no cash payment in lieu of fractional shares shall be paid to any such
holder pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv), unless and until the holder of such Certificate shall surrender such Certificate. Subject to the effect of
escheat, tax or other applicable Laws, following surrender of any such Certificate, there shall be paid to the holder of the certificates representing
whole shares of Parent Common Stock issued in exchange therefor, in addition to the Parent Common Stock deliverable therefore pursuant to
Section 1.6(b), without interest, (A) the amount of any cash payable with respect to a fractional share of Parent Common Stock to which such
holder is entitled pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iv) and the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date after the date hereof
theretofore paid with respect to such whole Shares of Parent Common Stock and (B) at the appropriate payment date, the amount of dividends or
other distributions, with a record date after the date hereof but prior to surrender and a payment date occurring after surrender, payable with
respect to such whole shares of Parent Common Stock.

(e) Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any Certificates shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, the Exchange Agent shall issue
in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificates, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the holder thereof, such shares of
Parent Common Stock as may be required pursuant to Section 1.6(b) as well as the other Merger Consideration as provided in this Section 2.2(e)
and any dividends or other distributions to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 2.2(d); provided, however, that Parent may,
in its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificates to deliver an
agreement of indemnification in form satisfactory to Parent, or a bond in such reasonable sum as Parent may direct as indemnity against any
claim that may be made against Parent or the Exchange Agent with respect to the Certificates alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

(f) Transfers of Ownership. If any certificate for shares of Parent Common Stock is to be issued in a name other than that in which the
Certificate surrendered in exchange therefor is registered, it will be a condition to the issuance thereof that the Certificate so surrendered will be
properly endorsed and otherwise be in proper form for transfer and that the person requesting such exchange will have paid to Parent or any
agent designated by it any transfer or other taxes required by reason of the issuance of a certificate for shares of Parent Common Stock in any
name other than that of the registered holder of the Certificate surrendered, or will have established to the satisfaction of Parent or any agent
designated by it that such tax has been paid or is not payable.

(g) Termination of Exchange Fund. At any time following the six (6) month anniversary of the Effective Time, Parent shall be entitled to require
the Exchange Agent to deliver to Parent any portion of the Exchange Fund not disbursed to holders of Certificates, and thereafter such holders
shall be entitled to look only to Parent (subject to abandoned property, escheat or other similar Law) with respect to the Merger Consideration to
which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 1.6(b) any cash in lieu of fractional shares payable to such holders pursuant to
Section 1.6(b)(iv) and any dividends or other distributions to which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 2.2(d), upon due surrender of
their Certificates, without any interest thereon.

(h) No Liability. Neither Parent, Merger Sub, nor the Company shall be liable to any holder of Company Capital Stock or Parent Common Stock,
as the case may be, for such shares (or dividends or distributions with respect thereto) delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable
abandoned property, escheat or other similar Law following the passage of time specified therein.

(i) Withholding Rights. Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the consideration
otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any person who was a holder of Company Capital Stock immediately prior to the Effective
Time such amounts as
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Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making of such payment under
the Code, or any provision of state, local or foreign tax Law. To the extent that amounts are so withheld by Parent, the Surviving Corporation or
the Exchange Agent, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the holder of the shares of
Company Capital Stock in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made by Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange
Agent.

ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

Except as set forth in the written disclosure schedule prepared by the Company which is dated as of the date hereof and has been delivered by
the Company to Parent in connection herewith (the �Company Disclosure Schedule�), the Company represents and warrants to Parent and Merger
Sub as follows:

Section 3.1 Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is an entity duly organized, validly existing
and in good standing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its organization and has the requisite corporate or other power and authority necessary
to own, lease and operate the properties it purports to own, lease or operate and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted. Each of the
Company and its Subsidiaries is duly qualified or licensed as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction
where the character or location of the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification or
licensing necessary, except for such failures to be so duly qualified or licensed and in good standing that would not reasonably be expected to
have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect. A true, complete and correct list of all of the Company�s
Subsidiaries, together with the jurisdiction of incorporation of each Subsidiary, the authorized capitalization of each Subsidiary, and the
percentage of each Subsidiary�s outstanding capital stock owned by the Company or another Subsidiary or affiliate of the Company, is set forth
in Section 3.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule. The Company does not directly or indirectly own any equity or similar interest in, or any
interest convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any equity or similar interest in, any corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture or other business association or entity, excluding securities in the Company�s Subsidiaries and securities in any publicly
traded company held for investment by the Company and comprising less than one percent (1%) of the outstanding stock of such company.

Section 3.2 Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Company has heretofore made available to Parent a true, complete and correct copy of
its certificate of incorporation, as amended to date (the �Company Charter�), and bylaws, as amended to date (the �Company Bylaws�), and has
furnished to Parent true, complete and correct copies of the charter and bylaws (or equivalent organizational documents), each as amended to
date, of each of its Subsidiaries (the �Subsidiary Documents�). The Company Charter, Company Bylaws and the Subsidiary Documents are in full
force and effect. The Company is not in violation of any of the provisions of the Company Charter or Company Bylaws and the Company�s
Subsidiaries are not in violation of any of the provisions of their respective Subsidiary Documents.

Section 3.3 Capitalization.

(a) The authorized capital stock of the Company consists only of 300,000,000 shares of Company Common Stock, of which 141,233,836 shares
of Common Stock are issued and outstanding, and 9,765,648 shares of Company Preferred Stock, of which 9,550 shares are designated as
Company Series A Preferred Stock, 9,444.8334 shares of which are issued and outstanding, and 9,756,098 shares of which are designated as
Company Convertible Preferred Stock, 7,787,804 shares of which are issued and outstanding. The Company has reserved 27,500,000 shares of
Company Common Stock for issuance under the Company Stock Plan, 16,892,844 of which are subject to outstanding options and 322,699 of
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Stock are held in treasury or reserved for issuance except for shares of Company Stock reserved in connection with the Company Stock Plan and
reserved for issuance upon conversion of any shares of Company Preferred Stock.

(b) The capitalization of the Company is as set forth on Section 3.3(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, which lists the name and state of
residence of each holder of Company Common Stock and each holder of Company Preferred Stock and the numbers of shares of Company
Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock held by each holder, as well as the total number of shares of Company Common Stock and
Company Preferred Stock outstanding.

(c) No shares of Company Capital Stock are �restricted� or otherwise subject to a repurchase option, risk of forfeiture or other vesting or similar
condition in favor of the Company under any applicable stock restriction agreement or other similar agreement with the Company.

(d) Section 3.3(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all persons who, as of January 25, 2006 held
outstanding options to acquire shares of Company Common Stock (the �Company Stock Options�) under the Company Stock Plans or under any
other equity incentive plan or arrangement of the Company and its Subsidiaries, indicating, with respect to each Company Stock Option then
outstanding, the tax status of such option under Section 422 of the Code, the number of shares of Company Common Stock subject to such
Company Stock Option, the name of the plan under which such Company Stock Option was granted and the exercise price, date of grant, vesting
schedule and expiration date thereof, including to the extent to which any vesting has occurred as of the date of this Agreement and whether (and
to what extent) the vesting of such Company Stock Option will be accelerated in any way by the consummation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement or by the termination of employment or engagement or change in position of any holder thereof following or in connection
with the consummation of the Acquisition Merger. The Company has made available to Parent true, complete and correct copies of all Company
Stock Plans and the forms of all stock option agreements evidencing outstanding Company Stock Options.

(e) There are no outstanding debt securities of the Company, whether or not convertible into shares of Company Capital Stock.

(f) Except as described in Section 3.3(a) or Section 3.3(d), no capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any security convertible
or exchangeable into or exercisable for such capital stock, is issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding as of the date of this Agreement. Except
as described in Section 3.3(a) or Section 3.3(d), there are no options, preemptive rights, warrants, calls, rights, commitments, agreements,
arrangements or understandings of any kind to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries is bound, obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold,
additional shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to grant, extend
or accelerate the vesting of or enter into any such option, warrant, call, right, commitment, agreement, arrangement or understanding. There are
no shareholder agreements, voting trusts, proxies or other similar agreements, arrangements or understandings to which the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which it or they are bound, obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any shares of
capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any cash amounts based on the value or appreciation in value of such capital stock.
There are no rights or obligations, contingent or otherwise (including rights of first refusal in favor of the Company), of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries, to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or to provide
funds to or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in any such Subsidiary or any other entity. There are
no registration rights or other similar agreements, arrangements or understandings to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or
by which it or they are bound, obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any shares of Company Common Stock or
shares of capital stock of any such Subsidiary or any cash amounts based on the value or appreciation in value of such capital stock.
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(g) All outstanding shares of the Company�s capital stock are, and all shares of Company Common Stock reserved for issuance as specified
above will be, upon issuance on the terms and conditions specified in the instruments pursuant to which they are issuable, duly authorized,
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to or issued in violation of any purchase option, call option, right of first refusal,
preemptive right, subscription right or any similar right under any provision of the DGCL, the Company Charter or the Company Bylaws or any
agreement to which the Company is a party or is otherwise bound. None of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock have been issued
in violation of any federal or state securities Laws. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of each of the Company�s Subsidiaries are duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and all such shares are owned by the Company or a Subsidiary of the Company free and
clear of all security interests, liens, claims, pledges, agreements, limitations in voting rights, charges or other encumbrances of any nature
whatsoever (collectively, �Liens�). There are no accrued and unpaid dividends with respect to any outstanding shares of capital stock of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(h) The Company has no class of securities of the Company or its Subsidiaries registered or required to be registered under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�).

Section 3.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement; Shareholder Approval.

(a) Subject only to the approval of the stockholders of the Company as described below, the Company has full corporate power and authority to
execute and deliver this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (the
�Company Board�). The Company Board has (i) unanimously determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby are
advisable and in the best interests of the stockholders of the Company, (ii) unanimously approved this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and (iii) unanimously recommended that the stockholders of the Company adopt and approve (A) this Agreement and the
Merger, (B) the escrow and indemnification obligations of the Effective Time Company Stockholders set forth in Article IX hereof and the
deposit of Parent Common Stock equal to the Escrow Amount into the Escrow Fund and (C) the appointment of Sanford S. Wadler as the
Stockholder Agent (collectively, the �Company Voting Proposal�). This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by the
Company, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding
obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization, moratorium or other similar Laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors�
rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at Law).

(b) Except for the adoption and approval of this Agreement, the approval of the Merger and approval of the matter set forth in Section 6.4(f) of
this Agreement by affirmative vote of the holders of (i) a majority of the voting power of all shares of the Company Common Stock entitled to
vote, (ii) a majority of each series of the Company Preferred Stock entitled to vote and (iii) a majority of the Company Capital Stock entitled to
vote voting together pursuant to duly called and noticed and validly convened and held meeting of the holders of the Company Common Stock
(the �Requisite Company Stock Approval�), no other corporate proceedings on the part of the Company are necessary to approve this Agreement
and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 3.5 No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.

(a) The execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement do not, the execution and delivery by the Company of any instrument
required hereby to be executed and delivered by the Company at the Closing will not, and the performance by the Company of its agreements
and obligations under this Agreement will not, (i) conflict with or violate the Company Charter or Company Bylaws or any Subsidiary
Documents, (ii) in any material respect, conflict with or violate any Law applicable to the Company or by
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which its properties is bound or affected, (iii) result in any breach of or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both
would become a default), or impair the Company�s rights or alter the rights or obligations of any third party or the Company (including monetary
rights and obligations) under, or give to any third party any rights of termination, amendment, payment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result
in the creation of a Lien on any of the properties or assets (including Intellectual Property) of the Company pursuant to any note, bond,
mortgage, indenture, contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, franchise or other instrument or obligation to which the Company is a party or
by which the Company or its properties is bound or affected, or (iv) other than the Company Stock Options, give rise to or result in any person
having, or having the right to exercise, any pre-emptive rights, rights of first refusal, rights to acquire or similar rights with respect to any capital
stock of the Company or any of its assets or properties.

(b) The execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement do not, the execution and delivery by the Company of any instrument
required hereby to be executed and delivered by the Company at the Closing will not, and the performance of its agreements and obligations
under this Agreement by the Company will not, require any consent, approval, order, license, authorization, registration, declaration or permit
of, or filing with or notification to, any nation or government, any state, province or other political subdivision thereof or any multinational
organization or body or other entity having or exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to
government (including any court, arbitrational tribunal, administrative or regulatory agency or commission or other governmental authority or
instrumentality), whether domestic or foreign, (a �Governmental Entity�), except (i) as may be required by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the �HSR Act�), (ii) as may be required under any foreign antitrust or competition Law, (iii) the filing of
the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus (as defined in Section 6.4) with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) under the
Exchange Act, (iv) such clearances, consents, approvals, orders, licenses, authorizations, registrations, declarations, permits, filings, and
notifications as may be required under applicable U.S. federal and state or foreign securities Laws, (v) the filing of the Certificate of Merger or
other documents as required by the DGCL and (vi) such clearances, consents, approvals, orders, registrations, declarations, permits, filings and
notifications which, if not obtained or made, would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material
Adverse Effect.

Section 3.6 Compliance; Permits.

(a) The Company is and has been in material compliance with and is not in material default or violation of (and has not received any notice of
material non-compliance, default or violation with respect to) any Law applicable to the Company or by which any of its properties are bound or
affected.

(b) The Company holds all permits, licenses, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, authorizations, registrations, orders and
other approvals from Governmental Entities that are material to the operation of its business as currently conducted (collectively, the �Company
Permits�). The Company Permits are in full force and effect, have not been violated in any material respect and, to the Company�s knowledge, no
suspension, revocation or cancellation thereof has been threatened, and there is no action, proceeding or investigation pending or threatened,
seeking the suspension, revocation or cancellation of any Company Permits. No Company Permit shall cease to be effective as a result of the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, other than as would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect.

Section 3.7 Financial Statements.

(a) Each of the audited consolidated statements of operations, statements of cash flows and statements of changes in stockholders� equity for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 and the balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2004 and the related notes and schedules
(the �Audited Company Financial Statements�), the unaudited consolidated statement of operations, and statement of cash flows for the nine
months ended October 1, 2005 and the balance sheet as of October 1, 2005 and the related notes and schedules (the �September Company
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statements of operations, statements of cash flows or statements of changes in stockholders� equity and balance sheets for any period ending on
or between the date of this Agreement and the Closing and the related notes and schedules (the �Later Company Financial Statements�), complied
or will comply, as of its respective date, in all material respects with all applicable accounting requirements, was or will be prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto) applied on a consistent
basis throughout the periods involved and fairly presented in all material respects or will fairly present in all material respects the consolidated
financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the respective dates thereof and the consolidated results of the
operations and cash flows of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the periods indicated, except as otherwise explained therein and
except that any unaudited interim financial statements do not contain footnotes and are subject to normal and recurring year-end adjustments
which have not been made and are not expected to be material in amount, individually or in the aggregate, . The balance sheet and notes related
thereto of the Company as of October 1, 2005 is referred to herein as the �Company Balance Sheet�).

(b) Each of the Company Audited Financial Statements, the September Company Financial Statements and the Later Company Financial
Statements accurately reflects, or will reflect as the case may be, the revenues and costs relating to the Company Material Contracts as required
by GAAP.

Section 3.8 Internal Controls and Procedures. The Company maintains internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances
that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management�s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain accountability for
assets, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management�s general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences.

Section 3.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. From the date of the Company Balance Sheet through the date hereof, the Company has
conducted its business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and, since such date and through the date hereof, there has
not occurred: (i) any Company Material Adverse Effect; (ii) any amendments to or changes in the Company Charter, Company Bylaws or
Subsidiary Documents; (iii) any material damage to, destruction or loss of any asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (whether or not
covered by insurance); (iv) any change by the Company in its accounting methods, principles or practices; (v) any revaluation by the Company
of any of its assets, including writing down the value of inventory or writing off notes or accounts receivable other than in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice; (vi) any sale of a material amount of assets (tangible or intangible) of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries other than sales of Company Products or Resale Equipment in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
(vii) any recalls, field notifications or field corrections with respect to products manufactured by or on behalf of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, excluding any work performed in compliance with warranties provided by the Company in the ordinary course of business; or
(viii) any other action or event that would have required the consent of Parent pursuant to Section 5.2 had such action or event occurred after the
date of this Agreement.

Section 3.10 No Undisclosed Liabilities.

(a) Except as reflected in the Company Balance Sheet, the Company has no liabilities (absolute, accrued, contingent or otherwise) which are
required by GAAP to be set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries or in the notes thereto, other
than (i) any liabilities and obligations incurred since the date of the Company Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice, (ii) any liabilities or obligations incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (iii) liabilities
that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Company Material Adverse Effect.
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arrangement or relationship between or among the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any unconsolidated affiliate,
including any structured finance, special purpose or limited purpose entity or person, on the other hand) where the purpose or primary intention
of such arrangement is to avoid disclosure of any material transaction involving the Company in the Company�s consolidated financial
statements.

Section 3.11 Absence of Litigation; Investigations. Prior to the date of this Agreement, there were no material claims, actions, suits, proceedings,
governmental investigations, inquiries or subpoenas (other than challenging or arising from or relating to the Merger or any of the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement), (a) pending against the Company or any of its properties or assets, (b) to the Company�s
knowledge, threatened against the Company or any of its properties or assets or (c) whether filed or threatened, that have been settled or
compromised by the Company within the three years prior to the date of this Agreement and at the time of such settlement or compromise were
material. The Company is not subject to any outstanding order, writ, injunction or decree that would reasonably be expected to be material or
would reasonably be expected to prevent or delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. There has not been nor
are there currently any internal investigations or inquiries being conducted by the Company, the Company Board (or any committee thereof) or
any third party at the request of any of the foregoing concerning any financial, accounting, tax, conflict of interest, self-dealing, fraudulent or
deceptive conduct or other misfeasance or malfeasance issues.

Section 3.12 Agreements, Contracts and Commitments.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, the term �Company Material Contracts� shall mean any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, guarantee, other
evidence of indebtedness, lease, license, contract, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is
a party or by which any of them or any of their assets are bound, and which:

(i) has a remaining term of more than one year from the date hereof and (A) cannot be unilaterally terminated by the Company at any time,
without material penalty, within thirty (30) days of providing notice of termination, and (B) involves the payment or receipt of money in excess
of $25,000 per year;

(ii) involves the payment or receipt of money in excess of $50,000 in any year;

(iii) contains covenants limiting the freedom of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to sell any products or services of or to any other person,
engage in any line of business or compete with any person or operate at any location;

(iv) was made with any stockholders, officer, director, Company employee or member of the Company Board, or any service, operating or
management agreement or arrangement with respect to any of the Company�s assets or properties (whether leased or owned), other than those
that are terminable by the Company on no more than thirty (30) days� notice without liability or financial obligation to the Company;

(v) is a dealer, distributor, joint marketing or development contract under which the Company has continuing material obligations to jointly
market any product, technology or service and which may not be canceled without penalty upon notice of ninety (90) days or less, or any
contract pursuant to which the Company has continuing material obligations to jointly develop any Intellectual Property that will not be owned,
in whole or in part, by the Company;
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(viii) settlement agreements under which the Company has ongoing obligations;

(ix) Company IP Contract; or

(x) Company Real Property Leases.
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(b) All of the Company Material Contracts are in full force and effect (except as such enforceability may be subject to Laws of general
application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and rules of Law governing specific performance, injunctive relief or
other equitable remedies).

(c) Section 3.12(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of, and true and complete copies have been
delivered or made available to Parent with respect to, all Company Material Contracts in effect as of the date hereof or as otherwise set forth on
Section 3.12(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

(d) As of the date of this Agreement, (i) there is no breach or violation of or default by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under any of the
Company Material Contracts, except such breaches, violations and defaults as have been waived in writing, and (ii) no event has occurred with
respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a breach, violation or default, or
give rise to a right of termination, modification, cancellation, foreclosure, imposition of a Lien, prepayment or acceleration under any of the
Company Material Contracts, which breach, violation or default referred to in clauses (i) or (ii) would reasonably be expected to have,
individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.13 Employee Benefit Plans, Options and Employment Agreements.

(a) Section 3.13 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of all Employee Benefit Plans maintained, or
contributed to by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to contribute, or under
which any of them has or may have any liability for premiums or benefits (collectively, the �Company Employee Plans�). There are not currently,
nor have there been in the past six years, any Company ERISA Affiliates other than Company Subsidiaries.

(b) With respect to each Company Employee Plan, the Company has made available to Parent complete and accurate copies of (i) such
Company Employee Plan (or a written summary of any unwritten plan) together with all amendments, (ii) in the case of any plan for which
Forms 5500 are required to be filed, the most recent annual report (Form 5500) with schedules attached, (iii) in the case of any plan that is
intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, the most recent determination, advisory or opinion letter from the Internal Revenue
Service, (iv) each trust agreement, group annuity contract, administration and similar material agreements, investment management or
investment advisory agreements, (v) the most recent summary plan descriptions and employee handbook, or other similar material employee
communications relating to employee benefits matters, (vi) all current personnel, payroll and employment manuals and policies, (vii) the most
recent financial statements for each Company Employee Plan that is funded, (viii) all material correspondence to or from any governmental
agency related to any Company Employee Plan during the preceding three years and (ix) the three most recent plan years� discrimination tests for
each Company Employee Plan.

(c) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with, and each Company Employee Plan has been
administered in all material respects in accordance with, ERISA, the Code and all other applicable Laws and the regulations thereunder and
materially in accordance with such Company Employee Plan�s terms. Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries have in all material respects met
their obligations with respect to each Company Employee Plan and have timely made (or timely will make) all required contributions thereto.
All filings and reports as to each Company Employee Plan required to have been submitted to the Internal Revenue Service or to the United
States Department of Labor or to any other relevant authority in any jurisdiction have been timely submitted. With respect to the Company
Employee Plans, no event has occurred (and, to the Company�s knowledge, there exists no condition or set of circumstances) in connection with
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries could reasonably be expected to be subject to any material liability (including penalties or taxes)
under ERISA, the Code or any other applicable Law (other than for contributions and routine administrative expenses), nor will the negotiation
or consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, in and of themselves, give rise to any such material liability.
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(d) With respect to the Company Employee Plans, there are no material benefit obligations for which contributions have not been made or
properly accrued and there are no material benefit obligations which have not been accounted for by reserves (if required by GAAP), or
otherwise properly footnoted in accordance with the requirements of GAAP, on the financial statements of the Company. The assets of each
Company Employee Plan which is funded are reported at their fair market value on the books and records of such Company Employee Plan.

(e) No Company Employee Plan (other than the Company Stock Plans) has assets that include securities issued by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.

(f) Each Company Employee Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code (each, a �Qualified Plan�) (i) is the subject of
an unrevoked favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to such Qualified Plan�s qualified status under the
Code, as amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and all subsequent legislation, (ii) has remaining a period of time under the Code or
applicable Treasury regulations or Internal Revenue Service pronouncements in which to request, and make any amendments necessary to
obtain, such a letter from the Internal Revenue Service, or (iii) is a prototype or volume submitter plan that is permitted to rely on the favorable
opinion or advisory letter issued to the prototype or volume submitter plan sponsor of such Qualified Plan. No such determination, opinion or
advisory letter has been revoked (nor, to the Company�s knowledge, has any such revocation been threatened. No act or omission has occurred
that would reasonably be expected to adversely affect the qualification of any such Qualified Plan or materially increase the cost to the Company
and its Subsidiaries, together, of maintaining or participating in any such Qualified Plan. There has been no termination, partial termination or
discontinuance of contributions to any Qualified Plan that will result in material liability to the Company. Each Company Employee Plan which
is required to satisfy Section 401(k)(3) or Section 401(m)(2) of the Code has been tested for compliance with, and satisfies in all material
respects the requirements of Section 401(k)(3) and Section 401(m)(2) of the Code, as the case may be, for each plan year ending prior to the
Closing Date for which testing is required to be completed. No �prohibited transaction,� within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code or
Sections 406 and 407 of ERISA, which is not otherwise exempt under Section 408 of ERISA (or any exemption issued thereunder), has occurred
with respect to any Company Employee Plan.

(g) Neither the Company nor any of its ERISA Affiliates has (i) ever maintained a Company Employee Plan which was ever subject to
Section 412 of the Code or Title IV of ERISA or (ii) ever been obligated to contribute to a �multiemployer plan� (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3)
of ERISA). No Company Employee Plan is funded by, associated with or related to a �voluntary employees� beneficiary association� within the
meaning of Section 501(c)(9) of the Code. Neither the Company nor any of its ERISA Affiliates has ever maintained or contributed to a �multiple
employer plan� as defined in ERISA or the Code, or a �funded welfare plan� within the meaning of Section 419 of the Code. No Company
Employee Plan provides medical benefits that are not fully insured through an insurance contract.

(h) To the extent permitted by applicable Law, each Company Employee Plan (other than the Company Stock Plans or an employment,
severance, change in control or similar agreement with an individual) is amendable and terminable unilaterally by the Company or one or more
of its Subsidiaries party thereto or covered thereby at any time without material liability to the Company as a result thereof, other than for
benefits accrued as of the date of such amendment or termination and routine administrative costs.

(i) Other than as required under Section 601 et seq. of ERISA, Section 4980B(f) of the Code or similar provisions of state Law, none of the
Company Employee Plans promises or provides health or other welfare benefits (excluding routine conversion rights, normal run out of benefit
claims under the Company�s health insurance plans and normal claims for benefits under the Company�s group life insurance, accidental death
and dismemberment insurance and disability plans and policies) or coverage to any person following retirement or other termination of
employment and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has ever represented, promised or contracted to provide such benefits or
coverage. For each Company Employee Plan which provides benefits after termination of employment (other than medical benefits required to
be
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continued under Section 4980B of the Code, Part 6 of Subtitled B of Title I of ERISA or similar provisions of state law and normal claims for
benefits under the Company�s group life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment insurance and disability plans and policies), the present
value of benefits accrued under each such Company Employee Plan are fully funded, fully covered by insurance or reflected on the Company
Balance Sheet (or Later Company Financial Statements) in accordance with GAAP.

(j) There is no action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration, audit or investigation pending or, to the Company�s knowledge, threatened, with
respect to any Company Employee Plan, other than claims for benefits in the ordinary course. No Company Employee Plan is or within the last
three calendar years has been the subject of, or has received notice that it is the subject of, examination by a government agency or a participant
in a government sponsored amnesty, voluntary compliance or similar program. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any
material penalty or tax with respect to any Company Employee Plan under Section 502(i) of ERISA or Sections 4975 though 4980 of the Code.

(k) To the Company�s knowledge, each individual who has received compensation for the performance of services on behalf of the Company or
any of the Company�s Subsidiaries has been properly classified as an employee or independent contractor in accordance with applicable Law.

(l) Except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect, with respect to
each Company Employee Plan maintained or covering employees outside the United States, and the books and records thereof: (i) all liabilities
with respect to such plan are set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of Company or in the notes thereto in accordance with GAAP; and (ii) no
such plan is or within the last two calendar years has been the subject of, or has received notice that it is the subject of, an examination by a
government agency or a participant in a government sponsored amnesty, voluntary compliance or similar program that has given rise to or is
reasonably expected to give rise to any liability. Section 3.13(l) of the Company Disclosure Schedule lists each country in which the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries has operations and the number of employees in each such country.

(m) Section 3.13(m) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of: (i) all employment agreements with
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than at-will offer letters that are consistent with the Company�s general form and do
not provide for severance payments or benefits, notice periods for termination or change of control benefits) and all material terms and
conditions of employees of the UK Subsidiary; (ii) all employees or former employees of the Company and the UK Subsidiary who have
executed a non-competition agreement with the Company and/or the UK Subsidiary the term of which has not yet expired; (iii) all severance
agreements, programs and policies of the Company and/or the UK Subsidiary with or relating to its employees, excluding programs and policies
required to be maintained by Law; and (iv) all plans, programs, agreements and other arrangements of the Company pursuant to which payments
(or acceleration of benefits or vesting of options or lapse of repurchase rights) may be required, or may become payable directly or indirectly as
a result of or in connection with, the negotiation or consummation of the transactions contemplated by, or the execution of, this Agreement
(either alone or in connection with additional or subsequent events). True, complete and correct copies of each of the foregoing agreements to
which any employee of the Company or the UK Subsidiary is a party have been made available to Parent.

(n) All contributions required to be made with respect to any Company Employee Plan on or prior to the Effective Time have been or will be
timely made or are or will be reflected on the Company Balance Sheet (or Later Company Financial Statements) in accordance with GAAP. The
Company: (i) has withheld and reported all amounts required by Law or by agreement to be withheld and reported with respect to wages, salaries
and other payments to employees; (ii) is not liable for any arrears of wages or any taxes or any penalty for failure to comply with any of the
foregoing; and (iii) is not liable for any payment to any trust or other fund governed by or maintained by or on behalf of any governmental
authority, with respect to unemployment compensation benefits, social security or other benefits or obligations for current or former employees
(other than routine payments to be made in the normal course of business and consistent with past practice).
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(o) The negotiation or consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not, either alone or in combination with another
event, (i) entitle any current or former employee, officer or other service provider of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to severance pay, or
any other payment from the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or forgiveness of indebtedness or (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting
(other than in connection with the termination of the Company 401(k) Plan pursuant to Section 6.8(b) hereof), cause a lapse of repurchase rights
or increase the amount of compensation due any such employee, officer or other service provider. There is no Company Employee Plan or other
contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that, individually or collectively, could give rise to the payment of any amount that would not be
deductible pursuant to Sections 280G (determined without regard to Section 280G(b)(4) of the Code) as a result of the Merger.

(p) Each �nonqualified deferred compensation plan� (as defined in Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) sponsored or maintained by the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries has been operated since January 1, 2005 in good faith compliance with Section 409A of the Code and Notice 2005-1 to
the extent subject thereto. No such plan has been �materially modified� (within the meaning of IRS Notice 2005-1) at any time after October 3,
2004.

Section 3.14 Labor Matters.

(a) The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Laws respecting employment and
employment practices, including, without limitation, all Laws respecting terms and conditions of employment, health and safety, wages and
hours, child labor, immigration, employment discrimination, employment termination, disability rights or benefits, equal opportunity, plant
closures and layoffs, affirmative action, workers� compensation, labor relations, employee leave issues and unemployment insurance.

(b) There are no personnel manuals or handbooks applicable to employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries, other than those set forth in
Section 3.14(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, true and complete copies or written summaries of which have heretofore been provided to
Parent.

(c) There are no actions, suits, claims, grievances, investigations, or other proceedings pending or, to the Company�s knowledge, threatened,
between (i) the Company or its Subsidiaries (and/or any of their current or former officers, directors, employees, or representatives, in their
capacities as such) and (ii) any of their respective current or former employees, directors, consultants or independent contractors, or any
applicant for employment or classes of the foregoing, or any Governmental Entity, which actions, suits, claims, grievances, investigations, or
other proceedings have or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect. There
are no pending or, to the Company�s knowledge, threatened or reasonably anticipated claims or actions against the Company under any worker�s
compensation policy or long-term disability policy.

(d) The Company and its Subsidiaries have good labor relations, and the Company and/or its Subsidiaries and their respective employees, agents
or representatives have not committed any unfair labor practice as defined in the National Labor Relations Act or any similar foreign, state or
local law. Neither the Company nor its Subsidiaries is a party to, bound by or subject to (and none of the Company�s or its Subsidiaries� properties
or assets is bound by or subject to) any labor agreement, collective bargaining agreement, work rules or practices, or any other labor-related
agreements or arrangements with any labor union, labor organization, trade union (in the case of the UK Subsidiary, whether recognized or
unrecognized) or works council or other body of employees. There are no labor agreements, collective bargaining agreements, work rules or
practices, or any other labor-related agreements or arrangements that pertain to any of the employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries, and no
employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries are represented by any labor union, labor organization, trade union or works council with respect
to their employment with the Company or its Subsidiaries, as the case may be.
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works council, or group of employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries has made a pending demand for recognition or certification, and there
are no representation or certification proceedings or petitions seeking a representation proceeding presently pending or threatened in writing to
be brought or filed with the National Labor Relations Board or any other labor relations tribunal or authority. To the Company�s knowledge,
there are no labor disputes, strikes, slowdowns, work stoppages, lockouts, or threats thereof, against or affecting the Company.

(f) No employee of the Company or its Subsidiaries (i) to the Company�s knowledge, is in violation of any term of any patent disclosure
agreement, non-competition agreement, or any restrictive covenant to a former employer relating to the right of any such employee to be
employed by the Company or its Subsidiaries because of the nature of the business conducted or presently proposed to be conducted by the
Company or its Subsidiaries or relating to the use of trade secrets or proprietary information of others, or (ii) in the case of any key employee or
group of key employees, has given notice as of the date of this Agreement to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, that
such employee or any employee in a group of key employees intends to terminate his or her employment with the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, as the case may be. All of the non-competition agreements currently in effect between the Company and/or its Subsidiaries and
their respective employees are valid.

(g) The Company and its Subsidiaries are and have been in compliance with all notice and other requirements under the Worker Adjustment and
Retraining Notification Act of 1988, as amended (the �WARN Act�), and any foreign, state or local Law relating to plant closings and layoffs or
redundancies. The Company or any of its Subsidiaries is not currently engaged in any layoffs or employment terminations sufficient in number
to trigger application of the WARN Act or any state, local or foreign Law relating to plant closings and layoffs or redundancies. Section 3.14(g)
of the Company Disclosure Schedule contains a true and complete list of the names and the sites of employment or facilities of those individuals
who suffered an �employment loss� (as defined in the WARN Act) at any site of employment or facility of the Company during the 90-day period
prior to the date of this Agreement. Section 3.14(g) of the Company Disclosure Schedule shall be updated immediately prior to the Closing with
respect to the 90-day period prior to the Closing. In connection with such person�s employment, no employee of the UK Subsidiary would be
entitled to any amount other than the basic statutory redundancy payments calculated in accordance with Section 162 of the Employment Rights
Act of 1996 or to include in the calculation of such person�s continuous employment with the UK Subsidiary any employment by any other
person before such person�s employment with the UK Subsidiary. Within a period of one year prior to the Closing, the UK Subsidiary has not
been a party to any relevant transfer as defined in the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment Regulations 1981 (�TUPE�) nor has the
UK Subsidiary failed to comply with any duty inform and consult any appropriate representatives under TUPE.

(h) The execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in any breach or
other violation of any collective bargaining agreement, employment agreement, consulting agreement or any other labor-related agreement to
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party.

Section 3.15 Properties and Assets.

(a) The Company has good and valid title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all the properties and assets which it purports to own or lease (real,
tangible, personal and mixed), including all the properties and assets reflected in the Company Balance Sheet (except for personal property sold
since the date of the Company Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice). All properties and assets reflected
in the Company Balance Sheet are free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens reflected on the Company Balance Sheet and Liens for current
taxes not yet due and other Liens that do not materially impair the use or operation of the property or assets subject thereto.

(b) Section 3.15 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all real property owned, leased, subleased or
licensed by the Company and the location of such premises. Complete

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 124



A-19

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 125



Table of Contents

copies of all material real property leases, licenses or other occupancy agreements to which the Company is a party (collectively, the �Company
Real Property Leases�) have been delivered to or made available to Parent. Section 3.15 of the Company Disclosure Schedule lists all Company
Real Property Leases.

(c) As of the date of this Agreement, (i) all Company Real Property Leases are in full force and effect (except as such enforceability may be
subject to Laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and rules of Law governing specific
performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies), (ii) there is no existing material default by the Company under any of the Company
Real Property Leases, except such defaults as have been waived in writing, (iii) no event has occurred with respect to the Company which, with
notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default of any of the Company Real Property Leases, and (iv) to the Company�s knowledge,
there are no defaults of any material obligations of any party other than the Company under any Company Real Property Lease.

Section 3.16 Taxes.

(a) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have timely filed with the appropriate taxing authorities all material Tax Returns required to be
filed by them, and all such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law. All Taxes
required to be paid by the Company and each of its Subsidiaries (whether or not shown to be due on such Tax Returns) have been timely paid.
There are no Liens relating or attributable to or Taxes on any assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, other than liens relating to Taxes
not yet due and payable. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has granted any outstanding waiver of any statute of limitations with
respect to, or any outstanding extension of a period for the assessment of, any Tax. The accruals and reserves for Taxes (exclusive of any
accruals for �deferred taxes� or similar items that reflect timing differences between tax and financial accounting principles) reflected in the
Company�s Balance Sheet are adequate to cover all Taxes accruable through the date thereof (including taxes being contested) in accordance with
GAAP. All liabilities for Taxes attributable to the period commencing on the date following the date of the Company�s Balance Sheet were
incurred in the ordinary course of business and are consistent in type and amount with Taxes attributable to similar prior periods.

(b) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has timely paid or withheld with respect to their employees all federal and state income Taxes,
Federal Insurance Contribution Act, Federal Unemployment Tax and other Taxes required to be paid or withheld (and has timely paid over any
withheld amounts to the appropriate Taxing authority). Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice of any Tax
deficiency outstanding, proposed or assessed against the Company or its Subsidiaries. No audit or other examination of any Tax Return of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is presently in progress, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries have received any written notice
of any audit examination, deficiency, refund litigation, proposed adjustment or matter in controversy with respect to any Tax Return of the
Company or its Subsidiaries.

(c) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by any Tax indemnity, Tax sharing or Tax allocation agreement nor
does the Company owe any amount under any such agreement. Except for the group of which the Company is the common parent, the Company
has never been a member of an affiliated group of corporations within the meaning of Section 1504 of the Code. Except with respect to the
group referred to in the preceding sentence, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries are liable for the Taxes of any person under
Treasury Regulation 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local or foreign Law, and including any arrangement for group relief within a
jurisdiction or similar arrangement) as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has
ever been a party to any joint venture, partnership or other agreement that could be treated as a partnership for Tax purposes.

(d) To the extent requested by Parent, the Company has made available to Parent complete and correct copies of all Tax Returns, examination
reports and statements of deficiencies assessed against or agreed to by the Company and each of its Subsidiaries with respect to all taxable years
for which the statutes of limitation have not expired.
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(e) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has agreed, or is it required to, make any material adjustment under Section 481 of the Code
by reason of a change in accounting method or otherwise prior to the Effective Time.

(f) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or ever has been, a United States real property holding corporation (as defined in
Section 897(c)(2) of the Code) during the applicable period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

(g) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has constituted either a �distributing corporation� or a �controlled corporation� (within the
meaning of Section 355(a)(1)(A) of the Code) in a distribution of stock intended to qualify for tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code
(i) in the two years prior to the date of this Agreement or (ii) in a distribution which could otherwise constitute part of a �plan� or �series of related
transactions� (within the meaning of Section 355(e) of the Code) in connection with the Merger.

(h) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has engaged in, or has any commitment to engage in, a �reportable transaction� as set forth in
Treas. Reg. § 1.6011-4(b) or any a transaction that is the same as or substantially similar to one of the types of transactions that the Internal
Revenue Service has determined to be a tax avoidance transaction and identified by notice, regulation, or other form of published guidance as a
�listed transaction,� as set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.6011-4(b)(2).

Section 3.17 Environmental Matters.

(a) The Company is in compliance in all material respects with federal, state, local and foreign Laws and regulations relating to pollution,
protection or preservation of human health or the environment, including, without limitation, Laws and regulations relating to emissions,
discharges, releases or threatened releases of toxic or hazardous substances, materials or wastes, petroleum and petroleum products, asbestos or
asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, radon, or lead or lead-based paints or materials (�Materials of Environmental Concern�),
or otherwise relating to the generation, storage, containment (whether above ground or underground), disposal, recycling, transport, management
or handling of Materials of Environmental Concern or any product containing Materials of Environmental Concern, or the preservation of the
environment, the mitigation of adverse effects thereon or exposure of any person to Materials of Environmental Concern (collectively,
�Environmental Laws�), and including, but not limited to, compliance with any Company Permits or other governmental authorizations or the
terms and conditions thereof and compliance with any Laws respecting the sale, distribution or labeling of products pursuant to Environmental
Laws.

(b) The Company has not received any written notice, whether from a governmental authority or otherwise, alleging any violation of or
noncompliance with any Environmental Laws by the Company.

(c) There is no pending or threatened claim, action, investigation, or notice by any person or entity alleging potential liability on the part of the
Company for investigatory, cleanup or governmental response costs, or natural resources or property damages, or personal injuries, attorney�s
fees or penalties relating to (i) the presence, or release into the environment, of any Materials of Environmental Concern at any location owned
or operated by Company, now or in the past, or otherwise caused by the Company or by the actions of any other party for which the Company
would be liable by contract or pursuant to Environmental Laws, or (ii) any violation, or alleged violation, of any Environmental Law
(collectively, �Company Environmental Claims�), except where such Company Environmental Claims would not have a Company Material
Adverse Effect.
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(e) The Company has made available to Parent all material assessments, reports, data, results of investigations or audits, that are in the
possession of Company pertaining to the environmental condition of
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any real property currently or formerly owned, leased, subleased or licensed by the Company, or the compliance (or noncompliance) by the
Company with any Environmental Laws.

Section 3.18 Intellectual Property.

(a) Section 3.18(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule lists all Company Products and material Company Intellectual Property.

(b) Section 3.18(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule (i) lists all Registered Intellectual Property owned by, or filed on behalf of or in the
name of, the Company (the �Company Registered Intellectual Property�) and (ii) lists any pending proceedings or actions of which the Company
has been given notice before any court or tribunal (including the United States Patent and Trademark Office or equivalent authority anywhere in
the world) in which any of the Company Registered Intellectual Property is involved.

(c) Each item of Company Registered Intellectual Property is valid and subsisting, and all necessary registration, maintenance and renewal fees
in connection with such Company Registered Intellectual Property have been paid and all necessary documents and certificates in connection
with such Company Registered Intellectual Property have been filed with the relevant patent, copyright, trademark or other authorities in the
United States or foreign jurisdictions, as the case may be, for the purposes of maintaining such Company Registered Intellectual Property. There
are no actions that must be taken by the Company within 60 days of Closing, including the payment of any registration, maintenance or renewal
fees or the filing of any documents, applications or certificates for the purposes of maintaining, perfecting or preserving or renewing any
Company Registered Intellectual Property. In each case in which the Company has acquired any ownership of Company Registered Intellectual
Property from any Person, the Company has obtained a valid and enforceable assignment sufficient to irrevocably transfer all rights in such
Company Registered Intellectual Property (including the right to seek past and future damages with respect thereto) to the Company and, to the
maximum extent provided for by, and in accordance with, applicable laws and regulations, the Company has recorded each such assignment
with the relevant governmental authorities, including the PTO, the U.S. Copyright Office, or their respective equivalents in any relevant foreign
jurisdiction, as the case may be.

(d) All Company Intellectual Property will be fully transferable, alienable or licensable by Merger Sub and/or Parent without restriction and
without payment of any kind to any third party. The Company is the exclusive owner or exclusive licensee of all Company Intellectual Property.

(e) To the extent that any Company Intellectual Property has been developed or created independently or jointly by any Person other than the
Company for which the Company has, directly or indirectly, provided consideration for such development or creation, the Company has a
written agreement with such Person with respect thereto, and the Company has obtained ownership of, and is the exclusive owner of, all such
Intellectual Property therein and associated Intellectual Property Rights by operation of law or by valid assignment, and has required the waiver
of all non-assignable rights, including all author or moral rights.

(f) The Company has not (i) granted any exclusive license of or exclusive right to use, or authorized the retention of any exclusive rights to use
or joint ownership of, any Intellectual Property or Intellectual Property Rights that is or was Company Intellectual Property, to any other Person,
or (ii) in the past two years, transferred, assigned or permitted the Company�s rights in such Company Intellectual Property to lapse or enter into
the public domain.
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(g) Other than (i) the public or open source technology listed in Section 3.18(q) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (ii) Shrink-Wrap Code,
(iii) non-disclosure agreements entered into in a writing in the ordinary course of business and materially consistent with the Company�s own
forms of non-disclosure agreement (copies of which are attached as Schedule 3.18(g) hereto (the �Company NDAs�), Section 3.18(g) of the
Company Disclosure Schedule lists all contracts, licenses and agreements to which the Company is a party that includes a license, a
non-assertion or covenant not to sue with respect to any Intellectual Property Rights (�Company IP Contract�).
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(h) (1) The public or open source technology listed in Section 3.18(q) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (2) Shrink-Wrap Code,
(3) non-disclosure agreements entered into in a writing in the ordinary course of business and materially consistent with the Company NDAs,
(4) the Company Intellectual Property owned by the Company and (5) the agreements set forth in Section 3.18(g) of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, constitute all of the Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property Rights used in, necessary to or that otherwise would be infringed by
the conduct of the business of the Company as it currently is conducted or contemplated by the Company to be conducted, including the design,
development, manufacture, use, import and sale of any Company Product.

(i) No third party that has licensed Intellectual Property to the Company has ownership rights or license rights to improvements or derivative
works made by the Company in such Intellectual Property that has been licensed to the Company.

(j) The Company is not a party to any settlements, covenants not to sue, consents, decrees, stipulations, judgments, or orders resulting from suits,
actions or similar legal proceedings which (i) restrict the Company�s rights to use any Intellectual Property owned by and material to the business
of the Company as currently conducted or (ii) restrict the conduct of the business of the Company as currently conducted in order to
accommodate any third Person�s Intellectual Property Rights.

(k) The Company currently has in place a commercially reasonable program to assess whether its activities infringe or misappropriate the
Intellectual Property Rights of others. The operation of the business of the Company as it is currently conducted, including the design,
development, use, import, branding, advertising, promotion, marketing, manufacture and sale of any Company Product, to the knowledge of the
Company after due inquiry, has not and does not infringe or misappropriate any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person (excluding any
Intellectual Property Rights arising from any patent that is issued subsequent to the Closing Date), violate any right of any Person (including any
right to privacy or publicity), or constitute unfair competition or trade practices under the laws of any jurisdiction. In the past two years, the
Company has not received notice from any Person claiming that such operation or any act, any Company Product or Company Intellectual
Property infringes or misappropriates any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person or constitutes unfair competition or trade practices under
the laws of any jurisdiction (nor does the Company have knowledge (after due inquiry) of any basis therefor).

(l) Neither this Agreement nor the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the assignment to Parent by operation of law or
otherwise of any contracts or agreements to which the Company is a party, will result in: (i) Parent or the Merger Sub granting to any third party
any right to or with respect to any Intellectual Property Rights owned by, or licensed to, any of them, (ii) Parent or the Merger Sub being bound
by, or subject to, any non-compete or other material restriction on the operation or scope of their respective businesses, or (iii) Parent or the
Merger Sub being obligated to pay any royalties or other consideration, or offer any discounts, to any third party in excess of those that would be
payable by, or required to be offered by, any of them, respectively, in the absence of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

(m) To the knowledge of the Company (after due inquiry to the relevant Company staff), no Person is infringing or misappropriating any
Company Intellectual Property owned by Company.

(n) The Company has taken reasonable steps that are required or necessary to protect the Company�s rights in confidential information and trade
secrets of the Company or provided by any other Person to the Company. Without limiting the foregoing, (i) the Company has, and enforces, a
policy requiring each current and former employee to execute proprietary information, confidentiality and assignment agreements substantially
in the Company�s standard form for employees (copies of which are attached as Schedule 3.18(n)(i) hereto (the �Employee Proprietary
Information Agreement�), (ii) the Company has required and requires each current and former consultant or contractor to execute a consulting
agreement containing proprietary information, confidentiality and assignment provisions substantially in the Company�s standard form for
consultants or contractors (copies of which are attached as Schedule 3.18(n)(ii) hereto (the �Consultant Proprietary Information Agreement�) and
(iii) all current and
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former employees, consultants and contractors of the Company have executed an Employee Proprietary Information Agreement or a Consultant
Proprietary Information Agreement, as appropriate, without exclusions for the assignment of Intellectual Property as provided for therein.

(o) No Company Intellectual Property, Intellectual Property Rights or Company Product is subject to any pending proceeding or outstanding
decree, order, judgment or settlement agreement or stipulation that restricts in any manner the use, transfer or licensing thereof by the Company
or may affect the validity, use or enforceability of such Company Intellectual Property, Intellectual Property Rights or Company Product.

(p) (i) Since August 1, 2000 and, to the knowledge of the Company after due inquiry, prior to August 1, 2000, no government funding, facilities
or resources of a university, college, other educational institution or research center or funding from third parties was used in the development of
the Company Intellectual Property and (ii) no Governmental Entity, university, college, other educational institution or research center has any
claim or right in or to the Company Intellectual Property. To the Company�s knowledge after due inquiry, no current or former employee,
consultant or independent contractor of the Company who was involved in, or who contributed to, the creation or development of any Company
Intellectual Property, has performed services for the government, a university, college or other educational institution, or a research center,
during a period of time during which such employee, consultant or independent contractor was also performing services for the Company.

(q) Except as set forth on Section 3.18(q)-1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, no Intellectual Property of the Company, of a third party or in
the public domain, that constitutes open source, public source or freeware Intellectual Property, or any modification or derivative thereof,
including any version of any software licensed pursuant to any GNU general public license or limited general public license or other software
that is licensed pursuant to a license that purports to require the distribution of, or access to, source code or purports to restrict one�s ability to
charge for distribution of software (collectively �Open Source�), was used in, incorporated into, integrated or bundled with any Intellectual
Property that is, or was incorporated in or used in the development or compilation of any Company Product or otherwise distributed by the
Company. Section 3.18(q)-2 sets forth a list of all Open Source that is included in, or provided or distributed with any Company Product and for
each use of Open Source: (1) a description of the functionality of the Open Source, (2) the applicable license terms, (3) the applicable Company
Product, and (4) the copyright holder of such Open Source.

(r) Except for the warranties and indemnities contained in the Company�s standard form agreements for the distribution and sale of Company
Products, (copies of which are attached as Schedule 3.18(r) hereto (the �Product Agreements�)and warranties implied by law, the Company has
not given any warranties or indemnities relating to Company Products.

(s) The Company has not (i) disclosed to any third Person any material confidential source code for any Company Product or (ii) made any such
source code subject to any open source license, nor is the Company obligated to make the source code for such Company Product generally
available. No event has occurred, and no circumstance or condition exists, that (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) will, or would
reasonably be expected to, result in the disclosure or delivery by the Company or any Person acting on their behalf to any Person of any Source
Code that is Company Intellectual Property.

(t) The Company has disclosed in writing to Parent all information relating to any problem or issue with respect to any of the Company Products
(or any other Company Intellectual Property) which does, or may reasonably be expected to, adversely affect the value, functionality or fitness
for the intended purpose of such Company Product or Company Intellectual Property. Without limiting the foregoing, there have been, and are,
no claims asserted against Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their distributors related to the Company Products or Company Intellectual
Property.
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(v) The Company does not have any obligation to pay any third party any royalties or other fees in excess of $25,000 in the aggregate in
calendar year 2004 or any annual period thereafter for the use of Intellectual Property and no obligation to pay such royalties or other fees in
excess of $50,000 in the aggregate will result from the execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 3.19 Insurance.

All fire and casualty, general liability, business interruption, product liability, sprinkler and water damage insurance policies and other forms of
insurance maintained by the Company has been made available to Parent. Each such policy is in full force and effect and all premiums due
thereon have been paid in full. None of such policies shall terminate or lapse (or be otherwise adversely affect) by reason of the execution and
delivery of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 3.20 Interested Party Transactions. Since December 31, 2003, no event has occurred that would be required to be reported as a Certain
Relationship or Related Transaction pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 57.

Section 3.21 Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker (other than Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (�Merrill Lynch�),
whose brokerage, finder�s or other fees will be paid by the Surviving Corporation) is entitled to any brokerage, finder�s or other fee or commission
in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company. The
Company has furnished to Parent a complete and correct copy of all agreements between the Company and Merrill Lynch pursuant to which
Merrill Lynch would be entitled to any such payment.

Section 3.22 Opinion of Financial Advisor of the Company. The financial advisor of the Company, Merrill Lynch has delivered to the Company
its opinion, dated the date of this Agreement, that as of such date, the Merger Consideration is fair, from a financial point of view, to the
stockholders of the Company. The Company has provided a true, complete and correct copy of such opinion to Parent. As of the date hereof,
such opinion has not been withdrawn, revoked or modified.

Section 3.23 Anti-Takeover Statute Not Applicable. Except for Section 203 of the DGCL (which shall not prohibit the transactions contemplated
by the Agreement), no �business combination,� �fair price,� �moratorium,� �control share acquisition� or other similar anti-takeover statute or regulation
under the DGCL or other applicable Law (each, a �Takeover Statute�) is applicable to the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by
this Agreement or the Company Voting Agreements.

Section 3.24 Disclosure. No representation or warranty made by the Company contained in this Agreement, and no statement contained in the
Company Disclosure Schedule or in any certificate furnished to Parent pursuant to any provision of this Agreement (including the Company
Financial Statements and the notes thereto) contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements herein or therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The Company has provided
Parent with or made available to Parent all of the material contracts heretofore requested on behalf of Parent, and all other material information
concerning the Company or any Company Subsidiary in the possession, custody or control of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. None
of the Company or its Subsidiaries is required to file any forms, report, schedules or other documents with the SEC.
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ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT

Except (i) as set forth in the written disclosure schedule prepared by Parent which is dated as of the date hereof and has been delivered by Parent
to the Company in connection herewith (the �Parent Disclosure Schedule�) or (ii) as otherwise disclosed in any Parent SEC Report (as defined
below) filed with the SEC prior to the date hereof (other than in any risk factors or forward looking statements contained therein, which shall not
qualify, modify or otherwise affect the representations and warranties set forth in this Article IV), Parent represents and warrants to the Company
as follows:

Section 4.1 Organization and Qualification; Merger Sub. Parent and each of its Subsidiaries (including Merger Sub) is an entity duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its organization and has the requisite corporate or other power and
authority necessary to own, lease and operate the properties it purports to own, lease or operate and to carry on its business as it is now being
conducted. Parent and each of its Subsidiaries (including Merger Sub) is duly qualified or licensed as a foreign corporation to do business, and is
in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character or location of the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of its
activities makes such qualification or licensing necessary, except for such failures to be so duly qualified or licensed and in good standing that
would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect. A true, complete and correct list of
all of Parent�s Subsidiaries, together with the jurisdiction of incorporation of each Subsidiary, the authorized capitalization of each Subsidiary,
and the percentage of each Subsidiary�s outstanding capital stock owned by Parent or another Subsidiary or affiliate of Parent, is set forth in
Section 4.1 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule. Parent owns all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of each of its Subsidiaries. Except for
obligations or liabilities incurred in connection with their incorporation and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and except for this
Agreement and any other agreements or arrangements contemplated by this Agreement, Merger Sub has not incurred, directly or indirectly, any
obligations or liabilities or engaged in any business activities of any type or kind whatsoever or entered into any agreements or arrangements
with any person. Merger Sub does not directly or indirectly own any equity or similar interest in, or any interest convertible into or exchangeable
or exercisable for any equity or similar interest in, any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture or other business
association or entity, excluding securities in any publicly traded company held for investment by Parent and comprising less than one percent
(1%) of the outstanding stock of such company.

Section 4.2 Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. Parent has heretofore made available to the Company a true, complete and correct copy of
its articles of incorporation, as amended to date (the �Parent Charter�), and bylaws, as amended to date (the �Parent Bylaws�), and has furnished to
the Company true, complete and correct copies of the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub, as amended to date (the �Merger Sub Charter
Documents�). The Parent Charter, Merger Sub Charter Documents and the charter and bylaws (or equivalent organizational documents) each as
amended to date, of each of Parent�s Subsidiaries (the �Parent Sub Documents�) are in full force and effect. Parent is not in violation of any of the
provisions of the Parent Charter or Parent Bylaws, and none of Parent�s Subsidiaries is in violation of its respective Parent Sub Documents.

Section 4.3 Capitalization.

(a) The authorized capital stock of Parent consists of 50,000,000 shares of Parent Common Stock. As of January 20, 2006, (i) 12,996,427 shares
of Parent Common Stock were issued and outstanding; (ii) 904,124 shares of Parent Common Stock are reserved for issuance pursuant to
Parent�s 2002 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the �2002 Parent NSO Plan�), 785,253 of which have been granted as options under such plan and
118,871 of which remained available for issuance under such plan; (iii) 246,667 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for issuance
upon exercise of awards granted pursuant to Parent�s 2000 Director Stock Option Plan (the �2000 Director Plan�), 140,000 of which have been
granted as options under such plan and 106,667 of which remained available for issuance under such plan;
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(iv) 2,154,262 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of awards granted pursuant to Parent�s 2000 Employee
Stock Option Plan (the �2000 Employee Plan�), 1,316,702 of which have been granted as options under such plan and 837,560 of which remained
available for issuance under such plan; (v) 15,000 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of awards granted
pursuant to Parent�s 1991 Stock Option Plan (the �1991 Plan�), 15,000 of which have been granted as options under such plan and none of which
remained available for issuance under such plan; (vi) 20,000 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of
awards granted pursuant to Parent�s 1991 Director Option Plan (the �1991 Director Plan�), 20,000 of which have been granted as options under
such plan and none of which remained available for issuance under such plan; (vii) 629,515 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for
issuance pursuant to Parent�s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (�Parent ESPP�); (viii) 1,200,000 shares of Parent Common Stock were reserved for
issuance upon exercise of awards authorized for grant pursuant to the Parent 2005 Stock Option Plan the (�Parent 2005 Plan�) �), 279,300 of which
have been granted as options under pursuant to the Parent 2005 Plan and 920,700 of which remained available for grant under such Parent 2005
Plan. The 2002 Parent NSO Plan, the 2000 Employee Plan, the 2000 Director Plan, the 1991 Plan, the 1991 Director Plan and the Parent 2005
Plan are collectively referred to herein as the �Parent Stock Plans�. Between December 31, 2005 and the date of this Agreement, Parent has not
issued any securities (including derivative securities) except for shares of Parent Common Stock issued upon exercise of stock options
outstanding.

(b) Section 4.3(b) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all persons who, as of January 20, 2006 held
outstanding awards to acquire shares of Parent Common Stock (the �Parent Stock Options�) under the Parent Stock Plans or under any other
equity incentive plan or arrangement of Parent, indicating, with respect to each Parent Stock Option then outstanding, the tax status of such
option under Section 422 of the Code, the number of shares of Parent Common Stock subject to such Parent Stock Option, the name of the plan
under which such Parent Stock Option was granted and the exercise price, date of grant, vesting schedule and expiration date thereof, including
to the extent to which any vesting has occurred as of the date of this Agreement and whether (and to what extent) the vesting of such Parent
Stock Option will be accelerated in any way by the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or by the termination of
employment or engagement or change in position of any holder thereof following or in connection with the consummation of the Merger. Parent
has made available to the Company true, complete and correct copies of all Parent Stock Plans and the forms of all stock option agreements
evidencing outstanding Parent Stock Options.

(c) Except as described in Section 4.3 no capital stock of the Parent or any of its Subsidiaries or any security convertible or exchangeable into or
exercisable for such capital stock is issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding as of the date of this Agreement. Except as described in
Section 4.3, there are no options, preemptive rights, warrants, calls, rights, commitments, agreements, arrangements or understandings of any
kind to which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries is bound, obligating Parent or any of its
Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold, additional shares of capital stock of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries
or obligating Parent or any of its Subsidiaries to grant, extend or accelerate the vesting of or enter into any such option, warrant, call, right,
commitment, agreement, arrangement or understanding. There are no shareholder agreements, voting trusts, proxies or other similar agreements,
arrangements or understandings to which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which it or they are bound, obligating Parent or any of
its Subsidiaries with respect to any shares of capital stock of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries. There are no rights or obligations, contingent or
otherwise (including rights of first refusal in favor of Parent), of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any
shares of capital stock of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries or to provide funds to or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital
contribution or otherwise) in any such Subsidiary or any other entity. There are no registration rights or other similar agreements, arrangements
or understandings to which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which it or they are bound, obligating Parent or any of its
Subsidiaries with respect to any shares of Parent Common Stock or shares of capital stock of any such Subsidiary.
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(d) All outstanding shares of Parent�s capital stock are, all shares of Parent Common Stock reserved for issuance as specified above will be (upon
issuance on the terms and conditions specified in the instrument pursuant to which they are issuable), and all shares of Parent Common Stock to
be issued in the Merger have been or will be (when issued in accordance with this Agreement), duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and not subject to, or issued in violation of, any purchase option, call option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription
right or any similar right under any provision of the CCC, the Parent Charter, the Parent Bylaws or any agreement, arrangement or
understanding to which Parent is a party or is otherwise bound. None of the outstanding shares of the Parent Common Stock have been issued in
violation of any federal or state securities Laws. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of each of Parent�s Subsidiaries are duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and all such shares are owned by Parent or a Subsidiary of Parent free and clear of all
Liens. The Parent Common Stock to be issued in the Merger, when issued in accordance with this Agreement, will be registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�) and the Exchange Act and registered or exempt from registration under any applicable
state securities or �Blue Sky� Laws.

(e) The Parent Common Stock constitutes the only class of securities of Parent or its Subsidiaries registered or required to be registered under
the Exchange Act.

(f) There are no accrued and unpaid dividends with respect to any outstanding shares of capital stock of Parent.

(g) The authorized capital stock of Merger Sub consists of 100 shares of Merger Sub Common Stock, all of which are issued and outstanding
and fully paid and nonassessable. All of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Merger Sub is, and immediately preceding the Effective
Time will be, owned by Parent, and there are (i) no other shares of capital stock or voting securities of Merger Sub, (ii) no securities of Merger
Sub convertible into or exchangeable for shares of capital stock or voting securities of Merger Sub and (iii) no options or other rights to acquire
from Merger Sub, and no obligations of Merger Sub to issue, any capital stock, voting securities or securities convertible into or exchangeable
for capital stock or voting securities of Merger Sub.

Section 4.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement; Shareholder Approval.

(a) Subject only to the approval of the shareholders of Parent as described below, Parent has full corporate power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly approved by the Board of Directors of Parent (the �Parent
Board�) and the Board of Directors of Merger Sub. The Parent Board has (i) unanimously determined that this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby are advisable and in the best interests of the shareholders of Parent, (ii) approved this Agreement and the Merger and
(iii) has unanimously recommended that the shareholders of Parent approve the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock in the Merger (the
�Parent Voting Proposal�). This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by Parent and Merger Sub and (assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery by the Company) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Parent and Merger Sub
enforceable against Parent and Merger Sub in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization, moratorium or other similar Laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors� rights
generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at Law).

(b) Except for the approval of the Parent Voting Proposal by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Parent Common
Stock present and voting at a duly constituted meeting of the holders of Parent Common Stock (the �Parent Shareholders Meeting,� and together
with the Requisite Company Stock Approval to be obtained at a duly constituted meeting of the holders of Company Capital Stock (the
�Company Stockholder Meeting�), the �Merger Shareholders Actions�), of the shareholders of the Parent to consider the Parent Voting Proposal (the
�Requisite Parent Shareholder Approval�) and the
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approval of the Merger by Parent, in its capacity as sole shareholder of Merger Sub, no other corporate proceedings on the part of Parent or
Merger Sub are necessary to approve this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 4.5 No Conflict, Required Filings and Consents.

(a) The execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement do not, the execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub of any
instrument required hereby to be executed and delivered at the Closing will not, and the performance by Parent and Merger Sub of their
respective agreements and obligations under this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub will not, (i) conflict with or violate the Parent Charter,
the Parent Bylaws, the Merger Sub Charter Documents or any Parent Sub Documents, (ii) in any material respect, conflict with or violate any
Law applicable to Parent or Merger Sub or any Law by which Parent�s properties are bound or affected, (iii) except as would not reasonably be
expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect, result in any breach of or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or
both would become a default) or impair Parent�s rights or alter the rights or obligations of any third party including monetary obligations under,
or give to any third party any rights of termination, amendment, payment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a Lien on
any of the properties or assets (including intangible assets) of Parent pursuant to any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, contract, agreement, lease,
license, permit, franchise or other instrument or obligation to which Parent is a party or by which Parent or its properties is bound or affected, or
(iv) other than options under the Parent Stock Plans, give rise to or result in any person having, or having the right to exercise, any pre-emptive
rights, rights of first refusal, rights to acquire or similar rights with respect to any capital stock of Parent or any of its assets or properties.

(b) The execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement do not, the execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub of any
instrument required hereby to be executed and delivered at the Closing will not, and the performance of the respective agreements of, and
obligations under, this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub will not, require any consent, approval, order, license, authorization, registration,
declaration or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Entity, except (i) as may be required by the HSR Act, (ii) as may be
required under any foreign antitrust or competition Law or regulation, (iii) the filing of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (the �Registration
Statement�) with the SEC in accordance with the Securities Act, and the filing of the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/ Information Statement (as
defined in Section 6.4) with the SEC under the Exchange Act, (iv) such clearances, consents, approvals, orders, licenses, authorizations,
registrations, declarations, permits, filings and notifications as may be required under applicable U.S. federal and state or foreign securities
Laws, (v) the filing of the Certificate of Merger or other documents as required by the DGCL and (vi) such other consents, approvals, orders,
registrations, declarations, permits, filings or notifications which, if not obtained or made, would not reasonably be expected to have,
individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 4.6 Compliance; Permits.

(a) Parent is and has been in material compliance with and is not in material default or violation of (and has not received any notice of material
non-compliance, default or violation with respect to) any Law applicable to it or by which any of its respective properties are bound or affected.

(b) Parent holds all permits, licenses, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, authorizations, registrations, orders and other
approvals from Governmental Entities that are material to the operation of its business as currently conducted (collectively, the �Parent Permits�).
The Parent Permits are in full force and effect, have not been violated in any material respect and no suspension, revocation or cancellation
thereof has been threatened, and to Parent�s knowledge there is no action, proceeding or investigation pending or threatened, seeking the
suspension, revocation or cancellation of any Parent Permits. No Parent Permit shall cease to be effective as a result of the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, other than as would not reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.
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Section 4.7 SEC Filings; Financial Statements.

(a) Parent has filed all forms, reports, schedules, statements and other documents, including any exhibits thereto, required to be filed by Parent
since January 1, 2003 with the SEC (collectively, the �Parent SEC Reports�). The Parent SEC Reports, including all forms, reports and documents
filed by Parent with the SEC after the date hereof and prior to the Effective Time, (i) were and, in the case of Parent SEC Reports filed after the
date hereof, will be, prepared in all material respects in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act,
as the case may be, and the rules and regulations thereunder and (ii) did not at the time they were filed (or if amended or superseded by a filing
prior to the date of this Agreement, then on the date of such filing) and, in the case of such forms, reports and documents filed by Parent with the
SEC after the date of this Agreement, will not as of the time they are filed, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact required to be stated in such Parent SEC Reports or necessary in order to make the statements in such Parent SEC Reports, in light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the Subsidiaries of Parent is required to file any forms, report,
schedules or other documents with the SEC.

(b) Each of the consolidated financial statements (including, in each case, any related notes and schedules) contained in the Parent SEC Reports,
including any Parent SEC Reports filed between the date of this Agreement and the Closing, complied or will comply, as of its respective date,
in all material respects with all applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto, was
or will be prepared in accordance with GAAP (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto) applied on a consistent basis throughout the
periods involved and fairly presented in all material respects or will fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of
Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the respective dates thereof and the consolidated results of the operations and cash flows of Parent
and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the periods indicated, except as otherwise explained therein and except that any unaudited interim financial
statements are subject to normal and recurring year-end adjustments which have not been made and are not expected to be material in amount,
individually or in the aggregate. The unaudited balance sheet and notes related thereto of Parent contained in the Parent SEC Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2005 is referred to herein as the �Parent Balance Sheet.�

(c) The chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Parent have made all certifications required by, and would be able to make such
certifications as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date as if required to be made as of such dates pursuant to, Sections 302 and 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and any related rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC and the statements contained in any such certifications are
complete and correct, and Parent is otherwise in compliance with all applicable effective provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the
applicable listing standards and corporate governance rules of the Nasdaq.

(d) Each of the consolidated financial statements (including, in each case, any related notes and schedules) contained in the Parent SEC Reports,
accurately reflects the revenues and costs relating to the Parent Material Contracts (as defined below).

Section 4.8 Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Since December 31, 2003, Parent and each of its Subsidiaries has had in place �disclosure
controls and procedures� (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) reasonably designed and maintained
to ensure that all information (both financial and non-financial) required to be disclosed by Parent in the reports that it files or submits to the
SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the
SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Parent�s management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and to make the certifications of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Parent required under the Exchange
Act with respect to such reports. Parent maintains internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that (i) transactions
are executed in accordance with management�s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
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accounting principles and to maintain accountability for assets, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management�s general
or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and
appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Parent has made available to Company information regarding its processes for
assessing the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting and any material reports or
correspondence with Parent�s internal auditors regarding the same.

Section 4.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. From the date of the Parent Balance Sheet, Parent has conducted its business in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice and, since such date and through the date hereof, there has not occurred: (i) any Parent Material
Adverse Effect; (ii) any amendments to or changes in the Parent Charter or Parent Bylaws; (iii) any material damage to, destruction or loss of
any asset of Parent (whether or not covered by insurance); (iv) any change by Parent in its accounting methods, principles or practices; (v) any
revaluation by Parent of any of its assets, including writing down the value of inventory or writing off notes or accounts receivable other than in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (vi) any sale of a material amount of assets (tangible or intangible) of Parent;
(vii) any recalls, field notifications or field corrections with respect to products manufactured by or on behalf of Parent, or (viii) any other action
or event that would have required the consent of the Company pursuant to Section 5.2 had such action or event occurred after the date of this
Agreement.

Section 4.10 No Undisclosed Liabilities.

(a) Except as reflected in the Parent Balance Sheet, Parent has no liabilities (absolute, accrued, contingent or otherwise) which are required by
GAAP to be set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries or in the notes thereto, other than (i) any
liabilities and obligations incurred since the date of the Parent Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice,
(ii) any liabilities or obligations incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (iii) liabilities that,
individually or in the aggregate, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Parent is not a party to, nor has any commitment to become a party to, any joint venture, partnership agreement or any similar contract
(including any contract relating to any transaction, arrangement or relationship between or among Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one
hand, and any unconsolidated affiliate, including any structured finance, special purpose or limited purpose entity or person, on the other hand)
where the purpose or intended effect of such arrangement is to avoid disclosure of any material transaction involving Parent in the Parent�s
consolidated financial statements.

Section 4.11 Absence of Litigation; Investigations. Prior to the date of this Agreement, there were no material claims, actions, suits, proceedings,
governmental investigations, inquiries or subpoenas (other than challenging or otherwise arising from or relating to the Merger or any of the
other transactions contemplated by this Agreement), (a) pending against Parent or any of its properties or assets, (b) to Parent�s knowledge,
threatened against Parent, or any of its properties or assets or (c) whether filed or threatened, that have been settled or compromised by Parent
within three years prior to the date of this Agreement and at the time of such settlement or compromise were material, which claims, actions,
suits, proceedings investigations, inquiries or subpoenas referred to in clause (a) and (b) above would reasonably be expected to have a Parent
Material Adverse Effect. Parent is not subject to any outstanding order, writ, injunction or decree that would reasonably be expected to be
material or would reasonably be expected to prevent or delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. There has
not been nor are there currently any internal investigations or inquiries being conducted by Parent, the Parent Board (or any committee thereof)
or any third party at the request of any of the foregoing concerning any financial, accounting, tax, conflict of interest, self-dealing, fraudulent or
deceptive conduct or other misfeasance or malfeasance issues.
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Section 4.12 Agreements, Contracts and Commitments.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, the term �Parent Material Contracts� shall mean any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, guarantee, other
evidence of indebtedness, lease, license, contract, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which Parent is a party or by which it or any of
its assets is bound, and which:

(i) has a remaining term of more than one year from the date hereof and (A) cannot be unilaterally terminated by Parent at any time, without
material penalty, within thirty (30) days of providing notice of termination, and (B) involves the payment or receipt of money in excess of
$100,000 per year;

(ii) involves the payment or receipt of money in excess of $250,000 in any year;

(iii) contains covenants limiting the freedom of Parent to sell any products or services of or to any other person, engage in any line of business or
compete with any person or operate at any location;

(iv) was made with any officer, director, Parent employee or member of the Parent Board, or any service, operating or management agreement or
arrangement with respect to any of Parent�s assets or properties (whether leased or owned), other than those that are terminable by Parent on no
more than thirty (30) days� notice without liability or financial obligation to Parent;

(v) is a dealer, distributor, joint marketing or development contract under which Parent has continuing material obligations to jointly market any
product, technology or service and which may not be canceled without penalty upon notice of ninety (90) days or less, or any contract pursuant
to which Parent has continuing material obligations to jointly develop any Intellectual Property that will not be owned, in whole or in part, by
Parent;

(vi) includes indemnification, guaranty or warranty other than any those contracts entered into in the ordinary course of Parent�s business;

(vii) mortgages, indentures, guarantees, loans or credit agreements, security agreements or other agreements or instruments relating to the
borrowing of money or extension of credit;

(viii) settlement agreements under which Parent has ongoing obligations; or

(ix) Parent Real Property Leases.
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(b) All of the Parent Material Contracts that are required to be described in the Parent SEC Reports (or to be filed as exhibits thereto) are so
described or filed and are enforceable and in full force and effect (except as such enforceability may be subject to Laws of general application
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, and the relief of debtors and rules of Law governing specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable
remedies).

(c) As of the date of this Agreement, (i) there is no breach or violation of or default by Parent or any of its Subsidiaries under any of the Parent
Material Contracts, except such breaches, violations and defaults as have been waived in writing, and (ii) no event has occurred with respect to
Parent or any of its Subsidiaries which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a breach, violation or default, or give rise to a right
of termination, modification, cancellation, foreclosure, imposition of a Lien, prepayment or acceleration under any of the Parent Material
Contracts, which breach, violation or default referred to in clauses (i) or (ii), would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the
aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(d) Section 4.12 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of, and true and complete copies have been delivered or
made available to the Company with respect to, all Parent Material Contracts in effect as of the date hereof other than the Parent Material
Contracts which are listed as an exhibit to Parent�s most recent annual report on Form 10-K or a subsequent quarterly report on Form 10-Q or as
otherwise set forth on Section 4.12(b) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule.

Section 4.13 Employee Benefit Plans, Options and Employment Agreements.

(a) Section 4.13(a) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of all Employee Benefit Plans maintained, or
contributed to by Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their
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respective ERISA Affiliates or to which Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective ERISA Affiliates is obligated to contribute, or
under which any of them has or may have any liability for premiums or benefits for the benefit of employees located in the United States
(collectively, the �Parent Employee Plans�).

(b) With respect to each Parent Employee Plan, Parent has made available to the Company complete and accurate copies of (i) such Parent
Employee Plan (or a written summary of any unwritten plan) together with all amendments, (ii) in the case of any plan for which Forms 5500 are
required to be filed, the most recent annual report (Form 5500) with schedules attached, (iii) in the case of any plan that is intended to be
qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, the most recent determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service, (iv) each trust agreement,
group annuity contract, administration and similar material agreements, investment management or investment advisory agreements, (v) the
most recent summary plan descriptions and employee handbook, or other similar material employee communications relating to employee
benefits matters, (vi) all personnel, payroll and employment manuals and policies, and (vii) the most recent financial statements for each Parent
Employee Plan that is funded; (viii) all material correspondence to or from any governmental agency related to any Parent Employee Plan
during the preceding three years and (ix) the three most recent plan years� discrimination tests for each Parent Employee Plan.

(c) The Parent, its Subsidiaries and each of it respective ERISA Affiliates have complied in all material respects with, and each Parent Employee
Plan has been administered in all material respects in accordance with, ERISA, the Code and all other applicable Laws and the regulations
thereunder and materially in accordance with such Parent Employee Plan�s terms. Each of Parent, its Subsidiaries and their respective ERISA
Affiliates have in all material respects met their obligations with respect to each Parent Employee Plan and have timely made (or timely will
make) all required contributions thereto. All filings and reports as to each Parent Employee Plan required to have been submitted to the Internal
Revenue Service or to the United States Department of Labor have been timely submitted. With respect to the Parent Employee Plans, no event
has occurred, and, to Parent�s knowledge, there exists no condition or set of circumstances in connection with which Parent or its Subsidiaries
could reasonably be expected to be subject to any material liability (including penalties or taxes) under ERISA, the Code or any other applicable
Law (other than for contributions and routine administrative expenses), nor will the negotiation or consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, in and of themselves, give rise to any such material liability.

(d) With respect to the Parent Employee Plans, there are no material benefit obligations for which contributions have not been made or properly
accrued and there are no material benefit obligations which have not been accounted for by reserves (if required by GAAP), or otherwise
properly footnoted in accordance with the requirements of GAAP, on the financial statements of Parent. The assets of each Parent Employee
Plan which is funded are reported at their fair market value on the books and records of such Parent Employee Plan.

(e) No Parent Employee Plan has assets that include securities issued by Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective ERISA
Affiliates.

(f) Each Parent Employee Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code (each, a �Qualified Plan�) (i) is the subject of an
unrevoked favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to such Qualified Plan�s qualified status under the Code,
as amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and all subsequent legislation, (ii) has remaining a period of time under the Code or applicable
Treasury regulations or Internal Revenue Service pronouncements in which to request, and make any amendments necessary to obtain, such a
letter from the Internal Revenue Service and (iii) is a prototype or volume submitter plan that is permitted to rely on the favorable opinion or
advisory letter issued to the prototype or volume submitter plan sponsor of such Qualified Plan. No such determination, opinion or advisory
letter has been revoked (nor, to the Company�s knowledge, has any such revocation been threatened. No such determination, opinion or advisory
letter has been revoked (nor, to Parent�s knowledge, has any such revocation been threatened). No act or omission has occurred that would
reasonably be expected to adversely affect the qualification of any such Qualified Plan or materially
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increase the cost to Parent and its Subsidiaries, together, of maintaining or participating in any such Qualified Plan. There has been no
termination, partial termination or discontinuance of contributions to any Qualified Plan that will result in material liability to Parent. Each
Parent Employee Plan which is required to satisfy Section 401(k)(3) or Section 401(m)(2) of the Code has been tested for compliance with, and
satisfies in all material respects the requirements of Section 401(k)(3) and Section 401(m)(2) of the Code, as the case may be, for each plan year
ending prior to the Closing Date for which testing is required to be completed. No �prohibited transaction,� within the meaning of Section 4975 of
the Code or Sections 406 and 407 of ERISA, which is not otherwise exempt under Section 408 of ERISA (or any exemption issued thereunder),
has occurred with respect to any Parent Employee Plan.

(g) Neither Parent nor any of its respective ERISA Affiliates has (i) ever maintained a Parent Employee Plan which was ever subject to
Section 412 of the Code or Title IV of ERISA or (ii) ever been obligated to contribute to a �multiemployer plan� (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3)
of ERISA). No Parent Employee Plan is funded by, associated with or related to a �voluntary employees� beneficiary association� within the
meaning of Section 501(c)(9) of the Code. Neither Parent nor any of its respective ERISA Affiliates has ever maintained or contributed to a
�multiple employer plan� as defined in ERISA or the Code, or a �funded welfare plan� within the meaning of Section 419 of the Code.

(h) To the extent permitted by applicable Law, each Parent Employee Plan (other than the Parent Stock Plans or an employment, severance,
change in control or similar agreement with an individual) is amendable and terminable unilaterally by Parent or one or more of its Subsidiaries
party thereto or covered thereby at any time without material liability to Parent as a result thereof, other than for benefits accrued as of the date
of such amendment or termination and routine administrative costs.

(i) Other than as required under Section 601 et seq. of ERISA, Section 4980B(f) of the Code or similar provisions of state Law, none of the
Parent Employee Plans promises or provides health or other welfare benefits (excluding routine conversion rights and normal claims for benefits
under the Parent�s group life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment insurance and disability plans and policies) or coverage to any
person following retirement or other termination of employment and neither Parent nor any of its respective ERISA Affiliates has ever
represented, promised or contracted to provide such benefits or coverage. For each Parent Employee Plan which provides benefits after
termination of employment (other than medical benefits required to be continued under Section 4980B of the Code, Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I
of ERISA or similar provisions of state law and normal claims for benefits under the Parent�s group life insurance, accidental death and
dismemberment insurance and disability plans and policies), the present value of benefits accrued under each such Parent Employee Plan are
fully funded, fully covered by insurance or reflected on the Parent Balance Sheet (or any quarterly or annual consolidated statements of
operations, statements of cash flows or statements of changes in shareholders� equity and balance sheets for any period ending on or between the
date of this Agreement and the Closing and the related notes thereto) in accordance with GAAP.

(j) There is no action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration, audit or investigation pending or, to Parent�s knowledge, threatened, with respect to any
Parent Employee Plan, other than claims for benefits in the ordinary course. No Parent Employee Plan is or within the last two calendar years
has been the subject of, or has received notice that it is the subject of, examination by a government agency or a participant in a government
sponsored amnesty, voluntary compliance or similar program.

(k) To Parent�s knowledge, each individual who has received compensation for the performance of services on behalf of Parent, any of its
Subsidiaries or their respective ERISA Affiliates has been properly classified as an employee or independent contractor in accordance with
applicable Law.

(l) Except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect, with respect to each
Employee Benefit Plan maintained by Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their ERISA Affiliates that covers employees outside the United
States, and the books and records thereof, (i) such plan is in compliance with all applicable Laws of each applicable jurisdiction, (ii) there is no
action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration, audit or investigation pending or, to Parent�s
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knowledge, threatened, with respect to such plan, other than claims for benefits in the ordinary course (iii) all liabilities with respect to such plan
are set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of Parent and its Subsidiaries or in the notes thereto in accordance with GAAP; and (iv) no such
plan is or within the last two calendar years has been the subject of, or has received notice that it is the subject of, an examination by a
government agency or a participant in a government sponsored amnesty, voluntary compliance or similar program that has given rise to or is
reasonably expected to give rise to any liability. Section 4.13(l) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule lists each country in which Parent or any of its
Subsidiaries or affiliates has operations and the number of employees in each such country.

(m) Section 4.13(m) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of: (i) all employment agreements with
employees of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries (other than at-will offer letters that are consistent with Parent�s general form and do not provide for
severance payments or benefits, notice periods for termination or change of control benefits); (ii) all employees or former employees of Parent
who have executed a non-competition agreement with Parent, the term of which has not yet expired; (iii) all severance agreements, programs
and policies of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries with or relating to its employees, excluding programs and policies required to be maintained by
Law; and (iv) all plans, programs, agreements and other arrangements of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to which payments (or
acceleration of benefits or vesting of options or lapse of repurchase rights) may be required upon, or may become payable directly or indirectly
as a result of or in connection with, the negotiation or consummation of the transactions contemplated by, or the execution of, this Agreement.
True, complete and correct copies of each of the foregoing agreements to which any employee of Parent is a party have been made available to
Company.

(n) All contributions required to be made with respect to any Parent Employee Plan on or prior to the Effective Time have been or will be timely
made or are or will be reflected on the Parent Balance Sheet (or any quarterly or annual consolidated statements of operations, statements of cash
flows or statements of changes in shareholders� equity and balance sheets for any period ending on or between the date of this Agreement and the
Closing and the related notes thereto) in accordance with GAAP.

(o) The negotiation or consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not, either alone or in combination with another
event, (i) entitle any current or former employee, officer or other service provider of Parent, or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective
ERISA Affiliates to severance pay, or any other payment from Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting,
cause a lapse of repurchase rights or increase the amount of compensation due any such employee, officer or other service provider. There is no
Parent Employee Plan or other contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that, individually or collectively, could give rise to the payment of any
amount that would not be deductible pursuant to Section 280G (determined without regard to Section 280G(b)(4) of the Code) as a result of the
Merger or 162(m) of the Code.

(p) Each �nonqualified deferred compensation plan� (as defined in Section 4098A(d)(1) of the Code) sponsored or maintained by Parent, any of its
Subsidiaries or any of their respective ERISA Affiliates has been operated since January 1, 2005 in good faith compliance with Section 409A of
the Code and Notice 2005-1 to the extent subject thereto. No such plan has been �materially modified� (within the meaning of IRS Notice 2005-1)
at any time after October 3, 2004.

Section 4.14 Labor Matters.

(a) Parent is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Laws respecting employment and employment practices, including,
without limitation, all Laws respecting terms and conditions of employment, health and safety, wages and hours, child labor, immigration,
employment discrimination, disability rights or benefits, equal opportunity, plant closures and layoffs, affirmative action, workers� compensation,
labor relations, employee leave issues and unemployment insurance.
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(b) There are no personnel manuals or handbooks applicable to employees of Parent, other than those set forth in Section 4.14(b) of the Parent
Disclosure Schedule, true and complete copies or written summaries of which have heretofore been provided to the Company.
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(c) There are no actions, suits, claims, grievances, investigations, or other proceedings pending or, to Parent�s knowledge, threatened, between
(i) Parent (and/or any of their current or former officers, directors, employees, or representatives, in their capacities as such) and (ii) any of their
respective current or former employees, consultants or independent contractors, or any applicant for employment or classes of the foregoing, or
any Governmental Entity, which actions, suits, claims, grievances, investigations, or other proceedings have or would reasonably be expected to
have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(d) Parent has good labor relations, and Parent and its employees, agents or representatives have not committed any unfair labor practice as
defined in the National Labor Relations Act. Parent is not a party to, bound by or subject to (and none of Parent�s properties or assets is bound by
or subject to) any labor agreement, collective bargaining agreement, work rules or practices, or any other labor-related agreements or
arrangements with any labor union, labor organization, trade union or works council. There are no labor agreements, collective bargaining
agreements, work rules or practices, or any other labor-related agreements or arrangements that pertain to any of the employees of Parent, and no
employees of Parent are represented by any labor union, labor organization, trade union or works council with respect to their employment with
Parent.

(e) To Parent�s knowledge, there are no current labor union organizing activities with respect to any employees of Parent, and no labor union,
labor organization, trade union, works council, or group of employees of Parent has made a pending demand for recognition or certification, and
there are no representation or certification proceedings or petitions seeking a representation proceeding presently pending or threatened in
writing to be brought or filed with the National Labor Relations Board or any other labor relations tribunal or authority. To the Parent�s
knowledge, there are no labor disputes, strikes, slowdowns, work stoppages, lockouts, or threats thereof, against or affecting Parent.

(f) No employee of Parent (i) to Parent�s knowledge, is in violation of any term of any patent disclosure agreement, non-competition agreement,
or any restrictive covenant to a former employer relating to the right of any such employee to be employed by Parent because of the nature of the
business conducted or presently proposed to be conducted by Parent or relating to the use of trade secrets or proprietary information of others, or
(ii) in the case of any key employee or group of key employees, has given notice as of the date of this Agreement to Parent that such employee
or any employee in a group of key employees intends to terminate his or her employment with Parent.

(g) Parent is and has been in compliance with all notice and other requirements under the WARN Act, and any similar foreign, state or local Law
relating to plant closings and layoffs. Parent is not currently engaged in any layoffs or employment terminations sufficient in number to trigger
application of the WARN Act or any similar state, local or foreign Law. Section 4.14(g) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule contains a true and
complete list of the names and the sites of employment or facilities of those individuals who suffered an �employment loss� (as defined in the
WARN Act) at any site of employment or facility of Parent during the 90-day period prior to the date of this Agreement. Section 4.14(g) of the
Parent Disclosure Schedule shall be updated immediately prior to the Closing with respect to the 90-day period prior to the Closing.

(h) The execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in any breach or
other violation of any collective bargaining agreement, employment agreement, consulting agreement or any other labor-related agreement to
which Parent is a party.

Section 4.15 Properties; Encumbrances.

(a) Parent has good and valid title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all the properties and assets which it purports to own or lease (real, tangible,
personal and mixed), including all the properties and assets reflected in the Parent Balance Sheet (except for personal property sold since the
date of the Parent Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice). All properties and assets reflected in
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the Parent Balance Sheet are free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens reflected on the Parent Balance Sheet and Liens for current taxes not
yet due and other Liens that do not materially impair the use or operation of the property or assets subject thereto.

(b) Section 4.15 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all real property owned, leased, subleased or
licensed by Parent and the location of such premises. All material real property leases, licenses or other occupancy agreements to which Parent is
a party (collectively, the �Parent Real Property Leases�) are either filed as exhibits to the Parent SEC Reports or complete copies thereof have
been delivered to or made available to the Company. Section 4.15 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule lists all Parent Real Property Leases other
than the Parent Real Property Leases which are listed as an exhibit to Parent�s most recent annual report on Form 10-K or a subsequent quarterly
report on Form 10-Q.

(c) As of the date of this Agreement, (i) all Parent Real Property Leases are in full force and effect (except as such enforceability may be subject
to Laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and rules of Law governing specific performance,
injunctive relief or other equitable remedies), (ii) there is no existing material default by Parent under any of the Parent Real Property Leases,
except such defaults as have been waived in writing, (iii) no event has occurred with respect to Parent which, with notice or lapse of time or
both, would constitute a default of any of the Parent Real Property Leases, and (iv) to the Parent�s knowledge, there are no defaults of any
material obligations of any party other than Parent under any Parent Real Property Lease.

Section 4.16 Taxes.

(a) Parent and its Subsidiaries have timely filed with the appropriate taxing authorities all Tax Returns required to be filed by them and all such
Tax Returns are, in all material respects, true, correct and complete in accordance with applicable law. All Taxes required to be paid by Parent
(whether or now shown to be due on such Tax Returns) have been timely paid. There are no Liens relating to or attributable to Taxes on any
assets of Parent and its Subsidiaries other than Liens relating to Taxes not yet due and payable. Parent and its Subsidiaries have not granted any
outstanding waiver of any statute of limitations with respect to, or any outstanding extension of a period for the assessment of, any Tax. The
accruals and reserves for Taxes (exclusive of any accruals for �deferred taxes� or similar items that reflect timing differences between tax and
financial accounting principles) reflected in the Parent Balance Sheet are adequate to cover all Taxes accruable through the date thereof
(including Taxes being contested) in accordance with GAAP. All liabilities for Taxes attributable to the period commencing on the date
following the date of the Parent Balance Sheet were incurred in the ordinary course of business and are consistent in type and amount with Taxes
attributable to similar prior periods.

(b) Parent has timely paid or withheld with respect to its employees all federal and state income Taxes, Federal Insurance Contribution Act,
Federal Unemployment Tax and other Taxes required to be paid or withheld (and have timely paid over any withheld amounts to the appropriate
Taxing authority). Parent and its Subsidiaries have not received any notice of any Tax deficiency outstanding, proposed or assessed against
Parent or its Subsidiaries. No audit or other examination of any Tax Return of Parent or its Subsidiaries are presently in progress, and Parent and
its Subsidiaries have not received any written notice of any audit examination, deficiency, refund litigation, proposed adjustment or matter in
controversy with respect to any Tax Return of Parent or its Subsidiaries.

(c) Parent and its Subsidiaries is not a party to or bound by any Tax indemnity, Tax sharing or Tax allocation agreement nor does Parent or any
Parent Subsidiary owe any amount under any such agreement. Except for the group of which Parent and its Subsidiaries are now currently
members, Parent has never been a member of an affiliated group of corporations within the meaning of Section 1504 of the Code. Except with
respect to the group referred to in the preceding sentence, Parent and its Subsidiaries are not liable for the Taxes of any person under Treasury
Regulation 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local or foreign Law, and including any arrangement for group relief within a jurisdiction
or similar arrangement) as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise. Parent and its Subsidiaries have never been a party to any joint
venture, partnership or other agreement that could be treated as a partnership for Tax purposes.
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(d) To the extent requested by the Company, Parent and its Subsidiaries have made available to the Company complete and correct copies of all
Tax Returns, examination reports and statements of deficiencies assessed against or agreed to by Parent and its Subsidiaries with respect to all
taxable years for which the statutes of limitation have not expired.

(e) Parent has not agreed nor is it required to make any material adjustment under Section 481 of the Code by reason of a change in accounting
method or otherwise prior to the Effective Time.

(f) Parent is not, and has never been, a United States real property holding corporation (as defined in Section 897(c)(2) of the Code) during the
applicable period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

(g) Parent has not constituted either a �distributing corporation� or a �controlled corporation� (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1)(A) of the
Code) in a distribution of stock intended to qualify for tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code (A) in the two years prior to the date of
this Agreement or (B) in a distribution which could otherwise constitute part of a �plan� or �series of related transactions� (within the meaning of
Section 355(e) of the Code) in connection with the Merger.

(h) Parent has not engaged in, or has any commitment to engage in, a �reportable transaction� as set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.6011-4(b) or any
transaction that is the same as or substantially similar to one of the types of transactions that the Internal Revenue Service has determined to be a
tax avoidance transaction and identified by notice, regulation, or other form of published guidance as a �reportable transaction,� as set forth in
Treas. Reg. § 1.6011-4(b)(2).

Section 4.17 Environmental Matters.

(a) Parent is in compliance in all material respects with federal, state, local and foreign Laws and regulations relating to Materials of
Environmental Concern, or otherwise relating to Environmental Laws, and including, but not limited to, compliance with any Parent Permits or
other governmental authorizations or the terms and conditions thereof and compliance with any Laws respecting the sale, distribution or labeling
of products pursuant to Environmental Laws.

(b) Parent has not received any written notice, whether from a governmental authority or otherwise, alleging any violation of or noncompliance
with any Environmental Laws by Parent for which it is responsible.

(c) There is no pending or threatened claim, action, investigation or notice by any person or entity alleging potential liability on the part of
Parent or any of its Subsidiaries for investigatory, cleanup or governmental response costs, or natural resources or property damages, or personal
injuries, attorney�s fees or penalties relating to (i) the presence, or release into the environment, of any Materials of Environmental Concern at
any location owned or operated by Parent, now or in the past, or otherwise caused by Parent or by the actions of any other party for which Parent
would be liable by contract or pursuant to Environmental Laws, or (ii) any violation, or alleged violation, of any Environmental Law
(collectively, �Parent Environmental Claims�), except where such Parent Environmental Claims would not have a Parent Material Adverse Effect
or otherwise require disclosure in the Parent SEC Reports.
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(d) There are no past or present facts or circumstances that could reasonably be expected to form the basis of any Parent Environmental Claim
against Parent or against any person or entity whose liability for any Parent Environmental Claim Parent has retained or assumed either
contractually or by operation of Law, except where such Parent Environmental Claim, if made, would not have a Parent Material Adverse Effect
or otherwise require disclosure in the Parent SEC Reports. Parent has made available to the Company all material third party, non privileged
assessments, reports, data, results of investigations or audits that is in the possession of Parent regarding environmental matters pertaining to the
environmental condition of the business of Parent, or the compliance (or noncompliance) by Parent with any Environmental Laws.
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Section 4.18 Intellectual Property.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, the term �Parent Registered Intellectual Property� means all Registered Intellectual Property owned by, or
filed on behalf of or in the name of, Parent or any of its Subsidiaries.

(b) Section 4.18(b) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth as of the date hereof a true, complete and correct list of all Parent Registered
Intellectual Property. All of the Parent Registered Intellectual Property is owned solely by Parent and no Registered Intellectual Property that
ever was Parent Registered Intellectual Property has been disposed of, transferred or assigned by Parent in the two years preceding the date
hereof.

(c) The Parent Registered Intellectual Property, is subsisting, and has not expired or been cancelled, or abandoned.

(d) There is no pending or, to Parent�s knowledge, threatened, and at no time within the three years prior to the date of this Agreement has there
been pending any, material suit, arbitration or other adversarial proceeding before any court, government agency or arbitral tribunal or in any
jurisdiction alleging that any activities or conduct of Parent�s business infringes or will infringe upon, violate or constitute the unauthorized use
of the Intellectual Property of any third party or challenging the ownership, validity, enforceability or registrability of any Intellectual Property
owned by Parent.

(e) Parent is not a party to any settlements, covenants not to sue, consents, decrees, stipulations, judgments, or orders resulting from suits,
actions or similar legal proceedings which (i) restrict Parent�s rights to use any Intellectual Property owned by and material to the business of the
Parent as currently conducted, (ii) restrict the conduct of the business of Parent as currently conducted in order to accommodate any third party�s
Intellectual Property rights, or (iii) permit third parties to use any Intellectual Property owned by and used in the business of Parent as currently
conducted.

(f) Parent has taken reasonable steps that are required or necessary to protect the Company�s rights in confidential information and trade secrets
owned by Parent that are material to the business of Parent as currently conducted.

(g) To Parent�s knowledge, no third party is misappropriating, infringing, diluting or violating any Intellectual Property owned by Parent that is
material to the business of Parent as currently conducted, and no Intellectual Property misappropriation, infringement dilution or violation suits,
arbitrations or other adversarial proceedings have been brought before any court, government agency or arbitral tribunal against any third party
by Parent which remain unresolved.

(h) Parent does not have any obligation to pay any third party any royalties or other fees in excess of $100,000 in the aggregate in calendar year
2005 to date or any annual period thereafter for the use of Intellectual Property and no obligation to pay such royalties or other fees in excess of
$250,000 in the aggregate will result from the execution and delivery by Parent of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.
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(i) Parent is not in violation of any material license, sublicense, agreement or instrument to which Parent is party or otherwise bound under
which Parent derives rights to Intellectual Property that is material to Parent�s business as currently conducted, nor will the consummation by
Parent of the transactions contemplated hereby result in any loss or impairment of ownership by Parent of, or the right of any of them to use, any
Intellectual Property that is material to the business of Parent as currently conducted, nor, to Parent�s knowledge, require the consent of any
Governmental Entity or third party with respect to any such Intellectual Property.

(j) In the past two years, the Parent has not received notice from any Person claiming that operation of the business of the Parent or any act or
Product of Parent infringes or misappropriates any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person or constitutes unfair competition or trade practices
under the laws of any jurisdiction (nor does the Parent have knowledge of any basis therefor).
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Section 4.19 Insurance. All fire and casualty, general liability, business interruption, product liability, sprinkler and water damage insurance
policies and other forms of insurance maintained by Parent have been made available to the Company. Each such policy is in full force and
effect and all premiums due thereon have been paid in full. None of such policies shall terminate or lapse (or be otherwise adversely affect) by
reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.20 Interested Party Transactions. Since December 31, 2003, no event has occurred that would be required to be reported as a Certain
Relationship or Related Transaction pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 57.

Section 4.21 Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker (other than SG Cowen Securities Corporation (�SG Cowen�) whose brokerage,
finder�s or other fee will be paid by Parent) is entitled to any brokerage, finder�s or other fee or commission in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries. Parent has furnished to the
Company a complete and correct copy of all agreements between Parent and SG Cowen pursuant to which SG Cowen would be entitled to any
such payment.

Section 4.22 Opinion of Financial Advisor of Parent. The financial advisor of Parent, SG Cowen, has delivered to Parent an opinion dated on the
date of this Agreement to the effect that as of such date, the Merger Consideration is fair, from a financial point of view, to Parent. Parent has
provided a true, complete and correct copy of such opinion to the Company. As of the date hereof, such opinion has not been withdrawn,
revoked or modified.

Section 4.23 Anti-Takeover Statute Not Applicable. No Takeover Statute is applicable to the Merger or any of the other transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

ARTICLE V

INTERIM CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

Section 5.1 Affirmative Covenants. Except as described in Section 5.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule in the case of the Company, or
Section 5.1 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule in the case of Parent, or to the extent the other party hereto shall otherwise consent in writing
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), during the period from the date of this Agreement and continuing
until the earlier of the termination of this Agreement or the Effective Time, each party hereto shall (i) conduct its business only in, and shall not
take any action except in, the ordinary course and in a manner that is consistent with past practices and in compliance in all material respects
with all applicable Laws, and (ii) use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve intact its business organization, keep available the services of
its current officers, employees and consultants, and preserve its present relationships with customers, suppliers, distributors and other persons
with which it has significant business relations.

Section 5.2 Restrictive Covenants on Company. Except as described in Section 5.2 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or to the extent the
Parent hereto shall otherwise consent in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), during the period
from the date of this Agreement and continuing until the earlier of the termination of this Agreement or the Effective Time, the Company shall
not:
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(a) amend or otherwise change its certificate of incorporation, bylaws or other equivalent organizational documents;

(b) issue, sell, transfer, pledge, redeem, accelerate rights under, dispose of or encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, transfer, pledge,
redemption, acceleration of rights under, disposition or encumbrance of, any shares of its capital stock of any class, or any options, warrants,
convertible securities or other rights of
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any kind to acquire any shares of Company Capital Stock (or cash based on the value or appreciation in value of its capital stock), or any other
ownership interest in Company, other than (i) the issuance of Company Common Stock upon the exercise of outstanding stock options as of the
date hereof or granted thereafter pursuant to the foregoing subsection (i) and (ii) the acceleration of vesting of Canceled Options in accordance
with the Company Stock Plan;

(c) sell, pledge, mortgage, dispose, lease, license or encumber any of its properties or assets (whether tangible or intangible), or suffer to exist
any Lien thereupon other than (A) sales of assets, excluding equipment, not to exceed, in the aggregate (i) $25,000 if prior to March 31, 2006
and (ii) $50,000 if after March 31, 2006; (B) sales, leases or licenses of Company Products in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice and (C) sale of used Company Products or third party products that the Company has purchased and refurbished (the �Resale
Equipment�) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(d) (A) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property or any combination thereof) in
respect of any of its capital stock, except that a direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company (or a Subsidiary of the Company)
may declare and pay a dividend to its parent, (B) split, combine or reclassify any of its capital stock or issue or authorize or propose the issuance
of any other securities in respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for shares of its capital stock, or (C) purchase, repurchase, redeem or otherwise
acquire, directly or indirectly, any of its securities, or any option, warrant or right to acquire any such securities, or propose to do any of the
foregoing, other than pursuant to the exercise of repurchase rights with respect to unvested shares held by individuals terminating employment
or service;

(e) acquire (by merger, consolidation or acquisition of stock or assets or otherwise) any corporation, partnership or other business organization
or division thereof or any equity interest therein;

(f) incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or issue any debt securities or assume, guarantee or endorse or otherwise as an accommodation
become responsible for (whether directly, contingently or otherwise), the obligations of any person for borrowed money, or make any loans or
advances or capital contributions to or investments in any other person, except in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past
practice;

(g) (A) amend any Company Material Contract in any material respect or enter into any agreement that would be deemed to be a Company
Material Contract other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, (B) terminate, cancel or waive any right under
any Company Material Contract other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices, or (C) enter into, amend or terminate
any lease relating to real property;

(h) (A) adopt or implement any shareholder rights plan or similar arrangement, or (B) take any action to cause any Takeover Statute to apply (or
fail to take any action to prevent any Takeover Statute from applying) to this Agreement, the Company Voting Agreements or the transactions
contemplated hereby;

(i) make or authorize any capital expenditures or purchase of fixed assets, other than in the ordinary course of business and in any event in an
aggregate of not more than $500,000 (and no single item shall exceed $50,000) other than purchases of Resale Equipment or demonstration
equipment in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
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(j) modify its standard warranty terms for its products or amend or modify any product warranties in effect as of the date of this Agreement in
any manner that is materially adverse to it, other than extensions of warranties in the ordinary course of business;

(k) (A) increase (or agree to increase) the compensation payable or to become payable or accelerate (or agreement to accelerate) the vesting or
any benefits to its directors, officers or employees, except for increases in compensation and stock option grants to be made to officers and
employees based on annual employment reviews pursuant to a budget provided to the Parent prior to the date hereof and the grant of an
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option for 50,000 shares of Company Common Stock to each nonemployee director of the Company, (B) hire or promote any officer or
director-level employee or appoint any director, (C) make any loan, advance or capital contribution (other than loans or advances of reasonable
travel and relocation expenses), or grant any severance or termination pay to any current or former officers, directors, consultants or employees,
or enter into or amend any Company Employee Plan or other plan, contract, agreement or arrangement that would be a Company Employee
Plan; (D) establish, adopt, enter into or amend any collective bargaining agreement or other plan, agreement, trust, fund, policy or arrangement
for the benefit of any of its current or former directors, officers or employees, (E) pay any discretionary bonuses to any of its officers, or
(F) materially change any actuarial assumption or other assumption used to calculate funding obligations with respect to any pension or
retirement plan, or change the manner in which contributions to any such plan are made or the basis on which such contributions are determined,
except, in each case, as may be required by applicable Law or contractual commitments which are existing as of the date of this Agreement and
listed in Section 3.13 of the Company Disclosure Schedule;

(l) take any action to change accounting policies or procedures (including procedures with respect to revenue recognition, payments of accounts
payable and collection of accounts receivable), change any assumption underlying, or method of calculating, any bad debt contingency or other
reserve, except in each case as required under GAAP or applicable Law;

(m) make any Tax election inconsistent with past practice, change any Tax election already made, settle or compromise any material federal,
state, local or foreign Tax liability or agree to an extension of a statute of limitations, fail to file any Tax Return when due (or, alternatively, fail
to file for available extensions) or fail to cause such Tax Returns when filed to be complete and accurate; or fail to pay any material Taxes when
due;

(n) pay, discharge or satisfy any claims, liabilities or obligations (absolute, accrued, asserted or unasserted, contingent or otherwise), other than
the payment, discharge or satisfaction in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practices of liabilities reflected or reserved
against in the Company Balance Sheet or incurred in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(o) fail to pay accounts payable and other obligations other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(p) accelerate the collection of receivables or modify the payment terms of any receivables other than in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practices;

(q) sell, securitize, factor or otherwise transfer any accounts receivable other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice;

(r) adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, merger, consolidation, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization (other
than as expressly provided in this Agreement);

(s) (A) at any time within the 90-day period before the Effective Time, without complying fully with the notice and other requirements of the
WARN Act, effectuate (1) a �plant closing� (as defined in the WARN Act) affecting any single site of employment or one or more facilities or
operating units within any single site of employment of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (2) a �mass layoff� (as defined in the WARN
Act) at any single site of employment or one or more facilities or operating units within any single site of employment of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries; or (B) terminate or lay off employees in such numbers as to give rise to liability under any applicable Laws respecting the
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payment of severance pay, separation pay, termination pay, pay in lieu of notice of termination, redundancy pay, or the payment of any other
compensation, premium or penalty upon termination of employment, reduction of hours, or temporary or permanent layoffs (it being understood
and hereby agreed that for purposes of the WARN Act and this Agreement, the Effective Time is and shall be the same as the �effective date�
within the meaning of the WARN Act);

(t) take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, prevent or materially impair or delay its ability to consummate the
transaction contemplated by the Agreement;
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(u) take any action which would make any of its representations or warranties contained in this Agreement untrue or incorrect, or prevent it from
performing or cause it not to perform its covenants hereunder, in each case, such that the conditions set forth in Section 7.2 would not be
satisfied; or

(v) authorize, take, or agree in writing or otherwise to take, any of the actions described in Section 5.2(a) through (u) above, inclusive.

Section 5.3 Restrictive Covenants on Parent. Except as described in Section 5.3 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule or to the extent the Company
shall otherwise consent in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), during the period from the date of
this Agreement and continuing until the earlier of the termination of this Agreement or the Effective Time, the Parent shall not:

(a) amend or otherwise change its articles of incorporation or bylaws; except as required by this Agreement;

(b) issue, sell, transfer, pledge, redeem, accelerate rights under, dispose of or encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, transfer, pledge,
redemption, acceleration of rights under, disposition or encumbrances of, any shares of its capital stock of any class or any options, warrants,
convertible securities or other rights of any kind to acquire any shares of Parent�s capital stock, or any other ownership interest in Company,
other than (i) grants of stock options for the purchase of up to an aggregate of 400,000 shares of Parent Common Stock to employees or pursuant
to the Parent ESPP, (ii) in connection with acquisitions of up to $25 million of aggregate consideration or (iii) convertible debt offerings or
public offerings of Parent Common Stock with not more than $25 million of aggregate proceeds;

(c) change the size of the Parent Board of Directors, except in accordance with this Agreement;

(d) adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization (other than as expressly
provided in this Agreement);

(e) take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, prevent or materially impair or delay its ability to consummate the
transaction contemplated by this Agreement;

(f) take any action which would make any of its representations or warranties contained in this Agreement untrue or incorrect, or prevent it from
performing or cause it not to perform its covenants hereunder, in each case, such that the conditions set forth in Section 7.3 would not be
satisfied; or

(g) authorize, take, or agree in writing, or otherwise to take any of the actions described in Section 5.3(a) through (f) above, inclusive.

ARTICLE VI
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ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

Section 6.1 Access to Information; Notice of Certain Matters.

(a) Subject to the terms of this Section 6.1, each of Parent and the Company shall (and shall cause its Subsidiaries and its and their respective
directors, officers, employees, auditors, agents and other representatives to) afford to the other party, and its officers, employees, financial
advisors, legal counsel, accountants, consultants and other representatives reasonable access during normal business hours to all of its books and
records, properties, plants and personnel (including for the purpose of performing such environmental tests and investigations as the Parent or
Company deem necessary); provided, however, that any such access shall be conducted under the supervision of personnel of the party providing
such access and in a manner that does not interfere with the normal operations of the party providing such access.

(b) The Company shall give prompt notice to Parent, and Parent shall give prompt notice to the Company, upon any director or officer of the
Company or Parent (as applicable) becoming aware of (i) any governmental complaints, investigations or hearings (or communications
indicating that the same may be
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contemplated), or the institution or the threat of significant litigation involving such party or any of its Subsidiaries, and will keep the other party
fully informed of such events and (ii) the occurrence, or failure to occur, of any event, that would be reasonably likely to cause any of the
conditions set forth in Article VII not to be satisfied.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, nothing in this Section 6.1 shall require the Company or Parent to disclose any
information that, in its sole and absolute discretion, (i) it is not legally permitted to disclose or the disclosure of which would contravene any
applicable Law or binding order (including any Antitrust Law), (ii) the disclosure of which would jeopardize any attorney-client or other legal
privilege, or (iii) the disclosure of which would conflict with, violate or cause a default under any existing agreement to which it is a party.

(d) No information received pursuant to an investigation made under this Section 6.1 shall be deemed to (i) qualify, modify, amend or otherwise
affect any representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements of the parties set forth in this Agreement or any certificate or other
instrument delivered to other party in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) amend or otherwise supplement the information
set forth in the Company Disclosure Schedule or the Parent Disclosure Schedule, as applicable, (iii) limit or restrict the remedies available to the
parties under applicable Law arising out of a breach of this Agreement, or (iv) limit or restrict the ability of either party to invoke or rely on the
conditions to the obligations of the parties to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby set forth in Article VII hereof.

(e) Each of Parent and the Company shall (and shall cause its directors, officers, employees, auditors, agents and other representatives to) hold in
confidence all non-public information acquired from the other party or the other party�s representatives as a result of any investigation made
under this Section 6.1 in accordance with the terms of the letter agreement, dated as of December 5, 2005, between Parent and the Company (the
�Confidentiality Agreement�).

Section 6.2 No Solicitation.

(a) The Company shall cause each of its Subsidiaries, affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives (including any
investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other representative retained by it) to (i) immediately cease any discussions or
negotiations with any other parties that may be ongoing with respect to the possibility or consideration of any Acquisition Proposal (as defined
below) and (ii) not release any third party from, or waive any provisions of, any confidentiality or standstill agreement to which it or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. Subject to the terms of this Section 6.2, the Company shall not, nor shall it
authorize or permit any of its Subsidiaries, directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives (including any investment banker, financial
advisor, attorney, accountant or other representative retained by it) to, directly or indirectly through another person, (i) solicit, initiate, facilitate
or encourage (including by way of furnishing information or assistance), or take any other action designed to solicit, initiate, facilitate or
encourage any inquiries with respect to or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or is reasonably likely to lead to, an Acquisition Proposal
(except to disclose the existence of this provision), (ii) participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding an Acquisition Proposal (except
to disclose the existence of this provision), or (iii) enter into or execute any letter of intent, memorandum of understanding, agreement in
principle, merger agreement or similar agreement constituting or relating to an Acquisition Proposal. Any violation of the foregoing restrictions
by any representative of the Company, whether or not such representative is so authorized and whether or not such representative is purporting
to act on behalf of the Company or otherwise, shall be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement by the Company.

(b) The Company shall notify the Parent promptly (and in any event within 24 hours) after receipt of any Acquisition Proposal, or any request
for nonpublic information relating to such party by any person that informs such party that it is considering making, or has made, an Acquisition
Proposal, or any inquiry from any person seeking to have discussions or negotiations with the Company relating to a possible Acquisition
Proposal. Such notice shall be made orally and confirmed in writing, and shall indicate the identity of the
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person making the Acquisition Proposal, inquiry or request and the material terms and conditions of any inquiries, proposals or offers (including
a copy thereof if in writing and any related documentation or correspondence).

(c) Nothing set forth in this Section 6.2 shall (i) permit the Company to terminate this Agreement, (ii) affect any other obligation of the parties
under this Agreement, (iii) limit the Company�s obligation to request the Requisite Company Stockholder Approval from all holders of Company
Capital Stock, (iv) relieve the Company of its obligation to submit to a vote of its stockholders the Requisite Company Stockholder Approval at
the Company Stockholder Meeting, or (v) permit the Company to submit for a vote of its stockholders at or prior to the Effective Time any
Acquisition Proposal other than the Company Voting Proposal.

Section 6.3 Board Recommendations. Subject to the terms of this Section 6.3, the Company Board (or any committee thereof) shall not:

(a) withdraw or modify, or propose publicly to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to the other party, the approval or recommendation by
the Company Board or any such committee of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby (any such withdrawal, amendment,
modification or proposal, a �Change of Recommendation�); or

(b) adopt, approve or recommend to its stockholders that they accept, or propose publicly to adopt, approve or recommend, any Acquisition
Proposal.

Section 6.4 Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus; Registration Statement.

(a) As promptly as practicable after execution of this Agreement, Parent and the Company shall cooperate with each other regarding, and shall
prepare and file with the SEC, the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus (as amended or supplemented, the �Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus�) to be
sent to the stockholders of the Company in connection with the Company Stockholder Meeting and to the shareholders of Parent in connection
with the Parent Shareholders Meeting, and Parent shall prepare and file with the SEC the Registration Statement (in which the Joint Proxy
Statement/Prospectus will be included). The Company and Parent shall use reasonable best efforts to cause the Registration Statement to become
effective as soon as practicable thereafter.

(b) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each of the Company and Parent shall cause its respective representatives to fully cooperate
with the other parties and its respective representatives in the preparation of the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and the Registration
Statement, and shall, upon request, furnish the other parties with all information concerning it and its Affiliates as the other may deem
reasonably necessary or advisable in connection with the preparation of the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and the Registration Statement.
Parent shall use reasonable efforts to take all actions required under any applicable federal or state securities or Blue Sky Laws in connection
with the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant to the Merger. As promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement
becomes effective, Parent and the Company shall cause the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus to be mailed to their respective shareholders.

(c) The information supplied or to be supplied by either Parent or the Company for inclusion in the Registration Statement shall not at the time
the Registration Statement is filed with the SEC or declared effective by the SEC contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading. The information supplied or to be supplied by either party for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the
Proxy Statement/ Prospectus/Information Statement to be sent to the shareholders of such party in connection with the Company Stockholder

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 171



Meeting or the Parent Shareholders Meeting, as the case may be, or to be included or supplied by or on behalf of Parent or the Company, as the
case may be, for inclusion in any filing pursuant to Rule 165 and Rule 425 under the Securities Act or Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act
(each, a �Regulation M-A Filing�) shall
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not, on the date the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/ Information Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to
shareholders of Parent or the stockholders of the Company, as the case may be, or at the time any Regulation M-A Filing is filed with the SEC or
as of the Effective Time, contain any statement which, at such time and in light of the circumstances under which it shall be made, is false or
misleading with respect to any material fact, or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein not false or
misleading; or omit to state any material fact necessary to correct any statement in any earlier communication with respect to the solicitation of
proxies for the Merger Shareholders Actions which has become false or misleading. The Proxy Statement/Prospectus shall comply in all material
respects as to form and substance with the requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder.

(d) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, prior to the Effective Time (i) the Company and Parent shall notify each other as promptly
as practicable upon becoming aware of any event or circumstance which should be described in an amendment of, or supplement to, the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus/ Information Statement or the Registration Statement, and (ii) Parent shall notify the Company as promptly as practicable
after the receipt by Parent of any written or oral comments of the SEC on, or of any written or oral request by the SEC for amendments or
supplements to, the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the Registration Statement, and shall promptly supply the Company with copies of all
correspondence between Parent or any of its Representatives and the SEC with respect to any of the foregoing filings.

(e) The Company and Parent shall make any necessary filing with respect to the Merger under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the
rules and regulations thereunder.

(f) If applicable, the Company shall also submit to the Company Stockholders for approval in the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus, by such
number of shares of Company Capital Stock as is required by the terms of Section 280G(b)(5)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, any payments
and/or benefits that may separately or in the aggregate, constitute �parachute payments,� within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Internal
Revenue Code (�Section 280G Payments�) (which initial determination shall be made by the Company and shall be subject to review and approval
by Parent), such that such Section 280G Payments shall not be deemed to be Section 280G Payments, and prior to the Closing, the Company
shall deliver to Parent certification that (i) a Company stockholder vote was solicited in conformance with Section 280G of the Internal Revenue
Code and the requisite stockholder approval was obtained with respect to any Section 280G Payments that were subject to the Company
stockholder vote or (ii) the Company stockholder approval of Section 280G Payments was not obtained and as a consequence, any such
payments and/or benefits will not be made or provided to the extent they would cause any amounts to constitute Section 280G Payments,
pursuant to the waivers of those payments and/or benefits duly executed by the affected individuals prior to the Company stockholder vote.

Section 6.5 Merger Shareholders Actions.

(a) The Company, acting through its Board of Directors, shall take all actions in accordance with applicable Law, the Company Charter and the
Company Bylaws to promptly and duly call, give notice of, convene and hold as promptly as practicable, and in any event within forty-five
(45) days after the declaration of effectiveness of the Registration Statement, the Company Stockholder Meeting for the purpose of considering
and approving the Company Voting Proposal and the matters set forth in Section 6.4(f). Parent, acting through its Board of Directors, shall take
all actions in accordance with applicable Law, the Parent Charter, the Parent Bylaws and the rules of Nasdaq, to promptly and duly call, give
notice of, convene and hold as promptly as practicable, and in any event within forty-five (45) days after the declaration of effectiveness of the
Registration Statement, the Parent Shareholder Meeting for the purpose of considering and voting upon the approval of the Parent Voting
Proposal.

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, (i) in the case of the Company, the Company Board shall recommend approval of the
Company Voting Proposal and the matters set forth in Section 6.4(f) by the stockholders of the Company at the Company Stockholders Meeting
and include such
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recommendation in the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and (ii) in the case of Parent, the Parent Board shall recommend approval of the Parent
Voting Proposal by the shareholders of Parent at the Parent Shareholders Meeting and include such recommendation in the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus/ Information Statement. Each of the Company and Parent shall use its reasonable best efforts to solicit from its
shareholders actions by written consent or proxies, as the case may be, in favor of the Company Voting Proposal and the matters set forth in
Section 6.4(f) or the Parent Voting Proposal, respectively, and to secure the Requisite Company Stockholder Approval and the Requisite Parent
Shareholder Approval, respectively.

(c) The Company shall submit the Company Voting Proposal and the matters set forth in Section 6.4(f) to its stockholders at the Company
Stockholder Meeting for the purpose of acting upon such proposal whether or not any actual, potential or purported Acquisition Proposal has
been commenced, disclosed, announced or submitted to the Company. Each of the Company and Parent shall use reasonable best efforts to
ensure that all actions by written consents or proxies, as the case may be, solicited in connection with its Merger Shareholders Actions are
solicited, in compliance with, in the case of the Company, the DGCL, the Company Charter and the Company Bylaws and, in the case of Parent,
the rules of the Nasdaq, the CCC, the Parent Charter and the Parent Bylaws, and all other applicable legal requirements. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, each of the Company or Parent, after consultation with the other, may adjourn or postpone
the Company Stockholder Meeting or the Parent Shareholder Meeting, as the case may be, to the extent necessary to ensure that any required
supplement or amendment to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus is provided to its shareholders or, if as of the time for which the Company
Stockholder Meeting or the Parent Shareholder Meeting, as the case may be, is originally scheduled (as set forth in the Joint Proxy
Statement/Prospectus), there are insufficient shares of, in the case of the Company, Company Capital Stock and, in the case of Parent, Parent
Common Stock, represented (either in person or by proxy) to constitute a quorum necessary to take the action set forth in the Company
Stockholder Meeting or conduct the business of the Parent Shareholder Meeting, as the case may be.

(d) Following the Merger Shareholders Actions and at or prior to the Closing, each of the Company and Parent shall deliver to the Corporate
Secretary of the other party a certificate setting forth the voting results from the respective Merger Shareholders Actions.

Section 6.6 Reasonable Best Efforts to Complete.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each of Parent and the Company shall cooperate fully with the other and use its
reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable to
consummate and make effective, in the most expeditious manner possible, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby, including
by (i) obtaining (and cooperating with the other in obtaining) any clearance, consent, authorization, order or approval of, or any exemption by,
any Governmental Entity required to be obtained or made by Parent or the Company in connection with the Merger, and making any and all
registrations and filings that may be necessary or advisable to obtain the approval or waiver from, or to avoid an action or proceeding by, any
Governmental Entity, including all filings required by the HSR Act and any other applicable Antitrust Laws, (ii) obtaining all necessary
consents, waivers and approvals under any of the Parent Material Contracts, Company Material Contracts and Company Real Property Leases in
connection with the Merger, (iii) authorizing for listing on the Nasdaq, upon official notice of issuance, the shares of Parent Common Stock to
be issued in the Merger, (iv) reserving for issuance the shares of Parent Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all Assumed Options,
(v) defending any Lawsuit or other proceeding, whether brought by a Governmental Entity or other third party, seeking to challenge this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, including by seeking to have lifted or rescinded any injunction or restraining order or other
order adversely affecting the ability of the parties to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and (vi) executing any certificates,
instruments or other documents that are necessary to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated hereby and to fully carry out
the purposes and intent of this Agreement.
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(b) Each of the Company and Parent shall keep the other reasonably informed of the status of their respective efforts to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby, including by (i) promptly notifying the other of, and if in writing, furnishing the other with copies of (or, in
the case of material oral communications, advising the other orally of) any communications from or with any Governmental Entity (whether
domestic, foreign or supranational) with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) permitting the other to review and discuss in
advance, and consider in good faith the views of the other in connection with, any proposed written (or any material proposed oral)
communication with any such Governmental Entity, (iii) not participating in any meeting with any such Governmental Entity unless it consults
with the other in advance and to the extent permitted by such Governmental Entity gives the other the opportunity to attend and participate
thereat, (iv) furnishing the other with copies of all correspondence, filings and communications between it and any such Governmental Entity
with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, and (v) furnishing the other with such necessary information and
reasonable assistance as each of them may reasonably request in connection with its preparation of necessary filings or submissions of
information to any such Governmental Entity. Each of the Company and Parent may, as each deems advisable and necessary, reasonably
designate any competitively sensitive material provided to the other under this Section 6.6 as outside �counsel only� and, in such event, such
material and the information contained therein shall be given only to the outside legal counsel of the recipient and shall not be disclosed by such
counsel to non-legal directors, officers, employees or other advisors or representatives of the recipient unless express permission is obtained in
advance from the source of the materials or its legal counsel.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section 6.6 or elsewhere in this Agreement, neither Parent nor any of its affiliates
shall be required to (i) sell or dispose of or hold separately (through a trust or otherwise) any assets or businesses or interests in any assets or
businesses of Parent, the Company or their respective affiliates or make any other change in any portion of the businesses of the Company or
Parent or incur any other limitation on the conduct of the businesses of the Company or Parent to obtain such clearances, consents,
authorizations, orders, approvals and exemptions or agree to do, or submit to orders providing for, any of the foregoing, in each case whether
before or after the Effective Time, or (ii) if any governmental body that has the authority to enforce any Antitrust Law seeks, or authorizes its
staff to seek, a preliminary injunction or restraining order to enjoin consummation of the Merger, take or agree to take any action which Parent
reasonably believes would be prohibited or restricted under such preliminary injunction or restraining order.

(d) In case at any time after the Effective Time any further action is necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement or to vest the
Surviving Corporation with full title to all properties, assets, rights, approvals, immunities and franchises of any of the parties to the Merger, the
proper officers and directors of each party hereto shall take all such necessary action as may be reasonably requested by Parent to achieve such
intent.

Section 6.7 Public Announcements. Parent and the Company shall consult with each other before issuing any press release or making any public
statement with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and shall not issue any such press release or make any such
public statement without the prior written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned;
provided, however, that a party may, without the prior consent of the other party, issue such press release or make such public statement as may
upon consultation with outside counsel be required by applicable Law or the rules and regulations of the Nasdaq if it has used all reasonable best
efforts to consult with the other party prior thereto regarding the timing, scope and content of any such press release or public statement, and
provided, further, no such consultation shall be required to make any disclosure or otherwise take any action expressly permitted by Section 6.3.

Section 6.8 Company Employee Benefits; Company 401(k) Plan.

(a) From and after the Effective Time, Parent will, or will cause the Surviving Corporation to, recognize the prior service with the Company or
its Subsidiaries of each employee of the Company or its
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Subsidiaries as of the Effective Time (the �Company Employees�) in connection with all employee benefit plans, programs or policies (including
vacation) of Parent or its subsidiaries or affiliates in which Company Employees are eligible to participate following the Effective Time, for
purposes of eligibility, vesting and levels of vacation and severance benefits (but not for purposes of benefit accruals or benefit amounts under
any defined benefit pension plan or to the extent that such recognition would result in duplication of benefits).

(b) Parent will, or will cause the Surviving Corporation, to make any payments required to be made under the Employee Retention Plan.

(c) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take such actions as Parent may reasonably request so as to enable the Surviving Corporation
to effect such actions relating to the Company 401(k) Plan (the �401(k) Plan�) as Parent may deem necessary or appropriate (after reasonable
consultation with the Company), including terminating the 401(k) Plan prior to the Effective Time. Unless Parent notifies the Company
otherwise, in writing, at least three (3) business days prior to the date on which the Effective Time occurs, the Company shall terminate the
401(k) Plan effective as of the day immediately preceding the date on which the Effective Time occurs. Prior to the Effective Time, the
Company shall provide to Parent (i) executed resolutions by the Company�s Board of Directors authorizing the termination of the 401(k) Plan
and (ii) if applicable, an executed amendment to the 401(k) Plan intended to maintain compliance with all applicable requirements of the Code
and regulations thereunder. The form and substance of such resolutions shall be subject to the prior review and approval of Parent, which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Section 6.9 Company Stock Plan.

(a) Parent shall assume the Company Stock Plan with such assumption to be effective as of the Effective Time, including the rights and
obligations of the Company with respect to the Assumed Options. The Company shall take such reasonable actions prior to the Effective Time
as are reasonably necessary to effect the provisions of this Section 6.9(a) including taking such actions as may be required to confirm that the
Parent Board of Directors (or its committee) shall, effective as of the Effective Time, become the administrator of the assumed Company Stock
Plan and shall have any and all amendment authority with respect thereto. For the avoidance of doubt, any assumption by Parent of the Company
Stock Plan shall not adversely affect the rights of the holders of options under the Company Stock Plan. Except as set forth on Section 1.6(c)(iii)
and Section 1.6(c)(iv) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company shall take such actions prior to the Effective Time as are reasonably
necessary to provide that Assumed Options or Company Restricted Stock, as the case may be, will not accelerate and that any rights of
repurchase will not lapse in connection with the Merger pursuant to Section 4 of the Company Stock Plan.

(b) As soon as practicable following the Effective Time, but in any event within fifteen (15) business days thereafter (to the extent Parent has
received the most recent copies of the relevant Company Stock Plan), Parent shall prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement on
Form S-8 covering the shares of Parent Common Stock issuable pursuant to the outstanding Assumed Options, Parent shall cause the same to
become effective.

Section 6.10 Indemnification and Insurance.

(a) For six (6) years after the Effective Time, Parent shall, and shall cause the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries to, honor and fulfill in
all respects the obligations of the Company and its Subsidiaries under any and all indemnification agreements in effect immediately prior to the
Effective Time between the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any of its current or former directors and officers and any person who
becomes a director or officer of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries prior to the Effective Time (the �D&O Indemnified Parties�). In addition,
for a period of six (6) years following the Effective Time, Parent shall (and shall cause the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries to) cause
the certificate or articles of incorporation and bylaws (and other similar organizational documents) of the Surviving Corporation and its
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Subsidiaries to contain provisions with respect to indemnification and exculpation that are at least as favorable as the indemnification and
exculpation provisions contained in the certificate or articles of incorporation and bylaws (or other similar organizational documents) of the
Company and its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Effective Time, and during such six-year period, such provisions shall not be amended,
repealed or otherwise modified in any respect, except as required by Law.

(b) For a period of six (6) years after the Effective Time, Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall cause to be maintained in effect the existing
policy of the Company�s directors� and officers� and fiduciary liability insurance (the �D&O Policy�) covering claims arising from facts or events
that occurred at or prior to the Effective Time (including for acts or omissions occurring in connection with this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, to the extent that such acts or omissions are covered by the D&O Policy) and covering
each D&O Indemnified Party who is covered as of the Effective Time by the D&O Policy on terms with respect to coverage and amounts that
are no less favorable than those terms in effect on the date hereof; provided, however, that in no event shall Parent or the Surviving Corporation
be required to expend in any one year an amount in excess of 200% of the current annual premium paid by the Company (which annual
premium is set forth on Schedule 6.10(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule) for such insurance (such 200% amount, the �Maximum Annual
Premium�); and provided, further, that if the annual premiums of such insurance coverage exceed such amount, Parent and the Surviving
Corporation shall be obligated to obtain a policy with the greatest coverage available for a cost not exceeding the Maximum Annual Premium.
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6.10 to the contrary, Parent may fulfill its (and Surviving Corporation�s) obligations under this
Section 6.10(b) by purchasing a D&O Policy or a �tail� policy under the Company�s existing D&O Policy, in either case which (i) has an effective
term of six (6) years from the Effective Time, (ii) covers only those persons who are currently covered by the Company�s directors� and officers�
insurance policy in effect as of the date hereof and only for actions and omissions occurring on or prior to the Effective Time, (iii) contains terms
with respect to coverage and amounts that are no less favorable than those terms in the Company�s D&O Policy on the date hereof.

(c) The obligations under this Section 6.10 shall not be terminated, amended or otherwise modified in such a manner as to adversely affect any
D&O Indemnified Party (or any other person who is a beneficiary under the D&O Policy or the �tail� policy referred to in paragraph (b) above
(and their heirs and representatives)) without the prior written consent of such affected D&O Indemnified Party or other person who is a
beneficiary under the D&O Policy or the �tail� policy referred to in paragraph (b) above (and their heirs and representatives). Each of the D&O
Indemnified Parties or other persons who are beneficiaries under the D&O Policy or the �tail� policy referred to in paragraph (b) above (and their
heirs and representatives) are intended to be third party beneficiaries of this Section 6.10, with full rights of enforcement as if a party thereto.
The rights of the D&O Indemnified Parties (and other persons who are beneficiaries under the D&O Policy or the �tail� policy referred to in
paragraph (b) above (and their heirs and representatives)) under this Section 6.10 shall be in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other
rights that such persons may have under the certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other equivalent organizational documents, any and
all indemnification agreements of or entered into by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or applicable Law (whether at Law or in equity).

(d) In the event that Parent, Surviving Corporation or any of their Subsidiaries (or any of their respective successors or assigns) shall consolidate
or merge with any other person and shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation or entity in such consolidation or merger, or transfers at
least 50% of its properties and assets to any other person, then in each case proper provision shall be made so that the continuing or surviving
corporation or entity (or its successors or assigns, if applicable), or transferee of such assets, as the case may be, shall assume the obligations set
forth in this Section 6.10.

Section 6.11 Company Affiliates. Section 6.11 of the Company Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of those persons who may be
deemed to be, in the Company�s reasonable judgment, affiliates of the Company within the meaning of Rule 145 promulgated under the
Securities Act (each, a �Company Affiliate� and collectively, the �Company Affiliates�). The Company shall provide Parent with such information
and documents
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as Parent reasonably requests for purposes of reviewing and evaluating the foregoing schedule of Company Affiliates. Parent will be entitled to
place appropriate legends on the certificates evidencing any Parent Common Stock to be issued to a Company Affiliate pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement, and to issue appropriate stop transfer instructions to the transfer agent for the Parent Common Stock.

Section 6.12 Tax Matters. None of Parent, Merger Sub or the Company shall, nor shall they permit any of their respective Subsidiaries to, take
any action prior to or following the Closing that would reasonably be expected to cause the Merger to fail to qualify as a reorganization within
the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Officers of each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Company shall execute and deliver to WSGR,
counsel to Parent, and to Perkins Coie LLP, counsel to the Company, certificates containing appropriate representations of Parent, Merger Sub
and the Company at such time or times as may be reasonably requested by such Law firms, including the effective date of the Registration and
the Effective Time, in connection with their respective deliveries of opinions with respect to the Tax treatment of the Merger.

Section 6.13 Takeover Statutes. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, in no event shall the approval of the Merger and this
Agreement by the Company Board under Section 203 of the DGCL be withdrawn, revoked or modified by the Company Board. If any Takeover
Statute is or may become applicable to the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Company and the
Company Board, or Parent and the Parent Board, as applicable, shall promptly grant such approvals and take such Lawful actions as are
necessary so that such transactions may be consummated as promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated by this Agreement or the Merger,
as the case may be, and otherwise take such Lawful actions to eliminate or minimize the effects of such statute, and any regulations promulgated
thereunder, on such transactions.

Section 6.14 Directorships. Effective as of the Effective Time, the Board of Directors of Parent shall be expanded to include up to three
individuals, each of whom shall be reasonably acceptable to the Parent, that prior to the Effective Time served as directors of the Company
(each, a �Company Director�); and the remaining members of the Parent�s board of directors at the Effective Time shall be individuals that prior to
the Effective Time served as directors of Parent (each, a �Parent Director�).

Section 6.15 Termination of Company Investor Rights. The Company shall take such steps as may be necessary to provide for the termination as
of the Closing of all Company investor rights granted by the Company to its stockholders and in effect prior to the Closing, including but not
limited to rights of co-sale, voting, registration, first refusal, board observation or information or operational covenants.

Section 6.16 Financial Statements and Consents of Accountants. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to cause its management and its
independent auditors to facilitate on a timely basis (i) the preparation of financial statements (including pro forma financial statements if
required) as required by Parent to comply with applicable SEC regulations, (ii) the reasonable review of any Company audit or review work
papers for up to the past three (3) years, including the examination of selected financial statements and data and (iii) the delivery of such
representations from the Company�s independent accountants as may be reasonably requested by Parent of its independent auditors in connection
with the preparation of the any filings the Parent is required to make with the SEC. Parent and the Company will each use all reasonable efforts
to cause to be delivered to each other consents and certificates from their respective independent auditors, in form reasonably satisfactory to the
recipient and customary in scope and substance for consents delivered by independent public accountants in connection with any filings the
Parent is required to make with the SEC.

Section 6.17 Working Capital Loan. Parent shall provide a loan to the Company in the aggregate amount of $1,250,000 pursuant to an
unsecured, subordinated, convertible promissory note substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the �Promissory Note�) within ten
(10) Business Days after written demand by the Company if the Merger has not occurred and this Agreement has not been terminated prior to
the respective Determination Date. The Company may make one such demand on or after April 30, 2006 and one additional
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demand on or after June 30, 2006 (each such date, a �Determination Date�). In the event this Agreement has been terminated in accordance with
its terms prior to a given Determination Date, the Parent shall have no obligation to make any loan to the Company. All principal and interest
due under any outstanding Promissory Note shall convert into shares of Company Common Stock if such amounts remain outstanding on the
one year anniversary of the termination of this Agreement. The conversion price of the outstanding debt shall be the lesser of (i) the fair market
value of the Company Common Stock at the time of such conversion as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company or
(ii) $0.40 per share. The Promissory Notes shall provide that all principal and accrued but unpaid interest shall become immediately due and
payable prior to the completion of any Acquisition Transaction if such Promissory Notes have not been converted to Company Common Stock
prior to that date.

ARTICLE VII

CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER

Section 7.1 Conditions to Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The obligation of Parent to effect the Merger, and the obligation of the
Company to effect the Merger, shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Closing of the following conditions:

(a) Effectiveness of the Registration Statement. The Registration Statement shall have been declared effective by the SEC under the Securities
Act. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been issued by the SEC and no proceedings for that
purpose and no similar proceeding in respect of the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus shall have been initiated or threatened in writing by the
SEC.

(b) Shareholder Approval. The Requisite Company Stockholder Approval and the Requisite Parent Shareholder Approval shall have been
obtained.

(c) Antitrust Approvals. All necessary waiting periods (and all extensions thereof) applicable to the Merger under the Antitrust Laws shall have
terminated or expired, and all clearances, consents, approvals, orders and authorizations necessary for the consummation of the Merger under the
Antitrust Laws shall have been received.

(d) No Injunctions or Restraints. No temporary restraining order, preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by any court of
competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Merger shall be in effect.

(e) No Illegality. No statute, rule, regulation or order shall be enacted, entered, enforced or deemed applicable to the Merger by a governmental
authority of competent jurisdiction that makes the consummation of the Merger illegal.

(f) NASDAQ Listing. The shares of Parent Common Stock issuable in the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the Nasdaq.
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(g) Tax Opinions. Parent and the Company shall have received an opinion of WSGR, and Perkins Coie LLP, respectively, dated as of the
Effective Time, to the effect that the Merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code; provided,
however, that if (i) Perkins Coie LLP, fails to render such opinion, this condition shall nonetheless be deemed to be satisfied with respect to the
Company if WSGR renders such opinion to the Company and (ii) if WSGR fails to render such opinion, this condition shall nonetheless be
deemed to be satisfied with respect to Parent if Perkins Coie LLP renders such opinion to Parent. The issuance of such opinions shall be
conditioned upon the receipt by such counsel of customary representation letters from each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Company, in each
case, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to such counsel. Each such representation letter shall be dated on or before the date of such
opinion and shall not have been withdrawn or modified in any material respect.
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Section 7.2 Additional Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to Effect the Merger. Subject to the matters set forth on Section 7.2
of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger are also subject to the fulfillment on or prior
to the Closing of the following additional conditions (each of which may be waived by Parent and Merger Sub in whole or in part at any time
prior to the Closing):

(a) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of the Company contained in this Agreement shall be true and
correct (without giving effect to any qualification as to materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect contained in any specific representation
or warranty), as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date, except (i) for changes contemplated or permitted by this Agreement,
(ii) that the accuracy of representations and warranties that by their terms speak as of another date will be determined as of such date and
(iii) where any failures of any such representations and warranties to be true and correct would not reasonably be expected to have, individually
or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect; and Parent shall have received a certificate of the Company signed on behalf of the
Company by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the Company to such effect.

(b) Agreements and Covenants. The Company shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants
required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it at or prior to the Closing Date; and Parent shall have received a certificate of
the Company signed on behalf of the Company by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Company to such effect.

(c) No Company Material Adverse Effect. No Company Material Adverse Effect shall have occurred since the date hereof.

(d) Contract Consents. Parent shall have received (i) the Approvals set forth in Schedule 7.2(d), in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to
Parent, and (ii) all Approvals, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Parent, that may be required in connection with the Merger and
the other transactions contemplated hereby under any material Contracts that are executed after the date hereof and would have been required to
be set forth in Section 3.5 of the Company Disclosure Schedule had such Contracts been in effect on the date hereof. All such Approvals
referenced in the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) shall be in full force and effect.

(e) Contract Terminations. Parent shall have received evidence reasonably satisfactory to it that the Contracts set forth on Schedule 7.2(e) have
been terminated and are of no further force or effect.

(f) Litigation. There shall be no Action or Proceeding of a material nature pending, or overtly threatened, against Parent or the Company, their
respective properties or any of their respective officers or directors (in their capacities as such) arising out of, or in any way connected with, the
Merger or the other transactions contemplated by the terms of this Agreement.

(g) Legal Opinion. Parent shall have received a legal opinion from Perkins Coie LLP, counsel to the Company, in a form reasonably acceptable
to Parent.

(h) Employees. Each of the Key Employment Agreements shall be in full force and effect as of the Closing Date and none of the employee
parties thereto shall have taken any action to terminate, revoke or otherwise repudiate any such Employment Agreement.
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(i) Company Intellectual Property. No Person shall have (i) shall have notified Parent, the Company, any Company Subsidiary or any of their
respective officers or directors that it intends to commence or that it has commenced, an Action or Proceeding alleging that any of the
Intellectual Property, including the Company Intellectual Property, presently embodied or proposed by the Company to be embodied in any of
the Company�s or any Company Subsidiaries� products or services materially infringes or otherwise materially violates the intellectual property
rights of such Person, or (ii) otherwise alleged that the Company or any Company Subsidiary does not own or have the right to exploit such
intellectual property, including
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the Company Intellectual Property, unless with respect to any of subsections (i) or (ii), such Person shall have definitively and unconditionally
(x) withdrawn such notification, notice or allegation and (y) abandoned such Action or Proceeding.

(j) Section 280G Payments. With respect to any payments or benefits that may constitute a Section 280G Payment (as initially determined by the
Company and subject to review and approval by Parent), the stockholders of the Company shall have approved, pursuant to the method provided
for in the regulations promulgated under Section 280G of the Code, any such Section 280G Payments or shall have disapproved such payments
and/or benefits, and, as a consequence, no Section 280G Payments shall be paid or provided for in any manner and Parent and its subsidiaries
shall not have any liabilities with respect to any Section 280G Payments.

(k) Capitalization Certificate. Parent shall have received from the Company a certificate (the �Capitalization Certificate�), dated as of the Closing
Date and executed by the president or chief executive officer and secretary of the Company, in a form reasonably acceptable to Parent, setting
forth (i) the name of each Effective Time Company Stockholder and the type and number of shares of Company Capital Stock held by each such
Effective Time Company Stockholder and (ii) the name of each holder of a Company Stock Option that is outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time and the type and number of shares of Company Capital Stock issuable upon the exercise in full of each such Company Stock
Option.

(l) Closing Date Payment Schedule. Parent and the Company shall each have reviewed and approved and Parent shall have received a certificate
of the Company signed on behalf of the Company by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the Company a schedule (the
�Closing Date Payment Schedule�) reflecting, as of the Effective Time (i) for each holder of Company Capital Stock, the number of shares of
Company Capital Stock held of record, the aggregate number of shares of Parent Common Stock payable to such holder in the Merger, the
number of such shares payable promptly after the Effective Time (in accordance with Section 1.6) and payable into the Escrow Fund (as defined
in Section 9.4), the amount of cash payable to such holder for any fractional shares, the stock certificate numbers held by each such person and
such person�s federal tax identification number to the extent such number is known and (ii) for each holder of Company Options, the number of
shares of Company Common Stock issuable upon exercise thereof immediately prior to the Effective Time, the number of shares of Parent
Common Stock issuable upon exercise thereof following their assumption by Parent (if such Company Options will be Assumed Options in
accordance with Section 1.6(d)), and the per share exercise price thereof upon such assumption, assuming that such options were fully vested.

(m) Statement of Expenses. Parent shall have received from the Company the statement setting forth the Company�s good faith estimate of the
Expenses incurred by the Company and its Subsidiaries (the �Statement of Company Expenses�).

(n) FIRPTA Certificate. The Company shall deliver to Parent a properly executed notice in a form reasonably acceptable to Parent for purposes
of satisfying Parent�s obligations under Section 897 and 1445 of the Code, together with written authorization for Parent to deliver such notice to
the Internal Revenue Service on behalf of the Company after the Closing.

(o) Limitation on Dissenting Shares. Holders of no more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of Company Capital Stock (determined
on a fully diluted basis) shall have exercised (and not withdrawn or otherwise lost) any appraisal, dissenters� or other similar rights under any
applicable Law in connection with the Merger.

(p) Shareholder Agreements. The Shareholder Agreements shall be in full force and effect and the Company Stockholders on Schedule B shall
not have repudiated such agreements.
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Section 7.3 Additional Conditions to Obligation of the Company to Effect the Merger. The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger is
also subject to the fulfillment at or prior to the Closing of the following additional conditions (each of which may be waived by the Company in
whole or in part at any time prior to the Closing):

(a) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of Parent contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct
(without giving effect to any qualification as to materiality or Parent Material Adverse Effect contained in any specific representation or
warranty), as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date, except (i) for changes contemplated or permitted by this Agreement,
(ii) that the accuracy of representations and warranties that by their terms speak as of another date will be determined as of such date and
(iii) where any failures of any such representations and warranties to be true and correct would not reasonably be expected to have, individually
or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect; and the Company shall have received a certificate of Parent signed on behalf of Parent by
the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Parent to such effect.

(b) Agreements and Covenants. Parent shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by
this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it at or prior to the Closing Date; and the Company shall have received a certificate of
Parent signed on behalf of Parent by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Parent to such effect.

(c) No Parent Material Adverse Effect. No Parent Material Adverse Effect shall have occurred since the date hereof and be continuing.

ARTICLE VIII

TERMINATION

Section 8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, notwithstanding approval thereof by the
stockholders of the Company and/or Parent:

(a) by mutual written consent duly authorized by the Company Board and the Parent Board;

(b) by either Parent or the Company, if the Merger shall not have been consummated by June 30, 2006 (the �Outside Date�); provided, however,
that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.1(b) shall not be available to any party that has breached its obligations under this
Agreement.

(c) by either Parent or the Company, if a court of competent jurisdiction or governmental, regulatory or administrative agency or commission
shall have issued a nonappealable final order, decree or ruling or taken any other action having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining
or otherwise prohibiting the Merger (provided that the party seeking to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(c) shall have
complied with its obligations under Section 6.6 by using its reasonable best efforts to have any such order, decree, ruling or other action vacated
or lifted);
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(d) by either Parent or the Company, if the Requisite Company Stockholder Approval shall not have been obtained at the validity held Company
Stockholder Meeting; provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.1(d) shall not be available to the
Company if the Company shall have breached the provisions of Section 6.2, Section 6.3 or Section 6.4; provided, further, that no termination by
a party pursuant this Section 8.1(d) shall be effective unless concurrently therewith such party fulfills its obligation under Section 8.3.

(e) by either Parent or the Company, if the Requisite Parent Shareholder Approval shall not have been obtained at the Parent Shareholder
Meeting; provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.1(e) shall not be available to Parent if Parent shall
have breached the provisions of Section 6.4; provided, further, that no termination by a party pursuant this Section 8.1(e) shall be effective
unless concurrently therewith such party fulfills its obligation under Section 8.3.

(f) by Parent, if the Company shall have breached or failed to perform any of its representations, warranties, or other covenants or agreements
contained in this Agreement, which breach or failure to
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perform would reasonably be expected to cause the conditions set forth in Section 7.2 to not be satisfied at the Closing and which breach or
failure, if capable of being cured, shall not have been cured within 20 days following receipt by the Company of written notice of such breach or
failure from Parent (it being understood and hereby agreed that Parent may not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(f) if such
breach or failure is cured within such 20 day period); or

(g) by the Company, if Parent shall have breached or failed to perform any of its representations, warranties, or other covenants or agreements
contained in this Agreement, which breach or failure to perform would reasonably be expected to cause the conditions set forth in Section 7.3 to
not be satisfied at the Closing and which breach or failure, if capable of being cured, shall not have been cured within 20 days following receipt
by Parent of written notice of such breach from the Company (it being understood and hereby agreed that the Company may not terminate this
Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(g) if such breach or failure is cured within such 20 day period).

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination. In the event of the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1, this Agreement shall forthwith
become void and there shall be no liability on the part of any party hereto or any of its affiliates, directors, officers or shareholders except (i) that
the provisions of this Section 8.2, Section 6.17, Section 8.3 and Article X hereof shall survive termination and (ii) nothing herein shall relieve any
party from liability for any willful or intentional breach of this Agreement. The Confidentiality Agreement shall survive the termination of this
Agreement as provided therein.

Section 8.3 Fees and Expenses.

(a) Except as set forth in this Section 8.3, all Expenses (as defined below) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such Expenses, whether or not the Merger is consummated. Parent shall pay all HSR
filing fees and all Expenses of the Company incurred in responding to a second request for information from any Governmental Entity in
connection with the HSR filing (�HSR Expenses�). For purposes of this Agreement, �Expenses� includes all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
(including all reasonable fees and expenses of counsel, accountants, investment bankers, experts and consultants to a party hereto and its
Affiliates) incurred by a party or on its behalf in connection with or related to the authorization, preparation, negotiation, execution and
performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the preparation, printing, filing and mailing of the Joint
Proxy Statement/Prospectus and Registration Statement and the solicitation of shareholder approvals and all other matters related to the
transactions contemplated hereby. Expenses of the Company shall also include any amount payable to Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. in connection
with that certain Transaction Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2000, as amended, that arise as a result of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, excluding any amount payable to Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. as a result of its ownership of Company Capital Stock.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Expenses of the Company as set forth in the Statement of Company Expenses exceed $4.2
million, excluding the HSR Expenses, Parent shall be entitled to reimbursement of such Expenses after the Effective Time from the Escrow
Fund without regard to any threshold or deductible.

(b) The Company shall pay to Parent a termination fee equal to $5,000,000 (the �Company Termination Fee�), and all Expenses of Parent after
demand by Parent, in the event that this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1(d). The Company Termination Fee and such Expenses
of Parent may be paid by the Company�s issuance of that number of shares of Company Common Stock to Parent equal to the quotient of (i) the
sum of the Company Termination Fee and the Expenses of Parent divided by (ii) $0.40 (appropriately adjusted for any stock dividends,
combinations, recapitalizations and splits and the like with respect to Company Common Stock); provided that if the Company consummates an
Acquisition Transaction during the six month period commencing with the termination date of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(d), Parent
shall have an option to have the shares issued pursuant to this Section 8.3(b) redeemed by the Company at $0.40 per share (appropriately
adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, recapitalizations and splits and the like with respect to Company Common Stock) immediately
prior to the consummation of such Acquisition Transaction.
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(c) Parent shall pay to the Company a termination fee equal to $5,000,000 (the �Parent Termination Fee�), and all Expenses of the Company
within one (1) business day after demand by the Company and by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated in
writing by the Company, in the event that this Agreement is (i) terminated pursuant to Section 8.1(e) or (ii) any clearance, consent, authorization,
order or approval of, or any exemption by, any Governmental Entity required to effect the Merger is not granted or received as a result of Parent
exercising its rights under Section 6.6(c)(i).

(d) All cash payments to be made pursuant to this Section 8.3 shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds. If either party fails
to timely pay the Expenses of the other party or the Parent Termination Fee or Company Termination Fee, as applicable, pursuant to this
Section 8.3, then such party shall pay all costs and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred by the other party in connection with
any action or proceeding (including the filing of any lawsuit) taken by it to collect such unpaid amounts, together with interest on such unpaid
amounts at the prime lending rate prevailing at such time, as published in the Wall Street Journal, from the date such amounts were required to
be paid until the date actually received by the such other party.

(e) The parties acknowledge that the agreements contained in this Section 8.3 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and constitute liquidated damages and not a penalty, and that, without these agreements, the parties would not have entered into this
Agreement.

ARTICLE IX

SURVIVAL & INDEMNIFICATION

Section 9.1 Survival of Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements.

(a) Notwithstanding any right of Parent (whether or not exercised) to investigate the affairs of the Company (whether pursuant to Section 6.1 or
otherwise) or a waiver or non-assertion by Parent and Merger Sub of any closing condition set forth in Article VI or any termination right set
forth in Article VIII, each party shall have the right to rely fully upon the representations and warranties of the other party or parties hereto set
forth in this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the certificates and other instruments delivered in connection herewith or therewith (the
�Transaction Agreements�).

(b) The representations and warranties of the Company set forth in this Agreement or in any certificates and instruments delivered by the
Company in connection herewith or therewith shall survive the Merger and continue until 11:59 p.m. (California time) on the one (1) year
anniversary of the Closing Date; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the representations and warranties of the Company set
forth in Section 3.16 (Taxes) shall survive the Merger and continue until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations (including
extensions thereof) (the representations and warranties described in the foregoing clause being referred to herein as the �Special Representation�).
The applicable expiration date described above is referred to herein as the �Expiration Date.� Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the
contrary in this Agreement, (i) no right to indemnification pursuant to Article IX in respect of any claim that is set forth in an Officer�s Certificate
delivered in accordance with the terms hereof prior to the applicable Expiration Date shall be affected by the expiration of such representations
and warranties pursuant hereto and (ii) no such expiration shall affect the rights of any Parent Indemnified Party under Article IX or otherwise to
pursue claims for indemnification for Losses arising out of any fraud or willful misconduct until the expiration of the applicable statute of
limitations. No Parent Indemnified Parties shall be permitted to bring and the Effective Time Company Stockholders shall not have any Liability
for any claim for a breach of a representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement and the certificates and instruments
delivered in connection herewith, to the extent notice of such claim set forth in an Officer�s Certificate is not delivered to the applicable
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(c) In the event that the Merger is consummated, the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement or in
any certificate or other instrument delivered in connection herewith shall expire and be of no further force or effect.
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(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, the covenants and other agreements set forth in this Agreement or in
the Escrow Agreement shall survive the Merger indefinitely in accordance with their respective terms.

Section 9.2 Indemnification.

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article IX, prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless, Parent,
Merger Sub and their respective directors, officers, employees, agents and Affiliates (each, a �Parent Indemnified Party� and collectively, the
�Parent Indemnified Parties�), and following the Effective Time, the Effective Time Company Stockholders (each sometimes referred to in this
Article IX individually as an �Indemnifying Party� and collectively as the �Indemnifying Parties�) shall indemnify and hold harmless, the Parent
Indemnified Parties (which, following the Effective Time, shall also include the Surviving Corporation) from and against any and all Losses
(whether or not involving a third party claim) paid, suffered, incurred or sustained by Parent or any other Parent Indemnified Party as a result of
any assessments, Taxes, claims, demands, assertions of liability, threatened actions, suits or proceedings (whether civil, criminal, administrative
or investigative) directly or indirectly arising out of, resulting from or in connection with:

(i) (A) any failure of any representation or warranty made by the Company in this Agreement as modified by the Company Disclosure Schedule
(including any exhibit or schedule to the Company Disclosure Schedule) to be true and correct as of the date of this Agreement and as of the
Effective Time as though such representation or warranty were made as of the Effective Time, except in the case of representations and
warranties which by their terms speak only as of a specific date, in which event for any failure of any such representation or warranty to be true
and correct as of such date, or (B) any failure of any certification, representation or warranty made by the Company in any certificate delivered
to Parent pursuant to any provision of this Agreement (other than the Capitalization Certificate) to be true and correct as of the date of such
certificate;

(ii) any inaccuracy in the Capitalization Certificate or Closing Schedule; and

(iii) any breach of or default in connection with any of the covenants or agreements made by the Company in this Agreement or the Company
Disclosure Schedule (including any exhibit or schedule to the Company Disclosure Schedule);

(iv) any amounts paid per share of Company Capital Stock to holders of Dissenting Shares in excess of the Per Share Common Amount, Per
Share Series A Amount or Per Share Convertible Preferred Amount, as applicable; and

(v) any Expenses of the Company in excess of $4.2 million, excluding the HSR Expenses.

(b) All Effective Time Company Stockholders shall be severally, and not jointly, liable for their pro rata portion of the indemnification
obligations under Section 9.2.

(c) In determining the amount of any Losses in respect of the failure of any representation or warranty to be true and correct as of any particular
date (but not in determining whether any such representations and warranties failed to be true and correct as of any particular date), any
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Section 9.3 Limitations on Indemnification Recoveries.

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, if the Merger is consummated, no Parent Indemnified Party may
recover any claims for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2(a)(i) or Section 9.2(a)(iii) unless and until the Losses paid, suffered, incurred or
sustained by the Parent Indemnified Parties (or any of them) in respect of the matters referenced in Section 9.2(a)(i) or Section 9.2(a)(iii) exceed
$800,000 in the aggregate (the �Deductible Limitation�), in which case the Parent Indemnified Parties may recover claims for indemnification
pursuant to Section 9.2(a)(i) or
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Section 9.2(a)(iii) that include the Deductible Limitation; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the Deductible Limitation shall
not apply to (i) claims for indemnification for Losses arising out of fraud or willful misconduct (ii) claims for indemnification arising out of any
breach of or inaccuracy related to the Special Representation or (iii) claims for indemnification under Section 9.2(a)(ii).

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, whether or not the Merger is consummated, (i) no Parent Indemnified
Party may recover any claims for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2(a)(i), Section 9.2(a)(iii), Section 9.2(a)(iv) or Section 9.2(a)(v) for
Losses paid, suffered, incurred or sustained by the Parent Indemnified Parties (or any of them) that exceed the aggregate value of the shares of
Parent Common Stock remaining in the Escrow Fund which Escrow Fund shall be the sole fund to satisfy such claims for indemnification;
provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the limitation shall not apply to (A) claims for indemnification for Losses arising out of
fraud or willful misconduct, (B) claims for indemnification of Losses arising out of a breach of, or inaccuracy in, the Special Representation or
(C) claims for indemnification under Section 9.2(a)(ii).

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, if the Merger is consummated, the amount of Losses that the Parent
Indemnified Parties (or any of them) may recover pursuant to a claim for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2(a)(i) or Section 9.2(a)(iii) shall
be offset, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, against (i) any amounts actually received by the Parent Indemnified Parties making such claim in respect
of the Losses forming the basis of such claim for indemnification from a third party pursuant to any indemnification or other similar right,
(ii) any amounts actually received by the Parent Indemnified Parties making such claim in respect of the Losses forming the basis of such claim
for indemnification from a third party under any insurance policy or other similar arrangement, in the case of the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii),
net of any and all applicable collection costs and a reasonable valuation of any premium adjustments resulting therefrom, and (iii) any Tax
benefits that the Parent Indemnified Parties actually realize in the same tax year and as a result of the incurrence of such Losses (the �Third Party
Recovery Limitation�); provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the Third Party Recovery Limitation (i) shall not apply to claims
for indemnification for Losses arising out of fraud or willful misconduct, (ii) shall not apply to claims for indemnification under
Section 9.2(a)(ii) and Section 9.2(a)(v) and (iii) shall not be interpreted or construed to require the Parent Indemnified Parties (or any of them) to
take any action to seek, pursue or otherwise procure any such third party recoveries or insurance proceeds (and, in the event that the Parent
Indemnified Parties shall elect not to seek or otherwise pursue any such third party recoveries or insurance proceeds, the Third Party Recovery
Limitation shall not apply, but any rights of the Parent Indemnified Parties to such third party recoveries or insurance proceeds shall be assigned
or subrogated to the Indemnifying Parties).

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, whether or not the Merger is consummated, no Effective Time
Company Stockholder shall be liable for Losses paid, suffered, incurred or sustained by the Parent Indemnified Parties (or any of them) for
amounts in excess of the product of the number of shares of Parent Common Stock allocated to such Effective Time Company Stockholder
pursuant to Section 1.6(b) of this Agreement and the Average Closing Price, provided that the foregoing limitation on liability shall not apply to
claims for indemnification for Losses arising out of fraud or willful misconduct with respect to an Effective Time Company Stockholder who
participated in or had actual knowledge of the fraud or willful misconduct, other than with respect to holders of Company Convertible Preferred
Stock.

(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, if the Merger is consummated, the indemnification provisions set
forth in this Article IX shall be the sole and exclusive remedy for claims by the Parent Indemnified Parties arising out of the matters relating to
this Agreement, any certificate or other document related hereto or delivered pursuant to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby
or thereby; provided, however, that the foregoing limitation on remedies shall not apply (i) to claims for indemnification for Losses arising out of
fraud or willful misconduct, (ii) to claims for indemnification under Section 9.2(a)(ii) or (iii) if the Merger is not consummated.
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Section 9.4 Creation of Escrow Fund; Period for Indemnification Claims Against Escrow Fund.

(a) At the Effective Time the Company�s shareholders will be deemed to have received and deposited with the Depositary Agent the Escrow
Amount (plus any additional shares as may be issued upon any stock split, stock dividend or recapitalization effected by Parent after the
Effective Time) without any act of any Company Effective Time Stockholder pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. As soon as practicable after
the Effective Time, the Escrow Amount, without any act of any Company shareholder, will be deposited by Parent with U.S. Stock Transfer
Corp., a California corporation (or other institution acceptable to Parent and the Stockholder Agent as Depositary Agent (the �Depositary Agent�),
such deposit to constitute an escrow fund (the �Escrow Fund�) to be governed by the terms set forth herein and in the Escrow Agreement. The
portion of the Escrow Amount contributed on behalf of each Effective Time Company Stockholder shall be in proportion to the aggregate Parent
Common Stock, which such holder would otherwise be entitled under Section 1.6(b) and shall be in the respective share amounts and
percentages listed on the Closing Date Payment Schedule opposite each Effective Time Company Stockholder�s name. All shares of Parent
Common Stock contributed to the Escrow Fund shall not be unvested or subject to any right of repurchase, risk of forfeiture or other condition in
favor of the Surviving Corporation.

(b) The period during which claims for indemnification for Losses may be made against the Escrow Fund shall commence at the Effective Time
and terminate on the date that is one (1) year following the Closing Date (the �Escrow Period�). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in this Agreement, at the conclusion of the Escrow Period, such portion of the Escrow Fund as in the reasonable and good faith
judgment of Parent may be necessary to satisfy any unresolved or unsatisfied claims for indemnification for Losses specified in any Officer�s
Certificate delivered in good faith and in accordance with the terms hereof prior to expiration of the Escrow Period shall remain in the Escrow
Fund until such claims have been finally and fully resolved or satisfied. The remainder, if any, of the Escrow Fund shall be paid to the Effective
Time Company Stockholders promptly (and in any event within twenty (20) Business Days) after the expiration of the Escrow Period and the
Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall give the Depositary Agent written instructions to that effect. After the expiration of the Escrow Period,
upon resolution of a pending claim for Losses, the portion of the Escrow Fund remaining, if any, after such Losses have been satisfied, shall be
returned to the Effective Time Company Stockholders promptly (and in any event within twenty (20) Business Days) after the final resolution of
the underlying claim.

Section 9.5 Indemnification Claim Procedures During the Escrow Period.

(a) On or before the expiration of the Escrow Period, Parent may deliver to the Depositary Agent, on behalf of itself or any other Parent
Indemnified Parties, a certificate signed by any officer of Parent (an �Officer�s Certificate�):

(i) stating that a Parent Indemnified Party has paid, suffered, incurred or sustained (or reasonably and in good faith anticipates that it may pay,
suffer, incur or sustain) Losses for which such Parent Indemnified Party is entitled to indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2;

(ii) stating the amount of such Losses (which, in the case of Losses not yet paid, suffered, incurred, sustained, may be the maximum amount
reasonably anticipated to be so paid, suffered, incurred or sustained);

(iii) specifying in reasonable detail (based upon the information then possessed by Parent) the individual items of such Losses included in the
amount so stated and the nature of the claim for indemnification to which such Losses relate; and
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(iv) the specific provisions of this Agreement that form the basis for such claim for indemnification for such Losses.

(b) Subject to Section 9.1, no delay in providing an Officer�s Certificate in accordance with the terms hereof shall affect a Parent Indemnified
Party�s rights hereunder, unless (and then only to the extent that) the Stockholder Agent or any other applicable Indemnifying Parties are
materially prejudiced thereby.
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(c) At the time of delivery of any Officer�s Certificate to the Depositary Agent, Parent shall deliver a duplicate copy of such Officer�s Certificate
to the Stockholder Agent, and for a period of twenty (20) Business Days after such delivery to the Depositary Agent and the Stockholder Agent
of such Officer�s Certificate, the Depositary Agent shall make no payment or other disbursement of Escrow Funds pursuant to this Section 9.5
unless the Depositary Agent shall have received written authorization from the Stockholder Agent to make such delivery or disbursement. After
the expiration of such 20-Business Day period, the Depositary Agent shall deliver or disburse Parent Common Stock from the Escrow Fund
having a value equal to such Losses from the Escrow Fund to Parent in accordance with this Section 9.5; provided, however, that no such
delivery may be made if and to the extent the Stockholder Agent shall object in a written statement to any claim or claims made in the Officer�s
Certificate, and such statement shall have been delivered to the Depositary Agent and to Parent prior to the expiration of such 20-Business Day
period.

(d) For the purposes of determining the number of shares of Parent Common Stock to be delivered to Parent out of the Escrow Fund pursuant to
Section 9.5(c) hereof, the shares of Parent Common Stock shall be valued at the average of the closing prices of the Parent Common Stock for
the ten (10) trading days ending two (2) trading days prior to the time that the claim is made. Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall certify such
determined value in a certificate signed by both Parent and the Stockholder Agent, and shall deliver such certificate to the Depositary Agent.

Section 9.6 Resolution of Objections to Indemnification Claims.

(a) If the Stockholder Agent objects in writing to any claim or claims by Parent made in any Officer�s Certificate within the 20-Business Day
period referenced in Section 9.5, Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall attempt in good faith for twenty (20) Business Days after Parent�s
receipt of such written objection to resolve such objection. If Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall so agree, a memorandum setting forth such
agreement shall be prepared and signed by both parties and delivered to the Depositary Agent. The Depositary Agent shall be entitled to
conclusively rely on any such memorandum and the Depositary Agent shall distribute Parent Common Stock from the Escrow Fund in
accordance with the terms of such memorandum.

(b) If no such agreement can be reached during such 20-Business Day period for good faith negotiation, but in any event upon the expiration of
such 20-Business Day period, either Parent or the Stockholder Agent may bring suit in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware to resolve
the matter.

(c) Judgment upon any award rendered by the trial court may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

Section 9.7 Stockholder Agent.

(a) At the Closing, Sanford S. Wadler shall be constituted and appointed as the Stockholder Agent. For purposes of this Agreement, the term
�Stockholder Agent� shall mean the agent for and on behalf of the Effective Time Company Stockholders to: (i) give and receive notices and
communications to or from Parent (on behalf of itself of any other Indemnified Person) relating to this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the
Merger or any other transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (except to the extent that this Agreement expressly contemplates that any such
notice or communication shall be given or received by such shareholders individually); (ii) authorize deliveries to Parent of Parent Common
Stock from the Escrow Fund in satisfaction of claims for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2 asserted by Parent Indemnified Parties;
(iii) object to such claims pursuant to Section 9.6; (iv) consent or agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and compromises of, and comply
with orders of courts with respect to, such claims; (v) consent or agree to any amendment to this Agreement and (vi) take all actions necessary or
appropriate in the judgment of the Stockholder Agent for the accomplishment of the foregoing, in each case without having to seek or obtain the
consent of any Person under any circumstance. The Stockholder Agent does not have authority to amend this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement
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�Transaction Documents�) or enter into any new agreement on behalf of or take any action, enter into a settlement or consent to any such action or
settlement that would bind any Effective Time Company Stockholder, to the extent such amendment, new agreement, action, consent or
settlement will increase the maximum liability of any Effective Time Company Stockholder as set forth in the Transaction Documents executed
on the date hereof. The Stockholder Agent may resign at any time. The Person serving as the Stockholder Agent may be replaced from time to
time by the holders of a majority in interest of the Parent Common Stock then on deposit in the Escrow Fund upon not less than ten (10) days�
prior written notice to Parent. No bond shall be required of the Stockholder Agent. The Stockholder Agent shall receive compensation for his
services in the amount of $200 per hour, and a minimum of $25,000 if a suit is brought by any party pursuant to Section 9.6(b). Such amounts to
be paid to the Stockholder Agent, along with any administrative fees and professional fees, including legal and accounting fees, incurred by the
Stockholder Agent in the performance of his services, shall be paid from shares or other property in the Escrow Fund; provided, however, that
subject to Section 9.7(b) payments from the Escrow Fund for such services shall not exceed $100,000 in the aggregate.

(b) The Stockholder Agent shall not be liable to any Effective Time Company Stockholder or any other former holder of Company Capital Stock
for any act done or omitted hereunder as the Stockholder Agent while acting in good faith (and any act done or omitted pursuant to the advice of
counsel shall be conclusive evidence of such good faith) and without gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Effective Time Company
Stockholders shall be severally liable for the Shareholder Agent�s compensation and shall severally indemnify the Stockholder Agent and hold
him harmless from and against any loss, liability or expense incurred without gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith on the part of the
Stockholder Agent and arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of his duties hereunder, including any out-of-pocket
costs and expenses and legal fees and other legal costs reasonably incurred by the Stockholder Agent. If not paid directly to the Stockholder
Agent by the Effective Time Company Stockholders or from the Escrow Fund pursuant to Section 9.7(a), such losses, liabilities or expenses may
be recovered by the Stockholder Agent from shares or other property in the Escrow Fund otherwise distributable to the Effective Time Company
Stockholders (and not distributed or distributable to a Parent Indemnified Party or subject to a pending indemnification claim of a Parent
Indemnified Party) following the one (1) year anniversary of the Closing Date pursuant to the terms hereof and of the Escrow Agreement, at the
time of distribution, and such recovery will be made from the Effective Time Company Stockholders according to their respective pro rata
shares of the Escrow Fund.

(c) Any notice or communication given or received by, and any decision, action, failure to act within a designated period of time, agreement,
consent, settlement, resolution or instruction of, the Stockholder Agent that is within the scope of the Stockholder Agent�s authority under this
Article IX shall constitute a notice or communication to or by, or a decision, action, failure to act within a designated period of time, agreement,
consent, settlement, resolution or instruction of all the Effective Time Company Stockholders and shall be final, binding and conclusive upon
each such Effective Time Company Stockholder. Each Parent Indemnified Party shall be entitled to rely upon any such notice, communication,
decision, action, failure to act within a designated period of time, agreement, consent, settlement, resolution or instruction as being a notice or
communication to or by, or a decision, action, failure to act within a designated period of time, agreement, consent, settlement, resolution or
instruction of, each and every such Effective Time Company Stockholder.

Section 9.8 Third Party Claims.

(a) In the event Parent becomes aware of a third party claim which Parent believes may result in a claim for indemnification pursuant to
Section 9.2 by or on behalf of a Parent Indemnified Party (a �Third Party Claim�), Parent shall promptly notify the Stockholder Agent of such
Third Party Claim if such claim occurs during the Escrow Period, or each of the Indemnifying Parties that Parent (or any other Parent
Indemnified Parties) may bring a claim against if such Third Party Claim occurs after the Escrow Period. Subject to Section 9.1, no delay in
notifying the Stockholder Agent or any other Indemnifying Party of such Third Party Claim in accordance with the terms hereof shall affect a
Parent Indemnified Party�s rights
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hereunder, unless (and then only to the extent that) the Stockholder Agent or any other applicable Indemnifying Parties are materially prejudiced
thereby.

(b) Parent shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to elect to conduct the defense of any Third Party Claim (and the reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by Parent in connection with such defense (including reasonable attorneys� fees, other professionals� and experts� fees and court
or arbitration costs) shall be included in the Losses for which the Parent Indemnified Parties may seek indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2).
The Stockholder Agent (during the Escrow Period) and any other Indemnifying Party against whom any Parent Indemnified Party has brought a
claim for indemnification arising out of such Third Party Claim (after the Escrow Period) shall have the right to receive promptly copies of all
pleadings, notices and communications with respect to such Third Party Claim to the extent that receipt of such documents does not in the
reasonable and good faith judgment of Parent affect any privilege relating to any Parent Indemnified Party, and each such Indemnifying Party
shall be entitled, at its expense, to participate in, but not to determine or conduct, any defense of any such Third Party Claim with respect to any
such Third Party Claim.

(c) Notification and Reference of Third-Party Claims.

(i) In the event Parent is served with a Third Party Claim, Parent shall notify the Stockholder Agent of such Third Party Claim, and the
Stockholder Agent, as representative for the Effective Time Company Stockholders, shall be entitled, at the expense of the Effective Time
Company Stockholders, to participate in any defense of such Third Party Claim. Parent shall have the right in its sole discretion to settle any
Third Party Claim following consultation with the Stockholder Agent; provided, however, that if such settlement was obtained without the
Stockholder Agent�s consent, and such consent was neither unreasonably withheld, conditioned nor delayed, Parent shall not be entitled to
recover from the Escrow Fund unless and until Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall have agreed upon the amount of the Third Party Claim to
be paid from the Escrow Fund or Parent is determined to be entitled to such payment upon the completion of the dispute resolution process set
forth in Section 9.6. In the event that the Stockholder Agent has consented to any such settlement, the amount of such settlement shall be
conclusively and irrebuttably presumed to be reasonable, and the Stockholder Agent shall not make, and the arbitrators shall have no power or
authority to hear, any objection under any provision of this Article IX to the amount of any claim by Parent against the Escrow Fund with respect
to the amount of Losses incurred by Parent in such settlement.

(ii) In the event the Stockholder Agent or an Effective Time Company Stockholder is served with a Third Party Claim, such Effective Time
Company Stockholder shall notify the Stockholder Agent and Parent of such Third Party Claim, and the Stockholder Agent shall be entitled, at
the expense of the Effective Time Company Stockholder, to participate in any defense of such Third Party Claim. Parent shall have the right in
its sole discretion to settle any Third Party Claim following consultation with the Stockholder Agent; provided, however, that if such settlement
was obtained without the Stockholder Agent�s consent, and such consent was neither unreasonably withheld, conditioned nor delayed, Parent
shall not be entitled to recover from the Escrow Fund unless and until Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall have agreed upon the amount of
the Third Party Claim to be paid from the Escrow Fund or Parent is determined to be entitled to such payment upon the completion of the
dispute resolution process set forth in Section 9.6. In the event that the Stockholder Agent has consented to any such settlement, the amount of
such settlement shall be conclusively and irrebuttably presumed to be reasonable, and the Stockholder Agent shall not make, and the arbitrators
shall have no power or authority to hear, any objection under any provision of this Article IX to the amount of any claim by the Effective Time
Company Stockholder against Parent with respect to the amount of Losses incurred by the Effective Time Company Stockholder in such
settlement.
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ARTICLE X

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 10.1 Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants. None of the representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements
of Parent in this Agreement or in any certificate or other instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the Effective Time,
except for the covenants and other agreements contained in Article I and Article II, and Section 6.6 (Reasonable Best Efforts to Complete);
Section 6.7 (Public Announcements); Section 6.8 (Company Employee Benefits; Company 401(k) Plan); Section 6.9 (Company Stock Plans),
Section 6.10 (Indemnification and Insurance), Section 6.12 (Tax Matters), Section 6.17 (Working Capital Loan), Section 8.2 (Effect of
Termination) and Section 8.3 (Fees and Expenses); and Article IX and Article X. The Confidentiality Agreement shall survive the execution and
delivery of this Agreement or the termination of this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, as the case may be,
pursuant to its terms and conditions.

Section 10.2 Notices. All notices and other communications given or made pursuant hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given or made if and when delivered personally or by overnight courier to the parties at the following addresses or sent by electronic
transmission, with confirmation received, to the telecopy numbers specified below (or at such other address or telecopy number for a party as
shall be specified by like notice):

(a) If to Parent or Merger Sub:

1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, California 95035

Attention: John D. Heaton

Facsimile No.: 408.232.5910

Telephone No.: 408.435.9600

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation

650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, California 94304-1050

Attention: Aaron J. Alter

                    Julia Reigel
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Facsimile No.: 650-493-6811

Telephone No.: 650-493-9300

(b) If to the Company:

131 NW Hawthorne Avenue, Suite 101

Bend, Oregon 97701

Attention: Bruce C. Rhine

Facsimile No.:

Telephone No.: (541) 322-2500

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Perkins Coie LLP

1120 NW Couch, 10th Floor

Portland, Oregon 97209

Attention: Neil M. Nathanson

Facsimile No.: (503) 727-2222

Telephone No.: (503) 727-2000
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(c) If to the Stockholder Agent:

Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc.

1000 Alfred Nobel Drive

Hercules, California 94547

Attn: Sanford S. Wadler

Vice President and General Counsel

Facsimile No.: (510) 741-5815

Telephone No.: (510) 741-6005

Any such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been delivered and received (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of such
delivery, (ii) in the case of facsimile, on the date sent if confirmation of receipt is received and such notice is also promptly mailed by registered
or certified mail (return receipt requested), (iii) in the case of a nationally-recognized overnight courier in circumstances under which such
courier guarantees next business day delivery, on the next business day after the date when sent and (iv) in the case of mailing, on the third
business day following that on which the piece of mail containing such communication is posted.

Section 10.3 Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the term:

(a) �Acquisition Proposal� means any inquiry, proposal or offer, filing of any regulatory application or notice (whether in draft or final form) or
disclosure of an intention to do any of the foregoing from any person relating to an Acquisition Transaction.

(b) �Acquisition Transaction� means any (i) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of a business that constitutes a substantial portion of the net
revenues, net income or assets of the Company or any of its �significant subsidiaries� (as defined under Regulation S-X of the Securities Act) or
(ii) merger, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving the Company in which
the stockholders of the Company prior to such transaction own less than a majority of the voting power of the Company following such
transaction, in each case other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(c) �Action or Proceeding� means any action, suit, complaint, petition, investigation, proceeding, arbitration, litigation or Governmental or
Regulatory Authority investigation, audit or other proceeding, whether civil or criminal, in law or in equity, or before any arbitrator or
Governmental or Regulatory Authority.

(d) �Affiliate� means a person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the first mentioned person.
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(e) �Antitrust Law� means the Sherman Act, as amended, the Clayton Act, as amended, the HSR Act, the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, the EC Merger Regulations and all other federal, state and foreign statutes, rules, regulations, orders, decrees, administrative and
judicial doctrines, and other Laws that are designed or intended to prohibit, restrict or regulate actions having the purpose or effect of
monopolization or restraint of trade.

(f) �Beneficial Owner� with respect to any shares of Company Common Stock means a person who shall be deemed to be the beneficial owner of
such shares pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act.

(g) �Business Day� means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or any day on which banks in the State of New York are required or authorized
to be closed.

(h) �CCC� means California Corporations Code.

(i) �COBRA� means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended and as codified in Section 4980B of the Code and
Section 601 et. seq. of ERISA.
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(j) �Company Financial Statements� means the Audited Company Financial Statements, Company September Financial Statements and Later
Company Financial Statements.

(k) �Company Intellectual Property� means any and all Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property Rights that are owned by or purported to be
owned by or exclusively licensed to the Company.

(l) �Company Material Adverse Effect� means any change, effect or circumstance that (i) is materially adverse to the business, operations,
properties condition (financial or otherwise) or capitalization of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) materially and
adversely affects the ability of the Company to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that in no event shall any
of the following, either alone or in combination, be deemed to constitute, nor shall any of the following be taken into account in determining
whether there has been or will or could be, a Company Material Adverse Effect: (A) any changes resulting from or arising out of general market,
economic or political conditions (including any changes arising out of acts of terrorism, war, weather conditions or other force majeure events),
provided that such changes do not have a substantially disproportionate impact on the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (B) any
changes resulting from or arising out of general market, economic or political conditions in the industries in which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries conduct business (including any changes arising out of acts of terrorism, war, weather conditions or other force majeure events),
provided that such changes do not have a substantially disproportionate impact on the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (C) any
changes resulting from or arising out of actions taken pursuant to (and required by) this Agreement or at the request of Parent or the failure to
take any actions due to restrictions set forth in this Agreement and (D) any changes or effects arising out of or resulting from any legal claims or
other proceedings made by any of the Company�s stockholders arising out of or related to this Agreement, the Merger or any other transactions
contemplated hereby.

(m) �Company Product(s)� means all products, technologies and services developed (including products, technologies and services under
development), owned, made, provided, distributed, imported, sold or licensed by or on behalf of the Company.

(n) �Company Stock Plan� means the Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan, adopted October 4, 2000, as amended.

(o) �Control� (including the terms �controlled by� and �under common control with�) means the possession, directly or indirectly or as trustee or
executor, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a person, whether through the ownership of stock, as
trustee or executor, by contract or credit arrangement or otherwise.

(p) �Employee Benefit Plan� means any �employee pension benefit plan� (as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA), any �employee welfare benefit plan�
(as defined in Section 3(1) of ERISA), and any other written or oral plan, agreement or arrangement involving compensation, including
insurance coverage, severance benefits, disability benefits, deferred compensation, bonuses, stock options, stock purchase, phantom stock, stock
appreciation or other forms of fringe benefits, perquisites, incentive compensation or post-retirement or change in control compensation and all
employment, change in control, severance or similar agreements, written or otherwise, for the benefit of, or relating to, any current or former
employee, officer or director of the Company or Parent, as applicable, or any of its ERISA Affiliates, as applicable.

(q) �ERISA� means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
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(r) �ERISA Affiliate� means any entity which is, or at any applicable time was, a member of (A) a controlled group of corporations (as defined in
Section 414(b) of the Code), (B) a group of trades or businesses under common control (as defined in Section 414(c) of the Code) or (C) an
affiliated service group (as defined under Section 414(m) of the Code or the regulations under Section 414(o) of the Code), any of which
includes or included the Company or Parent, as applicable.

(s) �FMLA� means the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended.

A-66

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 208



Table of Contents

(t) �Include� or �including� means �include, without limitation� or �including, without limitation,� as the case may be, and the language following
�include� or �including� shall not be deemed to set forth an exhaustive list.

(u) �Intellectual Property� means Technology and/or Intellectual Property Rights.

(v) �Intellectual Property Rights� means worldwide common law and statutory rights associated with (i) patents, patent applications and inventors�
certificates, (ii) copyrights, copyright registrations and copyright applications, �moral� rights and mask work rights, (iii) the protection of trade and
industrial secrets and confidential information, (iv) other proprietary rights relating to intangible intellectual property, (v) trademarks, trade
names and service marks, (vi) divisions, continuations, renewals, reissuances and extensions of the foregoing (as applicable) and (vii) analogous
rights to those set forth above, including the right to enforce and recover remedies for any of the foregoing.

(w) �knowledge� of a matter means actual knowledge of such matter by officers of Parent or the Company, as the case may be.

(x) �Law� with respect to any person means any applicable foreign or domestic federal, state, provincial, local, municipal or other law, statute,
code, treaty, ordinance, rule, regulation, administrative, executive or other order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) of any
Governmental Entity, judgment, writ, stipulation, award, injunction, decree or arbitration award or finding entered or imposed by any
Governmental Entity, in any case that are in force as of the date hereof or which come into force during the term of this Agreement.

(y) �Loss� means any and all losses, liabilities, damages, fees, fines, Taxes, penalties, deficiencies, fees and expenses, including interest thereon,
reasonable expenses of investigation, court costs, reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys, accountants and other experts and other expenses of
any Action or Proceeding or of any claim, default or assessment (such fees and expenses to include all fees and expenses, including fees and
expenses of attorneys, incurred in connection with (i) the investigation or defense of any third party claim and (ii) asserting or disputing any
right under this Agreement against any party hereto or otherwise).

(z) �Parent Material Adverse Effect� means any change, effect or circumstance that (i) is materially adverse to the business, operations, properties
condition (financial or otherwise) or capitalization of Parent and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) materially and adversely affects the
ability of Parent to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that in no event shall any of the following, either
alone or in combination, be deemed to constitute, nor shall any of the following be taken into account in determining whether there has been or
will or could be, a Parent Material Adverse Effect: (A) any changes resulting from or arising out of general market, economic or political
conditions (including any changes arising out of acts of terrorism, war, weather conditions or other force majeure events), provided that such
changes do not have a substantially disproportionate impact on Parent and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (B) any changes resulting from or
arising out of general market, economic or political conditions in the industries in which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries conduct business
(including any changes arising out of acts of terrorism, war, weather conditions or other force majeure events), provided that such changes do
not have a substantially disproportionate impact on Parent and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (C) any changes resulting from or arising out of
actions taken pursuant to (and required by) this Agreement or at the request of the Company or the failure to take any actions due to restrictions
set forth in this Agreement, (D) any changes in the price or trading volume of Parent�s stock, in and of itself (it being understood that the facts or
occurrences giving rise or contributing to such changes may be deemed to constitute, or be taken into account in determining whether there has
been or would reasonably be expected to be, a Parent Material Adverse Effect, using the same standard as set forth in subsections (i) and (ii) of
this sentence), (E) any failure by Parent to meet published revenue or earnings projections, in and of itself (it being understood that the facts or
occurrences giving rise or contributing to such failure may be deemed to constitute, or be taken into account in determining whether there has
been or would reasonably be expected to be, a Parent Material Adverse Effect, using the same standard as set forth in subsections (i) and (ii) of
this sentence), (F) any amendments to or restatements of the Parent Financial
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Statements or other effects arising from the matters set forth in Parent�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 27, 2005, as amended, and
(G) any changes or effects arising out of or resulting from any legal claims or other proceedings made by any of Parent�s shareholders arising out
of or related to this Agreement, the Merger or any other transactions contemplated hereby.

(aa) �Person� means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, trust, unincorporated organization, other entity or group (as defined in
Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act).

(bb) �Registered Intellectual Property� means U.S. and foreign (i) patents and pending patent applications, (ii) trademark registrations (including
Internet domain registrations) and pending trademark applications, and (iii) copyright registrations and pending copyright applications.

(cc) �Shrink-Wrap Code� means generally commercially available binary code (other than development tools and development environments)
where available for a cost of not more than U.S. $5,000 for a perpetual license for a single user or work station (or $50,000 in the aggregate for
all users and work stations).

(dd) �Subsidiary� means, with respect to any party, any corporation or other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, of which
(A) such party or any other Subsidiary of such party is a general partner, manager or managing member, (B) such party or any Subsidiary of
such party owns at least 50% of the outstanding equity or voting securities or interests or (C) such party or any Subsidiary of such party has the
right to elect at least a majority of the board of directors or others performing similar functions with respect to such corporation or other
organization.

(ee) �Superior Proposal� means any Acquisition Proposal that the Board of Directors of the party receiving it reasonably determines in good faith
(based on (i) the advice of its independent financial advisor or another nationally recognized financial advisor and its outside legal counsel, and
(ii) the terms and conditions of such proposal, the financial, legal and regulatory aspects of such proposal and the Person making such proposal)
(A) is more favorable to such party�s shareholders than the Merger or any counterproposal made by the other party hereto pursuant to Section 7.3,
(B) is capable of being consummated in a timely manner in the terms being proposed, and (C) is fully capable of being financed by the Person
making such proposal, to the extent required, or for which financing has been committed by a reputable financing source, to the extent required.

(ff) �Tax� or �Taxes� means (i) taxes, fees, assessments, liabilities, levies, duties, tariffs, imposts and governmental impositions or charges of any
kind in the nature of (or similar to) taxes, payable to any federal, state, local or foreign taxing authority, or any agency or subdivision thereof,
including income, franchise, profits, gross receipts, ad valorem, net worth, value added, sales, use, service, real or personal property, special
assessments, capital stock, license, payroll, withholding, employment, social security, workers� compensation, unemployment compensation,
utility, severance, production, excise, stamp, occupation, premiums, windfall profits, transfer and gains taxes, and including all interest,
penalties, fines, additional taxes and additions to tax imposed with respect to any of the foregoing; (ii) any liability for the payment of any
amounts of the type described in the foregoing clause (i) as a result of being a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group
for any period, and (iii) any liability for the payment of any amounts of the type described in the foregoing clauses (i) or (ii) as a result of any
express or implied obligation to indemnify any other person or as a result of any obligations under any agreements or arrangements with any
other person with respect to such amounts and including any liability for taxes of a predecessor or transferor entity.

(gg) �Tax Returns� means returns, reports and information statements with respect to Taxes required to be filed with a taxing authority, domestic
or foreign, including, consolidated, combined or unitary tax returns and any amendments to any of the foregoing.
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whether embodied in software, firmware or otherwise, architecture, documentation, designs, files, records, and data, (ii) inventions (whether or
not patentable),
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discoveries, improvements, and technology, (iii) proprietary and confidential information, trade secrets and know how, (iv) databases, data
compilations and collections and technical data, (v) logos, trade names, trade dress, trademarks and service marks, (vi) domain names, web
addresses and sites, (vii) tools, methods and processes, (viii) devices, prototypes, schematics, breadboards, netlists, maskworks, test
methodologies, verilog files, emulation and simulation reports, test vectors and hardware development tools, (ix) technology items, and (x) any
and all instantiations of the foregoing in any form and embodied in any media.

(ii) �UK Subsidiary� means Accent Optical Technologies (U.K.) Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Section 10.4 Certain Interpretations. For purposes of this Agreement:

(a) Unless otherwise specified, all references in this Agreement to Articles, Sections, Schedules and Exhibits shall be deemed to refer to Articles,
Sections, Schedules and Exhibits to this Agreement.

(b) The words �include,� �includes� and �including� when used herein shall be deemed in each case to be followed by the words �without limitation�.

(c) Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Agreement to Parent (including any reference to Parent as
a �party� shall be deemed to include Parent and its Subsidiaries, and all references in this Agreement to the Company (including any reference to
the Company as a �party�) shall be deemed to include the Company and its Subsidiaries.

(d) The phrase �fraud or willful misconduct� includes any willful or intentional breach or violation of, or any willful or intentional
misrepresentation, omission or inaccuracy in, any representation or warranty of the Company contained in this Agreement or any certificate
delivered to Parent pursuant to any provision of this Agreement.

(e) All references in this Agreement to the Subsidiaries of an entity shall be deemed to include all direct and indirect Subsidiaries of such entity.

(f) The table of contents and the headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the
meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(g) The parties hereto agree that they have been represented by legal counsel during the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and,
therefore, waive the application of any Law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an agreement or other
document shall be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document.

Section 10.5 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto by action taken by or on behalf of their respective Boards of
Directors at any time prior to the Effective Time; provided, however, that, after approval of the Merger by the stockholders of the Company, no
amendment may be made which by Law requires further approval by such stockholders without such further approval. This Agreement may not
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be amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto.

Section 10.6 Extension; Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time, the parties hereto, by action taken or authorized by their respective
Boards of Directors, may to the extent legally allowed, (a) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of any
other party hereto, (b) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of any other party hereto contained herein or in any
document delivered pursuant hereto or (c) waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions of any other party hereto contained
herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto to any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing
signed on behalf of such party.

Section 10.7 Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of Law,
or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic
or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any
term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith
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to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable manner to the end that the
transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the fullest extent possible.

Section 10.8 Entire Agreement; No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement (including the documents and instruments referred to herein,
including the Confidentiality Agreement) (a) constitutes the entire agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both
written and oral, among the parties, or any of them, with respect to the subject matter hereof, and (b) is not intended to confer upon any person
(regardless of any reference to such person in this Agreement) other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder, other than the
persons intended to benefit from the provisions of Section 6.10 (Indemnification and Insurance), who shall have the right to enforce such
provisions directly.

Section 10.9 Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or executed or delivered in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, any reference in this agreement to any party or other party to this agreement shall include only Parent, Merger
Sub and the Company and shall not include and Effective Time Company Stockholder unless specifically stated otherwise.

Section 10.10 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned by operation of Law or otherwise, except that Parent and Merger Sub may
assign all or any of their rights hereunder to any wholly owned subsidiary thereof; provided, however, that no such assignment pursuant to this
Section 10.10 shall relieve Parent or Merger Sub of their respective obligations hereunder.

Section 10.11 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in the exercise of any
right hereunder shall impair such right or be construed to be a waiver of, or acquiescence in, any breach of any representation, warranty or
agreement herein, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or of any other right. All
rights and remedies existing under this Agreement are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise available.

Section 10.12 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal Laws of the State of
Delaware, without regard to the conflict of Law provisions thereof; provided, however, that matters relative to the Board of the Parent shall be
governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal Laws of the State of California. Each Party hereby consents to the institution and
resolution of any action or proceeding of any kind or nature with respect to or arising out of this agreement brought by any Party hereto in the
federal or state courts located within the State of Delaware.

Section 10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, and by the different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
agreement.

Section 10.14 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF PARENT, MERGER SUB AND THE COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES
ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT,
TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HERBY OR THE ACTIONS OF PARENT, MERGER SUB OR THE COMPANY IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION,
PERFORMANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT.
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Section 10.15 Specific Performance. The parties agree that irreparable damage would occur and that the parties would not have any adequate
remedy at Law in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were
otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are
entitled at Law or in equity.
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Section 10.16 Disclosure Schedules.

(a) The information set forth in each section or subsection of the Company Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed to provide the information
contemplated by, or otherwise qualify, the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in the corresponding section or subsection of
this Agreement and any other section or subsection of Article III if and to the extent that it is reasonably apparent on the face of the disclosure
that it applies to such other section or subsection of Article III.

(b) The information set forth in each section or subsection of the Parent Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed to provide the information
contemplated by, or otherwise qualify, the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub set forth in the corresponding section or
subsection of this Agreement and any other section or subsection of Article IV if and to the extent that it is reasonably apparent on the face of the
disclosure that it applies to such other section or subsection of Article IV.

(c) No amendment, supplement or update after the date of this Agreement shall be made to the Company Disclosure Schedule without the
express written consent of Parent and no amendment, supplement or update made or delivered (or purporting to be made or delivered) after the
date of this Agreement without such consent shall have any effect on any of the rights or obligations of the Company or Parent, respectively.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parent Merger Sub, and the Company, and solely with respect to Article IX, the Stockholder Agent have caused this
Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

By /s/    JOHN D. HEATON        

Name: John D. Heaton
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

ALLOY MERGER CORPORATION

By /s/    JOHN D. HEATON        

Name: John D. Heaton
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

ACCENT OPTICAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By /s/    BRUCE C. RHINE        

Name: Bruce C. Rhine
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

STOCKHOLDER AGENT

By /s/    SANFORD S. WADLER        

Name: Sanford S. Wadler
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Annex B-1

PARENT SHAREHOLDER VOTING AGREEMENT

THIS PARENT SHAREHOLDER VOTING AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�) is entered into as of January 25, 2006, by and between Accent
Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Company�), and the undersigned shareholder (the �Shareholder�) of Nanometrics
Incorporated, a California corporation (Parent).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, Parent, Alloy Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (�Merger Sub�), the Company
and Sanford Waller (the �Stockholder Agent�) are entering into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the �Reorganization
Agreement�) concurrently herewith pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the �Merger�), whereupon (A) the
Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent, and (B) all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company will be converted
into the right to receive a number of shares of common stock of Parent as set forth therein.

WHEREAS, the Shareholder is the beneficial owner (as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the �Exchange Act�)) of the shares of capital stock of Parent, and options to acquire shares of capital stock of Parent, each as set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, in order to induce the Company to enter into the Reorganization Agreement and in consideration of the execution of the
Reorganization Agreement by the Company, the Shareholder (solely in his capacity as such) is hereby agreeing to vote the Shares (as defined
below), so as to facilitate the consummation of the Merger.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants and agreements set forth in the Reorganization Agreement and in this
Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted, the parties
hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the
Reorganization Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings:

(a) �Expiration Date� shall mean the earlier to occur of (i) such date and time as the Reorganization Agreement shall have been validly terminated
in accordance with its terms and conditions, or (ii) such date and time as the Merger shall become effective in accordance with its terms and
conditions.

(b) �Person� shall mean any individual, any corporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership, business trust, unincorporated
association or other business organization or entity, or any governmental body or authority.

(c) �Shares� shall mean (i) all voting securities of Parent beneficially owned by the Shareholder as of the date of this Agreement and (ii) all voting
securities of Parent which the Shareholder purchases or acquires beneficial ownership of after the date of this Agreement and prior to the
Expiration Date, including, without limitation, any shares issued or issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange, as the case may be, of
any shares held by the Shareholder which are convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for, voting securities of Parent; provided,
however, that any voting securities of Parent subject to a trading or sales plan for the benefit of the Shareholder established pursuant to Rule
10b5-1 under the Exchange Act prior to the date of this Agreement shall not be �Shares� for purposes of this Agreement.
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(d) �Transfer� shall mean a direct or indirect: (i) sale, pledge, encumbrance, grant of an option with respect to, transfer or disposal of a security or
any interest in such security, or (ii) entrance into an agreement or commitment providing for the sale of, pledge of, encumbrance of, grant of an
option with respect to, transfer of or disposition of such security or any interest therein.

2. Transfer of Shares.

(a) Transferee of Shares to be Bound by this Agreement. The Shareholder hereby agrees that, at all times during the period commencing with the
execution and delivery of this Agreement until the Expiration Date, the Shareholder shall not cause or permit any Transfer of any of the Shares
(or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in the foregoing, to be effected unless each Person
to whom any of such Shares (or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in any of the
foregoing, is or may be Transferred shall have (i) executed a counterpart of this Agreement and an irrevocable proxy in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit A (the �Proxy�), and (ii) agreed in writing to hold such Shares (or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for
Shares), or such interest in the foregoing, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) Transfer of Voting Rights. The Shareholder hereby agrees that, at all times during the period commencing with the execution and delivery of
this Agreement until the Expiration Date, the Shareholder shall not deposit (or permit the deposit of) any Shares (or any securities convertible
into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in the foregoing, in a voting trust or grant any proxy, or enter into any voting
agreement or similar agreement or arrangement in contravention of the obligations of the Shareholder under this Agreement with respect to any
of the Shares (or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in the foregoing.

3. Agreement to Vote Shares. The Shareholder hereby agrees that, at all times during the period commencing with the execution and delivery of
this Agreement until the Expiration Date, at every meeting of the shareholders of Parent called with respect to any of the following, and at every
adjournment or postponement thereof, and on every action or approval by written consent of the shareholders of Parent, the Shareholder shall
vote, to the extent not voted by the person(s) appointed under the Proxy (as defined in Section 4 hereof), the Shares in favor of the adoption and
approval of the Reorganization Agreement and the approval of the Merger, and in favor of each of the other actions contemplated by the
Reorganization Agreement and any action required in furtherance thereof. Prior to the Expiration Date, the Shareholder shall not enter into any
agreement or understanding with any person to vote or give instructions in any manner inconsistent with the terms of this Section 3.

4. Irrevocable Proxy. The Shareholder hereby agrees to deliver to the Company, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement,
the Proxy in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, which shall be irrevocable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, with respect to
the Shares. The Shareholder agrees that such Proxy is executed and intended to be irrevocable in accordance with provisions of Section 705 of
the California Corporations Code.

5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Shareholder. The Shareholder hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Parent as
follows:

(a) The Shareholder is the beneficial or record owner of, or exercises voting power over, the Shares. The Shares constitute the Shareholder�s
entire interest in the outstanding shares of voting securities of Parent and the Shareholder does not hold any other outstanding shares of capital
stock of Parent. No person not a signatory to this Agreement has a beneficial interest in or a right to acquire or vote any of the Shares (other
than, (i) if the Shareholder is a partnership, the rights and interest of persons and entities that own partnership interests in the Shareholder under
the partnership agreement governing the Shareholder and applicable partnership law or (ii) if the Shareholder is a married individual and resides
in a State with community property laws, the community property interest of his or her spouse to the extent applicable under such community
property laws). The Shares are and will be at all times up until the Expiration Date free and clear of any security interests, liens, claims,
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pledges, options, rights of first refusal, co-sale rights, agreements, limitations on the Shareholder�s voting rights, charges and other encumbrances
of any nature (�Encumbrances�) that would adversely affect the Merger or the exercise or fulfillment of the rights and obligations of Parent under
the Reorganization Agreement or of the parties to this Agreement. The Shareholder�s principal residence or place of business is set forth on the
signature page hereto.

(b) The Shareholder has all requisite power, capacity and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its obligations under this
Agreement. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder and the consummation by the Shareholder of the transactions
contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action, if any, on the part of the Shareholder. This Agreement has been duly
executed and delivered by the Shareholder and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Shareholder, enforceable against the Shareholder
in accordance with its terms, subject only to the effect, if any, of (a) applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors
generally and (b) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

(c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not, and the Shareholder�s performance of the obligations under this
Agreement will not: (i) conflict with, or result in any violation of any order, decree or judgment applicable to the Shareholder or by which the
Shareholder or any of the Shareholder�s properties or the Shares are bound; (ii) result in any breach of or constitute a default (with notice or lapse
of time, or both) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of any contract to which the
Shareholder is a party or by which the Shareholder or any of the Shareholder�s properties (including the Shares) is bound or affected; or
(iii) result in the creation of any Encumbrance on any of the Shares. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not,
and the performance of this Agreement by the Shareholder will not, require the consent of any third party.

(d) There is (i) no action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation pending before any Governmental Entity or, to the Shareholder�s
actual knowledge, threatened against, and (ii) no judgment, decree or order against, (A) the Shareholder, or (B) any of (1) the Shareholder�s
affiliates, (2) the Shareholder�s or its affiliates� respective properties, (3) the Shareholder�s officers or directors (in the case of a corporate entity (in
their capacities as such)), or (4) the Shareholder�s respective partners (in the case of a partnership), in the case of each of (i) and (ii) that,
individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to materially delay or impair the Shareholder�s ability to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

6. Consent and Waiver. The Shareholder hereby gives any consents or waivers that are reasonably required for the consummation of the Merger
under the terms of any agreement or instrument to which the Shareholder is a party or subject or in respect of any rights the Shareholder may
have in connection with the Merger or the other transactions provided for in the Reorganization Agreement (whether such rights exist under the
articles of incorporation or bylaws of the Company, any contract or commitment of the Company under statutory or common law or otherwise).
Without limiting the generality or effect of the foregoing, the Shareholder hereby waives any and all rights to contest or object to the execution
and delivery of the Reorganization Agreement, Parent Board of Directors� actions in approving and recommending the Merger, the
consummation of the Merger and the other transactions provided for in the Reorganization Agreement, or to seek damages or other legal or
equitable relief in connection therewith.

7. Additional Documents. The Shareholder hereby agrees to execute and deliver any additional documents necessary or desirable, in the
reasonable opinion of the Company, to carry out the intent of this Agreement.

8. Confidentiality. The Shareholder shall hold any information regarding this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, in strict confidence and shall not divulge any such information to any third person until such time as the
Merger has been publicly disclosed by the Company. Neither the Shareholder, nor any of its affiliates shall issue or cause the publication of any
press release or other public announcement with respect to this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement or the other transactions
contemplated thereby without the prior written consent of the Parent, except as may be required by law or by any listing agreement with, or the
policies of, the Nasdaq Stock Market or an applicable
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national securities exchange in which circumstance such announcing party shall make reasonable efforts to consult with the Company to the
extent practicable.

9. Appraisal Rights. The Shareholder agrees not to exercise any rights of appraisal or any dissenters� rights that the Shareholder may have
(whether under applicable law or otherwise) or could potentially have or acquire in connection with the Merger.

10. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate and shall have no further force or effect after the Expiration Date. Upon such termination, no
party shall have any further obligations or liabilities hereunder; provided, however, such termination shall not relieve any party from liability for
any breach of this Agreement prior to such termination.

11. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given on (i) the date of delivery, if
delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or (ii) on the date of confirmation of receipt (or the next Business Day, if the date of
confirmation of receipt is not a Business Day), if sent via facsimile (with confirmation of receipt), to the parties hereto at the following address
(or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(i) if to the Company, to:
Accent Optical Technologies, Inc.

131 NW Hawthorne

Suite 207

Bend, OR 97701

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

Facsimile No.: 541.318.1966

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Perkins Coie LLP

1120 N.W. Couch, Tenth Floor

Portland, Oregon 97209

(503) 727-2000

Attention: Neil M. Nathanson

Facsimile No.: 503.727.2222

(ii) if to the Shareholder, to the address set forth for the Shareholder on the signature page hereof.
(b) Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Sections or Exhibits, such reference shall be to a Section of or an Exhibit to
this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The words �include,� �includes� and �including� when used herein shall be deemed in each case to be
followed by the words �without limitation.� The phrases �the date of this Agreement�, �the date hereof�, and terms of similar import, unless the
context otherwise requires, shall be deemed to refer to the date first above written.
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(c) Specific Performance; Injunctive Relief. The parties hereto acknowledge that the Company will be irreparably harmed and that there will be
no adequate remedy at law for a violation of any of the covenants or agreements of the Shareholder set forth herein. Therefore, it is agreed that,
in addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Company upon any such violation of this Agreement, the Company shall have the
right to enforce such covenants and agreements by specific performance, injunctive relief or by any other means available to the Company at law
or in equity and the Shareholder hereby waives any and all defenses which could exist in its favor in connection with such enforcement and
waives any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with such enforcement.
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(d) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same instrument
and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties hereto; it
being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.

(e) Entire Agreement; Nonassignability; Parties in Interest. This Agreement and the documents and instruments and other agreements
specifically referred to herein or delivered pursuant hereto (including the Proxy) (i) constitute the entire agreement among the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties with respect
to the subject matter hereof and (ii) are not intended to confer, and shall not be construed as conferring, upon any person other than the parties
hereto any rights or remedies hereunder. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests, or obligations under this Agreement may be
assigned or delegated, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, by the Shareholder without the prior written consent of the
Company, and any such assignment or delegation that is not consented to shall be null and void. This Agreement, together with any rights,
interests or obligations of the Company hereunder, may be assigned or delegated in whole or in part by the Company without the consent of or
any action by the Shareholder upon notice by the Company to the Shareholder as herein provided. Subject to the preceding sentence, this
Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns
(including any person to whom any Shares are sold, transferred or assigned).

(f) Amendment; Waiver. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the parties hereto may amend this Agreement at any time pursuant to an
instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto. At any time, any party hereto may, to the extent legally allowed, waive any
inaccuracies in the representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and waive
compliance with any of the agreements or conditions for the benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto
to any such waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on behalf of such party. Without limiting the generality or
effect of the preceding sentence, no delay in exercising any right under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right, and no waiver of
any breach or default shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach or default of the same or any other provision in this Agreement.

(g) Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, becomes or is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and shall be interpreted so
as reasonably to effect the intent of the parties hereto. The parties hereto further agree to use their commercially reasonable efforts to replace
such void or unenforceable provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision that shall achieve, to the extent possible, the
economic, business and other purposes of such void or unenforceable provision.

(h) Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided herein, any and all remedies herein expressly conferred upon a party shall be deemed
cumulative with and not exclusive of any other remedy conferred hereby, or by law or equity upon such party, and the exercise by a party of any
one remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

(i) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California without reference
to such state�s principles of conflicts of law. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of any court located
within the State of California, in connection with any matter based upon or arising out of this Agreement or the matters contemplated herein,
agrees that process may be served upon them in any manner authorized by the laws of the State of California for such persons and waives and
covenants not to assert or plead any objection which they might otherwise have to such jurisdiction and such process.

(j) Rules of Construction. The parties hereto agree that they have been represented by counsel during the negotiation, preparation and execution
of this Agreement and, therefore, waive the application of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an
agreement or other document shall be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document.
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(k) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE)
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO IN NEGOTIATION,
ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF.

[Signature Page Follows]
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EXHIBIT A

IRREVOCABLE PROXY

TO VOTE STOCK OF

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

The undersigned shareholder of Nanometrics Incorporated, a California corporation (�Parent�), hereby irrevocably (to the fullest extent permitted
by applicable law) appoints the members of the Board of Directors of Accent Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
�Company�), and each of them, or any other designee of the Company, as the sole and exclusive attorneys and proxies of the undersigned, with
full power of substitution and resubstitution, to vote and exercise all voting and related rights (to the fullest extent that the undersigned is entitled
to do so) with respect to all of the shares of capital stock of Parent that now are or hereafter may be beneficially owned by the undersigned, and
any and all other shares or securities of Parent issued or issuable in respect thereof on or after the date hereof other than any voting securities of
Parent subject to a trading or sales plan for the benefit of the shareholder established pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act prior to
the date hereof (collectively, the �Shares�) in accordance with the terms of this irrevocable proxy (the �Irrevocable Proxy�). The Shares beneficially
owned by the undersigned shareholder of Parent as of the date of this Irrevocable Proxy are listed on the final page of this Irrevocable Proxy.
Upon the undersigned�s execution of this Irrevocable Proxy, any and all prior proxies given by the undersigned with respect to any Shares are
hereby revoked and the undersigned agrees not to grant any subsequent proxies or enter into any agreement or understanding with any person to
vote or give instructions with respect to the Shares in any manner inconsistent with the terms of this Irrevocable Proxy until after the Expiration
Date (as defined below).

This Irrevocable Proxy is irrevocable (to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law), is coupled with an interest, is granted pursuant to that
certain Voting Agreement dated as of even date herewith by and between the Company and the undersigned (the �Voting Agreement�), and is
granted in consideration of the Company entering into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of even date
herewith (the �Reorganization Agreement�), which provides for the merger (the �Merger�) of the Company with and into a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Parent (�Merger Sub�). The undersigned shareholder agrees that the Irrevocable Proxy is executed and intended to be irrevocable in accordance
with provisions of Section 705 of the California Corporations Code. As used herein, the term �Expiration Date� shall mean the earlier to occur of
(i) such date and time as the Reorganization Agreement shall have been validly terminated in accordance with its terms and conditions, or
(ii) such date and time as the Merger shall become effective in accordance with its terms and conditions.

The attorneys and proxies named above, and each of them, are hereby authorized and empowered by the undersigned, at any time prior to the
Expiration Date, to act as the undersigned�s attorney and proxy to vote the Shares, and to exercise all voting and other rights of the undersigned
with respect to the Shares (including, without limitation, the power to execute and deliver written consents pursuant to the California
Corporations Code), at every annual, special or adjourned meeting of the shareholders of the Company and in every written consent in lieu of
such meeting in favor of the adoption and approval of the Reorganization Agreement and the approval of the Merger, and in favor of each of the
other actions contemplated by the Reorganization Agreement.

The attorneys and proxies named above may not exercise this Irrevocable Proxy on any other matter except as provided above. The undersigned
shareholder may vote the Shares on all other matters.

All authority herein conferred shall survive the death or incapacity of the undersigned and any obligation of the undersigned hereunder shall be
binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Annex B-2

VOTING AGREEMENT

This Voting Agreement (this �Agreement�) is made as of January 25, 2006, by and among the undersigned holder of stock of Accent Optical
Technologies, Inc. (the �Holder�), Nanometrics Incorporated, a California corporation (�Nanometrics�) and Accent Optical Technologies, Inc., a
Delaware Corporation (�Accent�).

In order to induce Accent to negotiate and enter into an agreement for the sale of Accent, Holder and Accent agree as follows:

Section 1 Definition of Merger
For purposes of this Agreement, the term �Merger� means the merger of Accent with Nanometrics or an affiliate of Nanometrics formed for the
purpose of acquiring Accent by merger pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by and among, Nanometrics, Accent,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Nanometrics and a representative of the Accent stockholders (the �Merger Agreement�) that substantially reflects
the terms and conditions and allocation of merger proceeds set forth in the letter from Accent to Holder dated January 20, 2006 and the
Preliminary Term Sheet attached thereto.

Section 2 Agreement to Vote Shares
Holder hereby agrees that at every meeting of the stockholders of Accent called with respect to any of the following, and at every adjournment
or postponement thereof, and on every action or approval by written consent of the stockholders of Accent, Holder shall vote or direct the voting
of all shares of Capital Stock of Accent held or under the control of Holder or any affiliate of Holder (the �Covered Shares�):

� in favor of approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the Merger, and any other action or approval required in furtherance
of the Merger;

� in favor of the appointment of the Stockholder Agent;

� in favor of the approval of the escrow agreement related to the Merger;

� in favor of approval of certain compensation arrangements, if any, pursuant to Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended*;

� against any action, approval or agreement that would compete with, impede, interfere with, or adversely affect the approval of the
Merger Agreement, the Merger or the timely consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

� against any action, approval or agreement that would result in any material breach of a representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement of Accent under the Merger Agreement; and

� against any proposal for any extraordinary corporate transaction, such as a recapitalization, dissolution, liquidation, or sale of assets of
Accent or any merger, consolidation or other business combination (other than the Merger) between Accent and any Person (other
than Nanometrics or a Subsidiary of Nanometrics) or any other action or agreement that is intended or which reasonably could be
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expected to impede, interfere with, delay, postpone or materially adversely affect the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement.

Section 3 Grant of Proxy
IN FURTHERANCE AND NOT IN LIMITATION OF THE FOREGOING, IN THE EVENT OF AND TO NEGATE THE EFFECT OF A
BREACH BY A STOCKHOLDER OF ANY OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 2, EACH STOCKHOLDER HEREBY GRANTS TO AND
APPOINTS NANOMETRICS AS ITS

* Nanometrics subsequently waived the requirement that the Accent stockholders vote in favor of this particular proposal.
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IRREVOCABLE PROXY AND ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (WITH FULL POWER OF SUBSTITUTION AND RESUBSTITUTION) TO VOTE
THE COVERED SHARES SOLELY AS INDICATED IN THIS AGREEMENT. EACH STOCKHOLDER SHALL RETAIN THE RIGHT TO
VOTE THE COVERED SHARES HELD BY SUCH STOCKHOLDER WITH RESPECT TO ALL MATTERS NOT COVERED BY THIS
AGREEMENT. EACH STOCKHOLDER INTENDS THIS PROXY TO BE IRREVOCABLE AND COUPLED WITH AN INTEREST AND
SHALL TAKE SUCH FURTHER ACTION AND EXECUTE SUCH OTHER INSTRUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THE INTENT OF THIS PROXY. EACH STOCKHOLDER HEREBY REVOKES ANY AND ALL PREVIOUS PROXIES
AND POWERS OF ATTORNEY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH STOCKHOLDER�S COVERED SHARES OR ANY OTHER VOTING
SECURITIES OF ACCENT THAT RELATE TO THE ADOPTION OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT, THE MERGER AND THE OTHER
MATTERS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT. THE GRANT AND APPOINTMENT OF THE PROXY AND ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION 3 SHALL TERMINATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 9.

Section 4 Appraisal Rights
Holder agrees not to exercise any rights of appraisal or any dissenters� rights that Holder may have (whether under applicable law or otherwise)
or could potentially have or acquire in connection with the Merger.

Section 5 Specific Performance
The parties hereto acknowledge that Accent will be irreparably harmed and there will be no adequate remedy at law for a violation of any of the
covenants or agreements of Holder set forth herein. Therefore, it is agreed that, in addition to all other remedies that may be available to Accent
upon any such violation of this Agreement, Accent shall have the right to enforce such covenants and agreements by specific performance,
injunctive relief or by any other means available to Accent at law or in equity and Holder hereby waives any and all defenses which could exist
in its favor in connection with such enforcement and waives any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with such
enforcement.

Section 6 No Certainty Regarding Merger
Holder acknowledges that notwithstanding Holder�s execution of this Agreement, there is no certainty, and Accent makes no representation, that
a Merger Agreement will be successfully negotiated, or if successfully negotiated, that the Merger will be consummated.

Section 7 Miscellaneous
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

Each of the parties hereto has caused this Voting Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officers as of the date set forth in the
introduction to this Agreement.

Section 8 Other Agreements.
(a) No Inconsistent Agreements. Each Stockholder covenants and agrees that such Stockholder shall not: (a) enter into any contract (including
any voting agreement) with respect to any of its Covered Shares; (b) deposit any of its Covered Shares into any voting trust; or (c) grant any
proxy or power of attorney with respect to any of its Covered Shares, in each case inconsistent with such Stockholder�s obligations under this
Agreement. No Transfers. Except pursuant to the exercise of the Option (as hereinafter defined), each Stockholder agrees that it shall not:
(a) sell, assign, give, tender, offer, exchange or otherwise transfer any of
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its Covered Shares except by will or the laws of descent and distribution in the event of his or her death; (b) encumber, pledge, hypothecate or
otherwise permit (including by omission) the creation or imposition of any Lien on any of its Covered Shares; or (c) enter into any Contract with
respect to any of the foregoing, in each case without the prior written consent of Nanometrics.

(c) No Registrations of Transfers. Each Stockholder (a) agrees that it shall not request that Accent or its transfer agent register the transfer
(book-entry or otherwise) of any certificate or uncertificated interest representing any of such Stockholder�s Covered Shares and (b) consents to
the entry of stop transfer instructions by Accent of any transfer of such Stockholder�s Covered Shares, unless such transfer is made in compliance
with Section 6.2.

Section 9 Termination
Subject to the next succeeding sentence, this Agreement and all of its provisions shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the time the
Merger shall become effective, (ii) such date and time as the Merger Agreement shall have been terminated in accordance with its terms or
(iii) twelve (12) months after the date of this Agreement.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Annex C

January 25, 2006

Board of Directors

Nanometrics Incorporated

1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, CA 95035

Ladies and Gentlemen:

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to Nanometrics Incorporated (the �Company�), of the
Consideration (as defined below) to be paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger and
Reorganization, dated as of January 25, 2006 (the �Agreement�), by and among the Company, Merger Sub (�Merger Sub�) and Accent Optical
Technologies, Inc. (�Target�).

As more specifically set forth in the Agreement, and subject to the terms, conditions and adjustments set forth in the Agreement, we understand
that the Company will acquire Target through the merger of Merger Sub with and into Target with Target surviving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the �Merger� or �Transaction�). Pursuant to the Agreement, the outstanding equity of Target is to be converted into the
right to receive an aggregate of up to 4,900,000 shares of the Company�s common stock plus an additional number of shares of common stock to
reflect the value of the aggregate exercise price of assumed options and the aggregate consideration received by Target between the signing of
the Agreement and the closing of the Transaction as the result of the exercise of stock options (the �Consideration�). The Company has also agreed
to assume certain options granted by Target between January 23, 2006 and the closing of the transaction. The terms and conditions of the
Transaction are more fully set forth in the Agreement.

SG Cowen & Co. LLC (�SG Cowen�), as part of its investment banking business, is continually engaged in the valuation of businesses and their
securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, negotiated underwritings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private
placements and valuations for corporate and other purposes. In the ordinary course of our business, we and our affiliates actively trade the
securities of the Company for our own account and for the accounts of our customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short
position in such securities.

We are acting as exclusive financial advisor to the Company in connection with the Transaction and will receive a fee from the Company for our
services pursuant to the terms of our engagement letter with the Company, dated as of December 19, 2005, a portion of which is contingent upon
the consummation of the Transaction. We will also receive a fee for providing this Opinion. SG Cowen and its affiliates in the ordinary course of
business have from time to time provided, and in the future may continue to provide, commercial and investment banking services to the
Company. In addition, TCW, which owns approximately 10% of the currently outstanding shares of the Company�s Common Stock, is an
indirect majority owned subsidiary of Societe Generale, which is the parent company of SG Cowen.

In connection with our opinion, we have reviewed and considered such financial and other matters as we have deemed relevant, including,
among other things:

� a draft of the Agreement dated January 23, 2006;

� certain publicly available financial and other information for the Company and certain other relevant financial and operating data
furnished to SG Cowen by Company management;

�
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Nanometrics Incorporated

January 25, 2006

Page 2

� certain internal financial analyses, financial forecasts, reports and other information concerning the Company (the �Company
Forecasts�) and the Target (the �Target Forecasts�), prepared by the management of the Company and Target, and the amounts and
timing of the cost savings and related expenses expected to result from the Transaction furnished to us by the management of the
Company and Target (the �Expected Synergies�);

� First Call estimates (�First Call Estimates�) and financial projections in Wall Street analyst reports (�Wall Street Projections�) for the
Company;

� discussions we have had with certain members of the managements of each of the Company and Target concerning the historical and
current business operations, financial conditions and prospects of the Company and Target, the Expected Synergies and such other
matters we deemed relevant;

� certain operating results and the reported price and trading histories of the shares of the common stock of the Company as compared to
operating results and the reported price and trading histories of certain publicly traded companies we deemed relevant;

� certain financial terms of the Transaction as compared to the financial terms of certain selected business combinations we deemed
relevant;

� certain pro forma financial effects excluding the amortization of transaction related intangibles and other one-time and non-recurring
items of the Transaction on an accretion/dilution basis; and

� such other information, financial studies, analyses and investigations and such other factors that we deemed relevant for the purposes
of this opinion.

In conducting our review and arriving at our opinion, we have, with your consent, assumed and relied, without independent investigation, upon
the accuracy and completeness of all financial and other information provided to us by the Company and Target, respectively, or which is
publicly available. We have not undertaken any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or reasonableness of, or independently to verify,
such information. In addition, we have not conducted nor have assumed any obligation to conduct any physical inspection of the properties or
facilities of the Company or the Target. At the request of the Company, we have not contacted any customers of the Company or Target to
ascertain what their likely reaction might be to a Transaction. We have further relied upon the assurance of management of the Company that
they are unaware of any facts that would make the information provided to us incomplete or misleading in any respect. We have, with your
consent, assumed that the financial forecasts and description of Expected Synergies which we examined were reasonably prepared by the
management of the Company on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and good faith judgments of such management as to the
future performance of the Company and Target, and such projections and synergies, and the Wall Street Projections utilized in our analyses,
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not made or obtained any independent evaluations, valuations or appraisals of the assets or liabilities of the Company or Target, nor
have we been furnished with such materials. With regard to accounting matters and an assessment of the financial condition and sufficiency of
the internal controls of Target, we have relied exclusively on Company management�s own assessment. With respect to all legal matters relating
to the Company and Target, we have relied on the advice of legal counsel to the Company. Our services to the Company in connection with the
Transaction have been comprised of rendering an opinion from a financial point of view with respect to the Consideration. Our opinion is
necessarily based upon economic and market conditions and other circumstances as they exist and can be evaluated by us on the date hereof. It
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Nanometrics Incorporated

January 25, 2006

Page 3

For purposes of rendering our opinion we have assumed in all respects material to our analysis, that the representations and warranties of each
party contained in the Agreement are true and correct, that each party will perform all of the covenants and agreements required to be performed
by it under the Agreement and that all conditions to the consummation of the Transaction will be satisfied without waiver thereof. We have
assumed that the final form of the Agreement will be substantially similar to the last draft reviewed by us. We have also assumed that all
governmental, regulatory and other consents and approvals contemplated by the Agreement will be obtained and that in the course of obtaining
any of those consents no restrictions will be imposed or waivers made that would have an adverse effect on the contemplated benefits of the
Transaction. You have informed us, and we have assumed, that the Transaction will be treated as a tax-free reorganization.

It is understood that this letter is intended for the benefit and use of the Board of Directors of the Company in its consideration of the
Transaction and may not be used for any other purpose or be reproduced, disseminated, quoted or referred to at any time, in any manner or for
any purpose without our prior written consent. This letter does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how such stockholder
should vote with respect to the Transaction. We have not been requested to opine as to, and our opinion does not in any manner address, the
Company�s underlying business decision to effect the Transaction. Furthermore, we express no view as to the price or trading range for shares of
the common stock of the Company following the consummation of the Transaction.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, including the various assumptions and limitations set forth herein, it is our opinion that, as of the date
hereof, the Consideration in the Transaction is fair, from a financial point of view, to the Company.

Very truly yours,

/s/ SG Cowen & Co.
SG Cowen & Co.
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Annex D

January 24, 2006

Board of Directors

Accent Optical Technologies, Inc.

131 NW Hawthorne Avenue, Suite 101

Bend, Oregon 97701

Members of the Board of Directors:

Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. (the �Company�), Nanometrics Incorporated (the �Acquiror�) and Alloy Merger Corporation, a newly formed,
wholly owned subsidiary of the Acquiror (the �Acquisition Sub�), propose to enter into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the
�Agreement�) pursuant to which the Acquisition Sub will be merged with the Company in a transaction (the �Merger�) in which the outstanding
shares of the Company�s Series A preferred stock, par value $0.01 (the �Series A Preferred Stock�), convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01
(the �Convertible Preferred Stock�) and common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the �Common Stock,� and together with the Series A
Preferred Stock and the Convertible Preferred Stock, the �Company Shares�), will be converted into the right to receive, in the aggregate,
4,900,000 shares (the �Consideration�) of the common stock of the Acquiror, no par value (the �Acquiror Shares�).

You have asked us whether, in our opinion, the Consideration is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of the Company Shares.

In arriving at the opinion set forth below, we have, among other things:

(1) Reviewed certain publicly available business and financial information relating to the Company and the Acquiror that we
deemed to be relevant;

(2) Reviewed certain information, including financial forecasts, relating to the business, earnings, cash flow, assets, liabilities and
prospects of the Company and the Acquiror furnished to us by the Company and the Acquiror, respectively, as well as the
amount and timing of the cost savings and related expenses and synergies expected to result from the Merger (the �Expected
Synergies�) furnished to us by the Company;

(3) Conducted discussions with members of senior management of the Company and the Acquiror concerning the matters
described in clauses 1 and 2 above, as well as their respective businesses and prospects before and after giving effect to the
Merger and the Expected Synergies;

(4) Reviewed the valuation multiples for the Company and the Acquiror and compared them with those of certain publicly traded
companies that we deemed to be relevant;

(5) Reviewed the results of operations of the Company and the Acquiror and compared them with those of certain publicly traded
companies that we deemed to be relevant;

(6) Compared the proposed financial terms of the Merger with the financial terms of certain other transactions that we deemed to
be relevant;
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(7) Participated in certain discussions and negotiations among representatives of the Company and the Acquiror and their
financial advisors;

(8) Reviewed the potential pro forma impact of the Merger;

(9) Reviewed a draft dated January 22, 2006 of the Agreement; and

(10) Reviewed such other financial studies and analyses and took into account such other matters as we deemed necessary,
including our assessment of general economic, market and monetary conditions.

D-1

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 237



Table of Contents

In preparing our opinion, we have assumed and relied on the accuracy and completeness of all information supplied or otherwise made available
to us, discussed with or reviewed by or for us, or publicly available, and we have not assumed any responsibility for independently verifying
such information or undertaken an independent evaluation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities of the Company or the Acquiror, nor
have we evaluated the solvency or fair value of the Company or the Acquiror under any state or federal laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency
or similar matters. In addition, we have not assumed any obligation to conduct any physical inspection of the properties or facilities of the
Company or the Acquiror. With respect to the financial forecast information and the Expected Synergies furnished to or discussed with us by the
Company or the Acquiror, we have assumed that they have been reasonably prepared and reflect the best currently available estimates and
judgment of the Company�s or the Acquiror�s management as to the expected future financial performance of the Company or the Acquiror, as the
case may be, and the Expected Synergies. We have also assumed that the final form of the Agreement will be substantially similar to the last
draft reviewed by us.

Our opinion is necessarily based upon market, economic and other conditions as they exist and can be evaluated on, and on the information
made available to us as of, the date hereof. We have assumed that in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatory or other consents or
approvals (contractual or otherwise) for the Merger, no restrictions, including any divestiture requirements or amendments or modifications, will
be imposed that will have a material adverse effect on the contemplated benefits of the Merger.

We are acting as financial advisor to the Company in connection with the Merger and will receive a fee from the Company for our services, a
significant portion of which is contingent upon the consummation of the Merger. In addition, the Company has agreed to indemnify us for
certain liabilities arising out of our engagement. In addition, in the ordinary course of our business, we may actively trade the Acquiror Shares
for our own account and for the accounts of customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities.

This opinion is for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our opinion does not address the merits of the underlying
decision by the Company to engage in the Merger and does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how such stockholder
should vote on, or consent to, the proposed Merger or any matter related thereto. In addition, you have not asked us to address, and this opinion
does not address, the fairness to, or any other consideration of, the holders of any class of securities, creditors or other constituencies of the
Company, other than the holders of the Company Shares.

We are not expressing any opinion herein as to the prices at which the Acquiror Shares will trade following the announcement or consummation
of the Merger.

On the basis of and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Consideration is fair from a financial point of
view to the holders of the Company Shares.

Very truly yours,

/s/ MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH     

INCORPORATED
MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH

INCORPORATED
JCM
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Annex E-1

SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT

THIS SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�) is entered into as of January 24, 2006, by and between Nanometrics Incorporated, a
California corporation (the �Parent�), and                              (the �Shareholder�) of Accent Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
�Company�).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, Parent, Alloy Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (�Merger Sub�), the Company
and Sanford S. Wadler (the �Stockholder Agent�) are entering into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the �Reorganization
Agreement�) concurrently herewith pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the �Merger�), whereupon (A) the
Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent, and (B) all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company (the �Company
Capital Stock�) will be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of common stock of Parent as set forth therein.

WHEREAS, for all purposes of and under this Agreement capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the Reorganization Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Shareholder is the beneficial owner (as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) of the shares of Company Capital Stock and options to acquire shares of Company Capital Stock, each as set forth on the signature
page of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, in consideration of the execution of the Reorganization Agreement by the Company, the Shareholder is hereby agreeing to limit
such Shareholder�s dispositions of the Parent Common Stock that such Shareholder will receive as consideration of such Shareholder�s interests in
Company Capital Stock or upon exercise of options, so as to facilitate orderly market for the Parent�s common stock after the consummation of
the Merger.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants and agreements set forth in the Reorganization Agreement and in this
Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted, the parties
hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the
Reorganization Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings:

(a) �Expiration Date� shall mean the earlier to occur of (i) such date and time as the Reorganization Agreement shall have been validly terminated
in accordance with its terms and conditions or (ii) the second anniversary of such date and time as the Merger shall become effective in
accordance with its terms and conditions.

(b) �Person� shall mean any individual, any corporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership, business trust, unincorporated
association or other business organization or entity, or any governmental body or authority.

(c) �Shares� shall mean (i) all voting securities of Parent beneficially owned by the Shareholder as of the effective date of the Merger and (ii) all
voting securities of Parent which the Shareholder purchases or acquires beneficial ownership of after the date of this Agreement and prior to the
Expiration Date, including, without limitation, any shares issued or issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange, as the case may be, of
any shares held by the Shareholder which are convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for,
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voting securities of Parent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, shares shall not include any voting securities of Parent acquired by
Shareholder in open market purchases on the Nasdaq National Market after the date of this Agreement.

(d) �Transfer� shall mean a direct or indirect: (i) sale, pledge, encumbrance, grant of an option with respect to, transfer or disposal of a security or
any interest in such security, or (ii) entrance into an agreement or commitment providing for the sale of, pledge of, encumbrance of, grant of an
option with respect to, transfer of or disposition of such security or any interest therein.

(e) �Unrestricted Shares� shall mean (a) initially one twenty fourth (1/24th) of the Shares and on the first day of each subsequent calendar month
after the Effective Time an additional one twenty fourth (1/24th) of the Shares; minus (b) the number of Shares previously Transferred in
accordance with Section 2(b)(i), (ii), (v) or (vi) of this Agreement (all as properly adjusted to reflect any Shares Transferred pursuant to Sections
2(b)(iii) and 2(b)(iv) of this Agreement).

2. Transfer of Shares.

(a) No Transfer of Shares other than Pursuant to this Agreement. The Shareholder hereby agrees that, at all times during the period commencing
with the date of this Agreement until the Expiration Date, the Shareholder shall not cause or permit any Transfer of any of the Shares (or any
securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in the foregoing, to be effected unless in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) Orderly Disposition of Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shareholder may Transfer Shares held by the Shareholder after the
Effective Time: (i) in transactions effected on a national securities exchange or through the Nasdaq Stock Market so long as the number of
Shares so Transferred in any month does not exceed the lesser of (x) the number of Unrestricted Shares and (y) one eighth (1/8th) of the
aggregate number of Shares and options to acquire Shares received in the Merger by such Shareholder in exchange for such Shareholder�s
Company Capital Stock and options to acquire Company Capital Stock, (ii) any of the Shares in connection with the exercise (cashless or
otherwise) of options to acquire shares of the Parent common stock in an amount that is sufficient to satisfy the payment of any transaction costs
and any tax liability incurred by that Shareholder in connection with that exercise, (iii) to a family member or trust for estate planning purposes,
provided the transferee has agreed in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement (and any Shares Transferred by all such Persons shall
be aggregated with Transfers by such Shareholder for purposes of this Section) and to hold such Shares subject to all the terms and provisions of
this Agreement, (iv) to a lender pursuant to a margin loan or other secured lending obligation provided the lender has agreed in writing to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement (and any Shares Transferred by such lender shall be aggregated with Transfers by such Shareholder for
purposes of this Section), (v) pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms of a Shareholder�s 10b5-1 plan or arrangement with the Parent, if
any, with terms and conditions consistent with the provisions of this Agreement, including the limitations set forth in this Section (and any
Shares Transferred to third parties under such 10b5-1 Plan shall be aggregated with Transfers by such Shareholder for purposes of this Section)
or (vi) in a transaction approved in writing by the Parent.

3. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Shareholder. The Shareholder hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Parent as
follows:

(a) The Shareholder is the beneficial or record owner of, or exercises voting power over, the Shares. The Shares constitute the Shareholder�s
entire interest in the outstanding shares of voting securities of the Company and the Shareholder does not hold any other outstanding shares of
Company Capital Stock or rights to acquire Company Capital Stock. No Person not a signatory to this Agreement has a beneficial interest in or a
right to acquire or vote any of the Shares (other than, (i) pursuant to a Voting Agreement dated as of January     , 2006 with Parent; (ii) if the
Shareholder is a partnership, the rights and interest of persons and entities that own partnership interests in the Shareholder under the partnership
agreement governing the Shareholder and applicable partnership law or (iii) if the Shareholder is a married individual
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and resides in a State with community property laws, the community property interest of his or her spouse to the extent applicable under such
community property laws). The Shares are and will be at all times up until the Expiration Date free and clear of any security interests, liens,
claims, pledges, options, rights of first refusal, co-sale rights, agreements, limitations on the Shareholder�s voting rights, charges and other
encumbrances of any nature (�Encumbrances�) that would adversely affect the ability of Shareholder to perform such Shareholder�s obligations
under this Agreement.

(b) The Shareholder has all requisite power, capacity and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform such Shareholder�s obligations
under this Agreement. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder and the consummation by the Shareholder of the
transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action, if any, on the part of the Shareholder. This Agreement has
been duly executed and delivered by the Shareholder and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Shareholder, enforceable against the
Shareholder in accordance with its terms, subject only to the effect, if any, of (a) applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws affecting the
rights of creditors generally and (b) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

(c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not, and the Shareholder�s performance of the obligations under this
Agreement will not: (a) conflict with, or result in any violation of any order, decree or judgment applicable to the Shareholder or by which the
Shareholder or any of the Shareholder�s properties or the Shares are bound; or (b) result in any breach of or constitute a default (with notice or
lapse of time, or both) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of
any Encumbrance on, any of the Shares pursuant to any contract to which the Shareholder is a party or by which the Shareholder or any of the
Shareholder�s properties (including the Shares) is bound or affected. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not,
and the performance of this Agreement by the Shareholder will not, require the consent of any third party.

(d) There is (a) no action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation pending before any Governmental Entity or, to the Shareholder�s
actual knowledge, threatened against, and (b) no judgment, decree or order against, (i) the Shareholder, or (ii) any of (A) the Shareholder�s
affiliates, (B) the Shareholder�s or its affiliates� respective properties, (C) the Shareholder�s officers or directors (in the case of a corporate entity
(in their capacities as such)), or (D) the Shareholder�s respective partners (in the case of a partnership), in the case of each of (i) and (ii) that,
individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to materially delay or impair the Shareholder�s ability to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

4. Additional Documents. The Shareholder hereby agrees to execute and deliver any additional documents necessary or desirable, in the
reasonable opinion of the Company, to carry out the intent of this Agreement. If Shareholder is a married person, Shareholder�s spouse has
executed and delivered to Parent a signature page to this Agreement.

5. Confidentiality. The Shareholder shall hold any information regarding this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, in strict confidence and shall not divulge any such information to any third person until such time as the
Merger has been publicly disclosed by the Parent. Neither the Shareholder, nor any of its affiliates shall issue or cause the publication of any
press release or other public announcement with respect to this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement or the other transactions
contemplated thereby without the prior written consent of the Parent, except as may be required by law or by any listing agreement with, or the
policies of, the Nasdaq Stock Market or an applicable national securities exchange in which circumstance such announcing party shall make
reasonable efforts to consult with the Parent to the extent practicable.

6. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate and shall have no further force or effect after the Expiration Date.
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7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given on (i) the date of delivery, if
delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or (ii) on the date of confirmation of receipt (or the next Business Day, if the date of
confirmation of receipt is not a Business Day), if sent via facsimile (with confirmation of receipt), to the parties hereto at the following address
(or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(i) If to Parent or Merger Sub:
1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, California 95035

Attention: John D. Heaton

Facsimile No.: 408.232.5910

Telephone No.: 408.435.9600

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation

650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, California 94304-1050

Attention: Aaron J. Alter

                 Julia Reigel

Facsimile No.: 650-493-6811

Telephone No.: 650-493-9300

(ii) If to the Shareholder:
Attention:

Facsimile No.:

Telephone No.:

(b) Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Sections or Exhibits, such reference shall be to a Section of or an Exhibit to
this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The words �include,� �includes� and �including� when used herein shall be deemed in each case to be
followed by the words �without limitation.� The phrases �the date of this Agreement�, �the date hereof�, and terms of similar import, unless the
context otherwise requires, shall be deemed to refer to the date first above written.

(c) Specific Performance; Injunctive Relief. The parties hereto acknowledge that the Company will be irreparably harmed and that there will be
no adequate remedy at law for a violation of any of the covenants or agreements of the Shareholder set forth herein. Therefore, it is agreed that,
in addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Company upon any such violation of this Agreement, the Company shall have the
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right to enforce such covenants and agreements by specific performance, injunctive relief or by any other means available to the Company at law
or in equity and the Shareholder hereby waives any and all defenses which could exist in its favor in connection with such enforcement and
waives any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with such enforcement.

(d) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same instrument
and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties hereto; it
being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.

(e) Entire Agreement; Nonassignability; Parties in Interest. This Agreement and the documents and instruments and other agreements
specifically referred to herein or delivered pursuant hereto (i) constitute the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter
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hereof and (ii) are not intended to confer, and shall not be construed as conferring, upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights or
remedies hereunder. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests, or obligations under this Agreement may be assigned or delegated,
in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, by the Shareholder without the prior written consent of the Company, and any such
assignment or delegation that is not consented to shall be null and void. This Agreement, together with any rights, interests or obligations of the
Company hereunder, may be assigned or delegated in whole or in part by the Company without the consent of or any action by the Shareholder
upon notice by the Company to the Shareholder as herein provided. Subject to the preceding sentence, this Agreement shall be binding upon,
inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns (including any person to whom any
Shares are sold, transferred or assigned).

(f) Amendment; Waiver. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the parties hereto may amend this Agreement at any time pursuant to an
instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto. At any time, any party hereto may, to the extent legally allowed, waive any
inaccuracies in the representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and waive
compliance with any of the agreements or conditions for the benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto
to any such waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on behalf of such party. Without limiting the generality or
effect of the preceding sentence, no delay in exercising any right under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right, and no waiver of
any breach or default shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach or default of the same or any other provision in this Agreement.

(g) Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, becomes or is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and shall be interpreted so
as reasonably to effect the intent of the parties hereto. The parties hereto further agree to use their commercially reasonable efforts to replace
such void or unenforceable provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision that shall achieve, to the extent possible, the
economic, business and other purposes of such void or unenforceable provision.

(h) Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided herein, any and all remedies herein expressly conferred upon a party shall be deemed
cumulative with and not exclusive of any other remedy conferred hereby, or by law or equity upon such party, and the exercise by a party of any
one remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

(i) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California without reference
to such state�s principles of conflicts of law. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of any court located
within the State of California, in connection with any matter based upon or arising out of this Agreement or the matters contemplated herein,
agrees that process may be served upon them in any manner authorized by the laws of the State of California for such persons and waives and
covenants not to assert or plead any objection which they might otherwise have to such jurisdiction and such process.

(j) Rules of Construction. The parties hereto agree that they have been represented by counsel during the negotiation, preparation and execution
of this Agreement and, therefore, waive the application of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an
agreement or other document shall be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document.

(k) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY
IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE) ARISING
OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO IN NEGOTIATION,
ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF.
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Annex E-2

SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT

THIS SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�) is entered into as of January 24, 2006, by and between Nanometrics Incorporated, a
California corporation (the �Parent�), and Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc., a Delaware Corporation and shareholder (the �Shareholder�) of Accent
Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Company�).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, Parent, Alloy Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (�Merger Sub�), and the
Company are entering into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the �Reorganization Agreement�) concurrently herewith
pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the �Merger�), whereupon (A) the Company will become a wholly owned
subsidiary of Parent, and (B) all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company (the �Company Capital Stock�) will be converted into the right
to receive a number of shares of common stock of Parent as set forth therein.

WHEREAS, for all purposes of and under this Agreement capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the Reorganization Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Shareholder is the beneficial owner (as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) of the shares of Company Capital Stock and options to acquire shares of Company Capital Stock, each as set forth on the signature
page of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, in consideration of the execution of the Reorganization Agreement by the Company, the Shareholder is hereby agreeing to limit
such Shareholder�s dispositions of the Parent Common Stock that such Shareholder will receive as consideration of such Shareholder�s interests in
Company Capital Stock or upon exercise of options, so as to facilitate orderly market for the Parent�s common stock after the consummation of
the Merger.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants and agreements set forth in the Reorganization Agreement and in this
Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted, the parties
hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the
Reorganization Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings:

(a) �Expiration Date� shall mean the earlier to occur of (i) such date and time as the Reorganization Agreement shall have been validly terminated
in accordance with its terms and conditions or (ii) the first anniversary of such date and time as the Merger shall become effective in accordance
with its terms and conditions.

(b) �Person� shall mean any individual, any corporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership, business trust, unincorporated
association or other business organization or entity, or any governmental body or authority.

(c) �Shares� shall mean (i) all voting securities of Parent beneficially owned by the Shareholder as of the effective date of the Merger and (ii) all
voting securities of Parent which the Shareholder purchases or acquires beneficial ownership of after the date of this Agreement and prior to the
Expiration Date, including, without limitation, any shares issued or issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange, as the case may be, of
any shares held by the Shareholder which are convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for, voting securities of Parent.
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(d) �Transfer� shall mean a direct or indirect: (i) sale, pledge, encumbrance, grant of an option with respect to, transfer or disposal of a security or
any interest in such security, or (ii) entrance into an agreement or commitment providing for the sale of, pledge of, encumbrance of, grant of an
option with respect to, transfer of or disposition of such security or any interest therein.

2. Transfer of Shares.

(a) No Transfer of Shares other than Pursuant to this Agreement. The Shareholder hereby agrees that, at all times during the period commencing
with the date of this Agreement until the Expiration Date, the Shareholder shall not cause or permit any Transfer of any of the Shares (or any
securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares), or any interest in the foregoing, to be effected unless in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) Orderly Disposition of Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shareholder may Transfer Shares held by the Shareholder after the
Effective Time: (i) in transactions effected on a national securities exchange or through the Nasdaq Stock Market so long as the number of
Shares so Transferred in any one month period does not exceed 1/12th of the aggregate number of Shares and options to acquire Shares received
in the Merger by such Shareholder in exchange for such Shareholder�s Company Capital Stock and options to acquire Company Capital Stock,
(ii) any of the Shares in connection with the exercise (cashless or otherwise) of options to acquire shares of the Parent common stock in an
amount that is sufficient to satisfy the payment of any transaction costs and any tax liability incurred by that Shareholder in connection with that
exercise, (iii) to a family member or trust for estate planning purposes, provided the transferee has agreed in writing to be bound by the terms of
this Agreement (and any Shares Transferred by all such Persons shall be aggregated with Transfers by such Shareholder for purposes of this
Section) and to hold such Shares subject to all the terms and provisions of this Agreement, (iv) pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms of
a Shareholder�s 10b5-1 plan or arrangement with the Parent, if any, with terms and conditions consistent with the provisions of this Agreement,
including the limitations set forth in this Section (and any Shares Transferred to third parties under such 10b5-1 Plan shall be aggregated with
Transfers by such Shareholder for purposes of this Section) or (v) in a transaction approved in writing by the Parent.

3. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Shareholder. The Shareholder hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Parent as
follows:

(a) The Shareholder is the beneficial or record owner of, or exercises voting power over, the Shares. The Shares constitute the Shareholder�s
entire interest in the outstanding shares of voting securities of the Company and the Shareholder does not hold any other outstanding shares of
Company Capital Stock or rights to acquire Company Capital Stock. No Person not a signatory to this Agreement has a beneficial interest in or a
right to acquire or vote any of the Shares (other than, (i) pursuant to a Voting Agreement dated as of January 25, 2006 with Parent; (ii) if the
Shareholder is a partnership, the rights and interest of persons and entities that own partnership interests in the Shareholder under the partnership
agreement governing the Shareholder and applicable partnership law or (iii) if the Shareholder is a married individual and resides in a State with
community property laws, the community property interest of his or her spouse to the extent applicable under such community property laws).
The Shares are and will be at all times up until the Expiration Date free and clear of any security interests, liens, claims, pledges, options, rights
of first refusal, co-sale rights, agreements, limitations on the Shareholder�s voting rights, charges and other encumbrances of any nature
(�Encumbrances�) that would adversely affect the ability of Shareholder to perform such Shareholder�s obligations under this Agreement.

(b) The Shareholder has all requisite power, capacity and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform such Shareholder�s obligations
under this Agreement. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder and the consummation by the Shareholder of the
transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action, if any, on the part of the Shareholder. This Agreement has
been duly executed and delivered by the Shareholder and constitutes a valid and binding
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obligation of the Shareholder, enforceable against the Shareholder in accordance with its terms, subject only to the effect, if any, of
(a) applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and (b) rules of law governing specific performance,
injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

(c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not, and the Shareholder�s performance of the obligations under this
Agreement will not: (a) conflict with, or result in any violation of any order, decree or judgment applicable to the Shareholder or by which the
Shareholder or any of the Shareholder�s properties or the Shares are bound; or (b) result in any breach of or constitute a default (with notice or
lapse of time, or both) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of
any Encumbrance on, any of the Shares pursuant to any contract to which the Shareholder is a party or by which the Shareholder or any of the
Shareholder�s properties (including the Shares) is bound or affected. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not,
and the performance of this Agreement by the Shareholder will not, require the consent of any third party.

(d) There is (a) no action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation pending before any Governmental Entity or, to the Shareholder�s
actual knowledge, threatened against, and (b) no judgment, decree or order against, (i) the Shareholder, or (ii) any of (A) the Shareholder�s
affiliates, (B) the Shareholder�s or its affiliates� respective properties, (C) the Shareholder�s officers or directors (in the case of a corporate entity
(in their capacities as such)), or (D) the Shareholder�s respective partners (in the case of a partnership), in the case of each of (i) and (ii) that,
individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to materially delay or impair the Shareholder�s ability to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

4. Additional Documents. The Shareholder hereby agrees to execute and deliver any additional documents necessary or desirable, in the
reasonable opinion of the Company, to carry out the intent of this Agreement. If Shareholder is a married person, Shareholder�s spouse has
executed and delivered to Parent a signature page to this Agreement.

5. Confidentiality. The Shareholder shall hold any information regarding this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, in strict confidence and shall not divulge any such information to any third person until such time as the
Merger has been publicly disclosed by the Parent. Neither the Shareholder, nor any of its affiliates shall issue or cause the publication of any
press release or other public announcement with respect to this Agreement, the Merger, the Reorganization Agreement or the other transactions
contemplated thereby without the prior written consent of the Parent, except as may be required by law or by any listing agreement with, or the
policies of, the Nasdaq Stock Market or an applicable national securities exchange in which circumstance such announcing party shall make
reasonable efforts to consult with the Parent to the extent practicable.

6. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate and shall have no further force or effect after the Expiration Date.
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7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given on (i) the date of delivery, if
delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or (ii) on the date of confirmation of receipt (or the next Business Day, if the date of
confirmation of receipt is not a Business Day), if sent via facsimile (with confirmation of receipt), to the parties hereto at the following address
(or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(i) If to Parent or Merger Sub:
1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, California 95035

Attention: John D. Heaton

Facsimile No.: 408.232.5910

Telephone No.: 408.435.9600

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation

650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, California 94304-1050

Attention: Aaron J. Alter

                 Julia Reigel

Facsimile No.: 650-493-6811

Telephone No.: 650-493-9300

(ii) If to the Shareholder:
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc.

Attention:                        

Facsimile No.:                 

Telephone No.:                

(b) Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Sections or Exhibits, such reference shall be to a Section of or an Exhibit to
this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The words �include,� �includes� and �including� when used herein shall be deemed in each case to be
followed by the words �without limitation.� The phrases �the date of this Agreement�, �the date hereof�, and terms of similar import, unless the
context otherwise requires, shall be deemed to refer to the date first above written.
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(c) Specific Performance; Injunctive Relief. The parties hereto acknowledge that the Company will be irreparably harmed and that there will be
no adequate remedy at law for a violation of any of the covenants or agreements of the Shareholder set forth herein. Therefore, it is agreed that,
in addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Company upon any such violation of this Agreement, the Company shall have the
right to enforce such covenants and agreements by specific performance, injunctive relief or by any other means available to the Company at law
or in equity and the Shareholder hereby waives any and all defenses which could exist in its favor in connection with such enforcement and
waives any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with such enforcement.

(d) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same instrument
and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties hereto; it
being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.

(e) Entire Agreement; Nonassignability; Parties in Interest. This Agreement and the documents and instruments and other agreements
specifically referred to herein or delivered pursuant hereto (i) constitute
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the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both
written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and (ii) are not intended to confer, and shall not be construed as
conferring, upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights,
interests, or obligations under this Agreement may be assigned or delegated, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, by the
Shareholder without the prior written consent of the Company, and any such assignment or delegation that is not consented to shall be null and
void. This Agreement, together with any rights, interests or obligations of the Company hereunder, may be assigned or delegated in whole or in
part by the Company without the consent of or any action by the Shareholder upon notice by the Company to the Shareholder as herein
provided. Subject to the preceding sentence, this Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns (including any person to whom any Shares are sold, transferred or assigned).

(f) Amendment; Waiver. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the parties hereto may amend this Agreement at any time pursuant to an
instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto. At any time, any party hereto may, to the extent legally allowed, waive any
inaccuracies in the representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and waive
compliance with any of the agreements or conditions for the benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto
to any such waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on behalf of such party. Without limiting the generality or
effect of the preceding sentence, no delay in exercising any right under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right, and no waiver of
any breach or default shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach or default of the same or any other provision in this Agreement.

(g) Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, becomes or is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and shall be interpreted so
as reasonably to effect the intent of the parties hereto. The parties hereto further agree to use their commercially reasonable efforts to replace
such void or unenforceable provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision that shall achieve, to the extent possible, the
economic, business and other purposes of such void or unenforceable provision.

(h) Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided herein, any and all remedies herein expressly conferred upon a party shall be deemed
cumulative with and not exclusive of any other remedy conferred hereby, or by law or equity upon such party, and the exercise by a party of any
one remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

(i) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California without reference
to such state�s principles of conflicts of law. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of any court located
within the State of California, in connection with any matter based upon or arising out of this Agreement or the matters contemplated herein,
agrees that process may be served upon them in any manner authorized by the laws of the State of California for such persons and waives and
covenants not to assert or plead any objection which they might otherwise have to such jurisdiction and such process.

(j) Rules of Construction. The parties hereto agree that they have been represented by counsel during the negotiation, preparation and execution
of this Agreement and, therefore, waive the application of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an
agreement or other document shall be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document.

(k) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY
IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE) ARISING
OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO IN NEGOTIATION,
ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF.
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Annex F

ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�) is made and entered into as of January 25, 2006, by and among Nanometrics Incorporated, a
California corporation (�Parent�), Alloy Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (�Merger Sub�),
Sanford Wadler, an individual (the �Stockholder Agent�), and U.S Stock Transfer Corporation, a California company (the �Depositary Agent�).

RECITALS

A. Parent, Merger Sub, Accent Optical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Company�), and the Stockholder Agent, have entered into
an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, of even date herewith (as may be amended from time to time, the �Merger Agreement�), a
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, providing, among other things, for the acquisition of the Company by Parent pursuant to the
merger of Merger Sub with and into the Company (the �Merger�). Capitalized terms that are used but not defined herein shall have the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in Merger Agreement.

B. Pursuant to Section 1.6(f) of the Merger Agreement, 490,000 shares of Parent Common Stock (the �Escrow Shares�) are to be delivered to and
deposited with the Depositary Agent and held in an escrow fund (the �Escrow Fund�) in order to secure the performance of the Company�s and the
former stockholders of the Company as of the Closing Date of the Merger (�Effective Time Company Stockholders�) indemnification obligations
under the Merger Agreement.

C. The Stockholder Agent has been appointed as agent for, and to act on behalf of, the Effective Time Company Stockholders to undertake
certain obligations specified in the Merger Agreement.

D. The parties hereto desire to set forth additional terms and conditions relating to the operation of the Escrow Fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and the representations, warranties, covenants and other agreements set forth
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted by the parties,
and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Escrow Fund.

(a) On the Closing Date of the Merger, Parent shall deliver the Escrow Shares, without any act of any Effective Time Company Stockholder or
the Stockholder Agent, to the Depositary Agent. The Depositary Agent agrees to accept delivery of the Escrow Shares and to hold such Escrow
Shares in escrow subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) The Escrow Fund shall, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and this Agreement, be held as security for the
indemnification obligations of the Effective Time Company Stockholders pursuant to Article IX of the Merger Agreement. The Escrow Fund
shall be held and distributed by the Depositary Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the Merger Agreement.

2. Rights and Obligations of the Parties. The Depositary Agent shall be entitled to such rights and shall perform such duties as depositary agent
as set forth herein (collectively, the �Duties�), in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall be
entitled to their respective rights and shall perform their respective duties and obligations as set forth herein and as set forth in the Merger
Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the Merger Agreement.
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3. Duties of Depositary Agent.

(a) The Duties of the Depositary Agent shall include the following: the Depositary Agent shall (i) safeguard and treat the Escrow Fund as a trust
fund in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and shall hold the Escrow Fund in a separate account, apart from any other funds or
accounts of the Depositary Agent or any other Person and (ii) hold and dispose of the Escrow Fund only in accordance with the provisions of
this Agreement.

(b) Following the Closing, the Duties of the Depositary Agent with respect to the Escrow Shares may be altered, amended, modified or revoked
only by a writing signed by the Parent, the Depositary Agent and the Stockholder Agent.

4. Dividends, Etc.; Voting of Escrow Shares

(a) Dividends, Etc. Any securities distributed in respect of or in exchange for any of the Escrow Shares, whether by way of stock dividends,
stock splits or otherwise, shall be delivered to the Depositary Agent, who shall hold such securities in the Escrow Fund on behalf of the Effective
Time Company Stockholders. Such securities shall be considered Escrow Shares for purposes hereof. Any cash dividends or property (other than
securities) distributed in respect of the Escrow Shares shall promptly be distributed by the Depositary Agent to the Effective Time Company
Stockholders in accordance with Section 5(f).

(b) Voting of Shares. The Stockholder Agent shall have the right, in his sole discretion, on behalf of the Effective Time Company Stockholders,
to direct the Depositary Agent in writing as to the exercise of any voting rights pertaining to the Escrow Shares, and the Depositary Agent shall
comply with any such written instructions. In the absence of such instructions, the Depositary Agent shall not vote any of the Escrow Shares.
The Stockholder Agent shall have no obligation to solicit consents or proxies from the Effective Time Company Stockholders for purposes of
any such vote. The Depositary Agent shall promptly forward to the Stockholder Agent copies of all materials delivered to the Depositary Agent
with respect to the Escrow Shares.

(c) Transferability. The respective interests of the Effective Time Company Stockholders in the Escrow Shares shall not be assignable or
transferable, other than by operation of law. Notice of any such assignment or transfer by operation of law shall be given to the Depositary
Agent and the Parent, and no such assignment or transfer shall be valid until such notice is given.

5. Distribution of Escrow Shares.

(a) Distribution by Depositary Agent. The Depositary Agent shall distribute the Escrow Shares only in accordance with (i) a written instrument
delivered to the Depositary Agent that is executed by both Parent and the Stockholder Agent and that instructs the Depositary Agent as to the
distribution of some or all of the Escrow Shares, (ii) an order of a court of competent jurisdiction, a copy of which is delivered to the Depositary
Agent by either Parent or the Stockholder Agent, that instructs the Depositary Agent as to the distribution of some or all of the Escrow Shares, or
(iii) the provisions of Sections 5(b), (c) or (d) hereof.

(b) Indemnification Claim Procedures Prior to Termination Date. On or before the first anniversary of the Closing Date of the Merger (the
�Termination Date�), Parent may deliver to the Depositary Agent a certificate signed by any officer of Parent (an �Officer�s Certificate�):

(i) stating that an indemnified party has paid, suffered, incurred or sustained (or reasonably and in good faith anticipates that it may pay, suffer,
incur or sustain) Losses for which such indemnified party is entitled to indemnification pursuant to the Merger Agreement;

(ii) stating the amount of such Losses (which, in the case of Losses not yet paid, suffered, incurred, sustained, may be the maximum amount
reasonably anticipated to be so paid, suffered, incurred or sustained);
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(iii) specifying in reasonable detail (based upon the information then possessed by Parent) the individual items of such Losses included in the
amount so stated and the nature of the claim for indemnification to which such Losses relate; and

(iv) the specific provisions of the Merger Agreement that form the basis for such claim for indemnification of such Losses.

At the time of delivery of any Officer�s Certificate to the Depositary Agent, Parent shall deliver a duplicate copy of such Officer�s Certificate to
the Stockholder Agent, and for a period of twenty (20) Business Days after such delivery to the Depositary Agent and the Stockholder Agent of
such Officer�s Certificate, the Depositary Agent shall make no disbursement of Escrow Shares pursuant to this Section 5(b) unless the Depositary
Agent shall have received written authorization from the Stockholder Agent to make such delivery or disbursement. After the expiration of such
20-Business Day period, the Depositary Agent shall deliver or disburse Escrow Shares having a value equal to such Losses from the Escrow
Fund to Parent in accordance with this Section 5(b); provided, however, that no such delivery may be made if and to the extent the Stockholder
Agent shall object in a written statement to any claim or claims made in the Officer�s Certificate, and such statement shall have been delivered to
the Depositary Agent and to Parent prior to the expiration of such 20-Business Day period.

(c) Distribution to the Stockholder Agent. On or before the Termination Date, the Stockholder Agent may deliver to Depositary Agent a
certificate or certificates (each, a �Stockholder Agent Certificate�) requesting disbursement of Escrow Shares with an aggregate value of up to
$100,000.

(d) Value of Escrow Shares. For the purposes of determining the number of Escrow Shares to be delivered to Parent or the Stockholder Agent, as
applicable, out of the Escrow Fund pursuant to Sections 5(b) and (c), the Escrow Shares shall be valued at the average of the closing prices of
Parent Common Stock for the ten (10) trading days ending two (2) trading days prior to the time that an Officer�s Certificate or Stockholder
Agent Certificate is delivered to the Depositary Agent. Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall certify such determined value in a certificate
signed by both Parent and the Stockholder Agent, and shall deliver such certificate to the Depositary Agent.

(e) Distribution Following Termination Date. Within 20 Business days after the Termination Date, the Depositary Agent shall distribute to the
Effective Time Company Stockholders that number of Escrow Shares, if any, then held in escrow less any Escrow Shares to be delivered to the
Stockholder Agent pursuant to Section 5(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Parent has previously delivered to the Depositary Agent a copy of
an Officers� Certificate and the Depositary Agent has not received written notice of the resolution of the claim covered thereby, the Depositary
Agent, upon written instructions received from the Parent and the Stockholder Agent shall retain in escrow after such Termination Date such
number of Escrow Shares as have a value (as defined in Section 4) equal to 100% of (i) the Losses covered by such Officers� Certificate or
(ii) the estimated amount of Losses set forth in such Officers� Certificate, as the case may be. Any Escrow Shares so retained in escrow shall be
distributed only in accordance with the terms of clauses (i) or (ii) of Section 5(a) hereof.

(f) Method of Distribution. Any distribution of all or a portion of the Escrow Shares (or cash or other property pursuant to Section 4(a)) to the
Effective Time Company Stockholders shall be made by delivery of a check, in the case of a cash payment, other property (as described in
Section 4(a)) or stock certificates, as applicable, issued in the name of the Effective Time Company Stockholders, with the distribution to the
individual Effective Time Company Stockholders to be determined by multiplying the aggregate cash, other property or Escrow Shares being
distributed by the percentages set forth opposite such holders� respective names on Attachment A hereto; provided, however, that the Depositary
Agent shall withhold the distribution of the portion of the cash, other property or Escrow Shares otherwise distributable to an Effective Time
Company Stockholder who has not, according to a written notice provided by the Parent to the Depositary Agent and the Stockholder Agent,
prior to such distribution, surrendered pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement his, her or its stock certificates formerly representing
shares of stock of the Company. Any such cash, other property or withheld shares shall be delivered to the Parent promptly after the Termination
Date,
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and shall be delivered by the Parent to the Effective Time Company Stockholders to whom such cash, other property or shares would have
otherwise been distributed upon surrender of their Company Certificates. Distributions to the Effective Time Company Stockholders shall be
made by mailing checks, other property or stock certificates, as applicable, to such holders at their respective addresses shown on Attachment A
(or such other address as may be provided in writing to the Depositary Agent by any such holder). No fractional Escrow Shares shall be
distributed to Effective Time Company Stockholders pursuant to this Agreement. Instead, the number of shares that each Effective Time
Company Stockholder shall receive shall be rounded up or down to the nearest whole number (provided that the Stockholder Agent shall have
the authority to effect such rounding in such a manner that the total number of whole Escrow Shares to be distributed equals the number of
Escrow Shares then being distributed).

6. Exculpatory Provisions.

(a) The Depositary Agent shall be obligated only for the performance of such Duties as are specifically set forth herein and may rely and shall be
protected in relying or refraining from acting on any instrument reasonably believed to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the
proper party or parties. The Depositary Agent shall not be liable for forgeries or false impersonations. The Depositary Agent shall not be liable
for any act done or omitted hereunder as depositary agent except for gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach of this Agreement. The
Depositary Agent shall in no case or event be liable for any representations or warranties of the Company for punitive, incidental or
consequential damages. Any act done or omitted pursuant to the advice or opinion of counsel shall be conclusive evidence of the good faith of
the Depositary Agent.

(b) In the event of a dispute between the parties hereto, the Depositary Agent is hereby expressly authorized to disregard any and all notifications
given by any of the parties hereto or by any other person, excepting only memoranda of agreement signed by both Parent and the Stockholder
Agent and orders or process of courts of law to which the Depositary Agent shall be entitled to conclusively rely and shall distribute the Escrow
Fund in accordance with the terms thereof, and is hereby expressly authorized to comply with and obey orders, judgments or decrees of any
court. In case the Depositary Agent obeys or complies with any such order, judgment or decree of any court, the Depositary Agent shall not be
liable to any of the parties hereto or to any other person by reason of such compliance, notwithstanding any such order, judgment, or decree
being subsequently reversed, modified, annulled, set aside, vacated or found to have been entered without jurisdiction.

(c) The Depositary Agent shall not be liable in any respect on account of the identity, authority or rights of the other parties executing or
delivering or purporting to execute or deliver the Merger Agreement, this Agreement or any documents or papers deposited or called for
thereunder or hereunder.

(d) The Depositary Agent shall not be liable for the outlawing of any rights under any statute of limitations with respect to the Merger
Agreement, this Agreement or any documents deposited with the Depositary Agent.

7. Resignation and Removal of the Depositary Agent. The Depositary Agent may resign as Depositary Agent at any time with or without cause,
with respect to the Escrow Fund by giving at least thirty (30) calendar days� prior written notice to each of Parent and the Stockholder Agent,
such resignation to be effective thirty (30) calendar days following the date such notice is given. In addition, Parent and the Stockholder Agent
may jointly remove the Depositary Agent as depositary agent at any time with or without cause, by an instrument executed by Parent and the
Stockholder Agent (which may be executed in counterparts) given to the Depositary Agent, which instrument shall designate the effective date
of such removal. In the event of any such resignation or removal, a successor depositary agent, which shall be a bank or trust company organized
under the laws of the United States of America or of the State of California having (or if such bank or trust company is a member of a bank
company, its bank holding company shall have) a combined capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000, shall be appointed by Parent on the
terms of this Agreement with the written approval of the Stockholder Agent, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any
such successor
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depositary agent shall deliver to Parent and the Stockholder Agent, a written instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon it shall
succeed to all the rights and duties of the depositary agent hereunder and shall be entitled to receive possession of the Escrow Fund. Upon
receipt of the identity of the successor Depositary Agent, the Depositary Agent shall deliver the Escrow Fund then held hereunder to the
successor Depositary Agent.

8. Fees. Parent shall pay the Depositary Agent such fees as are established by the Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B.

9. Further Instruments. If the Depositary Agent reasonably requires other or further instruments in connection with its performance of the
Duties, the necessary parties hereto shall join in furnishing such instruments.

10. Disputes. It is understood and agreed that should any dispute arise with respect to the delivery and/or ownership or right of possession of the
cash and/or other property held by the Depositary Agent hereunder, the Depositary Agent is authorized and directed to act in accordance with,
and in reliance upon, the provisions of this Agreement.

11. Indemnification. In consideration of the Depositary Agent�s acceptance of this appointment, Parent, Merger Sub and the Stockholder Agent,
on behalf of the Effective Time Company Stockholders and not individually, jointly and severally, agree to indemnify and hold the Depositary
Agent harmless as to any liability incurred by it to any person, firm or corporation by reason of its having accepted such appointment or in
carrying out the provisions of this Agreement, and to reimburse the Depositary Agent for all its costs and expenses (including, without
limitation, counsel fees and expenses) reasonably incurred by reason of any matter as to which such indemnity is paid pursuant to this
Section 11; provided, however, that no indemnity need be paid in case of the Depositary Agent�s gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach
of this Agreement.

12. General.

(a) Notice. All notices, demands and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and may be telexed or faxed,
which shall be followed forthwith by letter, and such notice, request, demand or other communication shall be deemed to have been received on
the next business day following dispatch and acknowledgement of receipt by the recipient�s telex or fax machine. In addition, notices hereunder
may be delivered by hand, in which event the notice shall be deemed effective when delivered, or by overnight courier, in which event the notice
shall be deemed to have been received on the next business day following delivery to such courier. Notices, requests, demands and other
communications may not be given by regular or certified mail. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be given to the
parties hereto at the following addresses:

If to Parent, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation to:

Nanometrics Incorporated

1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, California 95035

Facsimile No.: 408.232.5910

Attn: Chief Executive Officer
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with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati,

Professional Corporation

650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, California 94304-1050

Facsimile No.: 650.493.6811

Attention: Aaron J. Alter

         Julia Reigel

If to the Stockholder Agent to:

Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc.

1000 Alfred Nobel Drive

Hercules, CA 94547

Facsimile: 510.741.5815

Attention: Sanford Wadler

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Perkins Coie LLP

1120 NW Couch, 10th Floor

Portland, Oregon 97209

Attention: Neil M. Nathanson

Facsimile No.: 503.727.2222

If to the Depositary Agent:

U. S. Stock Transfer Corporation

1745 Gardena Ave.

Glendale, CA 91204-2991

Attention: Richard Brown

Facsimile No.: 818.502.0674
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or to such other address or facsimile number as any party may have furnished in writing to the other parties in the manner provided above. Any
notice addressed to the Depositary Agent shall be effective only upon receipt.

(b) Amendment and Termination. This Agreement may be amended or terminated if, but only if, such amendment or termination is in writing
and is signed by each of Parent and the Stockholder Agent (who shall act on behalf of the other Effective Time Company Stockholders), and
upon written notice to the Depositary Agent at any time given jointly by Parent and the Stockholder Agent, but the duties or responsibilities of
the Depositary Agent may not be amended or modified without its consent.

(c) Waiver. Any term or condition of this Agreement may be waived at any time by the party that is entitled to the benefit thereof, but no such
waiver shall be effective unless set forth in a written instrument duly executed by or on behalf of the party waiving such term or condition. No
waiver by any party of any term or condition of this Agreement, in any one or more instances, shall be deemed to be or construed as a waiver of
the same or any other term or condition of this Agreement on any future occasion. All remedies, either under this Agreement or by law or
otherwise afforded, will be cumulative and not alternative.

(d) No Assignment; Binding Effect. Neither this Agreement nor any right, interest or obligation hereunder may be assigned (by operation of Law
or otherwise) by any party without the prior written consent of the other parties and any attempt to do so will be void; provided, however, that
the Stockholder Agent may assign this Agreement to his successor without the prior written consent of the other parties. Subject to the preceding
sentence, this Agreement is binding upon, inures to the benefit of and is enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

F-6

Edgar Filing: ALPINE CAPITAL LP - Form 4

Table of Contents 257



Table of Contents

(e) Headings. The headings and table of contents used in this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define
or limit the provisions hereof.

(f) Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under any present or future Law, and if
the rights or obligations of any party hereto under this Agreement will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, (i) such provision will
be fully severable, (ii) this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised
a part hereof, (iii) the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid
or unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom and (iv) in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there will be added
automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid and enforceable provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision as may be possible.

(g) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the domestic laws of the State of Delaware, without
giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would
cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware.

(h) Construction. The parties hereto agree that this Agreement is the product of negotiation between sophisticated parties and individuals, all of
who were represented by counsel, and each of who had an opportunity to participate in and did participate in the drafting of each provision
hereof. Accordingly, ambiguities in this Agreement, if any, shall not be construed strictly or in favor of or against any party hereto but rather
shall be given a fair and reasonable construction without regard to the rule of contra proferentem.

(i) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed shall constitute an original
copy hereof, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument. Any counterpart may be executed and delivered by means of a facsimile or
other electronic transmission.

(j) Specific Performance. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement
were not performed in accordance with its specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an
injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof in any court of the
United States or any state having jurisdiction, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity.

13. Tax Reporting Matters. Within 30 calendar days of the Closing Date, Parent and the Effective Time Company Stockholders each agree to
provide the Depositary Agent with appropriate Forms W-9 (or Forms W-8, in the case of non-U.S. persons) and other forms and documents to
the Depositary Agent that the Depositary Agent may reasonably request (collectively, �Tax Reporting Documentation�). The parties hereto
understand that, if such Tax Reporting Documentation is not so certified to the Depositary Agent, the Depositary Agent may be required by the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, to withhold a portion of any payments made to the Effective Time Company Stockholders pursuant
to this Agreement.

14. Patriot Act Compliance. To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires all
financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person who opens an account. For a non-individual person such
as a business entity, a charity, a trust or other legal entity the Depositary Agent will ask for documentation to verify its formation and existence
as a legal entity. The Depositary Agent may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents from
individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation. Parent and the Stockholder Agent each agree to provide
all such information and documentation as to themselves as requested by Depositary Agent to ensure compliance with federal law.
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Annex G

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

BRUCE RHINE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of January 25, 2006 by and between Nanometrics Incorporated (the �Company�), and Bruce Rhine (�Executive�).

RECITALS

A. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the Company and Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. (�Aluminum�) have entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by and among the Company, Aluminum, Alloy Merger Corporation and certain other parties
dated as of the date hereof (the �Merger Agreement�) pursuant to which the Company intends to acquire Aluminum. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined herein will have the definitions given to such terms in the Merger Agreement.

B. Executive is a major shareholder and key employee of Aluminum and as a condition and mutual inducement to the Merger, and to preserve
the value of the business being acquired by the Company after the Merger, the Merger Agreement contemplates, among other things, that
Executive will enter into this Agreement which will become effective on the Effective Date (as defined in Section 11), provided that the
Executive is still employed by Aluminum on such date.

AGREEMENT

1. Duties and Scope of Employment.

(a) Positions and Duties. As of the Effective Date, Executive will serve as Chief Strategy Officer of the Company reporting to John Heaton, the
Company�s Chief Executive Officer. Executive will render such business and professional services in the performance of his duties, consistent
with Executive�s position within the Company, as shall reasonably be assigned to him by John Heaton. The period of Executive�s employment
under this Agreement is referred to herein as the �Employment Term.�

(b) Obligations. During the Employment Term, Executive will perform his duties faithfully and to the best of his ability and will devote his
substantially all of business efforts and time to the Company. For the duration of the Employment Term, Executive agrees not to actively engage
in any other employment, occupation or consulting activity for any direct or indirect remuneration without the prior approval of the Company�s
Board of Directors (the �Board�). Exceptions are outlined in Attached Exhibit A.

(c) Place of Employment. Executive�s residence and principal place for performing his duties and obligations hereunder shall be Bend, Oregon;
provided, however, that Executive will be expected to engage in travel for up to 30% of the time spent in performance of services hereunder as
the Company may reasonably request or as may be required for the proper performance of services hereunder.

2. At-Will Employment. The parties agree that Executive�s employment with the Company will be �at-will� employment and may be terminated at
any time with or without cause or notice. Executive understands and agrees that neither his job performance nor promotions, commendations,
bonuses or the like from the Company give rise to or in any way serve as the basis for modification, amendment, or extension, by implication or
otherwise, of his employment with the Company.

3. Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company will pay Executive as compensation for his services a base salary at the annualized
rate of $250,000.00 (the �Base Salary�). The Base Salary will be paid periodically in accordance with the Company�s normal payroll practices and
be subject to the usual, required withholding.
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4. Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, Executive will be entitled to participate in the employee benefit plans currently and
hereafter maintained by the Company of general applicability to other senior executives of the Company, including, without limitation, the
Company�s group medical, dental, vision, disability, life insurance, and flexible-spending account plans. The Company reserves the right to
cancel or change the benefit plans and programs it offers to its employees at any time.

5. Vacation. Executive will be entitled to paid vacation in accordance with the Company�s vacation policy, with the timing and duration of
specific vacations mutually and reasonably agreed to by the parties hereto.

6. Board Membership. Promptly upon the execution of this Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company will appoint Executive as a
Director of the Company, to fill an existing vacancy on the Company�s Board of Directors. During his service to the Company, the Company will
nominate Executive as a Director with respect to each election of Directors of the Company by its shareholders and use reasonable efforts to
cause him to be elected as a Director.

7. Expenses. The Company will reimburse Executive for reasonable travel, entertainment or other expenses incurred by Executive in the
furtherance of or in connection with the performance of Executive�s duties hereunder, in accordance with the Company�s expense reimbursement
policy as in effect from time to time.

8. Confidential Information and Other Requirements. Executive agrees to complete the Company�s Employment Application and enter into the
Company�s standard Employee Patent & Confidential Information Agreement (the �Confidential Information Agreement�) upon commencing
employment hereunder. For purposes of federal immigration law, Executive agrees to provide to the Company documentary evidence of
Executive�s identity and eligibility for employment in the United States. Such documentation must be provided to the Company within three
(3) business days of the Effective Date.

9. Employee Obligations.

(a) Noncompete. Beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the one (1) year anniversary of the termination of Executive�s employment with
the Company for any reason, the Executive shall not, other than on behalf of the Company, directly or indirectly, without the prior written
consent of the Company, engage as (i) an employee, agent, consultant, advisor, independent contractor, proprietor, partner, officer, director, or
otherwise of, (ii) have any ownership interest in (except for passive ownership of five percent (5%) or less of any entity whose securities have
been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the securities laws of any other
jurisdiction), or (iii) participate in the financing, operation, management, or control of, any firm, partnership, corporation, entity, or business that
is in competition with any business or proposed business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is established as of the termination of
Executive�s employment with the Company. In the event that the provisions of this paragraph are deemed to exceed the time, geographic or scope
limitations permitted by applicable law, then such provisions shall be, to the extent permitted by law, reformed to the maximum time,
geographic or scope limitations, as the case may be, permitted by applicable laws.

(b) Non-Solicitation. Beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the one (1) year anniversary of the termination of Executive�s employment
with the Company for any reason, Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of the Company, solicit, encourage
or take any other action that is intended to induce or encourage, or has the effect of inducing or encouraging, any employee or customer of the
Company or its subsidiaries to terminate his or her employment with or customer relationship to the Company or its subsidiaries.

(c) Reasonableness. Executive acknowledges that the limitations of time, geography and scope of activity agreed to in this Section are
reasonable because, among other things, (i) the Company is engaged in a highly competitive industry, (ii) the Executive is receiving significant
compensation in connection with the
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Merger and this Agreement, and (iii) the Executive will be able to obtain suitable and satisfactory employment without violation of this Section.

(d) Understanding of Covenants. Executive represents that he (i) is familiar with the foregoing covenants not to compete and not to solicit, and
(ii) is fully aware of his obligations hereunder.

10. Assignment. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of (a) the heirs, executors and legal representatives of Executive
upon Executive�s death and (b) any successor of the Company. Any such successor of the Company will be deemed substituted for the Company
under the terms of this Agreement for all purposes. For this purpose, �successor� means any person, firm, corporation or other business entity
which at any time, whether by purchase, merger or otherwise, directly or indirectly acquires all or substantially all of the assets or business of the
Company. None of the rights of Executive to receive any form of compensation payable pursuant to this Agreement may be assigned or
transferred except by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Any other attempted assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of
Executive�s right to compensation or other benefits will be null and void.

11. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications called for hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given (i) on
the date of delivery if delivered personally, (ii) one (1) day after being sent by a well established commercial overnight service, or (iii) four
(4) days after being mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, prepaid and addressed to the parties or their successors at the
following addresses, or at such other addresses as the parties may later designate in writing:

If to the Company:

Nanometrics Incorporated

1550 Buckeye Drive

Milpitas, CA 95035

Attn: Larry Hong, Human Resources Manager

If to Executive:

12. Effective Date. The Closing Date (as defined in the Merger Agreement) will be the �Effective Date� of this Agreement and this Agreement
will be null and void and have no effect unless the Merger contemplated by the Merger Agreement is consummated.

13. Severability. In the event that any provision hereof becomes or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable or
void, this Agreement will continue in full force and effect without said provision.

14. Waiver of Breach. The waiver of a breach of any term or provision of this Agreement, which must be in writing, will not operate as or be
construed to be a waiver of any other previous or subsequent breach of this Agreement.

15. Arbitration.

(a) General. In consideration of Executive�s service to the Company, its promise to arbitrate all employment related disputes and Executive�s
receipt of the compensation, pay raises and other benefits paid to Executive by the Company, at present and in the future, Executive agrees that
any and all controversies, claims, or disputes with anyone (including the Company and any employee, officer, director, shareholder or benefit
plan
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of the Company in their capacity as such or otherwise) arising out of, relating to, or resulting from Executive�s service to the Company under this
Agreement or otherwise or the termination of Executive�s service with the Company, including any breach of this Agreement, shall be subject to
binding arbitration under the Arbitration Rules set forth in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1280 through 1294.2, including
Section 1283.05 (the �Rules�) and pursuant to California law. Disputes which Executive agrees to arbitrate, and thereby agrees to waive any right
to a trial by jury, include any statutory claims under state or federal law, including, but not limited to, claims under Title VII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Older Workers Benefit
Protection Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the California Labor Code, claims of harassment, discrimination or wrongful
termination and any statutory claims. Executive further understands that this Agreement to arbitrate also applies to any disputes that the
Company may have with Executive.

(b) Procedure. Executive agrees that any arbitration will be administered by the American Arbitration Association (�AAA�) and that a neutral
arbitrator will be selected in a manner consistent with its National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes. The arbitration
proceedings will allow for discovery according to the rules set forth in the National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes or
California Code of Civil Procedure. Executive agrees that the arbitrator shall have the power to decide any motions brought by any party to the
arbitration, including motions for summary judgment and/or adjudication and motions to dismiss and demurrers, prior to any arbitration hearing.
Executive agrees that the arbitrator shall issue a written decision on the merits. Executive also agrees that the arbitrator shall have the power to
award any remedies, including attorneys� fees and costs, available under applicable law. Executive understands the Company will pay for any
administrative or hearing fees charged by the arbitrator or AAA except that Executive shall pay the first $200.00 of any filing fees associated
with any arbitration Executive initiates. Executive agrees that the arbitrator shall administer and conduct any arbitration in a manner consistent
with the Rules and that to the extent that the AAA�s National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes conflict with the Rules, the Rules
shall take precedence.

(c) Remedy. Except as provided by the Rules, arbitration shall be the sole, exclusive and final remedy for any dispute between Executive and the
Company. Accordingly, except as provided for by the Rules, neither Executive nor the Company will be permitted to pursue court action
regarding claims that are subject to arbitration. Notwithstanding, the arbitrator will not have the authority to disregard or refuse to enforce any
lawful Company policy, and the arbitrator shall not order or require the Company to adopt a policy not otherwise required by law which the
Company has not adopted.

(d) Availability of Injunctive Relief. In addition to the right under the Rules to petition the court for provisional relief, Executive agrees that any
party may also petition the court for injunctive relief where either party alleges or claims a violation of this Agreement or the Confidentiality
Agreement or any other agreement regarding trade secrets, confidential information, nonsolicitation or Labor Code §2870. In the event either
party seeks injunctive relief, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable costs and attorneys fees.

(e) Administrative Relief. Executive understands that this Agreement does not prohibit Executive from pursuing an administrative claim with a
local, state or federal administrative body such as the Department of Fair Employment and Housing, the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission or the workers� compensation board. This Agreement does, however, preclude Executive from pursuing court action regarding any
such claim.

(f) Voluntary Nature of Agreement. Executive acknowledges and agrees that Executive is executing this Agreement voluntarily and without any
duress or undue influence by the Company or anyone else. Executive further acknowledges and agrees that Executive has carefully read this
Agreement and that Executive has asked any questions needed for Executive to understand the terms, consequences and binding effect of this
Agreement and fully understand it, including that Executive is waiving Executive�s right to a jury trial. Finally, Executive agrees that Executive
has been provided an opportunity to seek the advice of an attorney of Executive�s choice before signing this Agreement.
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16. Integration. This Agreement, together with the Option Plan, Option Agreement and the Confidential Information Agreement represents the
entire agreement and understanding between the parties as to the subject matter herein and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements
whether written or oral. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be binding unless in writing and
signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto.

17. Tax Withholding. All payments made pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to withholding of applicable taxes.

18. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of California (with the exception of its conflict of laws
provisions).

19. Acknowledgment. Executive acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to discuss this matter with and obtain advice from his private
attorney, has had sufficient time to, and has carefully read and fully understands all the provisions of this Agreement, and is knowingly and
voluntarily entering into this Agreement.

20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each counterpart will have the same force and effect as an original and
will constitute an effective, binding agreement on the part of each of the undersigned.
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Annex H

SECTION 262 OF THE DELAWARE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW

RIGHTS OF DISSENTING STOCKHOLDERS

SECTION 262. APPRAISAL RIGHTS.

(a) Any stockholder of a corporation of this State who holds shares of stock on the date of the making of a demand pursuant to subsection (d) of
this section with respect to such shares, who continuously holds such shares through the effective date of the merger or consolidation, who has
otherwise complied with subsection (d) of this section and who has neither voted in favor of the merger or consolidation nor consented thereto in
writing pursuant to § 228 of this title shall be entitled to an appraisal by the Court of Chancery of the fair value of the stockholder�s shares of
stock under the circumstances described in subsections (b) and (c) of this section. As used in this section, the word �stockholder� means a holder
of record of stock in a stock corporation and also a member of record of a nonstock corporation; the words �stock� and �share� mean and include
what is ordinarily meant by those words and also membership or membership interest of a member of a nonstock corporation; and the words
�depository receipt� mean a receipt or other instrument issued by a depository representing an interest in one or more shares, or fractions thereof,
solely of stock of a corporation, which stock is deposited with the depository.

(b) Appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of any class or Series of stock of a constituent corporation in a merger or consolidation to be
effected pursuant to § 251 (other than a merger effected pursuant to § 251(g) of this title), § 252, § 254, § 257, §258, § 263 or § 264 of this title:

(1) Provided, however, that no appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or Series of stock, which stock, or
depository receipts in respect thereof, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the
meeting of stockholders to act upon the agreement of merger or consolidation, were either (i) listed on a national securities exchange or
designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or
(ii) held of record by more than 2,000 holders; and further provided that no appraisal rights shall be available for any shares of stock of the
constituent corporation surviving a merger if the merger did not require for its approval the vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation
as provided in subsection (f) of § 251 of this title.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) of this subsection, appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or Series of
stock of a constituent corporation if the holders thereof are required by the terms of an agreement of merger or consolidation pursuant to §§ 251,
252, 254, 257, 258, 263 and 264 of this title to accept for such stock anything except:

a. Shares of stock of the corporation surviving or resulting from such merger or consolidation, or depository receipts in respect thereof;

b. Shares of stock of any other corporation, or depository receipts in respect thereof, which shares of stock (or depository receipts in respect
thereof) or depository receipts at the effective date of the merger or consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or
designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or held
of record by more than 2,000 holders;

c. Cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing subparagraphs a. and b. of this paragraph; or

d. Any combination of the shares of stock, depository receipts and cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in
the foregoing subparagraphs a., b. and c. of this paragraph.

(3) In the event all of the stock of a subsidiary Delaware corporation party to a merger effected under § 253 of this title is not owned by the
parent corporation immediately prior to the merger, appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of the subsidiary Delaware corporation.
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(c) Any corporation may provide in its certificate of incorporation that appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any
class or Series of its stock as a result of an amendment to its certificate of incorporation, any merger or consolidation in which the corporation is
a constituent corporation or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation. If the certificate of incorporation contains such a
provision, the procedures of this section, including those set forth in subsections (d) and (e) of this section, shall apply as nearly as is practicable.

(d) Appraisal rights shall be perfected as follows:

(1) If a proposed merger or consolidation for which appraisal rights are provided under this section is to be submitted for approval at a meeting
of stockholders, the corporation, not less than 20 days prior to the meeting, shall notify each of its stockholders who was such on the record date
for such meeting with respect to shares for which appraisal rights are available pursuant to subsection (b) or (c) hereof that appraisal rights are
available for any or all of the shares of the constituent corporations, and shall include in such notice a copy of this section. Each stockholder
electing to demand the appraisal of such stockholder�s shares shall deliver to the corporation, before the taking of the vote on the merger or
consolidation, a written demand for appraisal of such stockholder�s shares. Such demand will be sufficient if it reasonably informs the
corporation of the identity of the stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such stockholder�s shares. A
proxy or vote against the merger or consolidation shall not constitute such a demand. A stockholder electing to take such action must do so by a
separate written demand as herein provided. Within 10 days after the effective date of such merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting
corporation shall notify each stockholder of each constituent corporation who has complied with this subsection and has not voted in favor of or
consented to the merger or consolidation of the date that the merger or consolidation has become effective; or

(2) If the merger or consolidation was approved pursuant to § 228 or § 253 of this title, then, either a constituent corporation before the effective
date of the merger or consolidation, or the surviving or resulting corporation within 10 days thereafter, shall notify each of the holders of any
class or Series of stock of such constituent corporation who are entitled to appraisal rights of the approval of the merger or consolidation and that
appraisal rights are available for any or all shares of such class or Series of stock of such constituent corporation, and shall include in such notice
a copy of this section. Such notice may, and, if given on or after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, shall, also notify such
stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation. Any stockholder entitled to appraisal rights may, within 20 days after the date
of mailing of such notice, demand in writing from the surviving or resulting corporation the appraisal of such holder�s shares. Such demand will
be sufficient if it reasonably informs the corporation of the identity of the stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the
appraisal of such holder�s shares. If such notice did not notify stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation, either (i) each
such constituent corporation shall send a second notice before the effective date of the merger or consolidation notifying each of the holders of
any class or Series of stock of such constituent corporation that are entitled to appraisal rights of the effective date of the merger or consolidation
or (ii) the surviving or resulting corporation shall send such a second notice to all such holders on or within 10 days after such effective date;
provided, however, that if such second notice is sent more than 20 days following the sending of the first notice, such second notice need only be
sent to each stockholder who is entitled to appraisal rights and who has demanded appraisal of such holder�s shares in accordance with this
subsection. An affidavit of the secretary or assistant secretary or of the transfer agent of the corporation that is required to give either notice that
such notice has been given shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein. For purposes of determining the
stockholders entitled to receive either notice, each constituent corporation may fix, in advance, a record date that shall be not more than 10 days
prior to the date the notice is given, provided, that if the notice is given on or after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the record
date shall be such effective date. If no record date is fixed and the notice is given prior to the effective date, the record date shall be the close of
business on the day next preceding the day on which the notice is given.
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(e) Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting corporation or any stockholder who has
complied with subsections (a) and (d) hereof and who is otherwise entitled to appraisal rights, may file a petition in the Court of Chancery
demanding a determination of the value of the stock of all such stockholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time within 60 days after the
effective date of the merger or consolidation, any stockholder shall have the right to withdraw such stockholder�s demand for appraisal and to
accept the terms offered upon the merger or consolidation. Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, any
stockholder who has complied with the requirements of subsections (a) and (d) hereof, upon written request, shall be entitled to receive from the
corporation surviving the merger or resulting from the consolidation a statement setting forth the aggregate number of shares not voted in favor
of the merger or consolidation and with respect to which demands for appraisal have been received and the aggregate number of holders of such
shares. Such written statement shall be mailed to the stockholder within 10 days after such stockholder�s written request for such a statement is
received by the surviving or resulting corporation or within 10 days after expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisal under
subsection (d) hereof, whichever is later.

(f) Upon the filing of any such petition by a stockholder, service of a copy thereof shall be made upon the surviving or resulting corporation,
which shall within 20 days after such service file in the office of the Register in Chancery in which the petition was filed a duly verified list
containing the names and addresses of all stockholders who have demanded payment for their shares and with whom agreements as to the value
of their shares have not been reached by the surviving or resulting corporation. If the petition shall be filed by the surviving or resulting
corporation, the petition shall be accompanied by such a duly verified list. The Register in Chancery, if so ordered by the Court, shall give notice
of the time and place fixed for the hearing of such petition by registered or certified mail to the surviving or resulting corporation and to the
stockholders shown on the list at the addresses therein stated. Such notice shall also be given by 1 or more publications at least 1 week before the
day of the hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Wilmington, Delaware or such publication as the Court deems
advisable. The forms of the notices by mail and by publication shall be approved by the Court, and the costs thereof shall be borne by the
surviving or resulting corporation.

(g) At the hearing on such petition, the Court shall determine the stockholders who have complied with this section and who have become
entitled to appraisal rights. The Court may require the stockholders who have demanded an appraisal for their shares and who hold stock
represented by certificates to submit their certificates of stock to the Register in Chancery for notation thereon of the pendency of the appraisal
proceedings; and if any stockholder fails to comply with such direction, the Court may dismiss the proceedings as to such stockholder.

(h) After determining the stockholders entitled to an appraisal, the Court shall appraise the shares, determining their fair value exclusive of any
element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger or consolidation, together with a fair rate of interest, if any, to be
paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. In determining such fair value, the Court shall take into account all relevant factors. In
determining the fair rate of interest, the Court may consider all relevant factors, including the rate of interest which the surviving or resulting
corporation would have had to pay to borrow money during the pendency of the proceeding. Upon application by the surviving or resulting
corporation or by any stockholder entitled to participate in the appraisal proceeding, the Court may, in its discretion, permit discovery or other
pretrial proceedings and may proceed to trial upon the appraisal prior to the final determination of the stockholder entitled to an appraisal. Any
stockholder whose name appears on the list filed by the surviving or resulting corporation pursuant to subsection (f) of this section and who has
submitted such stockholder�s certificates of stock to the Register in Chancery, if such is required, may participate fully in all proceedings until it
is finally determined that such stockholder is not entitled to appraisal rights under this section.

(i) The Court shall direct the payment of the fair value of the shares, together with interest, if any, by the surviving or resulting corporation to the
stockholders entitled thereto. Interest may be simple or compound, as the Court may direct. Payment shall be so made to each such stockholder,
in the case of holders of uncertificated stock forthwith, and the case of holders of shares represented by certificates upon the surrender to the
corporation
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of the certificates representing such stock. The Court�s decree may be enforced as other decrees in the Court of Chancery may be enforced,
whether such surviving or resulting corporation be a corporation of this State or of any state.

(j) The costs of the proceeding may be determined by the Court and taxed upon the parties as the Court deems equitable in the circumstances.
Upon application of a stockholder, the Court may order all or a portion of the expenses incurred by any stockholder in connection with the
appraisal proceeding, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney�s fees and the fees and expenses of experts, to be charged pro rata against
the value of all the shares entitled to an appraisal.

(k) From and after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, no stockholder who has demanded appraisal rights as provided in subsection
(d) of this section shall be entitled to vote such stock for any purpose or to receive payment of dividends or other distributions on the stock
(except dividends or other distributions payable to stockholders of record at a date which is prior to the effective date of the merger or
consolidation); provided, however, that if no petition for an appraisal shall be filed within the time provided in subsection (e) of this section, or if
such stockholder shall deliver to the surviving or resulting corporation a written withdrawal of such stockholder�s demand for an appraisal and an
acceptance of the merger or consolidation, either within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation as provided in
subsection (e) of this section or thereafter with the written approval of the corporation, then the right of such stockholder to an appraisal shall
cease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no appraisal proceeding in the Court of Chancery shall be dismissed as to any stockholder without the
approval of the Court, and such approval may be conditioned upon such terms as the Court deems just.

(l) The shares of the surviving or resulting corporation to which the shares of such objecting stockholders would have been converted had they
assented to the merger or consolidation shall have the status of authorized and unissued shares of the surviving or resulting corporation. (Last
amended by Ch. 82, L. �01, eff. 7-1-01.)
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Sections 204 (a) and 317 of the California Corporations Code authorize a corporation to indemnify its directors and officers against certain
liabilities and to eliminate their liability to the corporation except in certain circumstances. The Registrant�s Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation contain a provision eliminating the liability of the Registrant�s directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent permitted by
California law. The Registrant�s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation also contain a provision pursuant to which the Registrant is
authorized to indemnify its directors, officers, employees and other agents through bylaw provisions in excess of the indemnification permitted
by Section 317 of the California Corporations Code subject only to the applicable limits as set forth in Section 204 of the California
Corporations Code. In addition, the Registrant�s bylaws contain a provision limiting the liability of the Registrant�s directors for monetary
damages to the fullest extent permitted by California law and providing for indemnification to its directors, officers, employees and other agents.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit
Number Description

  2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of January 25, 2006, by and among Nanometrics Incorporated,
Alloy Merger Corporation, Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. and Sanford S. Wadler, as Stockholder Agent. (1)

  3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Nanometrics Incorporated. (2)

  3.2 Restated Bylaws of Nanometrics Incorporated. (3)

  3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Nanometrics Incorporated. (4)

  4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Nanometrics Incorporated. (5)

  5.1 Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation regarding the validity of the securities registered
hereunder.

  8.1 Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation relating to tax matters. (6)

  8.2 Opinion of Perkins Coie LLP relating to tax matters. (6)

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (related to the consolidated financial
statements of Nanometrics Incorporated).

23.2 Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (related to the consolidated financial
statements of Nanometrics Incorporated).

23.3 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants (related to the consolidated financial statements of Accent
Optical Technologies, Inc.).

23.4 Consent of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation (included in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1).

23.5 Consent of Perkins Coie LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2).

24.1 Power of Attorney (included in Part II to this Registration Statement).

99.1 Consent of Cowen & Co., LLC.
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Exhibit
Number Description

99.2 Consent of Merrill, Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.

99.3 Consent of Persons Named to Become Directors.

99.4 Form of Proxy of Nanometrics Incorporated.

99.5 Form of Proxy of Accent Optical Technologies, Inc.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Nanometrics� Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on January 21, 2005.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Nanometrics� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with

the SEC on March 28, 2003.
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 of Nanometrics� Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, filed with

the SEC on April 1, 1998.
(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 of Nanometrics� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed with

the SEC on March 30, 2001.
(5) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to Nanometrics� Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 2-93949), which became

effective on November 28, 1984.
(6) To be filed by amendment.
Item 22. Undertakings

(1) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes as follows: that prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use
of a prospectus which is a part of this registration statement, by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of
Rule 145(c), the issuer undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the applicable registration form with
respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to the information called for by the other items of the applicable
form.

(2) The registrant undertakes that every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (i) immediately preceding, or (ii) that purports to meet
the requirements of Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the �Act�), and is used in connection with an offering of securities subject to
Rule 415, will be filed as a part of an amendment to the registration statement and will not be used until such amendment is effective, and that,
for purposes of determining any liability under the Act, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement
relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

(3) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each filing of the
registrant�s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of
an employee benefit plan�s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in
the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(4) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant
pursuant to the foregoing provisions hereof, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is
against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities
(other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the
successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities
being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction the
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question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of
such issue.

(5) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus
pursuant to Items 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by
first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the
registration statement through the date of responding to the request.

(6) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction,
and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the registration statement when it became effective.

(7) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(A) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Act;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective
amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration
statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered
would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be
reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Act if, in the aggregate, the changes in amount
and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the �Calculation of Registration Fee�
table in the effective registration statement;

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any
material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (A)(i) and (A)(ii) do not apply if the registration statement is on Form S-3, Form S-8 or Form F-3, and the
information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to
the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference into
the registration statement.

(B) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to
be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

(C) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Nanometrics Incorporated has duly caused this Registration Statement to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized at Milpitas, California, on April 5, 2006.

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

By: /s/    DOUGLAS J. MCCUTCHEON        

Douglas J. McCutcheon

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN AND WOMEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John D.
Heaton his or her attorney-in-fact for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Registration Statement, and to file the same,
with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorney-in-fact may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 5, 2006.

Signature Title

/S/    VINCENT J. COATES        

Vincent J. Coates

Chairman of the Board and Secretary

/S/    JOHN D. HEATON        

John D. Heaton

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

/S/    DOUGLAS J. MCCUTCHEON        

Douglas J. McCutcheon

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President (Principal
Financial Officer)

/S/    QUENTIN WRIGHT        

Quentin Wright

Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

/S/    WILLIAM OLDHAM        

William Oldham

Director

/S/    EDMOND R. WARD        

Edmond R. Ward

Director

/S/    STEPHEN J SMITH        Director
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Stephen J Smith

J. Thomas Bentley

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description

  2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of January 25, 2006, by and among Nanometrics Incorporated,
Alloy Merger Corporation, Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. and Sanford S. Wadler, as Stockholder Agent. (1)

  3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Nanometrics Incorporated. (2)

  3.2 Restated Bylaws of Nanometrics Incorporated. (3)

  3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Nanometrics Incorporated. (4)

  4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Nanometrics Incorporated. (5)

  5.1 Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation regarding the validity of the securities registered
hereunder.

  8.1 Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation relating to tax matters. (6)

  8.2 Opinion of Perkins Coie LLP relating to tax matters. (6)

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (related to the consolidated financial
statements of Nanometrics Incorporated).

23.2 Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (related to the consolidated financial
statements of Nanometrics Incorporated).

23.3 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants (related to the consolidated financial statements of Accent
Optical Technologies, Inc.).

23.4 Consent of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation (included in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1).

23.5 Consent of Perkins Coie LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2).

24.1 Power of Attorney (included in Part II to this Registration Statement).

99.1 Consent of Cowen & Co., LLC.

99.2 Consent of Merrill, Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.

99.3 Consent of Persons Named to Become Directors.

99.4 Form of Proxy of Nanometrics Incorporated.

99.5 Form of Proxy of Accent Optical Technologies Inc.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Nanometrics� Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on January 21, 2005.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Nanometrics� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2003.

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 of Nanometrics� Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 1, 1998.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 of Nanometrics� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2001.

(5) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to Nanometrics� Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 2-93949), which became
effective on November 28, 1984.

(6) To be filed by amendment.
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